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55th Annual Meeting of Delegates 

Tempe Mission Palms
 
Tempe, Arizona
 

October 7 – 11, 2015 

Wednesday, October 7, 2015 
5:30 -7:00 pm 
Mission Grille Restaurant 

Dinner for Board/College Chairs (Invitation Only) 

7:00 – 9:00 pm 
2nd Floor Pool Terrace Deck 

Registration and Welcome Reception 

Thursday, October 8, 2015 
6:00 am 
Campanile 

Office 

7:30 am 
Palm Foyer 

Registration 

7:30 – 8:45 am 
Colonnade 

Orientation Breakfast for First Time Attendees Stephen DeMers 
Amy Hilson 
Alex Siegel 

7:30 – 8:45 am 
Cloister Conference Dining 

General Breakfast 

9:00 am 
Palm Ballroom A-D 

General Session – Business Meeting 
• Call to Order 
• Welcome Remarks 

• ASPPB President 
• Governor’s Office Representative 
• Arizona Board Representative 
• Mayor of Tempe 

• Introduction of Board of Directors and Staff 

• Certification of Delegate Attendance 
• Approval of Minutes of 54th Annual 

Meeting 

• Continuing Education Instructions 

• Chief Executive Officer’s Report 

• Financial Report 

• Nominations Committee Report with 
Nominations from the Floor 

Martha Storie 

Martha Storie 

Fred Wechsler, Board President 
Mayor Mark Mitchell 

Stephen DeMers 

Karen Messer-Engel 
Karen Messer-Engel 

Jacqueline Horn 

Stephen DeMers 

Daniel Collins 

Fred Millán 



 
  

  
  

 

 
  

     
 

 

    
 

 

   
 

  

  
 

  

 

  
   

 
 

 
 

   

  
     

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

   
 

  

      
  

 
  
   

 

 
 

 
 

  

 

   
 

  

  
 

  
  

 

    
 

  
 

    
      

 
   

 
  

   
 

 
    

  
  

   
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

    

10:30 am 
Palm Courtyard 
Break Station East 

Break 
Break stations are provided on a continuing basis throughout the day.  Please step 
out of the meeting any time you need anything. 

10:45 am Presentations by Nominees for Office Fred Millán, Moderator 

11:15 am Introduction of Annual Meeting Committee 

Meeting Overview and Introduction of Theme 

Fred Millán 

Fred Millán 

11:30 am Celebrating 50 Years of Psychology in Arizona Cindy Olvey 

12:00 pm 
Cloister Conference Dining 

Lunch 

Trends and Issues in Regulation – Session 1 
1:15 pm (CE credits start) Public Expectation of Regulatory Boards David Swankin, Citizen Advocacy 

2:00 pm Overview of Current Regulatory Issues 
and Decisions 

History and Trends in Psychology Regulation 

Q & A 

Dale Atkinson/Amy Richardson 

Stephen DeMers 

3:30 pm Break 

3:45 pm Panel – Current Regulatory Challenges 
• Sexual Orientation Change 

Efforts/Conscience Clauses 
• Prescriptive Authority 
• Questions of Who has Authority 

Q & A 

Martha Storie, Moderator 
Herb Stewart 

Darla Burnett 
Brian Judy 

4:45 pm Adjourn 

5:00 – 6:30 pm 
Palm Ballroom A-D 

Open Forum Fred Millán 
Stephen DeMers 

6:30 pm Dinner on your own 

Friday, October 9, 2015 

7:30 am Office 
7:30 am - Palm Foyer Registration 

7:30 – 8:45 am 
Cloister Conference Dining 

General Breakfast 

9:00 am 
Palm Ballroom A-D 

General Session 
• Call to Order & Announcements Martha Storie 

Regulatory Challenges Presented by Changes in Education and Training 
– Session 2 

9:15 am Overview of Trends in Training 

Internship and Post-Doc Update 

Q & A 

Sharon Lightfoot 
Philip Smith 

Jeff Baker 

10:15 am Balloting Instructions Amy Hilson 



    
   

 
  
    
   
  

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

  

   
  

 
 
 
 

  
    
   
   
   
  

 

   
    

 
 

  
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

   
 

  

   
             
 

         
 

  
  
   

 
 

 

 
 

 
  
 

 

    
  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

  
 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

  
   

  
  

 
     

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

10:25 am Balloting and Break 
10:45 am Regulatory Challenges Related to Training 

• Distance Education 
• Post-doc vs. no Post-doc - Mobility 
• Program vs. School Accreditation 
• Master’s level independent licensure 

Q & A 

Sharon Lightfoot, Moderator 

Sharon Lightfoot 
Ken Drude 
Bill Hathaway 
Karen Messer-Engel 

11:45 am Election Results Announced Fred Millán 

12:00 pm Awards Luncheon 
Palm Ballroom E-F • Presentation of Annual ASPPB Awards 

• Recognition of Outgoing Past-President by Martha Storie 
• Remarks of Outgoing Past-President, Fred Millán 
• Recognition of Outgoing President by Don Crowder 
• Remarks of Outgoing President, Martha Storie 

Emerging Areas of Practice and Regulatory Challenges – Session 3 
1:45 pm Overview of Emerging Practice Areas 

Specialties and Certification 

Q & A 

Karen Cohen 
Jana Martin 

David Cox 

2:45 pm Break 

3:00 pm Panel – Regulatory Challenges Related to 
Changes in Practice 

• Integrated Practice 
• Telepsychology 
• “When Practice Expectations Conflict with 

Ethics” 

Q & A 

Don Meck, Moderator 

Bob Bohanske 
Marsha Sauls 
Sheila Young 

4:15 pm Recess 
6:00 – 9:00 pm 

President’s Dinner Join us tonight at Rawhide Western Town! 

We encourage you to wear your western gear, 
so bring along your cowboy hat, spurs, boots 
and chaps, if you have them.  We promise a 
great night spent in the Arizona desert. 

A fun-filled evening in an old Western town 
- complete with great food, fantastic band 

and LOTS of attractions to keep you 
“on your toes”! 

Buses leave the Tempe Mission Palms Hotel 
at 6:00 pm for the short 20-minute ride to 
Rawhide.  You will be met by the “locals” 

and welcomed in true cowboy-style! 

Buses will return to hotel by 9:45 pm. 

~~~~~~~~~~ 

All Aboard American Bus line 
from Mesa, Arizona 

Chartering confidence since 1936 

Certified, Bonded and Approved 



 
 

 
   

          
 

 

   
 

   
 

 

    
 

  
 

 

  
 

   

    
 

 
                             

 

   
 

  
  

 
     

 

 
  

 
 

 

   
 

  

   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 
 

   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

   
 

 

  

  
 
 

  
   
   
   
   
   

 
 

 

   
 

 

      
  

 
                                               

  
 

 

  
  

 

   
 

 

Saturday, October 10, 2015 

6:00 am Office 

6:30 am –FRONT ENTRANCE “THE FUN RUN!” – ASPPB’s 4th Annual 5K Fun Run/Walk 

7:30 am 
Palm Foyer 

Registration Area 

7:30–8:45 am 
Cloister Conference Dining 

General Breakfast 

7:30 – 8:45 am 
Cavetto Room 

Attorney Roundtable Breakfast Alex Siegel, Moderator 

9:00 am – 
Palm Ballroom A-D 

General Session 
• Call to Order and Announcements Martha Storie 

Local and National Efforts to Address Challenges to Public Protection – Session 4 

9:00 am Jurisdictional Attempts to Address Regulatory 
Challenges to Public Protection 

ATTENDEE PARTICIPATION 

Amy Richardson, 
Moderator 

10:15 am Break 

10:30 am Selected ASPPB Initiatives to Address Regulatory 
Challenges 

PSYPACT 

Common Rules Task Force Report 

PLUS 

Practitioner Database 

Supervision Updates 

Competency Assessment 

Fred Millán, Moderator 

Fred Millán 

Don Crowder 

Joe Rallo 

Sharon Lightfoot 

Carol Webb 

Jacqueline Horn 

12:30 pm 
Cloister Conference Dining 

Lunch 

1:15 pm Small Group Workshops 
• Group 1 (Colonnade Room) 
• Group 2 (Cavetto Room) 
• Group 3 (Augustine Room) 
• Group 4 (Capistrano Room) 
• Group 5 (Ironstone Room) 

Rotating Moderators & 
Scribes 

2:45 pm Recess 

New Board Member Training – Session 5 ­ (Optional) 
3:00 – 4:00 pm 
Colonnade Room 

New Board Member Training Alex Siegel 

Dinner on your own 

7:00 – 9:00 pm 
2nd Floor Pool Terrace 

President’s Dessert Reception 



   
 

  
 

  

  
 

  

     
  

 

  
 

 

  
 

 
                                                      

 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
  

 
 
 
 

  
 

 
  

 
 

   

 

Sunday, October 11, 2015 

7:30 am Office 

8:00 am Registration Area 

7:30 - 8:30 am 
Cloister Conference Dining 

General Breakfast 

9:00 am 
Palm Ballroom A-D 

General Session 
• Call to Order     Martha Storie 

9:15 am Reports from Small Groups 

Open Forum/Jurisdictional Updates 

Installation of New Officers 
• New President’s Remarks 

Fred Millán 
Don Crowder 

11:00 am Adjourn Don Crowder 



       

       

    

      

    

 

    

  

  

 

  

  

  

    

   

 

   

  

 

   

 

 

   

   

 

  

  

  

 

       

    

 

 

   

    

   

   

  

 

 

 
      

  
     

 
     

 
     

 
     

 
      
     
     

 
     

 
 

      

 
 

     

President 
Martha N. Storie 

Chief Executive Officer 
Stephen T. DeMers, EdD 

Past President 
Fred Millán, PhD, ABPP, NCC 

President-Elect 
Don L. Crowder, PhD 

Secretary-Treasurer 
Karen Messer-Engel, MA, RPsych 

Members at Large 
Donald S. Meck, PhD, JD, ABPP 
Sharon Lightfoot, PhD 
C. Gerald O’Brien, PhD 

Chief Operating Officer 
Carol Webb, PhD, ABPP 

Associate Executive Officer 
Exams & Governance 

Amy C. Hilson, BA, CAE 

Associate Executive Officer 
Member Services 

Janet Pippin Orwig, MBA 

A s s o c i a t i o n o f S t a t e a n d P r o v i n c i a l P s y c h o l o g y B o a r d s 

S e r v i n g m e m b e r j u r i s d i c t i o n s b y p r o m o t i n g e x c e l l e n c e i n 

r e g u l a t i o n a n d a d v a n c i n g p u b l i c p r o t e c t i o n . 

Welcome to the 55th Annual Meeting of Delegates at the Mission Palms Hotel in 

Tempe, Arizona. We are especially pleased to be meeting in Arizona this year to 

join the Arizona Board of Psychologist Examiners in celebrating 50 years of 

psychology regulation in the State.  The theme for this meeting is Five Decades of 

Change in Psychology:  Regulatory, Training and Practice Trends and Directions. 

Included will be discussions about trends and issues in regulation, regulatory 

challenges with changes in education and training, emerging areas of practice and 

regulatory challenges, and local and national efforts to address challenges to public 

protection. You can find more information about the specific presentations from 

speakers focusing on the main theme of the meeting in the detailed agenda.  In 

addition to a very interesting program, delegates will be electing a President-Elect, 

Secretary-Treasurer, and 1st Year Member-At-Large. The candidate statements are 

available under the Regulatory Board Access tab on the ASPPB website. 

There are a couple of new activities planned for this year’s meeting.  First, there is a 

dinner meeting scheduled on Wednesday evening (prior to the Welcome Reception) 

specifically for the Chairs/Presidents of Boards/Colleges.  This opportunity was 

added based on previous comments from meeting attendees, and is a dedicated time 

in which Chairs/Presidents can come together to discuss issues that face leaders of 

regulatory boards.  Second, there is an Open Forum on Thursday afternoon that will 

allow attendees more time to discuss current regulatory challenges.  

As usual, there are multiple opportunities for informal networking with other
 
attendees.  Join us on Wednesday evening at the Welcome Reception to catch up 

with old friends and meet new ones.  Also, plan to attend the President’s Dinner on 

Friday evening at the Rawhide Western Town.  This is a casual event, so please dress 

to be comfortable.  Of course, given the venue, you are encouraged to wear your 

western apparel—hats, boots, etc.—have fun with it!  Then, we hope to see you 

bright and early on Saturday morning for the 4th Annual 5K Fun Run/Walk.  Finally, 

come to the President’s Reception on Saturday evening on the pool terrace for a 

dessert reception and relaxing time after you return from dinner. 

A big “thank you” goes out to our Annual Meeting Committee and ASPPB staff who 

have devoted their time and expertise to plan this informative program: Fred Millán 

(Chair), Sharon Lightfoot, Gerald O’Brien, Steve DeMers, Phillip Cooker, Mary Jo 

Atherton, Bob Bohanske, Amy Hilson, Janet Orwig, Anita Scott, Alex Siegel, and 

Jackie Horn.  

I am confident that you will enjoy the meeting, have a wonderful time, and gain
 
information that will be useful to you in your regulatory role.  If you have any
 
questions or comments, or need assistance in any way, please do not hesitate to 

contact any Board or Staff member.
 

Again, welcome! 

Martha N. Storie
 
President
 





   

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

ASPPB 2015 Annual Meeting Committee 

Fred Millán, PhD, ABPP, NCC, Chairman
 

Sharon Lightfoot, PhD
 

C. Gerald O’Brien, PhD
 

Stephen T. DeMers, EdD
 

Phillip G. Cooker, PhD
 

Mary Jo Atherton
 

Bob Bohanske, PhD
 



   

  
      

 
  

 
      

    
 

  
      

     
  

   
 

     
     

  

  
 

 
     

     
   

     
     

 
  

  
     

    
   

2015 ASPPB Board of Directors
 

President:  Martha N. Storie 
2419 Friendship Church Road  Boone, NC  28607
 

Phone:  (828) 264-1960
 
E-mail: mnstorie@gmail.com
 

President-Elect: Don L. Crowder, PhD 
2091 Ridge Drive  Lake Geneva, WI 53147


Phone: (262) 248-5147

E-mail: doncrowder01@gmail.com
 

Past-President:  Fred Millán, PhD, ABPP, NCC 
333 West 57th Street, Ste. 103  New York, NY  10019 

Phone:  (212) 541-8869  Fax:  (718) 224-9786 
E-mail: fredmillan22@gmail.com 

Secretary-Treasurer: Karen Messer-Engel, MA, RPsych 
Saskatchewan College of Psychologists


1026 Winnipeg Street  Regina, SK  S4R 8P8  Canada
 
Phone:  (306)352-1699  Fax:  (306) 352-1697
 

E-mail: registrar.skcp@sasktel.net
 

3rd Year Member-at-Large:  Donald S. Meck, PhD, JD, ABPP 
Psychologist/Attorney


Georgia Board of Examiners of Psychologists

2278D Moody Road  Warner Robins, GA  31088
 
Phone:  (478) 929-0294  Fax:  (478) 923-9770
 

E-mail: dsm@psy.mgacoxmail.com
 

2nd Year Member-at-Large: Sharon Lightfoot, PhD 
4231 Laclede Ave.  St. Louis, MO  63108
 

Phone:  (314) 289-9981
 
E-mail: lightfootphd@sbcglobal.net
 

1st Year Member-at-Large: C. Gerald O’Brien, PhD
640 Lakeland East Drive, Suite F  Jackson, MS  39232
 

Phone:  (601) 664-6730
 
Email: drob@netdoor.com
 

mailto:mnstorie@gmail.com
mailto:fredmillan22@gmail.com
mailto:registrar.skcp@sasktel.net
mailto:dsm@psy.mgacoxmail.com
mailto:lightfootphd@sbcglobal.net
mailto:drob@netdoor.com
mailto:doncrowder01@gmail.com


   

 
 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
   

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

 
  

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

ASPPB Office Staff
 

Chief Executive Officer 
Stephen T. DeMers, EdD

sdemers@asppb.org 

Chief Operating Officer
Carol Webb, PhD, ABPP

cwebb@asppb.org 

Associate Executive Officer Associate Executive Officer, Member Services 
Exam & Governance 

Amy C. Hilson, BA, CAE
ahilson@asppb.org 

Executive Director, PSYPACT
Janet Pippin Orwig, MBA

jorwig@asppb.org 

Director of Regulatory Affairs
Jacqueline Horn, PhD

jhorn@asppb.org 

Director of Meetings & Events
Anita L. Scott, CMP, CMM

ascott@asppb.org 

Director of Examination Services Director of Member Services 
Matt Turner, PhD

mturner@asppb.org 
Taja Slaughter

tslaughter@asppb.org 

Director of Professional Affairs 
Alex M. Siegel, JD, PhD

asiegel@asppb.org 

Psychology Licensure Universal System Director
Joseph S. Rallo, PhD

drjoerallo@gmail.com 

EPPP Item Development Program Manager
Emelyn East, BS 

eeast@asppb.org 

Financial Officer 
Mark D. Russell, CPA
russell@asppb.org 

Executive Assistant 
Lisa McDowell 

Member Service Special Projects Coordinator, 
PSYPACT Coordinator 

lmcdowell@asppb.org Lisa Russo 
lrusso@asppb.org 

Executive Assistant, Exam & Governance
Jamie Orgeron

jorgeron@asppb.org 

Executive Assistant, Member Services 
Robin Pence 

rpence@asppb.org 

Mobility Program Assist.
John Mickley

jmickley@asppb.org 

Member Services Representative
Veronica L. Zambuto 

vzambuto@asppb.org 

mailto:sdemers@asppb.org
mailto:cwebb@asppb.org
mailto:ahilson@asppb.org
mailto:jorwig@asppb.org
mailto:jhorn@asppb.org
mailto:ascott@asppb.org
mailto:mturner@asppb.org
mailto:tslaughter@asppb.org
mailto:asiegel@asppb.org
mailto:drjoerallo@gmail.com
mailto:eeast@asppb.org
mailto:russell@asppb.org
mailto:spoteet@asppb.org
mailto:lrusso@asppb.org
mailto:jorgeron@asppb.org
mailto:eeast@asppb.org
mailto:jmickley@asppb.org
mailto:vzambuto@asppb.org


   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 
 

 
 

  
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

  
 

 
 
 

  
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

ASPPB Office Staff,
 
Continued
 

Administrative Associate 
Mary Bonner

mbonner@asppb.org 

PLUS Application Specialist
Emily Hensler

ehensler@asppb.org 

PLUS Application Specialist
Karen Pawlowski 

kpawlowski@asppb.org 

PLUS Application Specialist
Julie Carper

jcarper@asppb.org 

Assistant Director of Meetings & Events
Kim Jordan 

kjordan@asppb.org 

Administrative Assistant, Examination Services
Leslie Browning

lbrowning@asppb.org 

Legislative Specialist
Elizabeth Gonzalez 

egonzalez@asppb.org 

mailto:mbonner@asppb.org
mailto:ehensler@asppb.org
mailto:kpawlowski@asppb.org
mailto:jcarper@asppb.org
mailto:kpawlowski@asppb.org
mailto:kpawlowski@asppb.org
mailto:egonzalez@asppb.org


Join us for a Fun Friday Night 
October 9, 2015 

ASPPB’s President’s Dinner 
at 

Rawhide Western Town 

Buses leave the Tempe Mission Palms at 
6:00 pm for the 20 minute drive to Rawhide! 

(be prepared for several surprises!) 

Return Buses will Depart Rawhide at 9:45 pm 

Great Chuckwagon Barbeque 
Campfire Chats Under the Stars 

Fun Dance Band 
ASPPB’s Own Personal Photo Booth 

Visit the General Store, Candy Emporium, and 
Blacksmith Shop while strolling the town 

Casual, Comfortable Dress 
(Jeans) or Western wear 



ASPPB 2016 

Midyear 

Meeting
 

ASPPB 2016 

Midyear Meeting 

May 4 − 7, 2016 

Hilton Anchorage 
Room rate: $149 

Online and Hotel Registration Opens 
January 15, 2106 

Wednesday, May 4, 2016 
BOD Open Session 
BARC Meeting 
Welcome Reception 

Thursday, May 5, 2016 
Opening General Session 

Friday, May 6, 2016 
General Session & Small Groups 

Saturday, May 7, 2016 
Closing General Session 
(Ending at 12 noon) 



 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ASPPB Annual	
  Meeting	
  of Delegates

Orientation to ASPPB	
  for First Time Attendees

Thursday,	
  October	
  8, 2015from
7:30 a.m. – 8:45 a.m.

Colonnade	
  – First Floor

I.	 Introduction	
  & Welcome Stephen DeMers, EdD
A. Purpose of New	
  Attendee Orientation	 Chief	
  Executive Officer	
  
B. Mission of ASPPB

II.	 History of ASPPB 
A.	 Founded	
  in 1961 

1.	 APA Committee on State Licensure 
2.	 Twenty-­‐five	
  charter members 
3.	 International in scope from beginning 

B.	 Primary purposes were standardization of requirements

for licensure, facilitation of mobility, and the creation of a

standardized exam


C.	 Steady growth in ASPPB membership through the

seventies

1.	 By 1971 54 jurisdictions had joined 
2.	 Currently ASPPB has 64 member boards including
 

10 Canadian provinces
 
3.	 Individual Members 
4.	 Affiliate Members 
5.	 Rapid expansion in the 1990’s 
6.	 Central Office moved to metropolitan Atlanta area in
 

2010

D.	 Largest Representative Body of Psychology Credentialing

Boards

1.	 Includes all 50 U.S. states, the District of Columbia, 10
 

Canadian provinces, and 3 U.S. territories: Guam,
Puerto Rico, and the U.S. Virgin Islands


2.	 Includes boards with various administrative structures
 
(e.g., private and government management,
autonomous and omnibus boards)


III.	 ASPPB’s	
  Leadership Role in the Profession 
A.	 HRSA Grant 

B.	 Minimum Data Set Grant 

C.	 International Project	
  on Competence in Psychology 

D.	 Liaison Activities are Extensive
 

Liaisons To Other Organizations:

1.	 American Board of Professional Psychology (ABPP) 

jorgeron
Rectangle



 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Orientation to ASPPB for First Time Attendees 
October 8, 2015 
Page	
  2 of 7

2.	 Association of Canadian Psychology Regulatory
Organizations (ACPRO)

3.	 American Psychological Association (APA) Council of
Representatives

4.	 American Psychological Association of Graduate
Students (APAGS)

5.	 APA Board of Educational Affairs (BEA)
6.	 APA Board of Professional Affairs (BPA)
7.	 APA Committee for the Advancement	
  of Professional

Practice (CAPP)
8.	 APA Committee on Early Career Psychologists (CECP)
9.	 APA Education Leadership Conference (ELC)
10. APA State Leadership Conference (SLC)
11. Association of Counseling Center Training Agencies

(ACCTA) corresponding
12. Association of Psychology Postdoctoral and Internship

Centers (APPIC)
13. Canadian Council of Professional Psychology Programs

(CCPPP) corresponding
14. Canadian Psychological Association (CPA)
15. Canadian Psychological Association Accreditation Panel

corresponding
16. Canadian Register of Health Service Providers in

Psychology (CRHSPP) corresponding
17. Commission on Accreditation (CoA) corresponding
18. Council of Chairs of Training Councils (CCTC)
19. Council of Counseling Psychology Training Programs

(CCPTP)	
  corresponding
20. APA Council of Executives of State, Provincial and

Territorial Psychological Associations (CESPPA)
corresponding

21. Council of Specialties in Professional Psychology (CoS)
corresponding

22. Council of University Directors of Clinical Psychology
(CUDCP)	
  corresponding

23. Council on Licensure, Enforcement	
  and Regulation 
(CLEAR)

24. Federation of Associations of Regulatory Boards (FARB)
25. Institute for Credentialing Excellence (ICE)

corresponding
26. National Council of Schools and Programs of 

Professional Psychology (NCSPP)
27. National Register of Health Service Providers in

Psychology (NR)



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Orientation to ASPPB for First Time Attendees 
October 8, 2015 
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28. Society for Industrial and Organizational Psychology
(SIOP, APA Division 14) corresponding

29. Society of Consulting Psychology (APA Division 13)
corresponding

Liaisons From Other Organizations:
1.	 American Board of Professional Psychology (ABPP)
2.	 APA Board of Directors
3.	 APA Board of Educational Affairs
4.	 APA Board of Professional Affairs
5.	 APA Committee on Early Career Psychologists (CECP)
6.	 APA Council of Representatives
7.	 APA Practice Organization
8.	 APA Committee for the Advancement	
  of Professional

Practice
9.	 American Psychological Association of Graduate

Students (APAGS)
10. Association of Canadian Psychology Regulatory

Organizations (ACPRO)
11. Association of Counseling Center Training Agencies

(ACCTA)
12. Association of Psychology Postdoctoral and Internship

Centers (APPIC)
13. Canadian Council of Professional Psychology Programs

(CCPPP)
14. Canadian Psychological Association (CPA)
15. CPA Accreditation Panel 
16. Commission on Accreditation (CoA) 
17. Council of Chairs of Training Councils (CCTC)
18. Council of Counseling Psychology Training Programs

(CCPTP)
19. Council of Executives of State, Provincial and Territorial

Psychological Associations (CESPPA)
20. Council of Specialties in Professional Psychology (CoS)
21. Council of University Directors of Clinical Psychology

(CUDCP)
22. National Council of Schools and Programs of

Professional Psychology (NCSPP)
23. Society for Industrial and Organizational Psychology

(SIOP -­‐ APA Division 14)
24. Society of Consulting Psychology (APA Division 13) 



 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Orientation to ASPPB for First Time Attendees 
October 8, 2015 
Page	
  4 of 7

IV.	 Member Services Alex Siegel, JD, PhD
A. Member Board Training Director of 

Professional Affairs 

B. Consultation with member jurisdictions around pending
legislation, policies & procedures, legal issues, etc.

C. ASPPB	
  Listserv

D.	 www.asppb.net
1.	 Regulatory Board Access Section
2.	 Association Software

E.	 ASPPB Disciplinary Data	
  System (DDS)
1.	 Reporting agent	
  for boards to the National 

Practitioner Data	
  Base

F.	 Programs to Promote Professional Mobility
1.	 History of ASPPB’s Promotion of Mobility
2.	 Agreement	
  of Reciprocity
3.	 Certificate of Professional Qualification in Psychology

(CPQ)
4.	 Interjurisdictional Practice Certificate (IPC)
5.	 Psychology Licensure Universal System (PLUS)
6.	 ASPPB Score Transfer Service
7.	 ASPPB Closed Records Verification Service (CRVS)
8.	 Psychology Interjurisdictional Compact	
  (PSYPACT)

G. Model Guidelines and Other Resources
1.	 ASPPB Model Act	
  for Licensure and Registration of

Psychologists
2.	 ASPPB Model Regulations for Licensure and

Registration of Psychologists
3.	 ASPPB Code of Conduct
4.	 ASPPB	
  Supervision Guidelines for Education and

Training Leading to Licensure as a Health Service
Provider

5.	 ASPPB Guidelines on Practicum Experience for
Licensure

6.	 ASPPB Competencies Expected for Psychologists
7.	 ASPPB Continuing Professional Development	
  


Guidelines
8.	 Handbook of Licensure and Certification Requirements

for Psychologists in North America
9.	 ASPPB	
  Telepsychology Task Force Principles/Standards

www.asppb.net	�
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October 8, 2015 
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10. APA/ASPPB/TRUST Guidelines for the Practice of
Telepsychology.	
  

V.	 ASPPB Examination Program Amy Hilson, CAE
A.	 Examination	
  for Professional	
  Practice in Psychology	
   Associate Executive 

(EPPP) Officer for Exams 
1.	 Exam Committee organized in 1963 Governance 

2.	 First	
  EPPP administered in 1964
a) Rapidly accepted by the jurisdictions
b) Now used by all jurisdictions in the US and Canada	
  

except	
  Quebec where it	
  is used only for applicants
not	
  educated within the province

3.	 Moved to computer based testing (CBT) in May 2001
a) Prior to this, used raw scores
b) Scaled scoring is required with computer based

testing (CBT) – implemented with CBT in 2001
c) ASPPB	
  recommends passing scores

(1) 500 for	
  independent	
  practice
(2) 450 for supervised practice

4.	 Setting the Pass Point	
  
a) Practice Analysis in 2010 followed by Standard

Setting Study in 2011
b) No change in recommended passing scores

5.	 Exam Development
a) General Overview
b) Selecting Exam Committee members
c) Process for developing and evaluating items
d) Mechanism for selecting items
e) Pilot	
  testing items
f) Statistical analysis

6.	 Changed exam vendor effective February 1, 2015
a) Pearson for online candidate

application/management	
  system
b)	 Pearson VUE for Exam Development	
  and Testing

Centers
(1) Immediate score feedback at test	
  center	
  
upon completion of EPPP
(2)	 Immediate performance feedback by domain
to failing candidates at no cost

c) Relationship of Test	
  Vendor and ASPPB
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7.	 Exam Accommodations
a) Costs assumed by ASPPB in March 2013
b) Partnership between jurisdiction and ASPPB to

approve appropriate accommodations

8.	 Test	
  Validity Studies
a) Routinely conducted since 1982
b) Most	
  recent: Practice Analysis completed in 2009

resulted in revised test	
  specifications effective
August	
  1, 2011

c) Board of Directors approved new practice analysis
study in August	
  2015
(1)	 Currently in startup phase
(2) Will take approximately 2 years to conduct	
  
study and implement	
  results

9.	 Translated Versions of the EPPP
a) French available in Canada	
  (in	
  provinces	
  where	
  

required by law) since 1991
b)	 Spanish available in Puerto Rico (required by law)

since 2014

10. ASPPB	
  produces exam information and study
materials
a) EPPP Candidates Handbook (formerly

“Information for Candidates”)
b) Practice exams (online, and at CBT centers)
c) Online application portal provides automated

messaging and process specific landing pages for
exam candidates

B.	 Possible Skills Exam Under Consideration	
  (EPPP2)
1.	 The current	
  EPPP is strictly a knowledge exam
2.	 The EPPP2 would assess skills at the point	
  of licensure
3.	 The ASPPB Committee on Competency Assessment is

currently gathering information to enable Board of
Directors to make a decision about	
  whether to
develop this exam
a) Will present	
  its final report	
  to the Board of

Directors in January 2016
b) Board will make decision whether to move ahead

with development
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VI.	 ASPPB Governance – Board	
  of Directors
A.	 7 Board members
B.	 Elected by ASPPB membership at Annual Meeting
C.	 3-­‐year terms
D.	 Staggered terms to provide continuity

VII. Membership Meetings
A.	 Content	
  aimed at psychology regulatory board members

and staff
B.	 Midyear Meeting

1.	 Educational in Nature
C.	 Annual Meeting of Delegates (THIS	
  meeting)

1.	 Educational, plus ASPPB annual business meeting
2.	 Overview	
  of this meeting

a) The Plenary Sessions
b) Breakout	
  Groups and Special Topics

(1)	 Election of Officers
(2) Annual Awards

c) Social Functions

VIII. Q&A

IX.	 Adjourn



  

 

Presenters 

2015 ASPPB Annual Meeting 

Tempe, Arizona 



    
 

 
 
 

  
   

             
    

 
     

  
 

 
 

  
   

 
  

  
 
 

 
            

     
    

     

    
 
 

 
    

       
 

   
  

     
      

        
        

   
   

         
        
        
     

 
 
 
 
 
 

2015 Annual Meeting Presenters 
(Listed in Alphabetical Order) 

Dale Atkinson, JD 
Mr. Atkinson received his law degree from Northwestern School of Law, Portland, Oregon, and is the sole, 
managing member of the Northbrook, Illinois law firm of Atkinson & Atkinson, LLC which represents various 
associations of regulatory boards.  Mr. Atkinson represents associations in all matters relating to their operations 
as not for profit corporations, including activities, education and accreditation, disciplinary actions, model 
legislation and applications, and all phases of the development and administration of licensure examination 
programs, licensure transfer programs, licensure credentials and storage.  Mr. Atkinson also serves as Executive 
Director of FARB. 

Jeff Baker, PhD 
Dr. Baker is the Executive Director for the Association of Psychology Postdoctoral & Internship Centers (APPIC). 
He also holds a faculty appointment at the University of Texas Medical Branch (UTMB) as a clinical professor in 
the Departments of Anesthesiology and Orthopedic Surgery.  In addition, he is a current member of the Texas 
State Board of Examiners of Psychologists (TSBEP).  

Bob Bohanske, PhD, FNAP 
Dr. Bohanske is the Chief of Clinical Services and Clinical Training at Southwest Behavioral Health Services / 
Chief Psychologist in the Southwest Training Institute. He is a member of the active teaching faculty at 
Midwestern University, Argosy University, (APA approved Clinical Psychology Programs) , Sias University, 
XinZheng, China as a clinical consultant and as a Visiting Professor of Psychology at Zhengzhou University, 
Zhengzhou, China. He is currently a member of the State of Arizona Board of Psychologist Examiners, where he 
has been elected to the positions of Vice Chair as well as Chairman. 

Darla M. R. Burnett, PhD, MP 
Dr. Burnett is a native of Louisiana who completed her undergraduate degree at the Louisiana State University 
in 1994. She attended graduate school at the University of Southern Mississippi receiving a Master of Arts 
degree in clinical psychology in 1996 and a Doctorate in Clinical Psychology in December1999. Dr. 
Burnett completed her pre-doctoral internship at the University of North Carolina School of Medicine, 
Department of Psychiatry and the United States Department of Justice Federal Correctional Institution- Butner, 
North Carolina. Dr. Burnett received her license to practice psychology in Louisiana in March of 2001. She 
went on to complete a Post Doctoral Masters Degree in Clinical Psychopharmacology from the California 
School of Professional Psychology in June 2002. Dr. Burnett is currently licensed as a Psychologist and 
a Medical Psychologist in the state of Louisiana. Dr. Burnett is currently in private practice, but has also worked 
in a state correctional facility and at a state hospital. Dr. Burnett is an emeritus faculty member of the 
Southen Louisiana Louisiana Internship Consortium. Dr. Burnett is a past President and past 
Federal Advocacy coordinator for the Louisiana Psychological Association. She is also 
a member of the Louisiana Academy of Medical Psychology, and a member of several divisions 
of the American Psychological Association. Dr. Burnett was appointed to serve on the Louisiana State Board 
of Examiners of Psychologists in July 2012. 



 
 

      
 

  
    

  
  

   

     
  

  
  

  
  

 
 

           
        

   
 
 

  
   

   
            

 
 

 
 

 
 

      
    

   
 

     
 
 

 
        

     
  

   
   

    
 

 
 

 

Karen Cohen, PhD 
Dr. Karen Cohen is the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Canadian Psychological Association (CPA), a 
position she has held since 2008. She currently serves as Co-Chair of the Health Action Lobby (HEAL). She has 
served as Chair of 2012/2013 Mental Illness Awareness Week (MIAW) and member of the Management 
Committee of MIAW’s host organization, the Canadian Alliance of Mental Illness and Mental Health 
(CAMIMH) as well as co-chair of the Mental Health Table and 2012/13 Chair of the Canadian Consortium of 
Research. On behalf of CPA and alliances of which CPA is part, Dr. Cohen has prepared and presented briefs to 
many standing committees of the Senate and House of Commons of Canada on matters pertaining to health and 
mental health. Dr. Cohen held a ministerial appointment to a national advisory group on disability and has sat on 
numerous advisory committees on health-related issues and events. 

Dr. Cohen completed her undergraduate work at McGill University earned her masters and doctoral degrees in 
Clinical Psychology at the University of Windsor. She completed a post- doctoral fellowship in rehabilitation 
psychology and neuropsychology at the Ottawa Rehabilitation Centre. Prior to her appointment as an executive 
officer of CPA, Dr. Cohen enjoyed a practice career that included clinical, administrative and supervisory roles 
and responsibilities, primarily in health and rehabilitation. She maintains her registration as a psychologist in the 
province of Ontario. 

David Cox, PhD, ABPP 
Dr. Cox is Executive Officer of the American Board of Professional Psychology. He is board certified in 
Rehabilitation Psychology, and was a founding member of the American Board of Rehabilitation Psychology. Dr. 
Cox has served on the staff and faculty of U.C. San Diego, Duke University, the University of North Carolina at 
Chapel Hill and the University of Florida.  He is a Fellow of the American Psychological Association Divisions 
of Rehabilitation (22), Neuropsychology (40) and Independent Practice (42) and is also a Fellow of the National 
Academy of Neuropsychology. He is a recipient of the Heiser Award of the American Psychological Association, 
the Lifetime Practice Excellence Award from APA Division 22, a past president of the Florida Psychological 
Association and recipient of that organization’s Distinguished Practitioner Award, Distinguished Service Award 
and Legislative Affairs & Public Policy Board Chapter Representative of the Year Award. Dr. Cox has widely 
presented and published in the areas of rehabilitation, neuropsychology and competency in professional 
psychology.  

Don Crowder, PhD 
Dr. Crowder was elected to the Board of Directors of ASPPB as a Member-At-Large in October 2011, and 
President-Elect in October 2014.  He has been a member of the ASPPB Mobility Committee since January 2009, 
currently serving as co-chair.  He is also chair of the Common Rules and Standards Task Force, the Behavior 
Analysis Task Force, and the joint Task Force on Licensure of Consulting and Industrial Organizational 
Psychologists.  Dr. Crowder was a member of the Wisconsin Psychology Examining Board from December 2000 
– October 2009, serving as Vice Chair in 2004 and Chair 2005-2009.  

Stephen T. DeMers, EdD 
Dr. Stephen T. DeMers, EdD is the Executive Officer of the Association of State and Provincial Psychology 
Boards which provides services and support to all the psychology regulatory bodies throughout the United States 
and Canada.  Before assuming this current position, Dr. DeMers served as Professor and Director of the School 
Psychology Program at the University of Kentucky and as member and chair of the Kentucky Board of 
Psychology.  Dr. DeMers also served on the APA Council of Representatives and several major APA boards and 
committees. He was also elected to the ASPPB Board of Directors and as ASPPB’s President in 1995-1996.  Dr. 
DeMers has been instrumental in ASPPB’s work on professional mobility and development of the Certificate of 
Professional Qualification (CPQ) and Credentials Bank programs. 



  
    

 
  

   
 

 
 

  
  

   
  

 
         

  
 
 

 
   

          
  

 
  

 
 

 
 

  
      

 
   

    
 

 
 

 
     

  
   

     
       

     
 

 
  

Kenneth P. Drude, PhD 
Dr. Drude is the president-elect of the Ohio Board of Psychology.  He has experience working in community 
mental health settings, general and mental hospitals, and a university psychology doctorate program. His 
professional interests include telemental health policy and regulation and best telemental health practices. He 
served on the ASPPB Telepsychology Task Force and participated in drafting the Psychology Interjurisdictional 
Compact (PSYPACT). He has a part time general private outpatient practice in the Dayton, Ohio area. 

William Hathaway, PhD, ABPP 
Dr. Hathaway is a licensed clinical psychologist in Virginia and delegate from Virginia Board of Psychology. He 
serves on the APA Commission on Accreditation, and is a liaison to ASPPB from the CoA. He has contributed to 
the writing of the new APA Standards on Accreditation.  He is a Dean and Professor in the School of Psychology 
& Counseling at Regent University. He is currently completing his fourth term on APA’s Council of 
Representatives. He has assisted in drafting APA training policy statements and has published and presented in 
the areas of professional ethics and professional training issues. 

Amy Hilson, CAE 
Mrs. Hilson is the Associate Executive Director for Exams and Governance of the Association of State & 
Provincial Psychology Boards (ASPPB) and has been with ASPPB since September 1989. She provides crucial 
Central Office support to several committees and is the resident expert on ASPPB’s examination program.  She 
graduated from Auburn University with a BA in Psychology, and achieved the Certified Association Executive 
(CAE) designation of the American Society of Association Executive in 2010. 

Jacqueline Horn, PhD 
Dr. Horn is a licensed psychologist in California, and is currently serving her 2nd term on the California Board 
of Psychology, having been appointed to the Board by three different governors. She was a member of the 
ASPPB Board of Directors from 2009-2014, serving as President in 2013. She is an Emeritus faculty from the 
University of California, Davis, and maintains a private practice in Sacramento. Dr. Horn also served on the 
Ethics Committee of the California Psychological Association from 1993-2002. Dr. Horn recently began 
working as the Director of Regulatory Affairs for ASPPB with responsibilities in the areas of Membership 
Meetings, Exam Program, and Education and Training. 

Brian Judy, JD 
Brian Judy graduated from the University of Tulsa, College of Law in 1998 and was admitted to practice in 
Kentucky in 1998.  He is an Assistant Attorney General with the Kentucky Office of the Attorney General and 
represents ten regulatory boards, including the Kentucky Board of Examiners in Psychology.  Brian was an 
associate with the law firm of Ferreri and Fogle and an Assistant Counsel with the Cabinet for Health and Family 
Services since 2005.  He is also a certified 13B administrative hearing officer and certified by the Kentucky 
Employee Mediation Program (KEMP) as a mediator. 



  
    

  
 

         
    

 
 

 
    

 
 

  
    

     
  

  
    

 
             

 
 

  
   

   

 
 

            
      

  
 
 

 
   

 
 

  
  

 
 
 

  
      

  
    

    
      

   
   

  
 

    

Sharon Lightfoot, PhD 
Dr. Sharon Lightfoot is a life-long resident of St. Louis, Missouri, is a psychologist in private practice in the city. 
In September 2014 she became the Director of the St. Louis Consultation Center, an intensive out-patient program 
for Catholic clergy and religious. In 2014 she also served as First Year Member-at-Large for the Association of 
State and Provincial Psychology Boards. Dr. Lightfoot obtained her PhD in Clinical Psychology in 1987 from St. 
Louis University. She completed her internship at the Los Angeles Veteran’s Administration Outpatient Clinic 
under the direction of Dr. Herman Feifel, a pioneer in the psychological study of death, dying and bereavement. 
Dr. Lightfoot has been in practice for over 20 years.  In addition to direct clinical work, she has offered consulting 
services in psychological assessments and expert witness services, supervised graduate students and taught college 
classes. Dr. Lightfoot, with her colleague Dr. Gloria Gordon, has also developed an innovative program for 
individuals who are interested in increased social support for healthful living, Walking and Talking in the Park. 

Jana N. Martin, PhD 
Dr. Martin received her Master’s and Doctor of Philosophy degrees from the University of Mississippi and 
completed a Child Specialty internship at Duke University Medical Center. She has held various positions since 
becoming a psychologist, including establishing, designing, and directing both the first adolescent boys' group 
home and the first adolescent inpatient psychiatric unit in Mississippi; directing the Office of Human Resources 
for the Mississippi Department of Mental Health; serving as the Chief Psychologist for the Psychiatric Clinic for 
Youth at Miller Children's Hospital; and teaching at California State University at Long Beach and Pepperdine 
University. She was a part of APA’s Public Education Campaign for over 12 years, serving as Coordinator for 
California, contributing to the content of developed material, participating in media interviews, and developing a 
partnership between APA, Division 42, and the National Y. Dr. Martin was the 2008 President of Division 42 and 
also has served as President of the Los Angeles County and California Psychological Associations.  Professionally, 
Dr. Martin has been elected as a Fellow of the American Psychological Association; has received from the 
California Psychological Association the Distinguished Contribution to the Profession of Psychology Award; is a 
recipient of the Silver Psi Award for service to the California Psychological Association; and has been commended 
by the American Psychological Association with a Presidential Citation for exemplary work as a modern-day 
practitioner including community involvement. After many years in independent practice in California seeing 
children and adults, serving as an expert witness in legal cases, and consulting to schools, Dr. Martin became CEO 
of The Trust in 2010. Dr. Martin was an invited member and co-chair of the Task Force on the Development of 
Telepsychology Guidelines for Psychologists and is co-editor of an upcoming handbook on telepsychology. 

Donald S. Meck, PhD, JD 
Dr. Meck is a licensed psychologist and attorney. He obtained his doctoral training in psychology from Texas 
A&M University and law degree from John Marshall Law School.  Dr. Meck maintains a private practice in 
Warner Robins, Georgia, in the areas of Clinical Psychology, Neuropsychology, and Forensic Psychology. He 
was appointed to the Georgia State Psychology Licensing Board in 1993. He was the recipient of the ASPPB 
Roger C. Smith Award in 2003. Dr. Meck was elected by the ASPPB membership to serve as “Member at Large” 
in 2012. 

Karen Messer-Engel, M.A., R. Psych. 
Ms. Messer-Engel is the Secretary Treasurer for the ASPPB. In her role as a member of the BOD of ASPPB she 
is the Chair of the Finance and Audit Committee, Chair of the Policy and the Procedures Committee, Chair of the 
2015 Midyear Committee, Co-Chair of the Committee of Disciplinary Issues, Co-Chair of the Learning Objectives 
and of the Meeting Procedures Committee, a member of the PLUS Taskforce, the liaison to CCPPP and the CPA 
Accreditation Panel, and alternate liaison to APA CESPPA.  She is also the Executive Director and Registrar of 
the Saskatchewan College of Psychologists (College) and a Master’s level Registered Psychologist. Karen came 
to the College in 2004 with 17 years’ experience working as a clinician in mental health.  In her role with the 
College, Karen has gained extensive experience in, and has key responsibility with regard to licensure, regulation, 
policy, legislation, and administration.  She represents the College at interagency tables as well as provincial, 
national and North American regulatory tables.  She is a director of the Association of Canadian Regulatory 



      
    

        
 

 
 

  
     

   
           

  
  

       
   

 
 

  
 

     
          

     
      

    
   

    
    

   
 

 
 

  
 

   
    

    
  

   
                

      
     

 
 

 
      

 
  

  
 
 
 
 

 
  

          

Organizations (ACPRO) and served on the committees which developed the model standards for Telepsychology 
practice, and the national standard for licensure of Psychologists, and she continues to serve on the Finance 
Committee. She also represents the College as the delegate to the Network of Intraprovincial Regulatory 
Organizations.  

Fred Millán, PhD, ABPP, NCC 
Dr. Millán is a counseling psychologist who is licensed in NYS and board certified in psychoanalysis. He is 
Professor of Psychology and Director of the Graduate Program in Mental Health Counseling at SUNY College at 
Old Westbury. He maintains a part time private practice in both Spanish and English. Dr. Millán is the current 
President for the Board of Directors of the Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards. He currently 
serves as the chair of the ASPPB Telepsychology Task Force and the co-chair of the APA/ASPPB/APAIT Joint 
Task Force on Telepsychology. He is past chair of the New York State Board for Psychology, having served for 
ten years. He currently serves on the NYS Board for Discipline and Licensure. 

Joseph S. Rallo, PhD 
Dr. Rallo served for many years on the ASPPB’s Board of Directors and is the former Registrar of the Regulatory 
Board of Psychology in Manitoba, Canada. He is also the past Chair of the Council of Provincial Associations of 
Psychologists. Over the past ten years, Dr. Rallo has been actively involved with a number of national workgroups 
and committees examining competencies in professional psychology, and he was a member of the Steering 
Committee for the Competencies Conference 2002. As a member of a federally sponsored workgroup for 
professional mobility, he played an important role in the development of a competency-based Mutual Recognition 
Agreement, which has significantly facilitated the mobility of psychologists across Canada. Dr. Rallo also operates 
a part-time private practice, provides consultation to the Manitoba Public Insurance program, the Vulnerable 
Persons Commissioner, and various other government departments on topics related to the standards for the 
delivery of health care service, and is now the newest member of the ASPPB staff as the Director of Psychology 
Licensure Universal System (PLUS). 

Amy H. Richardson, JD 
Ms. Richardson is an associate attorney with the law firm of Atkinson & Atkinson, LLC, located in Northbrook, 
Illinois, where she has been practicing since 2006. Atkinson & Atkinson represents numerous associations of 
regulatory boards in all matters relating to their operations as not-for-profit corporations, including education and 
accreditation, disciplinary actions, model legislation and applications, and all phases of the development and 
administration of licensure examination programs, licensure transfer programs, licensure credentials verification, 
and storage. In addition to association law, Ms. Richardson works in the areas of estate planning and estate 
administration, real estate, and corporate law. She received her law degree at the University of Miami and her 
BS in psychology from Lewis and Clark College.  She is a member of the Illinois Bar Association and is the 
Immediate Past Chair of the Chicago Bar Association Trade and Professional Associations Law Committee. 

Marsha Sauls, PhD 
Dr. Sauls is in private practice at the Atlanta Network for Individual and Family Therapy located in a suburb of 
Atlanta Georgia. She is currently the Chair of the Georgia State Board of Examiners of Psychology. Dr. Sauls is 
a past president and Fellow of the Georgia Psychological Association. She is also a recipient of the Karl F. 
Heiser Award from APA. 

Alex Siegel, JD, PhD 
Dr. Siegel is a Past-President of ASPPB and is the current ASPPB Director of Professional Affairs. Dr. Siegel is 
an attorney and psychologist. He has served on committees of Division 20 of APA, the Philadelphia Society of 



   
   

     
    

   
  

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
  

 
   
 

  
   

    
    

                
         

 
 
 

 
           

  
 

  
            

   
         

 
 
 

 
  

   
  

  
   

 
    

    
 

 
 

  
 

                

           

Clinical Psychologists, the Pennsylvania Psychological Association, and the Pennsylvania State Board of 
Psychology. He was appointed to the Pennsylvania State Board of Psychology for two four-year terms. In that 
role, he served as Chair for 5 years. Governor Rendell recently nominated him to another term as a professional 
member. He is a frequent presenter at local and national meetings on addictions, gambling, risk management and 
ethics. Dr. Siegel received his Juris Doctor degree in 1985 and completed his Ph.D. in Clinical Psychology in 
1988. He maintains a private practice as a clinical and forensic psychologist. 

Philip Smith, PhD 
Dr. Philip Smith has been Registrar of the Prince Edward Island Psychologists Registration Board since 1992, 
having previously served as the Board’s founding Chair.  He has served in Executive positions with the 
Canadian Council of Provincial Associations of Psychologists and the Canadian Registrar of Health Service 
Psychologists. He is an active member of the Association of Canadian Psychology Regulatory Organizations 
and he served as a member of the ASPPB Telepsychology Task Force.  Dr. Smith is Professor of Psychology at 
the University of Prince Edward Island. 

Herbert L. Stewart, PhD 
Dr. Stewart is currently chair of the Virginia Board of Psychology, where he has served for six years including as 
chair of the regulatory committee. He has practiced as a clinical psychologist at Western State Hospital in 
Staunton, Va. for nearly 30 years. He also holds an appointment as Visiting Asst. Prof. in the Univ. of Virginia 
Dept. of Psychiatric Medicine. Dr. Stewart received his BA from UVa and his PhD from the Univ. of Texas at 
Austin. He has been active in professional organizations for many years and is a past president of the Virginia 
Psychological Association. 

Martha Storie 
Ms. Storie worked for the North Carolina Psychology Board for 36 years, serving as their Executive Director from 
1983 until she retired in 2013.  She attended her first ASPPB meeting in 1985 and has participated in a number of 
ASPPB committees over the years, including the Finance and Audit Committee, the ASPPB Committee on 
Disciplinary Issues, the Model Act and Regulations Committee, the Policies and Procedures Committee, and the 
Bylaws Revision Committee. Ms. Storie served ASPPB on the Board of Directors as Secretary-Treasurer from 
2006 – 2012 and was elected as President-Elect of ASPPB in October, 2013.  She was awarded the North Carolina 
Psychological Association President’s Award and the North Carolina Order of the Long Leaf Pine Award in 2013, 
the ASPPB Ming Fisher Award in 2002, and the ASPPB Fellow designation in 1996. 

David Swankin, Esq. 
Mr. Swankin is President and CEO of the Citizen Advocacy Center (CAC), and a senior partner in the law firm 
of Swankin & Turner. He is an attorney specializing in regulatory and administrative law, with a broad background 
in both government and public interest advocacy. His government career included assignments in the White 
House, where he was the first Executive Director of the White House Office of Consumer Labor Standards, and 
Deputy Assistant Secretary of Labor. In 1997-1998, he served as a Commissioner on the Pew Health Professions 
Commission, chaired by former Senator George Mitchell.  Mr. Swankin was appointed a Senior Fellow to the 
Center for the Health Professions, UCSF, in June 2003.  In 2002 – 2003, he was a member of the Institute of 
Medicine (IOM) Committee that produced the report “Health Professions Education – A Bridge to Quality.” Mr. 
Swankin has provided legal services to numerous public interest and professional organizations. 

Carol Webb, PhD 
Dr. Webb joined the Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards (ASPPB) as its Chief Operating 
Officer in 2014. Prior to that she was on the faculty of Emory University School of Medicine (1981-2014) and 
was the Director of the APA accredited doctoral internship in psychology at Emory/Grady (1984-2014).  Dr. 
Webb served on the Georgia State Board of Examiners of Psychologists from 2002-2012, and was President of 



  
 

      
   

 
 

  
      

   
  

the Board from 2003-2006.  She also served on the Board of Directors of the Association of State and Provincial 
Psychology Boards (ASPPB) from 2007-2013 and was President in 2012.  Among others, Dr. Webb has served 
on the Mobility Committee of ASPPB, on the Task Force on Maintenance of Competence and Licensure and the 
Task Force on Competency Assessment.  Dr. Webb also maintains a private practice in Atlanta, GA. 

Sheila Young, PhD 
Dr. Young is the supervisory psychologist for Behavioral Medicine and Integrated Behavioral Health programs 
in the Mental Health Service at VA Sierra Nevada Health Care System. She is a Clinical Professor in the 
Department of Psychiatry and Behavioral Sciences at the University of Nevada School of Medicine. She serves 
as Secretary/Treasurer of the State of Nevada Board of Psychological Examiners. 



  
   

   
   

  

  

  

     
       

     
   

    

    

    
        

      

     
     

   

  
    

       
       

  

  

  

  

   

  

  

1 Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards 
2 53rd Annual Meeting of Delegates 
3 October 22-26, 2014 
4 Rancho Las Palmas 
5 Palm Springs, California 

6 ASPPB Annual Business Meeting 2014 

7 DRAFT MINUTES 

8 The 54th Annual Meeting of Delegates of the Association of State and Provincial Psychology 
9 Boards (ASPPB) was held October 22-26, 2014 at the Rancho Las Palmas Hotel in Rancho 

10 Mirage, California.  Dr. Fred Millán, the Association’s President, called the meeting to order at 
11 9:00 a.m. on Thursday, October 23, 2014. 

12 Welcome and Introductions 
13 Dr. Millán welcomed the attendees on behalf of the organization. 

14 Dr. Jacqueline Horn, ASPPB Past-President and Chair of the Annual Meeting Committee, 
15 introduced the other members of the planning committee and thanked them for their valued 
16 assistance in planning the agenda for the meeting. 

17 Dr. Stephen DeMers, ASPPB Chief Executive Officer, introduced the members of the Board of 
18 Directors, and staff who were present at the meeting. 

19 Certification of Delegate Attendance and Quorum 
20 Ms. Karen Messer-Engel, ASPPB Secretary-Treasurer, conducted the roll call of delegates, and 
21 verified that there were 43 ASPPB member jurisdictions represented at the time of roll call, 
22 which constituted a quorum for conducting business at the Annual Meeting. 
23 The following individuals served as Delegates for their respective jurisdictions at the meeting: 

Jurisdiction Delegate 

Alaska John DeRuyter, PhD 

Alberta Richard Spelliscy, PhD 

Arizona Tamara Shreeve, MPA 

British Columbia Michael Elterman, MBA, PhD, RPsych 

California Antonette Sorrick 

District of Columbia Robin Jenkins 
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Florida 

Georgia 

Idaho 

Illinois 

Indiana 

Iowa 

Kansas 

Kentucky 

Louisiana 

Manitoba 

Maryland 

Michigan 

Minnesota 

Mississippi 

Missouri 

Montana 

Nebraska 

Nevada 

New Brunswick 

New Hampshire 

Newfoundland & Labrador 

North Carolina 

North Dakota 

Nova Scotia 

Ohio 

Oklahoma 

Ontario 

Oregon 

Harry J. Reiff, PsyD 

Melton Stozier, PhD, ABPP 

Jason Gage, PhD 

Bernhard E. Blom, PhD 

Sharon Bowman 

Sharon Dozier, MPA 

Grant Edwards 

Owen Nichols, PsyD 

Rita Culross, PhD 

John Arnett, PhD 

Lorraine Smith 

Sara Van Wormer, PhD 

Jeffrey Leichter, PhD 

Karen Christoff, PhD 

Pamela Groose, BS 

George Watson, PhD 

David S. Carver, PhD 

Gary Lenkeit, PhD 

Jacques Richard, PhD, LPsych 

Susan Vonderheide, PhD 

John Harnett 

Daniel Collins, JD 

Margo Adams Larsen, PhD 

Allan Wilson, PhD, RPsych 

Victor McCarley, PsyD 

Teri Bourdeau, PhD 

Robert Gauthier, MEd, CPsych 

Patricia Bjorkquist 
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24 Pennsylvania Vito DonGiovanni, PsyD 

Prince Edward Island Philip Smith, PhD 

Puerto Rico Edward Fankhanel, PhD 

Saskatchewan Karen Litke, PhD 

South Carolina Michael A. Kollar, EdD 

Tennessee Dave Mathis 

Texas Tim F. Branaman, PhD 

Vermont Deborah J. Wallis, PhD 

West Virginia Jeffrey Harlow, PhD 

Wisconsin Dan Williams 

Wyoming Grant Fleming, PhD 

25 Approval of Minutes of 2013 Annual Meeting of Delegates 
26 Ms. Karen Messer-Engel, ASPPB Secretary-Treasurer, called for approval of the minutes of the 
27 2013 Annual Meeting of Delegates. 

28 Dr. Gary Lenkeit, delegate from Nevada, made a motion to approve the minutes of the 
29 2013 53rd Annual Meeting of Delegates as revised.  The motion passed. 

30 Chief Executive Officer’s Report 
31 Dr. Steve DeMers provided a report on ASPPB’s administrative and financial activities of the 
32 past year, including updates on the Central Office headquarters and staff. The Association has 
33 continued to pursue an ambitious agenda of implementing new programs and services to meet 
34 the objectives laid out in the strategic plan and to enhance existing programs to better meet 
35 member needs. The Association continues to be in a strong financial position despite pursuing 
36 this ambitious agenda, acquiring much improved office space for an expanded Central Office 
37 staff, and funding the transition to a new vendor for ASPPB’s Examination Program. 

38 Report of Finance and Audit Committee (FAC) 
39 Mr. Dan Collins, JD (NC), delegate member of the ASPPB Finance and Audit Committee (FAC), 
40 and Ms. Karen Messer-Engel, MA, RPsych, ASPPB Secretary-Treasurer and chair of the FAC, 
41 advised that the FAC serves to assist the Board of Directors to meet its fiduciary responsibility in 
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42 regard to the finances of the organization. The FAC monitors the finances of the organization 
43 on a quarterly basis, and provides information and recommendations to the BOD regarding any 
44 necessary changes to the financial resource management or investments of the organization, to 
45 ensure its continued financial viability. 

46 It was reported that ASPPB continues to be in a very healthy financial position. The 
47 organization’s revenue stream is strong and growing. The conservative approach to budgeting 
48 ensures that expenditures are not exceeding revenues, and steady growth is occurring in terms 
49 of the investments. The Association’s activities and scope of influence continue to grow, and as 
50 such will ensure that it continues to be financially viable. 

51 Elections and Nominations Process 
52 Dr. Jacqueline Horn, Chair of the ASPPB Nominations Committee, outlined the process by which 
53 the Nominations Committee solicits and reviews nominations, and the Board of Directors slates 
54 nominees for election at the Annual Meeting. 

55 Member-at-Large 
56 The three candidates for the position of Member-at-Large on the Board of Directors slated for 
57 election were presented: Victor J. McCarley, PsyD (OH), C. Gerald O’Brien, PhD (MS), and Sheila 
58 Young, PhD (NV). Dr. Horn then called for nominations from the floor for the position of 
59 Member-at-Large and there were none. 

60 A motion was made to close nominations for the position of Member-at-Large.  The 
61 motion passed. 

62 President-Elect 
63 There was one candidate presented for the position of President-Elect on the Board of 
64 Directors, Don Crowder, PhD (WI).  Dr. Horn called for nominations from the floor for President­
65 Elect, and there were none. 

66 Mr. Dan Williams, delegate from Wisconsin, made a motion to elect Dr. Don Crowder 
67 as ASPPB President-Elect by acclamation.  The motion passed. 

68 Election Process 
69 Dr. Horn advised that the balloting for the Member-at-Large position would occur the following 
70 day, and she selected two people to assist in counting ballots who were not from either of the 
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71 candidates’ jurisdictions and who had no personal connection with the candidates: Ms. Pamela 
72 Groose (MO), and Dr. Deborah Wallis (VT). 

73 She noted that the candidates’ written position statements were contained in the Agenda 
74 Book, and she encouraged attendees to read those and talk to the candidates as part of their 
75 decision-making process. 

76 ASPPB Examination Program Update 
77 Dr. Jacqueline Horn, Chair of the ASPPB Committee on Exam Coordination (CEC), and Dr. 
78 Matthew Turner, ASPPB Director of Regulatory Affairs, updated the attendees on recent 
79 activities and developments in ASPPB’s Examination Program and its four committees. 

80 Significant developments in the ASPPB Examination Program in the past year included a 
81 decision by ASPPB’s Board of Directors to change exam vendors.  After 53 years with the same 
82 vendor, ASPPB conducted an RFP process, and selected Pearson as the new vendor for 
83 candidate management, and Pearson VUE as the new vendor for content development & 
84 management, and test delivery.  The transition will come into effect on February 1, 2015. 

85 In response to a request from the Puerto Rico Board of Psychologist Examiners, ASPPB has 
86 made available two Spanish translation forms of the EPPP. Puerto Rico had implemented a law 
87 that requires the EPPP for licensure as a psychologist and requires a Spanish version of the 
88 EPPP. Candidates who apply for licensure in Puerto Rico can now take either the English EPPP, 
89 or a bi-lingual Spanish/English translation of the EPPP. 

90 ASPPB is considering the possibility of developing a competency exam that jurisdictions can use 
91 as part of their initial licensure process.  The Competency Assessment Task Force has worked to 
92 identify the core competencies for entry-level psychological practice.  The ASPPB Board of 
93 Directors adopted the Competency Model.  The Board will make a decision about whether to 
94 move ahead with development of a competency exam after more information is collected in 
95 regard to jurisdictional support for the idea, financial considerations, and test development. 

96 Presentations by Nominees for Positions on the Board of Directors 
97 The three candidates for the position of Member-at-Large delivered their candidate 
98 presentations in the order determined by a random draw. Dr. Don Crowder, newly elected 
99 President-Elect delivered his candidate’s remarks. 
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100 Psychology Licensure Universal System (PLUS) – Joe Rallo, Janet Orwig 
101 Dr. Rallo described the Psychology Licensure Universal System (PLUS) and its benefits for 
102 regulatory boards, students and licensure applicants. The credential management and 
103 verification provided by the PLUS can greatly simplify the effort required on the part of 
104 licensing board staff in processing licensure applications. 

105 Ms. Orwig conducted a demonstration of the applicant view of the PLUS, including the various 
106 sections and the indicators that readily show the status of the applicant’s record. 

107 Attendees were encouraged to contact Dr. Rallo or Ms. Orwig with questions or to indicate 
108 their interest in utilizing the PLUS for their licensure applicants. 

109 Mobility Program Report – Don Crowder 
110 Dr. Don Crowder, member of the ASPPB Mobility Committee and Member-at-Large on the 
111 Board of Directors, reported on the various aspects of ASPPB Mobility Program.  The program 
112 components include the Certificate of Professional Qualification in Psychology (CPQ), 
113 Credentials Bank (The Bank), Interjurisdictional Practice Certificate (IPC), Common Rules 
114 Subcommittee, Score Transfer Service, Closed Training Program Verification Service, and a 
115 Coursework Reference Guide developed for use by jurisdictions in evaluating candidates’ 
116 educational qualifications for licensure. 

117 The Association’s business meeting recessed for the day at 1:30 pm. 

118 Friday, October 18, 2013 - ASPPB Business Meeting, continued 

119 Balloting for Members of the Board of Directors 
120 The business portion of the ASPPB 53rd Annual Meeting reconvened on Friday October 18, 2013 
121 at 10:45 am to allow for the casting of ballots by the official delegates from each jurisdiction in 
122 attendance. 

123 Announcement of Election Results 
124 Dr. Jacqueline Horn announced that Dr. Gerald O’Brien, PhD (MS) was elected as ASPPB’s 
125 Member-at-Large for 2015-2017. 
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126 Awards Luncheon 
127 Participants recessed to the ASPPB Awards Luncheon and were welcomed by Dr. Millán.  He 
128 noted that annually ASPPB takes this opportunity to honor individuals who have made 
129 significant contributions to ASPPB and/or to the profession of psychology. ASPPB Past­
130 President Dr. Jacqueline Horn and President-Elect Ms. Martha Storie joined Dr. Millán in 
131 presenting the following awards to the noted individuals: 

132 Fellows: 
133 • Angela J. Koestler, PhD 

134 • Carol Webb, PhD, ABPP 

135 Ming Fisher Award: 
136 • Angelina Barnes, JD 

137 State & Provincial Service Award 
138 • Heather Paul, RPsych 

139 Norma P. Simon Award 
140 • Mardi F. Allen, PhD 

(MS) 

(GA) 

(MN) 

(NL) 

(MS) 

141 Recognition of Outgoing President and Past-President 
142 Dr. Millán presented a Former President’s pin to outgoing Past-President Dr. Jacqueline Horn in 
143 appreciation for her years of excellent service on the Board of Directors. 

144 Ms. Martha Storie presented a clock to Dr. Millán to commemorate his service as President of 
145 the Association, and thanked him for his outstanding leadership during the past year.  Dr. 
146 Millán will continue on the Board of Directors for another year in the role of ASPPB Past­
147 President. 

148 The business meeting recessed for the day at 1:45 pm. 

149 Sunday, October 20, 2013 - ASPPB Business Meeting, continued 

150 The business meeting reconvened on Sunday, October 20, 2015 at 10:00 am. 
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151 Installation of New Members of the Board of Directors
 

152 Dr. Jacqueline Horn administered the oath of office for members of ASPPB’s Board of Directors
 

153 who will join the Board or assume new roles on the Board effective January 2015:
 

154 Martha N. Storie, BA President
 

155 Don Crowder, PhD President-Elect
 

156 Fred Millán, PhD, ABPP Past-President
 

157 Gerald O’Brien, PhD Member-at-Large
 

158 New President’s Remarks
 

159 Ms. Storie presented her remarks as incoming ASPPB President.
 

160 Upcoming ASPPB Membership Meetings 
161 Ms. Storie advised that ASPPB’s next Midyear Meeting would be held April 16-19, 2015 in
 

162 Atlanta, Georgia. The 55th Annual Meeting of Delegates will be held October 7-11, 2015 in
 

163 Tempe, Arizona.
 

164 Adjourn
 

165 There being no further business, Ms. Storie adjourned the meeting at 11:05 a.m.
 

166 

167 

168 
169 Associate Executive Officer for Exams & Governance 
170 Recorder 

171 Approved by Delegates at Annual Meeting __________________________________ 

Respectfully submitted, 

Amy C. Hilson, CAE 



 

 
  

 
  

 
 

 

 
    

 
  

 

 

 

 
   

   
      

 

 

  
  

Continuing Education (CE) Credits and Meeting Evaluations 

ASPPB is approved by APA to offer CE credits for psychologists.  

ASPPB maintains responsibility for this program and its content.
 

APA Policy 
To earn CE credits you must: 

•	 Attend each session in entirety. 
•	 Turn in evaluation form at end of each session. 
•	 No partial credits can be given 

Paperwork 
•	 Continuing Education Folder has an overview of the sessions listed. 
•	 Continuing Education Credit Log will be found inside the CE folder. 

(Please check the accuracy of your address, and sign the front page of the Credit Log) 
•	 Each session has its own color-coded evaluation form and will be given out at the 

beginning of each session. 
•	 The overall evaluation form is also located in the CE folder. 

Procedure 
•	 Attend each session on time. 
•	 Turn in evaluation at end of session. 
•	 Get coordinated colored dot and attach to CE Credit Log. 
•	 Turn in your Overall Evaluation Form at the end of the meeting. 

If you are NOT seeking CE Credits: 
•	 Please use same forms for your feedback to help improve future meetings. 

When and how will I receive my CE credits? 
3-4 weeks after the meeting you will receive by mail a certified copy of the CE Credit Log 
confirming: 
•	 the sessions attended 
•	 the learning objectives 
•	 the number of CE credits earned 

Please direct on-site questions to Dr. Stephen DeMers, ASPPB Executive Officer.
 
After the meeting please contact Anita Scott at ASPPB to inquire about your CE credits.
 



  

 

 

 

  
 

       
      

    
  

   
    

    
  

       
   

 
      
 

 

 
   

 
  

   
   

  

       
 

 

Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 

Annual Meeting 

October 2015
 

OVERVIEW 

On behalf of the ASPPB Board of Directors and the staff in the ASPPB Central Office, 
welcome to the 55th Annual Meeting of Delegates. This report provides a written summary of 
our major activities over the past year, our current financial position, and our progress as an 
organization towards achieving established objectives. This report for the Annual Meeting is an 
opportunity to review the previous year’s accomplishments and to describe anticipated directions 
for the next fiscal year. 

During the past year, the Association continued to focus on implementing the goals 
identified in our original 2005 Strategic Plan and the various updates to this plan approved by the 
ASPPB Board of Directors since 2005. ASPPB’s mission is to serve its member boards by 
promoting excellence in professional psychology regulation. The Strategic Plan provides both 
short and long-term goals to help us better accomplish this mission. In August 2015, the ASPPB 
Board of Directors voted to engage in a complete revision of the ASPPB Strategic Plan during 
2016. The Board took this action based on the significant accomplishments achieved in 
implementing the 2005 Strategic Plan and to ensure that ASPPB remains responsive to the new 
challenges and changing demands placed on member jurisdictions.  

MEMBERSHIP 

ASPPB is primarily an organization of member jurisdictions.  During this past fiscal year, 
ASPPB has retained our record number of regulatory boards and colleges across the United 
States and Canada.  ASPPB member jurisdictions include all 50 U.S. states, 10 Canadian 
provinces, the District of Columbia and 3 U.S. territories: Guam, Puerto Rico and the U.S. 
Virgin Islands. ASPPB also encourages individuals who have served on or with a regulatory 
board or college to become an individual member of ASPPB.  Individual members are eligible to 
stand for election to a seat on the ASPPB Board of Directors.  They also maintain access to the 
ASPPB listserv and “Members Only” sections of the ASPPB website.  I hope that more of you 
will consider remaining individual members after completion of your service with an ASPPB 
member jurisdiction. 

During some recent years, a few jurisdictions have experienced difficulty paying their 
membership dues in a timely manner. Typically such lapses are the result of personnel changes 
or new administrations questioning existing contracts for services.  While these lapses in dues 
can result in a small (usually temporary) deficit in anticipated dues revenue, the biggest concern 
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is the potential for such lapses to continue until access to ASPPB’s many member oriented 
services is denied, including the ability to administer the EPPP to licensure candidates. 
Thankfully all member jurisdictions are current with their dues for 2015. Please contact us if you 
are having any difficulty with membership dues in 2016 or beyond. We understand problems and 
miscommunications happen and we can often help you to overcome administrative obstacles and 
to clarify the reasons a jurisdiction needs to maintain active membership in good standing with 
ASPPB. 

FINANCIAL AFFAIRS 

The Association has again had a very strong year and is on solid financial footing.  Since 
the 2014 Annual Meeting, there have been a number of significant developments related to the 
Association’s financial affairs that I want to share with you and that will impact the financial 
aspects of this Chief Executive Officer’s Report compared with previous years.  First, the 
ASPPB Board of Directors voted in 2013 to change the fiscal year from an August 1 to January 1 
start date.  In order to implement this transition, the Association operated with a “short year” 
budget from August 1 to December 31, 2013 and then started 2014 under a new twelve-month 
budget that ended December 31, 2014. Consequently, some of the financial reports in this agenda 
book contain columns or entries based on the old fiscal year and others on the new fiscal year. 
We decided to leave out the budget data from the “short year” to make the comparisons easier. 
Since the new 2014 fiscal year ended last December 31st, we now have more time to analyze the 
Association’s financial status after the close of the fiscal year.  The second major development 
impacting the Association’s financial affairs was the transition to Pearson VUE as our new 
examination vendor.  In order to effect a smooth transition, we had to suspend exam registration 
for several weeks from 12/23/14 until 1/25/15.  Naturally such disruption in exam registration 
resulted in a predictable drop in exam revenue in early 2015.  Since April, 2015 we have seen a 
steady return in number of exams delivered each month and are on track to meet or exceed the 
number of exams budgeted for 2015 by year’s end.  Finally, under the leadership of our 
Secretary-Treasurer and the Finance and Audit Committee, the Association has made significant 
progress towards the goal of paying off the mortgage on the new Central Office headquarters 
building.  We are currently on track to retire the balance on this mortgage within the next year 
before the interest rate can be readjusted. 

Beyond these three major developments, the Association’s finances continue to be strong. 
Revenue from the new PLUS program is growing as more jurisdictions adopt the universal 
application system, and most other revenue generating programs (e.g. Score Transfer and 
Credentials Bank) have continued to show positive gains.  The Association offers many member 
services that are intentionally not revenue generating like the Disciplinary Data System, New 
Board Member Training, and consultation with member jurisdictions about issues and challenges 
they face.  Unlike many other groups, the ASPPB membership meetings (i.e. Annual and 
Midyear Meetings) are not designed to generate revenue for the Association. In order to 
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encourage maximum member attendance, we keep registration costs low and offer delegate 
assistance in lieu of seeking revenue in excess of meeting expenses. 

As I reported last year, the Association has been awarded a sizeable grant from the U.S. 
federal government that has helped to fund the start-up of the PLUS program as well as the 
development of a licensee database and Minimum Data Set (MDS).  The database and MDS 
programs will be critical sources of information for ASPPB, our member jurisdictions and other 
professional organizations and government agencies as the need for accurate workforce data 
grows. State and provincial governments, federal agencies in both the U.S. and Canada and 
psychology professional associations are all trying to deal with issues like the doctoral internship 
imbalance and limited access to behavioral healthcare and these groups have all approached 
ASPPB to help them gather this critical information. The original three years of U.S. federal 
funding for these programs ended during the summer of 2015.  ASPPB has been awarded an 
additional one-year grant for $250,000 to further the work of the PLUS and the Psychology 
Interjurisdictional Compact (PSYPACT). 

Rental income from the former Central Office headquarters building in Montgomery 
continues to increase as the rent per square foot escalates in a slow but steady manner over the 
life of our lease with the tenant, Auburn University Montgomery (AUM). I expect that the 
Montgomery building will provide a modest but steady revenue stream for the Association in the 
years ahead. We are currently in the process of trying to rent the office space we acquired when 
the Association first moved to Georgia in 2010. This 5,000 square foot building is very close to 
the new Central Office headquarters building.  We are seeking a short term tenant and not a 
buyer since the building is still being used for storage, and may be needed in the future for 
additional meeting and office space. 

The Association’s long-term investment account also ended the fiscal year with a 
significant increase in the value of our portfolio. While the market has fluctuated recently, the 
past 12 months have seen a healthy increase in investment income.  This long term investment 
account is considered a reserve account intended to allow us to keep providing essential member 
services should a catastrophic security breach or other calamity occur.  Therefore, the Board of 
Directors chooses to reinvest any returns gained in the reserve account rather than increase the 
operating budget. This conservative approach to budget allocation not only offers protection 
from a possible catastrophe but also protects us from having to cut services to member 
jurisdictions because of a market downturn and investment losses. Expansion of member 
programs and services is guided by increases in the operating revenues realized from existing 
programs and not from the investment returns from the reserve account. Should the ASPPB 
reserve account grow to levels beyond any anticipated threat (e.g. more than the value of a full 
year’s operating expenses), then the Board of Directors and the Finance and Audit Committee 
can consider alternative uses for any further increases in the long term reserve account. 
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The Association’s Finance and Audit Committee with the help of ASPPB’s Treasurer, 
Karen Messer-Engel, and Financial Officer, Mark Russell, provide valuable oversight of the 
financial operation of the Association. This committee is charged with monitoring the quarterly 
and year end variance reports and other financial statements the staff develops, reviewing and 
certifying the annual independent audit, reviewing other financial controls in place and also 
guiding the investment strategies of the Association. Included in this agenda book (or available 
as handouts at the meeting) are the audited financial statements from the January 1-December 
31, 2014 fiscal year, a detailed report from the FAC, the latest available summary variance report 
for the current 2015 fiscal year and a summary page comparing the draft 2016 budget to the 2015 
budget and the last few complete fiscal years. 

The Association has continued to pursue an ambitious agenda of implementing new 
programs and services to meet the objectives laid out in the 2005 Strategic Plan while 
simultaneously enhancing existing programs to better meet member needs. The Association 
continues to be in a strong financial position despite pursuing this ambitious agenda, acquiring 
much improved office space for an expanded Central Office staff and funding the transition to a 
new vendor for our examination program (discussed further below).  The Association also 
continues to invest considerable resources in improving the item development process for the 
EPPP.  This effort not only improves the validity of the exam but also is a major source of exam 
security by reducing item exposure and having replacement items should a security breach occur. 
Meeting and travel expenses for committees and task forces continue to rise every year so the 
Board of Director’s decision to budget conservatively and maintain fiscal restraint has resulted in 
the Association remaining in a strong financial position. 

CENTRAL OFFICE HEADQUARTERS 

In 2009, the Association began its relocation of the Central Office to the Atlanta, Georgia 
area. ASPPB had occupied a 10,000 square foot building in Montgomery that had much room to 
spare. In November 2009, ASPPB purchased a vacant 5,000 square foot office building and an 
adjacent undeveloped lot near Peachtree City, Georgia. One of the most important reasons for 
relocating the Central Office was improved access to the Atlanta airport.  With increased staff 
travel to attend meetings with member jurisdictions or other groups and with more Association 
committees and task forces meeting in Peachtree City, the Atlanta airport offers many nonstop 
flights to and from major cities throughout the U.S. and Canada on multiple airlines. Secondly, 
Peachtree City has several hotel and conference center complexes close to the Central Office, 
which provide an excellent and cost effective resource for holding committee and task force 
meetings. 

However, during the four years after we relocated to the Atlanta area, the staff has 
continued to grow and we quickly outgrew the building we purchased in 2009. Luckily, we were 
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able to locate a fairly new 13,000 square foot office building in the same office park that was 
available for purchase. We purchased this new building in October 2013, designed a new floor 
plan and IT service platform and started renovation in early 2014.  The renovations were 
completed and we began operations out of the renovated space during June 2014. This new 
building has multiple conference rooms, a webinar room, and enough office and workstation 
space to more than adequately house our present staff plus any anticipated growth over the next 
few years. 

. 

STAFF 

With ASPPB’s continued expansion of member services and programs over the past year, 
several new staff positions were created and filled based on an increased need for daily 
operational support, and the growth of our Member Services department. Currently ASPPB 
employs 19 full-time, 5 part-time and 1 consulting staff members. 

Since last year’s Annual Meeting, two new staff positions have been added to the 
Examination Services department based on an expanded ASPPB role in exam management in 
partnership with our new vendor.   We also recently hired a new Assistant Director of Meeting 
Management to assist Anita Scott with the increased number of task force and committee 
meetings. The Member Services department has also added new positions mostly due to an 
increase in jurisdictions that are now participating in ASPPB’s Psychology Licensure Universal 
System (PLUS) program. Additional PLUS Application Specialists will be needed in the near 
future as we bring on more jurisdictions to PLUS. 

The Central Office and Consulting staff now include: 

Chief Executive Officer Stephen T. DeMers, EdD
 
Chief Operating Officer (part-time) Carol Webb, PhD., ABPP
 
Associate Executive Officer
 
for Exams & Governance Amy C. Hilson, CAE
 

Associate Executive Officer
 
for Member Services & Executive 


Director of PSYPACT Janet Pippin Orwig, MBA
 
Director of Professional Affairs (part-time) Alex Siegel, JD, PhD
 
Director of PLUS (part-time) Joseph Rallo, PhD
 
Director of Regulatory Affairs (part-time) Jacqueline B. Horn, PhD
 
Director of Examination Services Matt Turner, PhD
 
Director of Meeting Management Anita Scott, CMP, CMM
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Director of Member Services Taja Slaughter 
Member Services Representative Veronica Zambuto 
Member Services Special Projects 

Coordinator/PSYPACT Coordinator Lisa Russo 
PLUS Applications Specialist Julie Carper 
PLUS Applications Specialist Emily Hensler 
PLUS Applications Specialist Karen Powlowski 
Mobility Program Assistant John Mickley 
EPPP Item Development 

Program Manager Emelyn East 
Executive Assistant/Office Manager Lisa McDowell 
Executive Assistant: Exams & Governance Jamie Orgeron 
Executive Assistant: Member Services Robin Pence 
Administrative Associate & Mary Bonner 

Communications Coordinator 
Assistant Director Meeting Management Kim Jordan 
Administrative Assistant for 

Examination Services Leslie Browning 
Financial Officer (part-time) Mark Russell, CPA 
Consulting Legal Counsel Dale Atkinson, JD 

CENTRAL OFFICE ACTIVITIES 

Central Office staff have assisted the Board of Directors and the many committee and 
task force volunteers who donate their services to ASPPB to accomplish the work of the 
Association. The Association recently moved to a new association management data system that 
allows us to maintain centralized membership directories, perform on-line meeting registrations, 
direct website management and provides many other improvements and efficiencies in accessing 
ASPPB information and resources.  ASPPB jurisdiction and individual members can now log in 
and directly manage their own profile and other information. The on-line nature of this software 
system allows us to access our databases and information remotely as well as on site so that 
information can be retrieved during membership meetings, BOD meetings, committee meetings, 
liaison activities or visits to jurisdictions. 

Staffing for all Board of Directors meetings and activities (e.g. conference calls, liaison 
travel) is handled by the Central Office.  There is a great deal of communication among board 
members, and between the board members and the member jurisdictions, the Central Office and 
other individuals and organizations interested in issues involving the regulation of psychologists. 
ASPPB sponsors a listserv for member jurisdictions and individual members to communicate 
and share information. It is gratifying to see representatives of member jurisdictions post 
questions and solicit information and feedback from other jurisdictions.  Such rapid transmission 
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of questions and responses has been exciting to observe and certainly seems to be an 
improvement over the flood of paper surveys, phone canvassing and snail mail requests for 
information that used to serve as our methods of dialogue between meetings. 

Publications 

Most ASPPB publications have become on-line files or links on the Association’s 
website rather than printed publications.  The Central Office staff help to create, maintain and 
update a number of important documents such as the EPPP Candidate Handbook and other 
documents or materials related to Association products and services like the CPQ and ASPPB 
Credentials Bank.   ASPPB is increasing the use of electronic agenda books and other meeting 
materials at our membership and committee meetings. 

One of ASPPB’s most popular publications is The Handbook of Licensing and 
Certification Requirements for Psychologists in the United States and Canada. This handy 
summary of licensing requirements in all ASPPB member jurisdictions became a free web based 
publication in FY 02-03. One of the rationales for putting the Handbook online was to provide an 
easily searchable database of licensure requirements that could be used by member jurisdictions, 
students, licensure applicants and other stakeholder groups. The Handbook is a unique and 
valuable asset to the psychology profession if the data accurately reflect jurisdictional 
requirements. One continuing problem with the Handbook is the fact that a few jurisdictions 
have not completed or updated their entries which diminishes the value of the Handbook and 
raises questions about our ability to provide timely and accurate information. We appreciate all 
the assistance of the board chairs, administrators and executives who have responded to our 
requests to update the information about their jurisdiction in the Handbook. We would be 
pleased to provide whatever assistance is needed to make this ASPPB publication a 
comprehensive, accurate and useful resource for member jurisdictions and the profession. 

ASPPB continues to make significant efforts to update and improve the web-based 
publication Psychology Licensing Exam Scores by Doctoral Program. This document will likely 
undergo significant change and improvement during the next year with the help of our new 
examination vendor.  At present, this document contains self-report information on EPPP 
candidates from recognized programs who tested over the past five years and includes pass rate 
data. Data for individual programs are shown only when there are 3 or more graduates in the 
five-year period.  The pass rate data included are based on the ASPPB recommended passing 
score of 500 for independent practice. The Doctoral Program Report is accessible free of charge 
at www.asppb.net. 

Communications/Information 

ASPPB has invested a significant amount of time and money to improve its website 

http://www.asppb.net/
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www.asppb.net. Part of our Strategic Plan is to make ASPPB the international source of the 
most accurate and accessible information on licensing and regulation of psychologists. One of 
the attractive features of our association management software is the ability for us to design and 
manage our very large and complex website.  Given the range of services and products we offer 
(e.g. EPPP, CPQ, IPC, Handbook of Licensure Requirements, member services, meeting 
handouts), and the variety of audiences we interact with (e.g. students, licensure applicants, 
member jurisdictions, psychology organizations, the media) managing the ASPPB website 
requires constant effort. Several new features have been added to the website such as separate 
sections for students and faculty.  Janet Orwig, Associate Executive Director for Member 
Services, manages our website and has asked for your assistance. If you see any areas that need 
correcting, please let her know.  She would appreciate your help in managing this valuable but 
challenging endeavor. 

ASPPB is also consulted routinely by other relevant organizations such as the American 
Psychological Association (APA), Canadian Psychological Association (CPA), both the National 
and Canadian Registers of Health Service Psychologists, Federation of Associations of 
Regulatory Boards (FARB), American Board of Professional Psychology (ABPP), Association 
of Psychology Postdoctoral and Internship Centers (APPIC) and many others.  In addition, state, 
provincial and federal agencies often contact the Central Office for information regarding 
professional licensing in general or specific issues related to psychology regulation.  It is not 
unusual for other sources such as newspapers or government officials to consult the office for 
information about trends in psychology licensing or disciplinary sanctions. 

Disciplinary Data System 

The ASPPB Disciplinary Data System (DDS) continues to serve as a vital resource to our 
member jurisdictions and many other credentialing organizations in psychology. In 2009, 
ASPPB established the Committee on Disciplinary Issues (CODI) in order to guide the 
development and usefulness of this valuable service. ASPPB has agreed to become the reporting 
agent for a number of U.S. jurisdictions to the National Practitioner Data Bank. If your 
jurisdiction would like more information about this service, contact Janet Orwig. 

Mobility Program 
The Mobility Program continues to mature by adding jurisdictions that accept or 

recognize the Certificate of Professional Qualification (CPQ), re-examining the Agreement of 
Reciprocity and promoting jurisdictional acceptance of the Interjurisdictional Practice 
Certificate. Also, the program made a major leap forward by adding the ability for individuals to 
apply for any of the Association’s credentials and also to request a score transfer directly on line. 
Ask any member of the Mobility Committee for details about these programs. 

The Score Transfer Service continues to provide a vital function for both our member 

http://www.asppb.net./
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jurisdictions and applicants for licensure and also provides a significant revenue source for the 
Association. 

PLUS Developments 

The Psychology Licensure Universal System (PLUS) is based on a comprehensive on­
line application that streamlines the licensure process while still gathering all the essential 
information needed by psychology boards and colleges to make informed decisions about the 
qualifications of licensure applicants. During the past year, the program has continued to grow.  
Currently, 11 jurisdictions are using the system with several more set to start within the next few 
months. An up-to-date list can be found on the ASPPB website. If your board is interested in 
more information about the PLUS, please contact Janet Orwig (jorwig@asppb.org). 

Psychology Interjurisdictional Compact (PSYPACT) 

PSYPACT is an interstate compact that facilitates the practice of psychology using 
telecommunications (telepsychology) and/or temporary in-person, face-to-face psychological 
practice. What is a compact? Simply stated a compact is an agreement between two or more 
states for cooperative effort, mutual assistance, management or regulation of public policy 
matters by the states which transcends the boundaries of one states. PSYPACT is the product of 
many months of work of the ASPPB Telepsychology Task Force and addresses the issues 
surrounding the ethical and legal practice of telepsychology. 

In addition to addressing the regulation of telepsychology, PSYPACT also works to eliminate the 
confusion and frustration surrounding temporary in-person, face-to-face practice by 
standardizing the temporary practice time allowances across participating states to that of 30 
calendar days a year. 

More information can be found on the ASPPB website as well as the PSYPACT website 
(www.psypact.org). If your board is interested in more information about the PSYPACT, please 
contact Janet Orwig (jorwig@asppb.org). 

Examination Program Developments 

ASPPB maintains four committees in relation to its Examination Program.  The 
Committee on Exam Coordination (CEC), chaired by Dr. Fred Millán, coordinates and oversees 
all aspects of the Examination Program.  The Examination Committee (ExC), chaired by Dr. 
Barry Edelstein, is responsible for finalizing forms of the EPPP and monitoring the EPPP item 
bank to identify the need for new items and bank maintenance.  The Item Development 

mailto:jorwig@asppb.org
http://www.psypact.org/
mailto:jorwig@asppb.org
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Committee (IDC), chaired by Dr. John Hunsley, recruits, trains and collaborates with EPPP item 
writers, and maintains the ongoing item-writing process.  The Committee on Competency 
Assessment (CCA) chaired by Dr. Emil Rodolfa, is working to complete its charges to acquire 
all information for the Board of Directors to decide whether to develop an EPPP2 (skills exam). 
It is important to note the dedication and extraordinary effort contributed this past year by the 
members of these committees.  Without their expertise and commitment, the advancements we 
have seen in ASPPB’s Examination Program would not have occurred.  Amy Hilson, CAE, 
Associate Executive Officer for Exams and Governance, Matt Turner, PhD, Director of 
Examination Services, Emelyn East, BS, EPPP Item Development Program Manager, Jamie 
Orgeron, Executive Assistant, Mary Bonner, Administrative Associate, Jacqueline Horn, PhD, 
Director of Regulatory Affairs, and new hire Administrative Assistant Leslie Browning, staff the 
Examination Program. 

There have been several significant developments in ASPPB’s Examination Program in 
the past year. After 53 years with the same exam vendor, ASPPB decided it was time to 
investigate what other exam vendors might have to offer in the way of technological advances 
and program management for ASPPB’s Examination Program.  After a careful and 
comprehensive RFP process, the Board of Directors decided that Pearson VUE would be 
ASPPB’s vendor for examination services beginning February 1, 2015.  The new systems have 
enhanced the program by allowing direct communication and assistance to jurisdictions on exam 
related matters, a larger and more standardized network of testing centers, greater access to 
candidate information, and improved tools and processes for examination development. 
However, shifting exam vendors after 53 years was no simple task. ASPPB’s Exam Program 
staff worked intensely for the 10 months prior to the implementation date to establish the 
processes and supporting technological systems for candidate management, item banking and 
exam form development and delivery. The transition has been very smooth.  There have been 
some changes in processes for jurisdictions and for candidates, resulting in many benefits for 
candidates and jurisdictions, including receipt of scores by candidates immediately upon 
completion of the EPPP, immediate feedback by domain for failed candidates at no cost, and 
weekly score reporting to jurisdictions. 

In response to a request from the Puerto Rico Board of Psychologist Examiners, ASPPB 
has made two forms of the EPPP available in Spanish.  Puerto Rico implemented a law that 
requires the EPPP for licensure as a psychologist, and the Spanish Examination for Professional 
Practice in Psychology (SEPPP) is now available in a bilingual format to candidates who apply 
for a license in Puerto Rico. 

ASPPB/National Register Joint Designation Project 

After more than a year of study and consultation with member jurisdictions, the ASPPB 
Board of Directors voted in early 2012 to begin a process to close the Joint Designation Project. 



 
 

 
 

    
   

  
 

     
   

 
  

     
 

  
  

  
   

 
  

  
 
     

    
 

  
 

   
 

  
       

     
   

  
    

   
  

 
 

 
 

 
   

     
    

Chief Executive Officer’s Report 
2015 Annual Meeting 
Page 11 

In March 2013, the National Register of Health Service Psychologists and ASPPB entered into a 
final contract to stop accepting any new applications for designation in January 2014 and to end 
the Designation Project for all currently designated programs no later than June 2019.  During 
this five-year interval, all currently designated programs will be encouraged to seek CPA or APA 
accreditation. Over the past several years, the number of APA and CPA accredited programs 
appearing on the designation list has greatly exceeded the number of programs with the 
designation only status. At the same time, many professional organizations in the psychology 
community and federal funding agencies requested that organized psychology require graduation 
from an accredited training program (not just an accredited institution of higher education) as the 
standard for recognition in professional psychology like other health care professions.  These 
factors have contributed to ASPPB and the National Register’s decision to terminate the 
activities of the Designation Project.  The ASPPB/National Register Joint Designation 
Committee held its last face-to-face meeting in April 2014 and will no longer review doctoral 
programs in psychology to determine designation as a doctoral program in psychology.  

International Project on Competences in Psychology (IPCP) 

This project grew out of the very successful work accomplished at the 5th International 
Congress on Licensure, Certification and Credentialing in Psychology in July 2013.  Ten 
internationally known psychologists involved in the credentialing of psychologists in their home 
country were selected to participate in a Working Group that would seek to identify an 
international agreement on competences that comprise professional psychology.  ASPPB’s 
Executive Officer, Stephen DeMers, was asked to co-chair this IPCP Working Group and Amy 
Hilson, ASPPB’s Associate Executive Officer for Exams and Governance serves as the project 
secretary.  The group has met in Peachtree City, Georgia, Paris, France, Oslo, Norway and 
Auckland New Zealand since being established in 2013. Currently, the group is seeking feedback 
from national and international psychology organizations on its final draft of a document called 
an International Declaration of Core Competences in Professional Psychology.  Once this 
feedback is reviewed and the document is finalized it will be submitted for endorsement by the 
International Association of Applied Psychology (IAAP) and the International Union of 
Psychological Science (IUPsyS) and other relevant international, regional and national 
psychological societies. 

MEMBERSHIP MEETINGS 

Annual Meeting of Delegates 

The 54rd Annual Meeting was held at the Rancho Las Palmas, Rancho Mirage, California on 
October 22-26, 2014. The main theme of this meeting was “Navigating the Boundaries: 
Working together for the Best Public Protection”. The meeting was well attended with over 115 
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delegates and alternates.  One of the highlights of the meeting was our President’s Dinner held at 
the Rancho Las Palmas Rooftop patio!  The evening events held many highlights, including great 
food, a fantastic dance band, and themed-costumed attendees dressed for our “Midnight at the 
Oasis” night under the stars. 

Midyear Meeting 

The 30th Midyear Meeting of ASPPB was held in Atlanta, Georgia at the Westin Buckhead on 
April 16-19, 2015. The theme was “Competency is Not Forever: Maintaining Professional 
Competency and Avoiding Professional Incapacity”. The President’s Dinner on that Friday night 
was spent at an Atlanta icon location, The World of Coca-Cola.  Attendees enjoyed meeting the 
World-renown Coca-Cola Bear, a great Southern buffet, and dancing among Coca-Cola 
memorabilia. On Saturday, April 18th interested attendees were brought to Tyrone, Georgia 
where ASPPB staff members welcomed everyone with an open house showing off our new 
Central Office headquarters building. 

COMMITTEE, TASK FORCE & LIAISON ACTIVITIES 

ASPPB Board of Directors and staff participated in 56 face-to-face committee, board, task force 
and liaison meetings during the year. In the 2015 Game Plan there are 28 committees and 8 task 
forces that are charged to engage in the Association’s business. Some of these committees and 
task forces either do not hold in person meetings (e.g. Annual and Midyear Meeting 
Committees), or meet in conjunction with other meetings (e.g. Nominations Committee). In 
addition, a number of groups held virtual meetings or met by conference calls. With only a few 
exceptions, all of the logistical support for committees and task forces is provided by the ASPPB 
Central Office staff. 

The committees and task forces active in the 2015 fiscal year are: 

• Annual Meeting Committee 
• Board Administrators/Registrars Committee (BARC) 
• Board of Directors (BOD) 
• Certification Appeals Committee (CAC) 
• Committee on Competency Assessment (CCA) 
• Committee on Disciplinary Issues (CODI) 
• Committee to Enhance Technology 
• Committee on Exam Coordination (CEC) 
• Examination Committee (EXC) 
• Executive Committee (EC) 
• Finance & Audit Committee (FAC) 
• Item Development (IDC) 
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•	 Joint Designation Committee (JDC) 
•	 Joint Designation Appeals Committee (JDAC) 
•	 Learning Objectives and Meeting Procedure Committee 
•	 2015 Midyear Meeting Committee 
•	 2016 Midyear Meeting Committee 
•	 Mobility Committee (MOB) 
•	 Model Act and Regulation Committee (MARC) 
•	 Nominations Committee (NOMS) 
•	 Policies and Procedures Manual Committee (P&P) 
•	 Research Review Panel (RRP) 
•	 Behavior Analysis Task Force (BATF) 
•	 Common Rules & Standards Task Force (CRSTF) 
•	 Licensure of Consulting & Industrial/Organizational Psychologists Task Force 

(LCIOP) 
•	 PLUS Application Task Force (PLUS) 
•	 Portability Task Force 
•	 Telepsychology Task Force 

LIAISON ACTIVITES 

The perspective of the state and provincial licensing authorities is sought by many other 
psychological and regulatory associations and organizations.  ASPPB funds liaisons to attend 
meetings or assigns corresponding liaisons to review minutes and reports so that we can 
represent your interests and report to you important developments from these groups. Many of 
the liaison reports are included in the Annual Meeting agenda book. 

Liaisons to Other Organizations 

American Board of Professional Psychology Donald Meck (GA)
 
Association of Canadian Psychology Regulatory Organizations Martha N. Storie (NC)
 
Council of Executives of State, Provincial Psychology Assoc. Stephen DeMers (GA)
 
APA Council of Representatives Stephen DeMers (GA)
 
American Psychological Association of Grad Students Alex Siegel (PA)
 
Association of Counseling Center Training Agencies Fred Millán (NY)
 
Association of Psychology Postdoctoral & Internship Centers Sharon Lightfoot (MO)
 
APA Board of Educational Affairs Sharon Lightfoot (MO)
 
APA Board of Professional Affairs Don L. Crowder (WI)
 
APA Committee for the Advancement of Professional Practice Alex Siegel (PA)
 
Canadian Council of Professional Psychology Programs Karen Messer-Engel (SK)
 
Council of Counseling Psychology Training Programs Fred Millán (NY)
 
Council of Chairs of Training Councils Stephen DeMers (GA)
 
APA Committee on Early Career Psychologists Alex Siegel (PA)
 



 

     
  

    
   

 
  

    
  

   
                

                 
   

  
   

  
   

 

  
 

               
  

   
   

 
   

   
    

  
   

   
   

   
  

   
  

   
    

  
  

Chief Executive Officer’s Report 
2015 Annual Meeting 
Page 14 

The Council on Licensure, Enforcement & Regulation Amy Hilson (GA) 
APA Commission on Accreditation Sharon Lightfoot (MO) 
Council of Specialties in Professional Psychology Donald Meck (GA) 
Canadian Psychological Association Martha N. Storie (NC) 

Stephen DeMers (GA) 
CPA Accreditation Panel Karen Messer-Engel (SK) 
Canadian Register of Health Service Providers in Psychology Fred Millán (NY) 
Council of University Directors of Clinical Psychology Stephen DeMers, (GA) 
APA Society of Consulting Psychology (Division 13) Don Crowder (WI) 
APA Education Leadership Conference Sharon Lightfoot (MO) 
Federation of Associations of Regulatory Boards Stephen DeMers (GA) 
Institute for Credentialing Excellence Janet Orwig (GA) 
National Council of Schools & Programs of Professional Psychology Stephen DeMers (GA) 
National Register of Health Service Providers in Psychology Stephen DeMers (GA) 
APA State Leadership Conference Stephen DeMers (GA) 
Society for Industrial and Organizational Psychology Don Crowder (WI) 

Liaisons to ASPPB 

Many psychology organizations maintain liaison or observer relationships with ASPPB.  These 
organizations and their respective liaison/observers for 2015 include: 

American Board of Professional Psychology 
Association of Canadian Psychology Regulatory Organizations 
Council of Executives of State, Provincial Psychology Assoc. 
American Psychological Association Board of Directors 
American Psychological Association of Grad Students 

Association of Counseling Center Training Agencies 
Association of Psychology Postdoctoral & Internship Centers 
APA Educational Directorate 
APA Practice Directorate 
Council of Counseling Psychology Training Programs 
APA Committee on Early Career Psychologists 
Council of Specialties in Professional Psychology 
Canadian Psychological Association 
CPA Accreditation Panel 
Canadian Register of Health Service Providers in Psychology 
Council of University Directors of Clinical Psychology 
APA Society of Consulting Psychology (Division 13) 
Federation of Associations of Regulatory Boards 
National Council of Schools & Programs of Professional Psychology 
National Register of Health Service Providers in Psychology 

David R. Cox 
Rick Morris 
Sarah Bowen 
Jennifer Kelly 
Christine Jehu 
Nabil El-Ghoroury 
Marjan Murphy 
Jeff Baker 
Cathy Grus 
Katherine Nordal 
Martin Heesacker 
Aaron A. Harris 
Kevin Arnold 
Karen Cohen 
Melissa Tiessen 
Pierre L. Ritchie 
Dennis Doverspike 
Judith Blanton 
Dale Atkinson 
Heather Sheets 
Morgan Sammons 
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Society for Industrial and Organizational Psychology Mark Nagy 

CONCLUSION 

The past year has been another exciting but challenging period for ASPPB. As we 
continue to expand member services and add staff, the ASPPB organizational chart for Central 
Office continues to evolve.  In addition to realigning roles and responsibilities between volunteer 
board and committee/task force members and paid staff, we have been busy working on a 
number of significant projects including the change in test vendors described above, the 
continued refinement and roll-out of PLUS, the web-based universal application and credentials 
banking system, and settling into our new Central Office headquarters building. 

Many individuals, both volunteers and staff, have contributed countless hours working 
towards the development and implementation of all these new services, projects, policies and 
transitions. I want to thank each and every individual who has given their time and talent to 
working on these many initiatives. I particularly want to thank the members of the ASPPB Board 
of Directors who have contributed so much of their time both in meetings and between meetings 
to direct many of these committees and projects and to set the policies and provide the support 
that made accomplishment of these activities possible. I also want to thank publicly the dedicated 
Central Office staff of ASPPB who have worked hard to maintain the ongoing services that 
ASPPB provides to our member jurisdictions and other stakeholders during this period of rapid 
expansion and transition.  

In summary, I am pleased to report to you that the Association is in solid financial 
condition and we have made good progress toward accomplishing the goals set out in our 
Strategic Plan. I can assure you that the Board of Directors, the Central Office staff and the many 
committees and liaisons of the Association are committed to continuing the development of 
ASPPB into the international leader in psychology regulation. Please feel free to contact me 
directly so we in the Central Office can provide you with the services and programs that allow 
you to accomplish your mission and your strategic goals in the regulation of psychologists. 

Stephen T. DeMers, Ed.D. 
Chief Executive Officer 
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Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards October 2015 Annual Meeting of Delegates 
Report of the Finance and Audit Committee 
Karen Messer-Engel, M.A., R. Psych., Chair 

It is the responsibility of the Finance and Audit Committee (FAC) to assist the ASPPB Board of Directors (BOD) to fulfill its 
fiduciary responsibility to oversee the finances of the Association. The FAC provides information and recommendations to the 
BOD regarding the financial health of the Association. The specific duties carried out by the FAC involve monitoring of, and 
reporting to the BOD in regard to the Association’s audit, its financial management, and its investments. 

The members of the Finance and Audit Committee are Don Crowder, PhD., (WI) President-Elect; C. Gerald O’Brien, PhD, (MSI) 
1st Year Member-at-large; Harry Reiff PhD., (FL) Delegate Member; Dan Collins, JD., Delegate Member (NC); John Harnett, 
M.A. (NS) Delegate Member; and myself, Karen Messer-Engel, M.A., R.Psych., (SK) as Chair / Secretary Treasurer BOD. The 
staff members who very ably support the work of the Committee are Steve DeMers, EdD., Chief Executive Officer; Carol Webb, 
PhD., Chief Operating Officer; Mark Russell, CPA, Financial Officer; Lisa McDowell, Executive Assistant to the CEO & COO. 

The FAC met via teleconferencing in January and April of 2015 to review the quarterly variance reports and investment reports 
for the Association. The Association was reported to be in good financial shape despite a minor decrease in exam usage in the 
first quarter that was interpreted to be related to the transition to the new exam vendor. Investments continued to show small 
growth in spite of market fluctuations and uncertainty in the market. 

As the Chair of the FAC, I met with Dr. Harry Reiff (Delegate Member, FL) on June 18, 2015 to audit the expense claims of Dr. 
DeMers, CEO. Dr. DeMers requests the annual audit of his expense claims.  The audit of Dr. DeMers expense vouchers did not 
result in the identification of any concerns in regard to his expense submissions related to his work for the Association. 

The FAC met in person on June 19, 2015 at the Association central office in Tyrone, GA. All members of the FAC were 
physically present with the exception of Mr. Collins who attended via SKYPE.  The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating 
Officer, Financial Officer and Ms. Lisa McDowell (Recorder) also participated. Accounting practices were discussed and in 
particular the idea that it is best practice for organizations to periodically change auditors. It was noted that the Association has 
received a quality service from the auditing firm of Jackson Thornton and there have been no concerns about the services 
received thus far. A decision was made to put out a Request for Proposals to a number of auditing firms including the current 
firm, and to consider these at the fall meeting of the FAC. The Variance Report for May 2015 was reviewed at the meeting.  The 
exam numbers were noted to continue to be lower then expected and it was felt that this likely would self-correct over the fiscal 
year.  Other revenue streams were noted to be on track.  The income from the Association’s investments was noted to be doing 
well.  In general expenses were as predicted. No major concerns were identified.  The potential rental of the Greencastle space 
on a short-term lease was discussed, as was the repayment schedule for the new mortgage. Dr. DeMers noted that the 
possibility of paying down the mortgage on the new building sooner rather than later is the ideal if the revenue stream of the 
organization continues to be strong.  In future it may be necessary to again utilize the Greencastle office space as the 
Association’s programs and staff numbers expand. 

A draft of the 2014 Audit Report provided by the auditing firm Jackson Thornton was received. The auditor attended the meeting 
to review his report and to respond to questions from the Committee.  The Association is not required by law to submit to an 
annual financial audit, however, consistent with the organization’s belief in accountability and transparency, each year the 
organization voluntarily submits to a financial audit. The audit is useful to the Association in offering recommendations for the 
improvement of internal controls around accounting and financial management processes.  I am very pleased to be able to report 
to you that the Audit Report was clean, and in my view suggests the sound management of the financial resources of the 
Association by its senior managers. 

The Committee also met with representatives from Wells Fargo.  The Association’s investment portfolio was noted to continue to 
be strong. The target investments / investment policy is established by the BOD and it is the responsibility of the Committee to 
ensure that the investments made are consistent with the investment policy.  The Association’s investments have consistently 
grown over the last 10 years. The investment strategy continues to be conservative with low risk that allows for minimal 
disruption as a result of the highs and lows of the market. The investments have grown by approx.11-12% over the last 3-5 
years.  The goal of the Association’s investment policy is to support even growth.  Performance in the last year was noted to 
have been better than expected. Recommendations for liquidation of investments and reallocations of those investment monies 
were made by Wells Fargo to reduce the portfolio’s susceptibility to the volatility of the market, and to rebalance the investment 
portfolio to more closely align it with the investment policy. The recommended investment changes were passed by a motion of 



 

    
     

  

 

 
  

September, 2015 

the Committee. A more detailed accounting of the financial state of the Association will be provided in the Executive Officer 
report. If you have any questions with regard to the work of the FAC or the financial state of the Association please do not 
hesitate to contact the Chief Executive Officer or me. 

Respectfully submitted by, 

Karen Messer-Engel, M.A., R. Psych. 
Chair, FAC / Secretary Treasurer BOD 







*Certain exam administration expenses are paid by the test vendor and are deducted from our monthly payment. They inform us of these amounts in their monthly report which is reconciled and included in 
the monthly variance report. As of this printing, those amounts have not been received for the month of August and are not included in this report. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR' S REPORT

The Finance and Audit Committee of the Board of Directors
Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards
Peachtree City, Georgia

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of the Association of State and
Provincial Psychology Boards (a non-profit organization) (the Association) as of December 31,2014
and 2013, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the twelve and five month
periods then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Ma4Agemgnt's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation ofthe financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

\\
 



Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Association of State and Provincial Psycholory Boards as of 
December 31,2014 and2013, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the twelve and 
five month periods then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

P&{trl^*M4h 
Montgomery, Alabama 
June 9,2015 



ASSOCIATION OF STATE AND PROVINCIAL PSYCHOLOGY BOARDS
 

PEACHTREE CITY. GEORGIA
 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
 

AT DECEMBER 3I,2OI4 AND 2OI3
 

ASSETS 

20r4 2013 

CURRENT ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Trade accounts receivable 
Grant receivable 
Prepaid expenses 

Total current assets 4,97 4,337 

$ 2,094,081 
2,514,684 

217,031 
94,gg7 
53,654 

4,460,902 

$ 1,542,87 r 
2,433,308 

302,647 
114,87 6 
67,200 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 
Land 
Building 
Furniture and equipment 

Less: Accumulated depreciati
Total property and equi

: 

on 
pment 

300,000 
2,354,836 

450,169 
3,105,005 

3 10,812 
2,794,r93 

300,000 
1,960,458 

441,54r 
2,701,999 

396,670 
2,305,329 

OTHER ASSETS: 
Property held for investment, 

depreciation of $400,353 a
Total other assets 

net of accumulated 
nd $372,271 539,936 

539,936 
568,018 
568,01 8 

Total assets $ 8,308,466 $ 7,334,249 

-


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

20t4 

CURRENT LIABILITIES: 
Current portion of capitalized lease obligation 10,7 60 
Current portion of note payable 46,057 
Accounts payable 78,221 
Advance dues and renewals 20r,27 6 
Advance rent 8,2r5 
Accrued compensated absences 105 ,869 
Payroll taxes payable 17,472 

Total cuffent liabilities 467,870 

LONG TERM LTABILITIES: 
Advance renewals 26,7 50 
Capital lease obligation 27,804 
Note payable 7 r2,r20 

Total long term liabilities 7 66,67 4 

Total liabilities r,234,544 

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 7 ,073,922 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 8,308,466 

2013 

r0,236 
33,581 

101 ,246 
17 5,256 

7,899 
94,566 
15,806 

43 8,590 

13,181 
38,564 

961,069 
1,012,814 

r,451,404 

5,882,845 

$ 7,334,249 

-



ASSOCIATION OF STATE AND PROVINCIAL PSYCHOLOGY BOARDS 

STATEMENTS OF ACTTVITIES
 

FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014,
 
AND FTVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 3I. 2OI3
 

20r4 

REVENUES: 
Examinations $ 4,505,903 
Registration fees 35,520 
Membership dues r4r,090 
Score reporting services 162,535 
Certification 122,463 
Rental income 97,947 
Investment return 
Licensure grant income 

101 ,677 
400, l4l 

Total revenues 5,567 ,27 6 

EXPENSES: 
Program: 

Examination 1,425,208 
Board services 1,488,855 
Practitioner mobility 446,580 
Licensure grant 378,555 

Management and general 637,00r 
Total expenses 4,37 6,199 

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS r,191,077 

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,882,845 

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $ 7 ,073,922 

2013 

$ 1,598,498 
22,505 
17,598 
5 8,905 
57,632 
39,495 

157,522 
173,942 

2,126,097 

434,27 6 
724,726 
17 5,269 
188,652 
268,7lr 

r,79r,634 

334,463 

5,548,382 

$ 5,882,845 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



2013 

ASSOCIATION OF STATE AND PROVINCIAL PSYCHOLOGY BOARDS 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
 

FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 3T,2OI4
 

AND FIVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 3I.2OT3
 

20t4 
CASH FLOWS FROM (TJSED FOR) 
OPERATING ACTTVITIES: 

lncrease in net assets $ 1,19r,07 6 
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net 

assets to net cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation l16,g57 
Loss on disposal of assets 3,1 05 
Realized and unrealized (gain) loss on investments 12,433 
Decrease (increase) in operating assets and 

increase (decrease) in operating liabilities: 
Decrease (increase) in receivables 105,605 
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses 13,546 
Decrease (increase) in other assets 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (2r,3 59) 
Increase (decrease) in advance dues 

and renewals 39,905 
Increase in accrued compensated absences 1 1,303 

Net cash from operating activities 1,472,57 | 

CASH FLOWS FROM (USED FOR) 
INVESTING ACTTVITIES: 

Purchase of property and equipment (5 80,844) 
Purchase of investments (162,298) 
Proceeds from sale of investments 68,489 

Net cash used for investittg activities (614,653) 

CASH FLOWS FROM (USED FOR) 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Proceeds from issuance of note payable 
Principal payments on notes payable 
Payments for capital lease obligations 

(236,473) 
(t0,236) 

Net cash from (used for) 
financing activities (246,7 09) 

334,463 

33,47 4 
547 

(7 4,733) 

(91,198) 
43,919 
50,000 

(62,912) 

49,333 
11,628 

294,521 

( 1,63 1,622) 
(82,485) 

4,360 

(l ,7 09,7 47) 

1,000,000 
(5,3 5o) 
(7,478) 

987,r72 



ASSOCIATION OF STATE AND PROVINCIAL PSYCHOLOGY BOARDS 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
 

FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 3 I , 20 14,
 
AND FIVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 3I. 2OI3
 

2014 2013 

NET TNCREASE (DECREASE) IN 
CASH AND CASH EQTJTVALENTS $ 551 ,2r0 $ (428,054) 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR r,542,87 r 1,970,925 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 2,094,081 $ 1,542,871 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES : 

Schedule of noncash investing and financing activities: 
Equipment acquired under capital lease $ 55,498 

Cash paid during the year for interest $ 38,63 I 7,685 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



ASSOCIATION OF STATE AND PROVINCIAL PSYCHOLOGY BOARDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 
DECEMBER 3I. 2OI4 AND 2013
 

NOTE I . SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES: 
Business activitv - The Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards (the Association)
facilitates communication among member boards concerning the certification and licensing of 
psychologists and sponsors collaboration among member boards in developing standards and 
cooperative procedures for the certification, licensing, and mobility of psychologists. Member boards 
include the 50 United States, Washington D. C., U. S. Virgin Islands, Puerto Rico, Guam, and ten 
Canadian provinces. 

Basis of accounting - The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis of presentation - The Association reports information regarding its financial position and 
activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net 
assets, and permanently restricted net assets. The Association has no temporarily or permanently 
restricted net assets. 

Cash and cash equivalents - The Association considers operating cash, cash funds, and certificates of 
deposit with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased as cash equivalents. Cash 
collected for others, money funds designated for long-term investment, and instruments that have 
donor restrictions that limit their use to long-term investment are not considered cash equivalents. 

The Association maintains its cash in bank deposit and brokerage money market accounts, which at 
times may exceed Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and Securities Investor Protection 
Corporation (SIPC) insured limits. The Association had approximately $1,425,000 and $720,000 of 
uninsured cash at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The Association has not experienced 
any losses in such accounts. The Association believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk 
on cash and cash equivalents. 

Accounts receivable - Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect 
from balances outstanding at year-end. Based on management's assessment of the collectability of 
outstanding balances at year-end, it has concluded that realization losses on balances outstanding at 
year-end will be immaterial. No interest is accrued on past due accounts receivable. 

Investments - The Association carries investments in marketable securities with readily determinable 
fair values at their fair values in the statement of financial position. Investment income, realized gain
(loss), and unrealized gan (loss) are included in the change in net assets in the accompanying 
statement of activities as investment return. Investment return is reported net of related costs. 



ASSOCIATION OF STATE AND PROVINCIAL PSYCHOLOGY BOARDS 

NOTES TO FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
 
DECEMBER 31.2014 AND 2OI3
 

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES: (continued)
The Association follows the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic of the FASB 
Accounting Standards Codification. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell 
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date and sets out a fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest
priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level l) and the lowest 
priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). Inputs are broadly defined under the Fair Value 
Measurements and Disclosures Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification as 
assumptions market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. The three levels of the fair 
value hierarchv are described below: 

Level I - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
Association has the ability to access at the measurement date. The type of investments 
included in Level 1 include listed mutual funds. 

Level2 - Inputs other than quoted prices within Level I that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly; and fair value is determined through the use of models 
or other valuation methodologies. A significant adjustment to a Level 2 input could result in 
the Level 2 measurement becoming a Level 3 measurement. 

Level 3 - Inputs are unobservable for the asset or liability and include situations where there 
is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability. The inputs into the determination of 
fair value are based upon the best information in the circumstances and may require 
significant management judgment or estimation. 

The Association investments are in mutual funds. The fair value of these investment securities is the 
market value based on quoted market prices, when available, or market prices provided by recognized 
broker dealers. All of the Association's investments are considered Level l. 

Properly and equipment - Property and equipment is reported at cost. Depreciation is computed by 
the straight-line methods over estimated useful lives of five to 39 years. 

Advanced dues and renewals - Advanced dues and renewals results from the recognition of dues and 
renewal revenue in the membership and renewal period to which it relates. 

Revenue and expenses - The Association records revenues for examinations administered to 
candidates, certification of practitioners, conference registration fees, and information service as an 
increase in net assets when the service is provided. Accordingly, membership dues and certification 
renewals received in advance are deferred and recognized as an increase to net assets over the periods 
to which the dues and certification relate. 

Expenses are recorded when incurred in accordance with the accrual basis of accounting. Exam 
development costs are expensed as incurred. 



ASSOCIATION OF STATE AND PROVINCIAL PSYCHOLOGY BOARDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 
DECEMBER 3I.2014 AND 2OI3
 

Income taxes - The Association is recognized as an exempt association under lnternal Revenue Code 
Section 501(c)(6). The Association had no unrelated business income and no income tax liability for 
the year ended December 3I,2014 and the five months year ended December 31,2013. Management 
evaluated the Association's tax positions and concluded that the Association had taken no uncertain 
tax positions that require adjustment to the financial statements to comply with the provisions of this 
guidance. With few exceptions, the Association is no longer subject to federal or state income tax 
examinations by tax authorities for tax years prior to 201 l. 

Use of estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and 
expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

NOTE 2 . CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK:
 
The Association has contracted with Professional Examination Services (PES) to plan and administer
 
examinations to candidates in various jurisdictions. The contract expired on January 31,2015. As of
 
December 31,2014, the amount due from PES was $212,850 and total revenues for the year under
 
contract with PES was $4,505,903. As of December 31, 2013, the amount due from PES was
 

$3 0 1 ,960 and total revenues for five months under contract with PES was $ I ,598,498.
 

NOTE 3 - INVESTMENTS:
 
The aggregate fair value of the Association's marketable securities are as follows:
 

2014 20t3 

Mutual fund shares $ 2,514,684 $ 2,433,308 

Totals s 2,514,684 $ 2,433,308 

At December 3 1 , 2014, the mutual funds shares were classified approximately 70% equity and 30% 
fixed income. 

Investment return for the year ended December 31. 2014 and five months ended December 31,2013 
consisted of the following: 

2014 2013 

Interest and dividend income 114,1 l0 82,789 
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) (r2,433) 7 4,733 

Totals 101 ,677 r57,522 

10 



ASSOCIATION OF STATE AND PROVINCIAL PSYCHOLOGY BOARDS 

NOTES TO FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
 
DECEMBER 3T,2OI4 AND 2OI3
 

Investment expense incurred during the year ended December 31, 2014 and five months ended 
December 31,2013 and totaled $18,605 and $4,360, respectively. 

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATION:
 
Equipment at December 31,2014 includes equipment recorded as capital leases as follows:
 

20T4 2013 

Equipment 55,498 55,498
 

Less: Accumulated depreciation 14,477 3,377
 

Totals ::$ 4r,021 $ 52,121 

At December 31, 2014, the future minimum lease payments and the related present value were as 
follows: 

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 3 1 : 

2015 12,444
 

2016 12,444
 

2017 12,444
 

20 l8 4,7l0
 
Total minimum lease payments 42,042
 

Less: Amount representing interest 3,478
 

Present value of minimum lease payments 3 8, 564
 

Less: Current portion 10,160
 

Capitalized lease ob ligations 27,804 

ll
 



ASSOCIATION OF STATE AND PROVINCIAL PSYCHOLOGY BOARDS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 
DECEMBER 31.2014 AND 2013
 

NOTE 5 - LONG TERM DEBT: 
In October 2013, the Association entered into a note payable arrangement with a principal amount of 
$1,000,000 and interest rate of 4.lYofor the purchase of an office building. The Association has an 
outstanding balance of $758,177 and $994,650 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The 
note requires monthly payments of $6,144. The remaining balance of the note is due in full in 
September 2016 when the note matures. The note agreement is secured by the building. 

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 3I: 

2015 46,057 
2016 7 12,120 

Total principal 75 8 ,T77 

NOTE 6 . RETIREMENT PLAN: 
The Association provides its employees the opportunity to participate in a 401(k) Plan (a qualified 
plan). This plan covers all full-time employees of at least 21 years of age that have completed six 
months of employment. Eligible employees may contribute up to 90oh of their salaries to the plan up
to a maximum dollar amount as defined by the IRS each year. The Association's matching
contribution is 140% of the employee's contribution, not to exceed seven percent of the employee's
compensation. The Association's contributions during the year ended December 31,2014 and five 
months ended December 31,2013 totaled $48,510 and$23,493, respectively. Employees are fully 
vested upon commencement of participation in the plan. 

NOTE 7 - FUNCTIONAL ALLOCATION OF EXPENSES:
 
The cost of providing the various programs and activities has been summarized on a functional basis
 

in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and
 

supporting services benefited.
 

NOTE 8 - OPERATING LEASE: 
The Association leases its Montgomery, Alabama building under an operating lease agreement that 
expires February 2017, with an option to extend an additional five years. The rental properfy held for 
lease consists of the following: 

2014 2013 

Land 224,697 224,697 
Building and improvements 715,592 715,592 

940,289 940,289 
Less: Accumulated depreciation 400,3 53 372,27 r 

Totals 539,936 568,01 8 

t2 



ASSOCIATION OF STATE AND PROVINCIAL PSYCHOLOGY BOARDS 

NOTES TO FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
 
DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2OI3
 

The rent to be received under the operatittg leases is as follows: 

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 3 1 : 

20t5 101 ,739 
2016 105,53 0 

20r7 17,694 

Depreciation expense related to the rental property for the year ended December 31,2014 and the five 
months ended December 31,2013 totaled $28,082 and $l1,701, respectively. 

NOTE 9 - BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS: 
As of December 31, 2014,the Board of Directors had designated $1,000,000 of unrestricted net assets 
as a general reserve fund to be invested in accordance with the Association's investment policy. The 
reserve funds represent contingency reserves, a provision for funding extraordinary, non-recurring
projects, and a fund needed to meet any long-term capitalization requirements. Since that amount 
resulted from an internal designation and is not donor-restricted, it is classified and reported as 
unrestricted net assets. 

To achieve that objective, the Association has adopted an investment policy that attempts to 
maximize total return consistent without exposure to undue risk. Endowment assets are invested in a 
well diversified asset mix, which includes equlty and debt securities, that is intended to minimize the 
likelihood of low negative returns, defined as a one-year return worse than negative l|Yo. It is the 
belief of the Association that a loss greater than this will occur no more than one out of 20 years. The 
primary concern should be long-term appreciation ofthe assets and consistency oftotal return on the 
portfolio. It is the goal of the Association for the expected return to exceed the increase in the 
Consumer Price Index by 3% annually and exceed the increase in the Treasury Bill Index by a 
minimum of 3Yo annually over a three-year moving time period. lnvestment risk is measured in terms 
of the total endowment fund; investment assets and allocation between asset classes and strategies are 
managed to not expose the fund to unacceptable levels of risk. 

For the year ended December 31,2014 and the five months ended December 31, 2013 the 
Association maintained an investment reserve fund valued in excess of the Board's designation of 
$1,000,000. 

13 



ASSOCI,ATION OF STATE AND PROVINCIAL PSYCHOLOGY BOARDS
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 
DECEMBER 3 1. 2014 AND 2OI3
 

NOTE IO - FISCAL YEAR CHANGE:
 
Effective the calendar year beginning January l,20l4,the Association changed from a fiscal year end
 

of July 3l to December 31. A five-month fiscal transition period from August 1,2013 through
 

December 31,2013, preceded the start of the new calendar-year cycle.
 

NOTE I I . GRANT RECETVABLE:
 
Grant receivable consists of amounts awarded, but not yet paid, and is due within the next fiscal year.
 
The grant is to be used for the implementation of the PLUS Licensure System. The grant receivable
 

balance at December3l,2014 and 2013 was $94,887 and $l14,876, respectively.
 

NOTE 12 - SUBSEQUENT EVENT:
 
The Association has evaluated events through June 9,2015, which is the date these financial
 
statements were available to be issued, and have determined that except as set forth below, there are
 

no subsequent events that require disclosure.
 

Subsequent to year end, the Association entered into a contract with a vendor to create a new mobility
 
database to track credentials and renewals. The project is expected to be completed in 2015 and the
 

total cost is approximately $400,000.
 

During 2014, the Association entered into a contract with Pearson Vue to plan and administer 
examinations to candidates in various jurisdictions beginning in February 2015, after the contract 
with their current exam provider, Pro Exam Services, ended. 

l4 



  
 

  

  
  

     

     
       

    

    

      
  

   

  
  

      
   

      

  
   

   

  

 

 

   
 

 

  

Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards 2015 Annual Meeting of Delegates 
Report of the Nominations Committee 

Fred A. Millán, PhD, ABPP, NCC 

The ASPPB Nominations Committee met by conference call on Monday, May 18, 2015 at 11:00 am EST. All 

committee members participated in the call:
 

Chair: Fred A. Millán, PhD, ABPP, NCC ‐ Past‐President (NY) 


Members: Martha N. Storie – President (NC) Don L. Crowder, PhD – President‐Elect (WI) Neal R. Morris, EdD, 

MS, CBSM, ABPP-CL, – Delegate Member (MD), Mary A. Bowers, PhD – Delegate Member (AL) Pam Groose –
 
Delegate Member (MO) Heather Paul, MS – Delegate Member (NL)
 

Also participating was Emelyn East, ASPPB Executive Secretary, who served as recorder for the meeting.
 

The Committee’s charge this year was to make recommendations to the ASPPB Board of Directors for nominations
 
for Member‐at‐Large, Secretary-Treasurer and President‐Elect of the Board, and to make recommendations for
 
various ASPPB awards.
 

The Committee discussed the criteria for evaluating nominees for positions on the Board of Directors as set forth in
 
the ASPPB Bylaws. Those criteria include, among other things, attendance at Annual and Midyear Meetings, service 

as a delegate from a member jurisdiction, service on an Association committee or task force, and contributions to the
 
profession. The criteria for Association awards are varied and are listed in the Awards Luncheon booklet. The
 
Committee reviewed criteria for each award when deciding on the award winners for recommendation to the Board.
 

The Nominations Committee recommended the following individuals be placed on the ballot for election to the
 
ASPPB Board of Directors:
 

President‐Elect: Donald S. Meck, PhD, JD (GA)
 

Secretary-Treasurer: Karen Messer-Engel, MA, R.Psych (SK)
 

Member‐at‐Large: Bob Bohanske, PhD, FNAP (AZ), 


Member-at-Large: Sheila Young, PhD (NV) 


The Committee also recommended to the Board that the following individuals be recipients of ASPPB awards as
 
indicated:
 

ASPPB Fellow: Jacqueline B. Horn, PhD (CA) 


State and Provincial Service Award: Jeffrey L. Leichter, PhD, LP (MN)
 



  

   

  

 

      
 

  
  

  

     
 

   
 

  
 

  

  
  

Excerpt from ASPPB Bylaws 

ARTICLE VIII - Voting 

Section 1. Member Boards 

A. Each member board shall be entitled to one (1) vote at all meetings of the Association. 

B. Each member board shall vote by one (1) delegate from the member board, to be chosen by 
the member board in such manner and for such term of office as the member board elects. 

(1) Delegates	 of member boards shall be seated by the Secretary-Treasurer of the 
Association upon receipt of appropriate credentials from the secretary and/or chair of 
the member board, and shall serve until replaced by action of the member board. 

(2) Each member board may name an alternate delegate who may attend meetings of the 
Association and participate in its deliberations without voting. 

(3) In the absence of a delegate, an alternate may be seated by the Secretary-Treasurer of 
the Association as a delegate pro tempore. 

(4) On any ballot of the Association, the right to vote is vested in the delegates of the 
member boards, including delegates pro tempore. 

Section 2. Non-Delegates 

Participants other than delegates to meetings of the Association, including officers, committee 
persons, and individual members, may participate in the deliberations of the Association but 
shall not vote on any ballot of the Association. 



 

 

 

   

  

  

 

  

 

  

   

ASPPB Election Process
 

Elections at ASPPB Annual Meetings shall be conducted according to the following: 

1.	 The call for nominations will normally take place in advance of the meeting. 

2.	 Nominations from the floor will be called for and closed on day one of the Annual 
Meeting, with balloting held on day two. 

3.	 When an election of a candidate who already holds an elected office results in an 
unexpired term, an election to complete that term will be held by accepting 
nominations from the Nominations Committee and from the floor. 

4.	 Votes are normally cast by paper ballot. 

5.	 Votes are counted by the Past-President and two impartial delegates. 

6.	 When there are less than three candidates, a candidate is elected by a simple 
majority of the votes cast. 

7.	 When there are three or more candidates and only one to be elected, the following 
procedure is used: 

a.	 Voters rank candidates 1,2,3, etc. 

b.	 Votes are sorted by 1st place rankings. 

c.	 If any candidate receives a majority he/she is declared elected. 

d.	 If there is no winner (one who received a majority) on the first place sort, 
the candidate with the fewest first place votes is declared defeated. His or 
her 2nd place votes are distributed to the remaining two or more candidates. 

e.	 This process continues until one person has a majority or there is only one 
candidate remaining. 

f.	 He/she is declared elected. 



 
 

  

   
       

   

    

    

   
       

   

 
    
  

    

 

  

    
 

   

    

 
    

   

  
  

    
    

    

  

Rules for Counting Ballots in Private Elections
 
Under The Hare System of Proportional Representation
 

From the American Psychological Association 

(The rules assume that ballots have been marked with numbers to indicate each voter’s choice 
among candidates – 1 for first choice, 2 for second choice, and so on for as many choices as the 
voter cares to mark.) 

1.	 Sort the ballots, giving each to the candidate marked on it as the first choice. 

2.	 Credit each candidate with one vote for every ballot thus sorted to him/her. 

3.	 Set aside as invalid any ballots from which the first choice of the voter cannot be clearly 
ascertained.  Count all other ballots as valid, whether they are marked according to instructions 
or not.  If a ballot has a single cross mark or “x” and no number 1, consider the mark as an 
expression of first choice.  If the consecutive numerical order of the numbers on a ballot is 
broken by the omission of one or more numbers, take the smallest number as indicating the 
first choice, the next smallest number the second choice, and so on, without regard to the 
number or numbers omitted.  (If voters’ choices have been indicated not by numbers but by 
writing the first choice at the top of the ballot, the second choice just below the first, and so on, 
the last two sentences of this rule and all of rule 17 will, of course, be unnecessary.) 

4.	 By adding the numbers of valid ballots of all the candidates determine the total number of valid 
ballots cast. 

5.	 Determine the quota sufficient to elect a member by dividing the number of valid ballots by 
one more than the number of members to be elected and adding one to the result, disregarding 
any fraction. The reason for this quota is that is it the smallest number of ballots that could not 
be received separately by more than the number to be elected. 

6.	 Declare elected every candidate who has received the quota. 

7.	 Transfer to unelected candidates, as prescribed below, as many of the ballots having choices 
for such candidates as each elected candidate can spare without reducing his/her total below the 
quota. 

8.	 If more than one candidate has more than the quota, transfer first the surplus ballots of the 
candidate with the most ballots, then those of the candidate with the next most ballots, and so 
on. In applying this rule decide any tie by lot. 

9.	 In transferring ballots from any elected candidate take those which first come to hand without 
selection, except that all ballots which show no clear next choice among the unelected 
candidates are to be left to the credit of their first choice.  This method of selecting surplus 
ballots if fair to all voters concerned, since each helps to elect either a first choice or a later 
choice after the first has been elected by others.  Since it is considerably simpler than other 
methods, it is recommended wherever an element of chance is not likely to arouse bad feeling. 

10. Give every ballot transferred to the candidate marked on it as the next choice among the 
candidates not yet elected. 



   
    

  
 

   
    

    
      
  

 
        

   
 

      
 

 
  

      
 

      
   

 
    

    
    

     
   

 
  

  
 

   
 

 
     

    
 

   
 

       
  

 
     

   
  

 
 

11. Whenever ballots are transferred, subtract from the total vote of the candidate from whom 
ballots are taken the number transferred from him/her, and credit each other candidate with one 
additional vote for each ballot transferred to him/her. 

12. Whenever a ballot is transferred, check the ballot opposite the name of the candidate to whom 
it is transferred so that the course of each ballot from candidate to candidate can be traced. In 
any recount, see that each ballot takes the same course that it took in the original count unless a 
mistake is discovered which requires it to take another course. (If vacancies are filled by the 
recount method, this sentence should not apply to vacancy recounts.) 

13. As soon as a candidate is credited with a full quota during any transfer of ballots, declare 
him/her elected and transfer no ballots to him/her in excess of the quota. 

14. After all the surplus ballots have been transferred, declare defeated all candidates with no 
ballots to their credit. 

15. Next declare defeated the remaining candidate lowest on the poll and transfer all his/her ballots 
to each candidate marked on it as next choice among the candidates not yet elected or defeated. 

16. Whenever in this or any subsequent transfer a ballot shows no next choice for a candidate not 
yet elected or defeated, set it aside as exhausted. 

17. If a ballot to be transferred is marked with the same choice for two or more candidates, 
disregard all choices for candidate already elected or defeated and regard the next choice 
among the other candidates as the voter’s next choice. If, however, the next choice is marked 
for two or more candidates not yet elected or defeated, treat the ballots as if that choice and all 
subsequent choices had not been marked at all. 

18. After the defeated candidate’s ballots have all been transferred, declare defeated the candidate 
then lowest on the poll and transfer all of his/her ballots in the same way. 

19. Continue to defeat lowest candidates one at a time and to transfer their ballots until the election 
is finished as prescribed below. 

20. In deciding any tie, treat a candidate as having more votes than another if he/she was credited 
with more votes at the end of the last preceding transfer or sorting of ballots at which the 
numbers of their votes were different.  If two or more tied candidates were tied at all preceding 
tabulations and one of them is to be declared defeated decide the tie by lot. 

21. As soon as the necessary number of candidates has been elected, declare the election at an end; 
but any transfer that is in progress may be completed for the record. 

22. If the number of candidates not yet elected or defeated is reduced to the number still to be 
elected and all the ballots of the candidates who have been defeated are transferred without 
completing the election, bring the election to an end by declaring all the remaining candidates 
elected. 



   
  

 
 

     

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
   

Donald S. Meck, Ph.D., J.D. 

             ASPPB President-Elect Candidate Statement 


Education: Academic training:  B.P.E. in Education, Purdue University, 1971; M.A. in Psychology, St. 
Mary’s University, 1973;  Ph.D. in Psychology, Texas A&M University, 1977; J.D., John Marshall Law 
School, 2000. Clinical Internship: Wilford Hall USAF Medical Center, APA approved Clinical 
Psychology Residency, 1977-78. 

Certifications/Licenses: Licensed Applied Psychologist, State of Georgia, No. 619, 1979 – present; 
Attorney, State Bar of Georgia, No. 5000495, 2001 – present; Board Certification, American Board of 
Professional Neuropsychology, Neuropsychology, No. 93, 1984 – present; Board Certification, American 
Board of Professional Psychology, Forensic Psychology, No. 6157, 2006 – present;  Health Service 
Provider, National Register of Health Service Providers in Psychology, No. 23331, 1980 – present; 
ASPPB CPQ, No. 340; ASPPB IPC, No. 340. 

Current Employment: Private Practice in Neuropsychology and Forensic Psychology, Warner Robins, 
GA., 1984- present; Consulting Police Psychologist, six Police Departments, 1985- present; Consulting 
Psychologist for three area Pain Centers, 1998-present; Community Professor of Psychiatry and 
Behavioral Science, Mercer University Medical School, 2013 – present.  

Professional Memberships: Georgia Psychological Association; American Psychological Association; 
American Academy of Forensic Psychologists; Association of Family and Conciliation Courts; American 
Professional Society on Abuse of Children; National Academy of Neuropsychologist; State Bar of 
Georgia; Federation of Associations of Regulatory Boards. 

Regulatory Experience: Member, Georgia Board of Examiners of Psychologists, 1993 – present; 
President of Board, 1996, 1997 & 1998; Vice President of Board, 1995, 1999 & 2000; Cognizant Board 
Member, 2001 – present. 

ASPPB Experience: ASPPB Member-at-Large, Board of Directors 2013-15; Regular Attendance at 
ASPPB Annual Meeting since 1993; Regular Attendance at ASPPB Midyear Meeting since 1993; Served 
on the following ASPPB Committees: Modal Rules and Law Committee, Exam Committee, Research 
Review Committee, Competency Committee, Annual Meeting Committee; Recipient of the 2003 ASPPB 
Roger Smith Award for outstanding contributions to the regulation of psychologists and the practice of 
psychology. 

Position Statement:  It has been a privilege to have served you as an ASPPB Member-at-Large for the 
past three years.  I would ask for your continued support as President-Elect as we all move forward to 
make ASPPB the foremost authority in regulation and credentialing of psychologists. This is especially 
important due to current controversies that have recently developed and will most probably have a 
significant impact on the profession of psychology in the near future.  Let’s not forget the importance of 
our organization being the most current and accurate information about the regulation of psychologists as 
these controversies evolve and are hopefully resolved in a positive manner. My main focus will always be 
contributing to the critical consumer protection perspective as this process in the profession evolves. I ask 
that you join me in continuing to make ASPPB the primary source of enhancing services and support to 
member jurisdictions as we advance the primary goal of public protection.  Thanks, Don. 



  
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Karen Messer-Engel August 3, 2015 
Candidate Secretary Treasurer 

I am pleased to have been nominated to for a second term as the Secretary/Treasurer of the Board of Directors of ASPPB.  It 
has been an honor to serve on your behalf in this role over the last 2 ½ years.  My sincere hope is that I have meaningfully 
contributed to this important work, to the organization serving as a leader and authority in the field of professional regulation, and 
most importantly to providing you the members with the tools and support to meet the challenges and responsibilities of 
regulation. 

Prior to joining the Board I was provided many opportunities to  participate in the work of the ASPPB through committee 
involvements (i.e. BARC 2007-present, Bylaws Revision Taskforce 2008-2011, and the Finance and Audit Committee 2012­
present), presentations at  meetings, and regular meeting attendance (since 2007). My work on the Board has provided me with 
opportunities for personal and professional growth, and collaboration with many competent and highly skilled colleagues.  I am 
truly thankful for these opportunities. As a member of the Board I have had responsibility for oversight of ASPPB’s finances 
(Chair of the FAC), oversight of the ASPPB’s policies and procedures (Chair of the P&P Committee), responsibility to organize 
and Chair the Midyear Meetings, Co-Chair of the Learning Objectives Committee, Co-Chair of the Committee on Disciplinary 
Issues, participation in membership meetings, and as a member of the PLUS taskforce, and recently appointed member of the 
Committee on Competency Assessment.  I am the liaison to the CPA Panel on Accreditation, the Canadian Council of 
Professional Psychology Programs, and alternate liaison to APA Council of Executives of State and Provincial Psychology 
Associations. 

I am a Registered Psychologist, and the Executive Director and Registrar of the Saskatchewan College of Psychologists (SCP), 
the regulatory body for the profession. Prior to joining the SCP I practiced Clinical Psychology for approx. 17 years in mental 
health settings. As a clinician in addition to frontline positions I held various leadership positions, including team leader, 
supervisor, consultant, and senior psychologist.  During my tenure with SCP I have served in various roles of increasing 
responsibility (Deputy Registrar 2004-2006; Registrar 2006-2009; Executive Director/Registrar 2009 – present).  My current 
responsibilities include oversight of the daily operations, ensure that SCP’s legislated responsibilities are met, and representation 
at various stakeholder and regulatory tables.  I am a Director for the Association of Canadian Psychology Regulators (ACPRO).  
In addition to work with my colleagues on regulatory issues of mutual concern, I serve on the Finance Committee, the National 
Standard Committee, and the subcommittee considering licensure at the Master’s level. I previously served on the ACPRO 
Telepsychology Committee which developed model standards for telepsychology practice.  I am a member of the Canadian 
Psychological Association, and previously served on the Executive of the provincial advocacy body as Secretary and as the Co-
Chair for the Status of Women Committee.  I am the representative for the SCP to the Network of Intra-provincial Regulatory 
Organizations. 

As regulators we are challenged to protect the interests of the public we serve within an ever-changing regulatory landscape.  
We must carry out our responsibilities with fairness, transparency and timeliness.  We are dealing with an aging membership 
and must focus not only on competence at the beginning of careers but also throughout the lifespan of careers.  The call for the 
increased mobility for Psychologists challenges us to seek increased consistency in regulation between jurisdictions.  The 
increased demand for competent psychological services creates challenges for regulators with the provision of those services by 
non-psychologists.  We recognize the call to ensure ethical practice among our members and the challenges to this with the 
increasing complexity of the world we live in.  As a member of the Board of ASPPB I have been afforded the opportunity to be a 
contributor to the development of policies, programs and initiatives that promote excellence within the regulation of the 
profession and that seek to address the challenges we are facing as regulators of the profession e.g. maintenance of 
competence initiatives, PSYPACT, PLUS, EPPP, Model Act, guidelines documents etc.  ASPPB values the partnership that it 
has with you its members, and has worked hard to be a strong voice for regulators.  I am committed to the work of the ASPPB. I 
bring to the Board of Directors a commitment to continue to serve you the members through my experience in the management 
of both financial and human resources, my background in the profession and its regulation, a broad vision, strong organizational 
skills, and a collaborative approach.  I am committed to working collaboratively, with honesty and integrity to be a good steward 
of the monetary and human resources of the ASPPB, and to work with the Board of Directors towards meeting the strategic 
objectives of the organization.  I very much hope to have the continued opportunity to serve, and thank you for your support. 



 

 

 

 

Bob Bohanske, Ph.D., FNAP is the Chief of Clinical Services and Clinical Training at 
Southwest Behavioral Health Services / Chief Psychologist in the Southwest Training 
Institute. 
He received his Ph.D. in Rehabilitation Psychology from the University of Arizona and 
M.S. in Counseling and Rehabilitation from the University of Southern California.  
He completed his pre-doctoral internship at the Institute of Rehabilitation Medicine and 
Post-Doctoral Fellowship in the Institute of Behavioral Medicine both at Good Samaritan 
Medical Center in Phoenix. He has completed additional Post graduate training in the 
UCLA School of Medicine Neuropsychiatric Institute. 
Following a decade of hospital based work, where he held the positions of Chief 
Psychologist at Meridian Point Rehabilitation Hospital as well as with the Behavioral 
Health Institute at Mesa Lutheran Hospital, he reentered Public Health care. 
 For the past 20 years he has helped build one of the largest public behavioral health 
organizations in the Western United States, annually serving over 30,000 patients at over 
80 program sites. In addition Dr. Bob serves as the Chief Psychologist in the Southwest 
Training Institute a large psychology internship and post-doctoral residency program. 

He is a member of the active teaching faculty at Midwestern University,(APA approved 
Clinical Psychology Program) Argosy University, (APA approved Clinical Psychology 
Program) , Ottawa University , (Professional Counseling Program), Sias University, 
XinZheng, China as a clinical consultant and as a Visiting Professor of Psychology at 
Zhengzhou University, Zhengzhou, China. (where for the past 6 years he has assisted in 
developing a community based behavioral health service and suicide prevention project). 

Dr. Bohanske is a Project Leader and Certified Trainer for the Heart and Soul of Change 
Project, and consultant with the Lincolnshire Trust, National Health Service, UK.  He 
also consults as a Psychology expert for the US Department of Justice, Civil Rights 
Division. 
 He is currently a member of the State of Arizona Board of Psychologist Examiners, 
where he has been elected to the positions of Vice Chair as well as Chairman. 
He currently serves on the ASPPB Competency Assessment Committee, Annual Meeting 
Planning Committee and Continuing Education Committee. 

Dr. Bohanske is a member of APA Divisions 22 and 40, the American Congress of 
Rehabilitation Medicine, the Society for Participatory Medicine and the Academy of 
Medical Psychology. 

Dr. Bohanske is the recipient of the 2008 Heart and Soul of Change Award for Clinical 
Excellence from the International Institute for the Study of Therapeutic Change; the 2009 
Health Care Heroes Award for Research and Innovation from the Phoenix Business 
Journal, the 2012 award for Distinguished Contributions to Psychology from the Arizona 
Psychological association and the 2013 Arizona Behavioral Health Award:  Leadership in 
Service, from the Arizona State University: Center for Applied Behavioral Health Policy. 

Dr. Bohanske has been elected: a Distinguished Practitioner and Fellow in the National 
Academies of Practice (Psyc).  



       

                                       

                                     

                                       

   

                                   

                                    

                                    

                   

                                        

                                      

                            

                                         

                                             

 

                             

                                       

                                 

                                   

                                   

                                

                                

                           

         

                                     

                                

                               

                           

                                    

                                 

                                             

                     

                               

                                    

                                    

                         

                                   

                                            

                  

Sheila G. Young, Ph.D. 

I am running for the open position of Member‐ At‐ Large. I find ASPPB’s values and goals compatible with my own. 

I have enjoyed attending eight ASPPB mid‐year and annual meetings, and have found each one a great source of 

information and support in my role with the Nevada Board of Psychological Examiners as well as other areas of my 

professional life. 

I began working with the Nevada Board of Psychological Examiners in 2010 to develop the language for the 

statutes for three levels of Behavior Analyst certification/licensure. I became a member of the Board in July of 

2011. I chair the BA exam committee, which writes and evaluates items for the state Behavior Analyst licensing 

exam. Recently I was elected the Secretary‐Treasurer of the Board. 

I have had a number of opportunities to participate with ASPPB. Currently, I am on the ASPPB Portability Task 

Force. One of the responsibilities of the Portability Task Force is to assess the implementation of the PLUS system, 

which Nevada has successfully initiated as part of our psychology licensure application process. 

In the spring of 2013, I attended training through ASPPB to become an item writer for the Ethics Domain of the 

EPPP. I met with the Ethics Domain writers again in May 2014, and continue to serve as an item writer for the 

EPPP. 

I completed my Ph.D. at Utah State University in 1990, in the Combined Professional‐Scientific Psychology 

Program. I also have a Master’s in Applied Behavior Analysis. In 1989‐90, I completed my clinical internship at VA 

Sierra Nevada Health Care System in Reno, Nevada. I have worked at VA SNHCS ever since. 

My current title is Supervisor for the Behavior Medicine Program, which is a group of psychologists and social 

workers working as consultants throughout VA SNHCS. For the past year, I have also served as supervisor for 

Integrated Behavioral Health Care, the group of mental health providers co‐located in Primary Care. My clinical 

role is doing consultation and liaison with Medicine, Surgery and Geriatrics. Behavioral Medicine and IBHC staff 

include a variety of specialty providers, including neuropsychology, suicide prevention, home based primary care 

and emergency room coverage. 

I hold leadership roles on committees within VA SNHCS. I have been the chair of the Healthcare Ethics Committee 

since sometime in the mid‐1990s. Currently I serve as the Integrated Ethics Officer and Ethics Consultation 

Coordinator for VA SNHCS. I am involved with the facility’s Research Department as Chair, Research and 

Development Committee, am a member of the Protocol Review Subcommittee (which reviews protocols for 

scientific merit), and am the Research Integrity Officer. I serve as the Local Site Investigator for VA Cooperative 

Study 590, a study looking at the relationship between lithium use and recurrence of suicidal ideation and 

behavior. I serve as a Mentor in our facility leadership programs. I am an LGBT Ally and serve on a committee that 

works toward making our facility a welcoming place for all veterans. 

I have been training psychology interns in our APA accredited program since 1990, providing clinical supervision 

and teaching seminars. I have been on faculty in the Department of Psychiatry and Behavioral Science at the 

University of Nevada, School of Medicine since 1990, and serve as a Clinical Professor. I teach clinical problem 

solving to medical students and work with residents in our VA/UNSOM training programs. 

I reside in beautiful Reno, Nevada with my husband Ted, a neuropsychologist, and youngest son Daniel, who is 

finishing a year as an AmeriCorp volunteer and is starting college this Fall. William, my oldest son, is a medic in the 

US Army and is stationed in El Paso, TX. 



  
 

    
 

  
 

    
     
   

 
 

    

    
    
    

       
 

 

      
       
      
  

     

      
      

  
 

 
  

Modern Parliamentary Procedure by Ray E Keesey
 
Summary Chart of Motions
 

Motion Debatable Amendable Vote 
May Have 

Applied to It 
Ordinary Motions a 

(in order of rank) 
1. To Adjourn No No Majority C 
2. To Recess No Yes b Majority 7, C 
3. To Close Debate No No b C 
4. To Limit (Extend 

the Limits of) 
Debate 

No Yes b b 7, C 

5. To Postpone No Yes Majority 3, 4, 7, C 
6. To Refer No Yes Majority 3, 4, 7, C 
7. To Amend No Yes Majority 3, 4,  C 

Main Motion a (lowest rank) Yes Yes Majority 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, C, E, F 
Special Motions 
(no rank among 
themselves) 

A. Point of Order No No None None 
B. To Appeal a Yes No Majority 3, 4, C 
C. To Withdraw No No Majority None 
D. To Suspend the 

Rules No No 2/3 C 

E. To Reconsider a Yes No Majority 3, 4, C 
F. To Rescind a Yes Yes Majority 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, C 

a When ordinary motions are made with no main motion on the floor, they are treated like other main motions.  They are debatable and 
amendable, and their consideration may be referred, postponed, etc.  This applies also to the motions To Appeal, To Reconsider, and To 
Rescind within the limitations stipulated in Chapter 5. 

b May be amended regarding time limitations only. 
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PUBLIC EXPECTATION OF 

REGULATORY BOARDS 

Presented by David Swankin 

President and CEO 

CITIZEN ADVOCACY CENTER 

ABOUT CITIZEN ADVOCACY CENTER 

Citizen Advocacy Center (CAC) has been
serving the public interest since 1987 by

enhancing the effectiveness and
accountability of health professional
oversight bodies. We offer training,

research, and networking opportunities
for public board members, and for the

health care regulatory, credentialing, and 
governing boards on which they serve. 

FOUR ISSUES: 

1. Demonstrating current competence
in clinical practice 

2. Telehealth 
3. Consequences of the decision in the

U.S. Supreme Court’s “Teeth
Whitening” case 

4. Need for better consumer education 

1 
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ISSUE #1: DEMONSTRATING CURRENT 

COMPETENCE IN CLINICAL PRACTICE 

•	 The public believes it is already required 
•	 Mandatory continuing education is not


sufficient
 
•	 It s NOT sufficient for licensees to demonstrate 

KNOWLEDGE of the subject matter – they
should also demonstrate that they APPLY their
knowledge in their practice 

ISSUE #2: TELEHEALTH 

•	 Many surveys show consumer support for
telehealth 

•	 Telehealth is especially important in rural areas
and other underserved populations 

•	 Some existing barriers to the utilization of
telehealth need to be removed 

•	 Relationship between telehealth and licensee
portability 

ISSUE #3: CONSEQUENCES OF THE 

DECISION IN THE U.S. SUPREME COURT’S 

“TEETH WHITENING” CASE 

•	 Brief overview of the case 
•	 What the majority opinion said 
• Concerns raised by the minority opinion 
•	 State regulators could: 

a. Change board composition 
b. Provide for “Active Supervision” for an 

independent state agency 

2 
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ISSUE #4: NEED FOR BETTER CONSUMER 

EDUCATION 

How informative are board web sites?
 
Which professions perform what
 
services?
 
How to locate a practitioner?
 
What does “Scope of Practice” mean?
 

QUESTIONS? 
David Swankin, Esq. 
President and CEO 
Citizen Advocacy Center 
1400 Sixteenth Street NW 
Suite #101 
Washington, DC 20036 
David Swankin@cacenter.org 
(202) 462 1174 

3 

mailto:Swankin@cacenter.org


 

 

 –   

 

 

  
    

  
 

 

9/17/2015
 

An Overview of Current Regulatory Issues 
and Decisions 

Thursday October 7, 2015 

2:00pm 3:00pm 

ASSOCIATION OF STATE 
AND PROVINCIAL 

PSYCHOLOGY BOARDS 

SPEAKER 

Dale Atkinson, Esq. AAVSB FLCB
ASPPB Counsel ASWB ICFSEB Atkinson & Atkinson ASPPB NABP1466 Techny Road 

ARBO
Northbrook, Illinois 60062 JRCERT 

FSBPT847-714-0070	 NMTCB 
FSMTB847-714-9796 fax FARB 

dale@atkinsonfirm.com 

OBJECTIVES 
•	 Discuss and explore the history of regulation and 

reference some case law, old and new, to identify some 
of the trends and current issues relevant to the 
regulatory community, with an emphasis on 1965 and 
Arizona administrative cases, and additional recent 
administrative cases. 

• 57 slides in 60 minutes….. 
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NABP Amended Articles of 
Incorporation 1915 

Originally Incorporated 
in 1904 

HISTORY OF REGULATION ….. 

• First regulatory laws in the United States: 
Architects… 

• Illinois 1857 

Accounting… 
• New York 1896 

Medicine… 
• New Jersey Medical Society founded in 1766 
• North Carolina, first medical licensing board (1859) 

Veterinary medicine … 
• Veterinary College of Philadelphia founded in 1862 

Pharmacy…. 
• Territory of Orleans f rst to require licensure 1808 

Social Work 
• Columbia University graduated first class 1898 

Psychology…. 
• Georgia, first state to license 1951 

CELEBRATING 50 YEARS OF 
PSYCHOLOGY IN ARIZONA…1965 

• Stanley Cup Champs…. 

• NFL Champs….. 

• AFL Champs…. 

• NBA Champs…. 

• World Series Champs… 

• U.S. Open Champ…. 

• Wimbledon Champs…. 
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CELEBRATING 50 YEARS OF 
PSYCHOLOGY IN ARIZONA…1965 

• Stanley Cup Champs…. Montreal Canadians 

• NFL Champs…..Green Bay Packers 

• AFL Champs….Buffalo Bills 

• NBA Champs….Boston Celtics 

• World Series Champs…Los Angeles Dodgers 

• U.S. Open Champ….Gary Player 

• Wimbledon Champs….Roy Emerson/Margaret Smith 

THINK 1965…….. 

3 
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SIGNIFICANT UNITED STATES 
SUPREME COURT DECISION 

•	 Griswold v. Connecticut, 381 U.S. 479 (1965) 

The landmark case in which the 
Supreme Court of the United States 
ruled that the Constitution protected a 
right to privacy. 
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TITLE PROTECTION 

FIRST REPORTED RELEVANT 
PSYCHOLOGY CASE (THAT I COULD FIND) 

• National Psychological Association for 
Psychoanalysis, Inc. v. University of the State of New 
York 188 N.Y.S. 2d 151 (Supreme Ct 1959) 

Issue:  Whether the NY legislation that requires 
persons to be certified to hold themselves out as 
psychologists or use the terms psychological or 
psychology related to services provided for 
remuneration violated constitutional principles of 
due process and/or equal protection. 

NATIONAL PSYCHOLOGICAL ASSOCIATION FOR 
PSYCHOANALYSIS, INC. V. UNIVERSITY OF THE STATE OF NEW 
YORK  188 N.Y.S. 2D 151 (SUPREME CT 1959) 

• Law requires certification as a condition of use of 
title 

• Certification calls for standards of age, character, 
citizenship, education, examination and a $40 fee.  

• Plaintiffs, 3 members of association, educated in 
Europe but unable to produce documentary 
evidence of education. 

• Filed a lawsuit alleging law violated due process and 
equal protection 
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NATIONAL PSYCHOLOGICAL ASSOCIATION FOR 
PSYCHOANALYSIS, INC. V. UNIVERSITY OF THE STATE OF NEW 
YORK  188 N.Y.S. 2D 151 (SUPREME CT 1959) 

• Plaintiffs argue that 

– law failed to define psychology, 

– failed to provide standards but rather delegates 
authority to agency/board, 

– law is not reasonably calculated to eradicate the 
declared evil. 

NATIONAL PSYCHOLOGICAL ASSOCIATION FOR 
PSYCHOANALYSIS, INC. V. UNIVERSITY OF THE STATE OF NEW 
YORK  188 N.Y.S. 2D 151 (SUPREME CT 1959) 

• Court upheld the constitutionality of the statute 
finding that the “certification” law (rather than a 
licensing law) was narrowly tailored and limited to 
use of the terms psychologist, psychology, and 
psychological. 

• The fact that psychology was not defined was not 
fatal to the analysis. 

1965 ARIZONA REPORTED 
REGULATORY CASES 

• Rule making authority and scope….. 
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1965 ARIZONA REPORTED 
REGULATORY CASES 

• De Hart v. Cotts, 409 P. 2d 50 (AZ 1965) 

Issue:  Whether the Board of Chiropractic 
Examiners has the power to adopt rules 
and regulations regulating the 
professional conduct of chiropractors in 
the State of Arizona. 

DE HART V. COTTS, 409 P. 2D 50 (AZ 1965) 

– Enabling statute provided; 
•	 “Board….shall adopt rules and regulations 

for the performance of its duties.” 

• Board adopted rules that set up and ethics 
committee, stated that violation of the rules 
or regulations of the board shall constitute 
grounds for discipline, and required 
chiropractors as a condition of licensure 
renewal to agree to abide by such 
rules/regulations. 

DE HART V. COTTS, 409 P. 2D 50 (AZ 1965) 

– Plaintiffs argued such rules exceeded 
statutory authority of the board. 

– Court agreed holding that while a 
legislature can grant authority to 
administrative agency, the Arizona law did 
not provide the Board with the authority to 
promulgate rules/regulations related to 
conduct of the licensees.  
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1965 ARIZONA REPORTED 
REGULATORY CASES 

• Eligibility for licensure 

1965 ARIZONA REPORTED 
REGULATORY CASES 

• Arizona State Board of Medical Examiners v. Clark, 
398 P. 2d 908 (AZ 1965) 

Issue:  Whether the record supports the trial 
court order requiring the medical board to 
issue the license to an applicant as a 
physician who had previous complaints 
against him in other states. 

ARIZONA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL 
EXAMINERS V. CLARK, 398 P. 2D 908 (AZ 1965) 

– Applicant for licensure as a physician in 
Arizona was previously licensed in 
Missouri, Michigan, and Minnesota. 

– Accusation made to medical society 
alleging inadequate care of patient and 
unethical conduct to a minor degree.  

– Board took deposition of Minnesota 
physician who complained of applicant  
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ARIZONA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL 
EXAMINERS V. CLARK, 398 P. 2D 908 (AZ 1965) 

– Court debated the standard of review and 
eventually held that none of the 
accusations were substantiated in the 
other jurisdictions and thus, the Board 
must issue the license. 

– Bases for denial of application were 
limited to those guilty of unprofessional 
conduct. 

1965 ARIZONA REPORTED 
REGULATORY CASES 

• Statutory interpretation 

1965 ARIZONA REPORTED 
REGULATORY CASES 

• Brown v. White, 408 P. 2d 228 (App. Ct. AZ 1965) 

Issue:  Whether the Board of Cosmetology 
correctly interpreted the statute requiring a 
certain number of instructors at the school 
per the number of attending students.  
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BROWN V. WHITE, 
408 P. 2D 228 (APP. CT. AZ 1965) 

• Board suspended the licensed school for 30 days for 
not having enough instructors present during 
classes as per amended practice act/statute. 

• Amended statute called for school to have one 
instructor for every 20 students enrolled. 

• Board argued that “all” instructors must be present 
when school is open. 

BROWN V. WHITE, 
408 P. 2D 228 (APP. CT. AZ 1965) 

• Court held that statutory interpretation 
requires law to be given its plain meaning 
and that new language is included for a 
reason. 

• Court affirmed the reversal of the Board 
imposed suspension and interpreted the 
statute as providing for employed instructors 
per 20 students and that the day in question 
found 39 students and 2 instructors present.  

1965 ARIZONA REPORTED 
REGULATORY CASES 

• Criminal background checks…felony 
conviction…bar to licensure? 
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1965 ARIZONA REPORTED 
REGULATORY CASES 

• State v. Pearson, 406 P. 2d 246 (App. Ct. AZ 1965) 

Issue:  Whether the practice act that 
prohibits the Board of Cosmetology from 
issuing a license to an applicant convicted 
of a felony is constitutional. 

STATE V. PEARSON, 
406 P. 2D 246 (APP. CT. AZ 1965) 

– Defendant criminally convicted of 
attempting to obtain licensure as a 
cosmetologist under fraudulent 
misrepresentation by not disclosing 
criminal conviction. 

– Challenged practice act as being 
unconstitutional under due process 
grounds 

STATE V. PEARSON, 
406 P. 2D 246 (APP. CT. AZ 1965) 

– Court held that constitutionality of practice 
act not at issue in criminal case. 

– Defendant should have challenged statute 
in administrative proceedings. 

– But regardless, defendant not convicted 
of a felony as he pled his case to a 
misdemeanor 
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NOW TO MORE RECENT TIMES….. 

THREATENING STATEMENTS 
EXPOSE V. THAD WILDERSON, 863 N.W. 2D 95 (APP. CT. MN 2015) 

• In an anger management session with the 
intern, the patient made threatening
statements against a child protection
caseworker. After consulting with her 
supervisor, the intern notified law
enforcement and the caseworker of these 
threats. 

• The patient was criminally prosecuted and 
convicted of making terrorist threats (See 
case #______,, such conviction is on appeal 
to the MN Supreme Court). 

THREATENING STATEMENTS 
EXPOSE V. THAD WILDERSON, 863 N.W. 2D 95 (APP. CT. MN 2015) 

• In a civil case against the intern and employer, the patient alleged 
the improper disclosure of threatening statements ……the 
Minnesota Court of Appeals reversed the lower court and held 

• 
that a generic consent signed at the initial 
establishment of the professional relationship did not 
provide a basis for disclosure of such threatening 
statements to law enforcement and prosecution personnel. 

that the immunity principles of disclosure under a duty
to warn statute only applies to licensed persons, not
interns seeking licensure. 

that the doctrine of absolute privilege cannot coexist 
with the psychologist-patient privilege. 
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THREATENING STATEMENTS 
EXPOSE V. THAD WILDERSON, 863 N.W. 2D 95 (APP. CT. MN 2015) 

•	 Finally, the court held that the doctrine of absolute 
privilege cannot coexist with the psychologist-patient 
privilege. While disclosure of threatening statements 
made in court pursuant to a valid subpoena 
were subject to privilege protections and immunity, 
disclosure to law enforcement and prosecution 
personnel were not subject to immunity 
protections. 

CULTIVATE A SEARCH WARRANT 
COMMONWEALTH V. CANNING 
______________ (2015) 

•	 Issue:  Whether police may obtain a search warrant to 
search property where they suspect an individual is 
cultivating marijuana by …….. 

•	 establishing probable cause that cultivation is taking 
place 

•	 OR 

•	 establishing probable cause to believe that the 
individual is not registered or licensed to do so.  

CULTIVATE A SEARCH WARRANT 
COMMONWEALTH V. CANNING 
______________ (2015) 

•	 State argued 

– affidavit used to substantiate the search warrant 
was sufficient because it established cause to 
believe marijuana was being cultivated at property 
and any/all cultivation remains illegal…. 

– the extent to a person may be licensed to cultivate 
shall be asserted as an affirmative defense. 
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CULTIVATE A SEARCH WARRANT 
COMMONWEALTH V. CANNING 
28 N.E. 3D 1156 (MA 2015) 

•	 Court disagreed…. 

– Cultivation of marijuana up to 60 day supply is 
permitted if properly registered to do so. 

– A license is not an affirmative defense. 

– Regardless, the issue is not about affirmative 
defenses, but rather addresses probable cause to 
conduct an investigatory search. 

– Court affirmed order to suppress evidence seized.  

REINSTATEMENT….PASS THE EXAM 
IN RE MATTER OF RICHARDS 2015 GA. LEXIS 18 

•	 Georgia Supreme Court granted a disbarred attorney's 
application for readmission to the bar based upon the 
record as having established by clear and convincing 
evidence that the applicant was remorseful, made 
restitution, volunteered in the community and received 
extensive rehabilitation for drug and alcohol abuse.  The 
attorney had been disbarred for misuse of client funds 
and failure to maintain adequate trust accounts for 
clients monies. Under the applicable Georgia rules, 
the reinstatement petition was contingent upon the 
applicant passing the Georgia Bar Examination. 

PERMANENT RESTRICTIONS…OR IS IT LIMIT? 
CLARK V. STATE MEDICAL BOARD OF OHIO 
2015 OH APP. LEXIS 208 

•	 An appellate court in Ohio affirmed the lower court and 
held that the Board had the authority to impose 
permanent restrictions on a doctor’s certificate. 

•	 A hearing was held and the Board subsequently ordered 
that the certificate would be “permanently limited and 
restricted” to prohibit the doctor from participating 
in an anesthesiology program or administer any
sedation treatments. 

•	 On appeal, the doctor argued that the Board was not 
permitted to “restrict” his certificate, but the court held 
that such is synonymous with “limit” as authorized 
in the practice act. Further, the Board had the authority 
to make such restrictions permanent, as nothing in the 
law limited the Board to temporary sanctions. 
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SUPREMACY CLAUSE 
OUELLETTE V. MILLS 
2015 U.S. LEXIS 21137 (ME 2015) 

•	 United States District Court for the District of Maine 
granted plaintiff's motion for judgment on the pleadings 
striking down a Maine state law that allowed 
residents to purchase prescription drugs by mail 
from other countries. 

•	 The Maine law, passed without Governor signature, 
exempts from licensure requirements licensed retail 
pharmacies from United Kingdom, Australia, New 
Zealand related to exporting prescription drugs by 
mail or carrier to residents of Maine for personal use. 

SUPREMACY CLAUSE 
OUELLETTE V. MILLS 
2015 U.S. LEXIS 21137 (ME 2015) 

•	 The FDCA prohibits the importation or introduction into 
interstate commerce of any new drug that has not 
received FDA approval. The state argued that the 10th 
Amendment protects its rights as a sovereign and not be 
compelled to administer federal regulatory programs. 

•	 The court held that the Maine statute clearly extends 
beyond the regulation and licensure of pharmacists and 
pharmacies within Maine and, thus, the field at issue is 
the importation of foreign pharmaceuticals.  With that said, 
the court noted the congressional intent to tightly control 
importation of prescription drugs and the 10th 
Amendment cannot save a law that obstructs federal law. 
Accordingly, the court held such Maine law as violative of the 
Supremacy Clause and, thus, preempted. 

CONTINUED JURISDICTION 
KALE V. DEP'T OF HEALTH 2015 FLA. LEXIS 8503 (APP. CT. FL 2015) 

•	 An appellate court in Florida affirmed the Board's order 
revoking a psychologist's license and found that the Board 
correctly interpreted its authority in concluding that it could 
not indefinitely suspend the license and retain 
jurisdiction to revoke it if the underlying criminal 
conviction was not overturned. 

• 

•	 The licensee was convicted in federal court of health care 
fraud and the Board consequently brought administrative 
charges. The licensee argued that the Board should 
indefinitely suspend his license pending the outcome of 
his criminal court appeal, after which time it could revoke 
his license if the conviction was upheld. 
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CONTINUED JURISDICTION 
KALE V. DEP'T OF HEALTH 2015 FLA. LEXIS 8503 (APP. CT. FL 2015) 

•	 The Board instead opted to revoke his license which 
would leave the plaintiff the option of petitioning the 
Board to vacate the order if his conviction is 
overturned. The licensee argued that the Board 
incorrectly interpreted its authority, but the court sided 
with the Board. 

•	 In the absence of a material change in 
circumstances, Board lacked the authority to revisit 
its final order. 

FELONY CONVICTION BAR TO LICENSURE 
CHUNN V. MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE 
156 SO.3D 884; 2015 MISS. LEXIS 36 

•	 The Supreme Court of Mississippi reversed the lower court 
and struck down as unconstitutional the Department of 
Insurance's licensing requirement that prohibited all 
felons from obtaining or renewing a bail-agent license. 

•	 Plaintiff had pled guilty to possessing marijuana 33 years 
ago. He subsequently applied and was granted a bail-agent 
license and had been licensed for 20 years. In 2011, the 
Mississippi legislature changed the law to prohibit all 
felons, regardless of the nature of the felony or how long ago 
committed, may not hold a bail-agent license. Plaintiff's 
application for renewal of his bail-agent license was 
denied, and the denial was affirmed by the lower court. 

FELONY CONVICTION BAR TO LICENSURE 
CHUNN V. MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE 
156 SO.3D 884; 2015 MISS. LEXIS 36 

•	 The Supreme Court of Mississippi first noted that the 
appropriate standard of review was rational basis as the law 
did not affect a fundamental right nor a suspect class. 

•	 The court found that the State's rationale utterly failed 
this lenient test as the statute's broad reach bore no 
relationship to trustworthiness. 

•	 Notably, the court also held that the plaintiff's omission of 
the felony conviction from his prior renewal applications 
was not material to his current renewal application and 
could not justify denying plaintiff renewal of his license. 
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RECIPROCAL DISCIPLINE 
MATTER OF SMITH V. STATE BOARD FOR PROF. MEDICAL 
CONDUCT 
2015 N.Y. APP. DIV. LEXIS 1984; 2015 NY SLIP OP. 02027 

• An appellate court in New York affirmed the 
Medical Board's revocation of a psychiatrist's 
license because of disciplinary action taken 
against his Texas license in 2009 due to sexual 
relations had with a patient. 

RECIPROCAL DISCIPLINE 
MATTER OF SMITH V. STATE BOARD FOR PROF. MEDICAL 
CONDUCT 
2015 N.Y. APP. DIV. LEXIS 1984; 2015 NY SLIP OP. 02027 

•	 For the 2009 charges, the Texas board issued a 
public reprimand and an administrative penalty of 
$3,000, and ordered that the licensee complete a course
in professional boundaries. 

• In  2011, the Texas board found that he failed to 
maintain proper records and ordered that he complete 
a course in medical recordkeeping. 

•	 While the licensee conceded that his 2011 actions in 
Texas amounted to professional misconduct under 
New York law, he argued that the 2009 conduct could 
not because it involved a former, not current, patient. 

RECIPROCAL DISCIPLINE 
MATTER OF SMITH V. STATE BOARD FOR PROF. MEDICAL 
CONDUCT 
2015 N.Y. APP. DIV. LEXIS 1984; 2015 NY SLIP OP. 02027 

•	 The court held that, even if it were to interpret the 
relevant statutory provision to refer only to current 
patients, the evidence demonstrated that the licensee 
was engaged in a professional relationship with the 
patient when the sexual relationship was occurring. 

•	 Moreover, the licensee's failure to accept 
responsibility for his conduct was instrumental in 
determining that revocation was the appropriate 
sanction. 
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NEXUS TO PRACTICE 
WALL V. OHIO STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION, 
2015-OHIO-1418; 2015 OHIO APP. LEXIS 1364 

•	 An Appellate Court in Ohio affirmed the lower court and 
held that the Board of Education erred in suspending 
a teacher’s license based on questionable conduct 
that, in the court’s mind, did not bear on her fitness 
to teach. 

•	 The teacher was convicted of a misdemeanor for 
disorderly conduct for an incident involving the 
intentional damage of her husband’s ex-wife s vehicle 
which the ex-wife was inside and unable to move her 
car. 

NEXUS TO PRACTICE 
WALL V. OHIO STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION, 
2015-OHIO-1418; 2015 OHIO APP. LEXIS 1364 

•	 The Department of Education initiated a complaint and, 
at hearing, the hearing officer concluded that her 
actions constituted conduct unbecoming a teacher 
in violation of state law and recommended that the 
Board issue her a letter of admonishment. 

•	 The Board instead opted to suspend her license, to 
which the teacher appealed in court. 

NEXUS TO PRACTICE 
WALL V. OHIO STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION, 
2015-OHIO-1418; 2015 OHIO APP. LEXIS 1364 

•	 The lower court reversed the Board and was affirmed by 
the instant court which held that the Board did not 
present any evidence at trial that there was a nexus 
between the conduct and her performance as a 
teacher. 

•	 While the Board now argues that the conduct is 
specifically sanctionable under the practice act, it did 
not make such arguments at trial and therefore 
waived the right to argue it on the appellate level. 
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BOARD POSITION STATEMENT 
MONTANANS AGAINST ASSISTED SUICIDE V. BOARD OF 
MEDICAL EXAMINERS, 
2015 MT 112; 379 MONT. 11; 2015 MONT. LEXIS 182 

•	 The Supreme Court of Montana affirmed the lower court 
and dismissed an anti-euthanasia nonprofit’s (MAAS) 
petition for a declaratory judgment that the medical 
board (Board) did not have the authority to adopt a 
position statement regarding case law involving assisted 
suicide. 

•	 MAAS sought the declaratory judgment and the Board 
removed the relevant statement, along with the others, 
from its website. 

BOARD POSITION STATEMENT 
MONTANANS AGAINST ASSISTED SUICIDE V. BOARD OF 
MEDICAL EXAMINERS, 
2015 MT 112; 379 MONT. 11; 2015 MONT. LEXIS 182 

•	 The Board argued, and the court agreed, that the issue 
was now moot and not ripe for adjudication in front 
of the court. 

•	 MAAS argued that the case should still be heard 
because of an exception regarding issues of public 
interest, but the court held that such would be an 
abstract advisory opinion without adequate facts before 
it. 

TEETH WHITENING, CHANGE IN SCOPE 
WESTPHAL V. NORTHCUTT, 
2015 ALA. LEXIS 73 

•	 The Supreme Court of Alabama affirmed the trial court's 
order granting summary judgment in favor of the 
Alabama Board of Dental Examiners (Dental Board) 
and held the section of the dental practice act 
restricting the performance of teeth whitening 
services to licensed dentists did not violate either 
the Alabama constitution or plaintiff teeth whiteners' 
due process rights. 
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TEETH WHITENING, CHANGE IN SCOPE 
WESTPHAL V. NORTHCUTT, 
2015 ALA. LEXIS 73 

•	 The court referenced its previous ruling in a 2009 case 
where it found that the teeth whitening service at issue 
was the practice of dentistry under the dental practice 
act. 

•	 The court noted that the legislature subsequently amended 
the dental practice act to explicitly define teeth whitening as 
the practice of dentistry. 

•	 Therefore, the issue in this case was not whether teeth 
whitening constituted the practice of dentistry but 
instead whether the plaintiffs' due process rights 
were violated by extending the practice act to teeth 
whitening services. 

TEETH WHITENING, CHANGE IN SCOPE 
WESTPHAL V. NORTHCUTT, 
2015 ALA. LEXIS 73 

•	 The court held that there was no dispute that the 
practice of dentistry relates to public health, that 
teeth whitening was within the sphere of dentistry, 
and therefore the restrictions were reasonably 
related to public health. 

CONDUCT VS. SPEECH 
HINES V. ALLDREDGE, 
783 F.3D 197; 2015 U.S. APP. LEXIS 5030 

•	 The U.S. Court of Appeals for the 5th Circuit reversed 
the District Court and dismissed a veterinarian's First 
Amendment claim related to online veterinary care. 

• In  affirming the dismissal of the due process and 
equal protection claims, the Fifth Circuit concluded 
the physical exam requirement was rationally related 
to a legitimate government interest. 
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CONDUCT VS. SPEECH 
HINES V. ALLDREDGE, 
783 F.3D 197; 2015 U.S. APP. LEXIS 5030 

• In analyzing the freedom of speech claims, the Fifth Circuit 
found that the statute did not regulate the content of any 
speech nor restrict what can be said once a veterinary-
client-patient relationship is established. 

• The court stated that the fact that the rule may have some 
impact on a veterinarian's speech does not dictate a 
different result. 

• The court held that "state regulation of the practice of a 
profession, even though that regulation may have an 
incidental impact on speech, does not violate the 
Constitution." 

Many thanks!! 
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Regulation of Sexual Orientation 
Change Efforts, and “Conscience 
Clause” Opt‐outs in Training 

Herbert L. Stewart, PhD 

Clinical Psychologist 

Chair, Virginia Board of Psychology 

Disclaimers 
• I may express an opinion or two. 
• They are mine alone, not those of the Va. Board of 

Psychology. 
• ****Any and all statements provided herein shall not be construed as an official policy position, opinion or 

statement of the V rginia Behaviora Sc ences Boards (Boards of Counseling Psychology and Soc al Work) Board 
staff cannot and do not provide legal advice. Board staff provide assistance to the public by providing reference to 
the statutes and regulations; however any such assistance provided by staff shall not be construed as legal advice 
for any particular situation, nor shall any such assistance be construed to commun cate all applicable laws and 
regu at ons govern ng any particular situation or occupation. Please consult an attorney regard ng any legal 
questions re ated to state or federa laws and regu at ons including the nterpretat on and application of the laws 
and regu at ons govern ng the Behaviora Sc ences Boards. Under no circumstances shall the three Behaviora 
Sc ences Boards, its members officers agents, or employees be liable for any act ons taken or omissions made in 
reliance on any information conta ned in this e mail.**** 

• I am a generalist, not a content expert, in addressing 
these issues as a board member. 

Background 
• 50 years of regulation. Remarkable change in
public opinion on LBGT rights in that time. 

• Why I’m interested in this topic 
Previous experience in state association leadership 

• Va. Psychological Association (APA) resolution prior to ban
on same sex marriage in 2005. 

• VPA joined amicus brief with APA et al in Bostic marriage
equality case in 2014. 

Va. is a diverse, purple state. 
Bill to ban Sexual Orientation Change Efforts for
minors has failed twice, but will be reintroduced “until 
it passes. Board members were polled for opinions. 
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Sexual Orientation Change Efforts 
(SOCE) 

• Hypothetical Case 1. A teacher complains to the
board that a licensee has been providing
“reparative therapy” to a 17 yr old student. The
complaint states that the student identifies as gay
but the parents are coercing him into therapy
that the therapist told them might be able to
change his orientation. The student told the
teacher that he is feeling guilty, conflicted,
depressed and considering suicide. There is no
relevant statute or regulation in the state. Board
response to the complaint? 

LGBT teens rejected by parents 8x more likely to report 
suicide attempts, 6x depression, 3x drugs, 3x risky sex 

Pediatrics, 123, 2009 

What’s in a name? 

• "Sexual Orientation Change Efforts" is 
terminology now typically used in law and 
academia, e.g., 

bill in Va 

APA 2009 resolution 
http://www.apa.org/about/policy/sexual‐orientation.pdf 
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What’s in a name? 
• “Conversion Therapy” is common term in media and 
some advocacy groups, e.g., 

Wikipedia redirects to “conversion therapy from “reparative therapy, 
and begins, “Conversion therapy (also called reparative therapy) is any 
treatment that aims to change sexual orientation from 
homosexual to heterosexual... 

Recent CNN stories: “White House seeks ban on gay and gender 
identity conversion therapies “the White House announced on 
Wednesday it supports banning the so called conversion practices. 

White House: “this administration supports efforts to ban the use of 
conversion therapy for minors 

Southern Poverty Law Center https://www.splcenter.org/issues/lgbt‐
rights/conversion‐therapy, 

National Center for Lesbian Rights 

What’s in a name? 
“Reparative therapy” 
• may be becoming outdated in common usage; often in quotation marks 

• Term used in earlier studies, Am Psychiatric Assn 2000 resolution 

• NARTH, a pro SOCE organization, quotes one of its founders, Joseph 
Nicolosi, PhD on its website: 

Why the Name, “Reparative” Therapy? Attempts have been 
made to stigmatize the term “reparative therapy, and to 
marginalize those who participate in it. However, the 
“reparative” view of homosexuality provides a special dimension 
of understanding between the client and the therapist that can 
further the client s goals. Many gay identified persons find the 
word “reparative” offensive: “I don’t need to be fixed, mended 
or repaired. Our answer is… 

http://www.narth.com/#!important‐updates/c19sp 

Video clip 

• http://www.nclrights.org/bornperfect the facts about 
conversion therapy/ 
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History of SOCE 

• Psychoanalytic 

• Behavioral 

• Somatic 

Pro‐SOCE 

We recognize the legitimacy and efficacy of counseling, which 
offers reparative therapy and treatment for those patients 
seeking healing and wholeness from their homosexual 
lifestyle. No laws or executive orders shall be imposed to limit or 
restrict access to this type of therapy. 

http://www.texasgop.org/wp‐content/uploads/2014/06/2014‐Platform‐Final.pdf, p. 14. 

Video clip 

• http://www.cnn.com/2014/06/08/us/texas gop gay therapy/ 
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Vs. California… 

States with bans on SOCE for minors 

ht ps:/ en.w k pedia.org/w k /Sexual orientat on_change efforts#/med a/F e:US_states banning sexual orienta on_change effor s.svg 

upheld on appeal 
Ontario 6/4/15 
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Proposed Va bill (typical of language) 
HOUSE BILL NO. 1385 Be it enacted by the General Assembly of Virginia: 

§ 54.1‐2409.5. Sexual orientation change efforts prohibited. 

No person licensed in accordance with the provisions of this subtitle shall engage 
in sexual orientation change efforts with any person under 18 years of age. Any 
sexual orientation change efforts with a person under 18 years of age engaged in 
by a provider licensed in accordance with the provisions of this subtitle shall 
constitute unprofessional conduct and shall constitute grounds for disciplinary 
action by the appropriate health regulatory board within the Department of 
Health Professions. For the purpose of this section, "sexual orientation change 
efforts" includes the provision of treatment, interventions, counseling, or services 
intended to change a person's sexual orientation, gender identity, or gender 
expressions. "Sexual orientation change efforts" does not include treatment, 
interventions, counseling, or services provided to persons seeking to transition 
from one gender to another or that provide acceptance, social support, and 
identity exploration and development. 

Are SOCEs safe and effective? 
• 2009 APA Task Force on Appropriate Therapeutic Responses to Sexual Orientation 

http://www.apa.org/about/policy/sexual-orientation.aspx 

• The longstanding consensus of the behavioral and social sciences and the health 
and mental health professions is that homosexuality per se is a normal and positive 
variation of human sexual orientation...Homosexuality per se is not a mental disorder 

• There are no studies of adequate scientific rigor to conclude whether or not recent 
SOCE do or do not work to change a person’s sexual orientation. Scientifically 
rigorous older work in this area …found that sexual orientation (i.e., erotic attractions 
and sexual arousal oriented to one sex or the other, or both) was unlikely to change 
due to efforts designed for this purpose. Some individuals appeared to learn how to 
ignore or limit their attractions. However, this was much less likely to be true for 
people whose sexual attractions were initially limited to people of the same sex. 

• Although sound data on the safety of SOCE are extremely limited, some individuals 
reported being harmed by SOCE. Distress and depression were exacerbated. Belief 
in the hope of sexual orientation change followed by the failure of the treatment was 
identified as a significant cause of distress and negative self image …” 

American Psychological Association Resolution on Appropriate Affirmative 
Responses to Sexual Orientation Distress and Change Efforts ‐ 2009 

• "THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the American Psychological 
Association affirms that same sex sexual and romantic attractions, 
feelings, and behaviors are normal and positive variations of human 
sexuality regardless of sexual orientation identity; 

• …That the American Psychological Association 

reaffirms its position that homosexuality per se is not a mental 
disorder and opposes portrayals of sexual minority youths and adults 
as mentally ill due to their sexual orientation; 

concludes that there is insufficient evidence to support the use of 
psychological interventions to change sexual orientation; 

encourages mental health professionals to avoid misrepresenting the 
efficacy of sexual orientation change efforts by promoting or 
promising change in sexual orientation when providing assistance to 
individuals distressed by their own or others sexual orientation…“ 
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Organizations critical of conversion therapy include: 

• American Medical Association 
• American Psychiatric Association 
• American Psychological Association 
• American Association for Marriage and Family Therapy 
• American Counseling Association 
• National Association of Social Workers 
• American Academy of Pediatrics 
• National Association of School Psychologists 
• American Academy of Physician Assistants. 

Anti‐SOCE organizations 

https://www sp center.org /issues/lgbt rights/convers on therapy 

SPLC v. JONAH 

• “In June 2015, a jury in our first of its kind lawsuit in New Jersey
found that an organization known as JONAH had committed
consumer fraud – that  offering services it claimed could change
clients from gay to straight was fraudulent and unconscionable. 

• “In a landmark pre trial ruling in that case, a judge excluded several
leading conversion therapy proponents from testifying as defense
witnesses because their opinions were based on the false premise
that homosexuality is a disorder. In a blistering opinion that
garnered international media attention, New Jersey Superior Court
Judge Peter F. Bariso Jr. wrote that “the theory that homosexuality
is a disorder is not novel but like the notion that the earth is flat 
and the sun revolves around it – instead  is outdated and refuted. 

https://www.splcenter.org/issues/lgbt rights/conversion therapy 
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Anti‐SOCE organizations 

hrc.org 
nclrights.org 

What can Boards do? 
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“Conscience Clause” opt‐outs from training 

http //www apa.org /monitor/2013/07 08/free speech aspx 

“BEA is warning that such 
laws threaten psychology s 
ability to prepare 
professional psychologists 
who are competent to serve 
an increasingly diverse 
public. The working group is 
also creating resources to 
help training programs 
prevent and address 
potential conflicts between 
trainees' beliefs and 
program policies. 

“Conscience clause” initiatives 
The main idea undergirding the group's 

materials and workshops is 
psychology s responsibility to prepare a 
workforce trained to meet the needs of a 
diverse client population. Attaining 
competence to work with a diverse 
public isn't optional, says Forrest, 
explaining that students can't simply opt 
out of training they don't agree with. 
While there may be times when 
reassigning a client to a different trainee 
would be best for the client, that's a 
decision for the trainer not the trainee 

to make. Students who can't or won't 
attain competence in serving all clients 
will be placed on remediation. If that 
fails, the student may be dismissed.” 

http //www apa.org/monitor/2015/04/competence aspx 
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Current Regulatory Challenges 
Prescriptive Authority 

Darla M. R. Burnett, Ph.D., M.P. 
Louisiana State Board of Examiners Of Psychologists 

darla.burnett2@la.gov 

The Beginning 

• Regulatory authority is derived from a states 
written law. 

• In the case of prescriptive authority/medical 
psychology the law often is not written with 
regulation as the focus, but rather as a 
compromise between two sides with very 
different view points. 

• A result of this often conflictual process is 
regulatory law that is not ideal. 

Current Law Regarding Prescriptive 
Authority/ Medical Psychology 

• New Mexico – First  to pass a law in 2002 
• Properly trained psychologists are awarded either

1)conditional prescribing or 2) prescribing psychologist
certificate. 

• A Conditional Prescribing Psychologist is required to be
supervised by a physician 

• A Prescribing Psychologist is no longer required to be
supervised, but collaborates with an individual’s treating
provider 

• Prescribing psychologists are not allowed to prescribe to
individuals with any of several listed medical conditions
including cardiac arrhythmia, pregnant, blood dyscrasia etc. 
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Current Law Regarding Prescriptive
 
Authority/ Medical Psychology
 

•	 Louisiana passed a law in 2004 allowing appropriately trained 
individuals to obtain a certificate of prescriptive authority. 
This law underwent significant changes in 2009 when 
licensure as a Medical Psychologist was moved under the 
regulatory authority of the Medical Board. 

•	 The 2009 law created Medical Psychology Advisory 
Committee within the Medical Board. Consists of medical 
psychologists and meets regularly to review applications etc. 

•	 Currently there are two levels of licensure for prescriptive 
authority 1) Medical psychologist and 2) Advanced Practice 
Medical Psychologist. 

Current Law Regarding Prescriptive
 
Practice/Medical Psychology
 

•	 Louisiana (cont d) 
•	 Medical Psychologists are not required to have any 
period of supervision by a physician (as in New 
Mexico), but are required to collaborate with and have 
concurrence with an individuals treating physician. 
Advanced Practice Medical Psychologists no longer 
have the requirement to obtain concurrence from an 
individuals treating physician. 

•	 In Louisiana the Psychology Board also had to opine on 
the ability of a Medical Psychologist who drops their 
Psychology License to supervise 

Current Law Regarding Prescriptive
 
Authority/Medical Psychology
 

•	 Illinois passed a law in 2014 
•	 Allows for a Prescribing Psychologist Certificate 
•	 Must have a collaborative agreement in which a 
physician delegates prescriptive authority to 
psychologist. 

•	 Can prescribe what physician routinely prescribes. 
•	 There are exclusions in regard to the ages one can treat 
and the types of medications that can be prescribed. 

•	 Described what the Board must look like for those who 
have a Prescribing Psychologist Certificate 

2 
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Requirements/Competence 

•	 The educational, training and 
certification/licensure requirements are different 
in all three states that allow prescribing authority. 

•	 There is no set standard by which regulatory 
boards review applications for prescribing 
authority. 

•	 There is no method for determining competence 
besides meeting the listed requirements and 
passing a national examination. 

Mobility 

•	 Each state has slightly different requirements for
certification/licensure. How will this effect mobility? 

•	 Application paperwork/process and terminology are different in al
the states. 

•	 Thus far I know at least two Louisiana Medical Psychologists that
have been licensed in New Mexico based on similar educational 
requirements. 

•	 A psychologist licensed to prescribed in New Mexico will likely have
little problem moving to Louisiana. However, that person would
have to first be licensed the Psychology Board and then apply for
Licensure as a Medical Psychologist with the Medical Board. 

•	 The requirements outlined in the Illinois law are less similar than
New Mexico and Louisiana and the question of mobility has not yet 
ben addressed. 

Discipline Issues 

•	 Does the Regulatory Board have the necessary expertise to make a
determination as to whether a prescribing psychologist has met the
medical standard of care? 

•	 The Illinois law outlines Board composition for those holding a
Prescribing Psychologist Certificate stating the following members
are involved in those determinations: two licensed prescribing
psychologists and two physicians one of which shall be a
psychiatrist and the other a primary care physician. 

•	 Without a prescribing psychologist on your Board how do you make
a determination? 

•	 In Louisiana we have in the past called in a former Board member
with specialty training/knowledge in a practice area for consultation
if a complain is filed. 
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Discipline Issues 

•	 In Louisiana, since medical psychologists are licensed under the medical
board there is the question of not only the regulation of medical practice
(prescribing),but also regulation of the practice of psychology. How would
the medical board evaluate a complaint against the practice of psychology. 

•	 There is the Medical Psychology Advisory committee that consist of
medical psychologists available for consultation. 

•	 What about a complaint filed with one Board for a psychologist that is
licensed by both the Louisiana Psychology Board and the Louisiana
Medical Board? 

•	 There is a Memorandum of Understanding between the Louisiana
Psychology and Medical Boards, but there have been no cases thus far to
assess the functionality of this MOU. 

•	 Does this Memorandum of Understanding really protect psychologists
licensed both boards from some type of double jeopardy? 

Discipline Issues 

•	 Sanctions 
•	 New Mexico and Illinois grant a certificate to 
prescribe. 

•	 If a prescribing psychologist is sanctioned for 
their prescribing practice what does this do to 
their psychology license? 

•	 Does the Board suspend or revoke only the 
prescribing certificate or does it affect the 
psychologist license? 

Discipline Issues 

•	 Sanctions 
•	 In Louisiana there is a similar question regarding
the state of an individuals ability to practice
psychology if they are sanctioned for a
prescribing violation. 

•	 Also, let’s say an individual is licensed by both
the Medical and Psychology Boards and the
Medical Board finds there has been an infraction 
and based on the same evidence the psychology
board does not believe sanction is warranted. (Or
vice versa) 
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Final Thoughts 

• Certification or Licensure for prescribing 
psychologists is still fairly new and as with any 
new area there is a learning curve. 

• Regulatory boards will have to remain attentive, 
learn as we go, learn from each other and work 
hard to improve regulatory issues related to 
prescribing psychology over time. 

• I am happy to say that, to my knowledge, there 
have been no significant disciplinary or 
malpractice events by those currently prescribing. 
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Jurisdictional Issues 

Jurisdictional and enforcement 
challenges over the last 50 years and 

into the future 

Types of Jurisdiction 

1. Concurrent Jurisdiction 

2. Subject Matter Jurisdiction 

3. Personal Jurisdiction 

Concurrent Jurisdiction 

• an authority that has been conferred on 2 or 
more courts to hear and decide similar cases. 
Or it the jurisdiction of a government agency 
and a court with the same jurisdiction. 

• (Black's Law Dictionary) 
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Telehealth 

•	 KRS 319.140(3) 

•	 Telehealth” means the use of interactive 
audio, video, or other electronic media to 
deliver health care. It includes the use of 
electronic media for diagnosis, consultation, 
treatment, transfer of health or medical data, 
and continuing education. 

Subject Matter Jurisdiction 

•	 Jurisdiction over the nature of the case and 
the type of relief sought 

•	 (Black's Law Dictionary) 

Personal Jurisdiction 

•	 A court s power to bring a person into its 
adjudicative process; jurisdiction over a 
defendant s personal rights, rather than 
merely over the property interests. 

•	 (Black's Law Dictionary) 
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Hoffman Report 

•	 542 page report examined the involvement of 
the nation’s psychologists and the APA in the 
interrogation of prisoners. 

•	 KRS 319.015(1) Nothing in this chapter shall 
be construed to limit the activities, services, 
and use of title on the part of a person in the 
employ of the federal government. 
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Overview of 
US Trends in Training 

ASPPB Annual Meeting 

October 9, 2015 

Sharon Lightfoot, PhD 

• 2nd Year Member at Large ASPPB 

• Board Member for Missouri 
State Committee of 
Psychologists 

• I have no conflicts that I am 
aware of in presenting this 
overview (and my other 
presentations) during the ASPPB 
annual meeting. 

Long ago, in a 
land far, far, 
away….. 

Wilhelm Wundt 
First Psychologist 

“Father of Psychology” 
He was Trained as Physiologist 

Institute for Experimental Psych 

Leipzig, Germany 1879 

He trained 116 
psychology graduate students 
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G. Stanley Hall 

Brofriend of “Father” Wundt 

1878 First Doctorate in Psychology 
Harvard 

1883 First Psychology Lab 
John Hopkins University 

1892 First President of APA 

Prez G. Stanley Hall 

1889 
President of Clark University 

1909 
Invited Jung and Freud

to lecture at Clark 

Freud’s ONLY visit to US 

Front row: Sigmund Freud, Granville Stanley Hall, C. G. Jung;
back row: Abraham A. Brill, Ernest Jones, Sándor Ferenczi. 

First Department of Psychology 

Princeton 1920 
Eno Hall Built 1924 
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Scientist Practitioner 

1949 

Boulder at 50: Introduction to the section. 

• By Benjamin Jr., Ludy T.; Baker, David B. 
• American Psychologist, Vol 55(2), Feb
2000, 233‐236. 

• The "Boulder conference" was the first 
national meeting ever held in the United
States to discuss standards for doctoral 
training in psychology…. 

• Academic psychology departments had
enjoyed more than 60 years of
independent development; how could 
there possibly be any hope of consensus? 

. 

Everything old is new again…Or, “Seriously, that was the 
agenda at Boulder in 1949!” 
Benjamin and Baker (American Psychologist, 2000) The Boulder agenda: 
• curriculum 
• clinical specialties 
• master's level psychologists 
• postdoctoral training and placement of the internship (predoctoral or
postdoctoral, in the university or outside of it) 

• undergraduate student access to clinical courses 
• standards for practicum and internship work 
• the relationship of clinical psychology to other fields such as medicine, social
work, and vocational guidance 

• Licensing, certification, and accreditation of programs 
• training in psychotherapy, clinical skills, and research 

VA SHAPES 
TRAINING 
Need for providers and increased focus on 
need for regulation of training of providers 

1946 

NO formal clinical training programs 

1950 

More than half of all 
psychology degrees were 
awarded to clinical 
psychologists. 
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And the beat goes on….. 
1961 ASPPB Founded 1965 First EPPP 

1970 to 1990s 

Number of clinical psychologists increases from 20,000 to 63,0000 

APA 2014 Monitor Estimates 

106,500 licensed psychologists 

Practitioner Scholar 
The Birth of the Psy.D. 

1973 The Vail Model 

• Emphasized a focus on clinical 
work 

• Most degrees at this point were 
PhDs 

• McFall (2006) From 1988‐2001 
160% increase in PsyDs 

• Norcross (2005) Over 50% of 
degrees are PsyDs 

J Clin Psychol. 1989 Sep;45(5):822‐8. 
The Boulder and/or the Vail model: training preferences
of clinical psychologists.
Norcoss JC1, Gallagher KM, Prochaska JO. 

• “Fifty percent favored the Boulder
model, 14% the Vail model, and the 
remaining 36% both equally…
preferences varied according to
one's doctoral training…. Current
activities related to training…
These results argue for a more
informed and restrained dialogue
on the issue, which should be 
guided by the light of data rather
than the heat of passion.” 

2012 Survey of EPPP Data: 
Trends in Type of Training Program 

Clinical Neuropsych (167) 
Clinical Child and Adolescent (391) 
Counseling (852) 
School (317) 
Clinical (5028) 
Clinical Health (154) 
Forensic (114) 
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Some Trends From 1980s………. 

• Masters Licensure in Psychology decreases – increases  for other folks 
• PsyD programs increase 
• More and more states require a post‐doc 
• Internship imbalance Grows – then  starts to improve 
• Some states no longer require post‐doc…while post‐doc programs 
increase 

• Technological Advances: Telepsych and Distance Education increase 
• Movement for prescription privileges 
• Primary care mental health integration on radar 

The Next Big Thing…Give me an H! Give me 
and S! Give me a P! 

Collaboration. 

• ASPPB was pleased to be invited for input and collaboration. We very 
much appreciate CoA’s sensitivity to regulatory issues in the
Standards, such as the need for eyes on direct supervision for each 
practicum and maintenance of a student portfolio. There was also 
significant overlap in competencies between CoA and ASPPB. APPIC 
has grants available to develop psychometric assessment of 
competencies that align with SoA competencies. 
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Well, that’s clear. 

APA 2013 

• “health service psychologists must 
be trained in APA/CPA accredited 
doctoral and APA/CPA internship 
programs or programs accredited 
by an accrediting body that is 
recognized by the U.S. Secretary of 
Education for the accreditation of 
professional psychology education 
and training in preparation for 
entry to practice.” 

ASPPB BOD 2013 

• “…graduation from an APA/CPA 
accredited program should be a 
minimum requirement for 
doctoral level licensure for 
health service providers.” 

Status of Accreditation 

• “intent to apply” and “accredited, on contingency” status for doctoral 
programs …..or “You’re not APA approved and I am!” 

• These designations could be meaningful for regulatory boards, and 
ASPPB commented on the importance of clear definitions for these 
designations. 

Have met training requirements if….. 

Old Way – Completed  Coursework Now – Achieved  Competence 

6 
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Have met training requirements if….. 

Completed Graduate 
Coursework…during grad school. 

Reliably demonstrated competence 
before graduate training…. 
• Demonstrate competence in certain areas
of psychology which could fulfill
requirements for certain graduate
coursework. 

• BEA panel discussing possible measures
of prerequisite competence. 

• A new work group will examine
unintended consequences of this new
pathway to graduate education in
psychology. 

• ASPPB has expressed desire for clear
communication of how the graduate
course requirement was met. 

Student to Consumer 

• Student Advocacy Increases 

• Atmosphere of Inclusion with Early Career Psychologists 

• APAGS taking on increasingly complex and active role in leadership 

• Please help, and let us help, with the internship imbalance! 

• Defining leave policy for illness, family leave, pregnancy 

• Are happy to work with ASPPB on regulatory concerns around leave 
issues 

7 
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Canadian Trends in 
Education and Training: 
Regulatory Perspectives 

Dr. Philip Smith 

Evolution of Training in Canada 

• Early endorsements of Boulder model 

• Early, and continuing, diversity in expectaions 
for doctoral and masters training 

• Emergence of PsyD in Canada 

Accreditation 

• Early links with APA accreditation 

• CPA/APA joint accrditation 

• CPA accreditation 
Emerging issues 

1 
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Diversity in Regulatory Requirements 
for Education and Training 

• Degree level and content 

• Residency Requirements 

• Post degree supervision requirements 

Efforts to Harmonize Education and 
Training Requirement 

• Mutual Recognition Agreement (MRA) (2001; 2004) 
Foundational Knowledge 

• Biological bases of behaviour 
• Cognitive and affective bases of behaviour 
• Social and cultural bases of behaviour 
• Psychology of the Individual 

Core Competencies 
• Interpersonal relationships 
• Assessment and evaluation 
• Intervention and consultation 
• Research 
• Ethics and standards 

Efforts to Harmonize Education and 
Training Requirement 

• ACPRO National Standard for Entry to Practice 
(November, 2014) 

• http://www.acpro‐aocrp.ca/ 

• “The National Standard for registration as a 
Psychologist is graduation from a doctoral 
program in Psychology accredited by the 
Canadian Psychological Association (CPA). 

• Substantial equivalence requirements detailed 

2 



   
   

         

‐          
–              

‐  

–        

–              
           

   

–          
 

   
   

‐        

–                
        

 

–            

–          
 

   
   

   

–      

–        

–    “ ”     
     

9/18/2015
 

National Standard: 
Substantial Equivalence Components 

• Foundational Knowledge (as detailed in MRA) 
• Pre Degree Supervised Practice; 9 pts. e.g., 

Minimum 600 hours practicum and 1600 hours 
pre doctoral internship/residency 
Primary supervisor(s) must be psychologists 
Must be planned and purposeful interaction with 
multiple members of the profession throughout 
course of training 
Formal evaluation, with behavioural exemplars, by 
all supervisors 

National Standard: 
Substantial Equivalence Components 

• Post Degree Supervised Practice, e.g., 
Not required if coming from CPA or Ordre des 
psychologues du Quebec program. Otherwise, 
e.g.: 

1600 hours, with approved supervisor and pan 

Formal evaluation, with behavioural exemplars, by 
all supervisors 

National Standard: 
Substantial Equivalence Components 

• Degree licensed, e.g., 
Recognized program and institution 

applied doctoral degree in psychology 

Degrees without Psychology in program 
title not substantially equivalent 

3 
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National Standard:
 
Substantial Equivalence Components
 

• Faculty, e.g., 
Director and majority of faculty teaching in applied 
areas must be licensed psychologists 

• Academic Residency, e.g., 
Must have minimum one year period of “in person” 
academic residence 

•	 One continuous academic year or two successive academic 
semesters 

• Practicum and internship not counted 
•	 Shorter periods of intensive residency, that in combination 
equal a year, not acceptable 

National Standard:
 
Substantial Equivalence Components
 

•	 Assessment of core competencies (as detailed 
in MRA) 

•	 Licensure Examinations 
EPPP 

• three attempts within two years of eligibility 

Formal standardized oral examination 

Local jurisprudence 

National Standard reference to
 
Master’s level training
 

•	 “There is a recognition that there are substantial
differences in the knowledge, skills, and ability in
training at the master’s level as compared with
training at the doctoral level. Master’s level
individuals may be regulated as psychological
practitioners with a specified scope and with a
title that reflects this specified scope. It would be
up to individual jurisdictions to determine how,
or if, they will regulate master’s level providers
unless or until there is a National Standard 
developed for this.” 
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Foreign Qualification Recognition 
(FQR) 

• Quickly emerging as area of major focus for 
ACPRO and regulatory bodies 

• Federal and provincial governments initiative, “A 
Pan Canadian Framework for the Assessment & 
Recognition of Foreign Qualifications” 

• “A fair and competitive labour market 
environment where immigrants have the 
opportunity to fully use their education, skills and 
work experience for their benefit and for 
Canada’s collective prosperity.” 

Foreign Qualification Recognition 
(FQR) Principles 

• Fairness 
Objective and reasonable criteria used for assessing qualifications 
Equal treatment in requirements for international and Canadian
trained 

• Transparency 
All steps fully described, understandable, and accessible 
Applicant informed of alternate options if full recognition not possible 

• Consistency 
Methods for assessment and recognition mutually acceptable in all
jurisdictions and results of assessment mutually recognized 

• Timeliness 
Prompt and efficient process 

Foreign Qualification Recognition 
(FQR) 

• ACPRO response to date: 
Compared evaluation process used by each 
jurisdiction and identified differences (2011) 
Conducted comparative analysis of practices of 
assessing substantial equivalence in foundational 
knowledge and core competencies (2013) 

National Standard statement (2014) 

• Psychology now one of the “target” occupations 

5 
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Foreign Qualification Recognition 
(FQR) 

• ACPRO approved in principle draft action plan 
(September, 2015) 

Enhance availability and navigation of pre arrival 
information and supports 
Harmonize assessment processes taking into account 
national competency standards 
Establish national registry/repository or a national 
credential bank for ITPs 

• Perhaps use or tailor ASPPB resource 

Enhance availability of bridging information 
Future: Develop workplace integration supports (e.g., 
supports for preceptors and advice on alternative careers) 
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Internship and Post‐Doc Update 

Jeff Baker, Ph,D., ABPP 
Association of Psychology Postdoctoral & Internship Centers 

(APPIC) 

Brief History 

• At the meeting of the Board of Directors of the American
Psychological Association in Ann Arbor, March 28 30, 1947, the
President was authorized to appoint a special Committee on
Training in Clinical Psychology to perform the following tasks: 

• a. Formulate a recommended program for training in clinical
psychology. 

• b. Formulate standards for institutions giving instruction in clinical
psychology, including both universities and internship and other
practicum facilities. 

• c. Study and visit institutions giving instruction in clinical
psychology, and make a detailed report on each institution. 

• d. Maintain liaison with other bodies concerned with these 
problems, including the committees of the American 
Orthopsychiatric Association, the National Committee for Mental
Hygiene, and others. 

Characteristics of the “right kind” of Person ‐ 1947 

• 1. Superior intellectual ability and judgment. 
• 2. Originality, resourcefu ness, and versatility. 
• 3. "Fresh and insatiable curiosity; "self learner. 
• 4. Interest in persons as ndividuals rather than as material for manipulation a regard for the 

integrity of other persons. 
• 5. Insight into own personality characteristics; sense of humor. 
• 6. Sensitivity to the complexities of motivation. 
• 7. Tolerance; "unarrogance." 
• 8. Ability to adopt a therapeutic attitude; ability to establish warm and effect ve relationships 

with others. 
• 9. Industry; methodical work habits; ability to tolerate pressure. 
• 10. Acceptance of responsibility. 
• 11. Tact and cooperativeness. 
• 12. Integrity, self control, and stability. 
• 13. Discriminating sense of ethical va ues. 
• 14. Breadth of cultural background educated man. 
• 15. Deep interest in psychology, especially in its clinical aspects. 
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Graduate Professional Program 
14 General Principles ‐ 1947 

• 2. The program of education for the doctorate 
in clinical psychology should be as rigorous 
and extensive as that for the traditional 
doctorate. In general this would represent at 
least a four year program which combines 
academic and clinical training throughout, but 
which includes intensive clinical experience in 
the form of an internship. 

Published in the Am Psychologist 1947 

• “Internship. What are the aims of a 
psychological internship? Underlying all of its 
aims is the principle now recognized for the 
whole clinical psychology program, but 
particularly true for the internship, namely, 
that the knowledge essential to the practice of 
clinical psychology cannot be obtained solely 
from books, lectures, or any other devices 
which merely provide information about 
people or about ways of studying them. 

Current Internship Issues 

• We have progressed from 1947 but amazing 
how many of the issues are similar. 

• Defining how clinical interfaces with scientist 
• Defining when and how the internship best 
serves beyond book learning . 

• Practicum is all over the place and has few 
regulations though that is changing. 

• There has always been a shortage of 
internship positions, it is worse than 1947. 
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Changes 
• 1968 Founded to: provide a service to students and training directors. 
• 1969 400 internship programs in “APIC 
• 1970 Offers of internship appointments are not to be made prior to February 15. 
• 1973 Students are to be allowed 10 days to respond to offers of appointment. 
• 1974 – APIC  Directory cost $3.50 
• 1974 Students are allowed 5 days to respond to offers of appointment. Offers

not to be made before 2nd Monday in February. 
• 1975 Students are allowed 3 days to respond to offers of appointment. 
• 1976 – A  Clearinghouse was started to assist the large number of students not

matched to an internship. 
• 1978 – Intern  applicants to be notified 8:00am Monday, their time, the first day of

offers. The applicant is then given until 12:00 noon, the applicant s time, Tuesday,
the next day, to respond to the offer. Dues were $20.00 for each internship or
postdoc program. 

• 1980 – Dues  $25.00 & Director cost $7.50 
• 1990 Computer Matching Field Trial 
• 1991 – All  programs required to make selections through the APPIC Match. 

Changes 

• 1992 – APIC  changed to APPIC (officially added 
postdocs). 

• 1993 – Member  dues $400, match fee $115 
• 2011 – Member  dues $450, match fee $115 
• 2012 Internship slot shortage at highest 
• 2017 Applicants applying for internship for 
• 2018 Applicants must come from an APA or CPA 
accredited program or fast developing program. 

• 2025 ??? Internships must be accredited? 

APPIC Financial Trends 
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Supply and Demand: 
An Update 2015 
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Average Number of Applications 
Submitted ‐ 2008‐2015 
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Postdocs 

• 1973 First listed in “APIC Directory in 1973. Listed as 
“Postdoctoral Internships”. Now listed as “residents” 
or “fellows . 

• 2010 APA model licensure excluded postdoc 
requirement. 

• Highest increase in applications for accreditation come 
from postdocs. 

• APPIC has seen a critical increase in postdoc training 
programs (increase of 17 last year). 

• Student Doctor Network is full of misinformation on 
licensure, postdoc, and internship information. 

Regulation Issues 

Not enough accredited slots for there to be a requirement for licensure
boards to state APA or CPA accredited internship required. There are still
1500 graduates completing unaccredited internship. APPIC has similar
requirements but it is not an accrediting body, it is a membership
organization. 

The shortage of accredited slots is still about 30% short but that is down from
2012 when it was close to 40%. Maybe revisit in 2020. 

Postdocs are not going away but some regulation of practicum seems to be
needed now that there are more than a dozen states that have removed the 
postdoc requirement. APPIC is interested in how better to evaluate practicum
experience that prepares them for internship. APA an CPA rely on the
doctoral program. APPIC reviews the clinical hours, assessment experience
and goodness of fit (interview) to determine the quality of an applicant. 
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Regulatory 
Challenges Related 
to Training 
SHARON LIGHTFOOT, PHD  ASPPB ANNUAL MEETING 

OCTOBER 9, 2015 

Overview of Regulatory Challenges 
Assure that students of psychology are 

receiving quality training that  serves to 
“protect public health and safety and to 
serve the public interest. 

How does a licensing board know for 
sure? 

Prerequisite knowledge accepted 
for graduate coursework. 

 In principle we may not be opposed to allowing students 
who have met certain competencies to delve deeper 
into their studies/specialties. 

 How will the training program determine that the student 
has mastered the material and/or competence? 

 Will there be a standard process across accredited 
programs? 

 How will this be reflected and communicated on the 
student record so Boards may clearly understand how 
the requirement of the graduate course was met? 
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Competencies versus Coursework 

 Regulatory bodies support the concept that certain core 
competencies are expected at the time of licensure. 

 Traditionally, competency has been demonstrated through course 
completion. 

 As we move away from so e rel ance on a course to demonstrate 
competency in certain areas, how will competency be measured? 

 How wi l training programs communicate to icensing boards that a 
student has achieved competency in required areas. 

 Will a student portfol o be establ shed? 
 Will the Director of Training certify the competency has been met? 

Status of Accreditation 

 Is our understanding of intent to apply” and accepted, on 
contingency accurate?  (e.g., You’re not accredited and I am? ) 

 Are there any circumstances under which a program that s 
accepted, on contingency” would not be accredited? 

 If so, how wil this nformation be communicated to concerned 
parties? 

PCMHI (Learning to play well with 
others…..) 

 Informed consent 
 Distinctions between physical and mental health may 

appear more discrete to the consumer versus the 
professional 

 Operating within scope of license while collaborating 
with other professionals 

 What to do when MD says, “What should I prescribe? 
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Staying Relevant…… 

 Is training keeping pace with societal demands 
and evolution? 

 Keeping curricula current (e.g., DSM 17! )? 
 Keeping EPPP current with curricula? 
 Assessing competency at the point of licensure? 

A new EPPP? 

Distance Education 

Old School Too Cool for School 

Distance Education 

DISTANCE LEARNING: education 
that takes place via electronic 
media linking instructors and 
students who are not together in 
a classroom 

3 



      

l  i     

 i   

 ”   
  

   
 l   

 
  

i i
 

i   
 

    
-   
 

  
 

 l i  l  
i   

  
i i

 l i   
ll-

 
-li  

i  i  i  
i

   i
 l i  l  

 
i

9/17/2015
 

Accreditation of Distance Education 
Programs 

 Some programs (e.g., Cappella and Walden) are regionally
accredited. 

 California al ows reg onal and state accreditation as meeting
licensure requirements. 

 ASPPB supports APA/CPA accred tation as minimum requirement of 
licensure. 

 How do you judge the “equivalent of  in terms of accreditation? 
Should you?  What about foreign trained folks? 

Residency and “eyes 
on” requirement 

 Direct observation of clinical 
experience part of al practicum and
internship experiences. 

 Residency valued for increased 
opportunity for teacher and peer
interact on, on-going evaluat on 
across settings (class, supervision,
interaction w th peers), professional
development, and sense of
professional community. 

 When is enough, enough? How
much in person interaction is 
enough? 

 How is the in-person experience
documented (a student portfolio,
perhaps)? 

Pros and Cons 

Plus 
 Distance earn ng al ows for 

ncreased access to courses, to 
experts, and to diverse 
commun t es. 

 Many distant earn ng courses are 
standardized and we designed, 

 Increased student participation 
through on ne forums. 

Delta 
 Lack of standard zed train ng n 

telecommunicat on skills. 

 What courses are best taught v a 
distance earn ng? Know edge 
versus skill? 

 Correspondence courses not as 
effect ve. 
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Questions to ponder….. 

Is there data to support a residency requirement? 

As we allow for the practice of telepsychology, 
how do we justify continued reliance on residency 
for training (developmental issue)? 
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Regulatory Challenges Related to 
Training 

Kenneth P. Drude, Ph.D. 

Ohio Board of Psychology 

Post‐Doc Requirements 

ASPPB Model Licensure Act 2010 

“An Applicant for licensure must demonstrate 
that he/she has completed two years of 
supervised professional experience, one year of 
which may be an internship program, and one 
year of which shall be postdoctoral.” 

Post‐Doc Requirements 

APA Model Licensure Act 2010 

“APA recommends that legislation requires the 
equivalent of two full time years of sequential, 
organized, supervised, professional experience 
prior to obtaining the license. This training may 
be completed prior or subsequent to the 
granting of the doctoral degree.” 

1 



           

   

           

       

       
     

       
 

  i   ’        

   

   

9/17/2015
 

States That Do Not Require a Post‐Doc 

Clinical Supervision Functions* 

1.Monitoring and ensuring client well being 
2.Monitoring and evaluating supervisee 
competence 

3.Supporting supervisee personal and 
professional well being 

4.Educating and guiding supervisee’s 
professional practice 

* Rev sed O Donovan, Halford, and Walters, 2011 

Post‐Doctoral Median Debt* 

* APA, 2015 
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The Ohio Experience 

• Annually license about 140 psychologists 

• 98% are from APA approved programs 

• 3,600 hours of supervised experience required 
(accept for “senior psychologist” exemption) 

• At least 1800 hours must be pre doc experience 

• 1,800 must be post doc supervised experience 
for non APA or CPA accredited programs 

• No academic residency requirement in Ohio 

The Ohio Experience 

• Of the 25% (30 40) who apply for licensure without any 
post doc supervised experience, less than half actually 
qualify and are required to obtain a time limited post doc 
supervised experience before qualifying 

• Applicants are told about the limited mobility issue for 
not having a post doc of at least 1500 2000 hours 

• About 75% of license applicants have at least 1600 
hours of post doc supervised experience in addition to 
the 1800 hour pre doc internship to allow for future 
mobility 

Questions About a Required Post‐Doc 
Supervised Experience 

• Can Pre Doc supervised experience be sufficient 
for meeting the needs of supervised experience? 

• Is the requirement for at least one year Post 
Doc supervised experienced an arbitrary barrier 
to licensure and mobility? 

• If Pre Doc experience is sufficient, can the major 
financial burdens of a required one year Post Doc 
be justified? 

• Does a year Post Doc better protect the public 
than a second Pre Doc year? 
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Policymakers, https://www.whitehouse.gov/sites/default/files/docs/licensing_report_final_nonembarg 
o.pdf 

http://www.apa.org/monitor/2015/06/datapoint.aspx
https://www.apa.org/about/policy/model-act-2010.pdf
http://c.ymcdn.com/sites/www.asppb.net/resource/resmgr/guidelines/final_approved_mlra_november.pdf?hhSearchTerms=%22model+and+licensure%22
http://c.ymcdn.com/sites/www.asppb.net/resource/resmgr/guidelines/final_approved_mlra_november.pdf?hhSearchTerms=%22model+and+licensure%22
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Program versus School Accreditation: 
When is Education “Good Enough”? 

Regulatory Challenges Related to Training 
William L. Hathaway, Ph.D. 

Virginia Board of Psychology 
APA Commission on Accreditation 

Regent University 

Program v. School (Institutional) 

Program Accreditation School Accreditation 

• Specialty Accreditation 
Specific to Individual 
Doctoral, Internship or Post‐
Doctoral Programs 

• Regional or Provincial 
Accreditation 

• APA Accreditation 
• PCSAS Accreditation 

• Regional Accreditors 
• Provincial Charter 

CHEA’s Definition of Accreditation 

“ACCREDITATION” IS A PROCESS OF EXTERNAL 
QUALITY REVIEW USED BY higher education to 
scrutinize colleges, universities and educational 
programs for quality assurance and quality 
improvement. In the United States, 
accreditation is carried out by private, nonprofit 
organizations designed for this specific 
purpose…. CHEA Profile of Accreditation Fact Sheet 
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Institutional Accreditation: U.S. 

DOE/CHEA Recognized Regional Accreditors 

The Higher Learning Commission (HLC‐formerly Higher Learning 
Commission of the North Central Association of Colleges and Schools) 

Middle States Commission on Higher Education (MSCHE) 

New England Association of Schools and Colleges 
Commission on Institutions of Higher Education (NEASC‐CIHE) 

Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities (NWCCU) 

Southern Association of Colleges and Schools (SACSCOC) 
Commission on Colleges 

WASC Senior College and University Commission (WSCUC) 

Institutional Accreditation: Canada 

• De Facto Accreditation= 

Membership in AUCC + 
Recognition by Provincial Charter/Legislation 

• Universities Canada (formerly Associations of 
Universities & Colleges in Canada AUCC) 

Specialty or “Program” Accreditation 
• APA Accreditation is currently the only CHEA & DOE recognized

accreditor in psychology. 

• PCSAS is recognized by CHEA. 
Delaware, Illinois recognizes PCSAS accredited training on parity with
APA accredited in licensure application 

• Note: Because specialty accreditation in psychology is at the
program level, the same institution may have different programs
with differing specialty accreditation statuses. 

• Credential reviews concerned with specialty accreditation must
check the status of the specific program from which the applicant
has graduated. 

2 



   
               

                   
                   

     

               
         

                 
         

–  
–  
–  
–         ” 

       

                  
             

   

                   
 
           “  

–
–    
–
–
–
–    
–   ‐      
–

   “                  
       

         

   
               

 

–            
–    
–            
–              
–          
–          “
–  
–   
–                
–      
–  

                       
               

         

9/17/2015 

Credential Review Consistency 
•	 The variability in sources of quality review/determination for

higher education institutions & programs is a potential threat to
consistency in determining a similar minimal level of training has
been satisfied across jurisdictions 

•	 The ASSPB Handbook on Licensing & Certification Requirements
surveys boards about their licensure requirements. 

• The summary data indicates whether boards require the following
information about an applicants training program:
 

Regional accreditation
 
Government Charter
 
State Approved
 
Other qualifying information or “other
 

• APA/CPA Accreditation not consistently addressed 

•	 Brief informal phone survey results: Not clear board respondents
mean the same thing by these categories. 

ASPPB Handbook‐ “School Accreditation” 

•	 Summarizes data from each US and Canadian jurisdiction on institutional
accreditation requirements. 

•	 Jurisdictions* indicating “no” on requirement for institutional 
accreditation” 

Colorado
 
Connecticut (no data)
 
D.C.
 
Manitoba
 
Maryland
 
New Brunswick
 
New York State Approval Process.
 
Wyoming
 

•	 California states degrees can be from either a regionally accredited or
qualifying state approved educational institution” 

* Based on 2/27/2015 Handbook data 

ASPPB Handbook‐ “Other Accreditation” 
•	 Jurisdictions indicate Program or Specialty Accreditation Requirements in

Different Ways. 
•	 Other: 

DC: Designated Doctoral Program (DDP) or APA 
GA: APA Accreditation 
MD: APA/CPA, DDP, Satisfies National Register Criteria 
MS: APA/CPA, DDP, + path for new programs 
NJ: APA/CPA, DDP, criteria for others 
Newfoundland & Labrador: APA/CPA are applicable” 
Oklahoma: APA 
Oregon: APA 
South Carolina: APA/CPA, DDP (or equivalent if before 1/2005) 
Tennessee: APA or DDP 
Utah: DDP 

•	 Some Jurisdictions (i.,e FL) require APA accreditation but this was not reflected in
the summary information they have provided is the Handbook 

* Based on 2/27/2015 Handbook data 
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What would a uniform standard look like for a minimal 
threshold level of adequate educational training? 

•	 Formal recognition for educational institutions or 
training programs (i.e, regional accreditation)? 

Issue of variability (e.g, across regional accreditors or when 
U.S. state approved educators are accepted without 
regional accreditation). 

•	 Outcome/Competency demonstration standards? 
Issue of exemption for students who entered APA programs 
with sufficient mastery of the Discipline Specific Knowledge 
at the pre doctoral level may have no graduate cousework 
in the area. 
PCSAS versus APA & Clinical Competency 

4 
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Regulatory Challenges Related to
 
Training – Master’s  Level Licensure,
 

A Canadian Perspective
 

Karen Messer Engel, M.A., R. Psych
 

Executive Director / Registrar
 

Saskatchewan College of Psychologists
 

Evolution of Psychology Regulation In
 
Canada
 

Quasi Regulation (employers /exemptions and
 
government – oh  my!)
 

Self Regulation 

Mutual Recognition Agreement (MRA) 
• Core Competencies and Mobility (2002) 

• Foundational Knowledge (2004) 

Evolution continued… 

Federal/Provincial
 
Agreement on Internal
 

Trade (AIT)
 

National Standard (2014) 
•	 Accredited Doctoral 

Degree 
•	 Substantial Equivalency 
•	 Master’s Recognition 

1 
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Licensure in Canada  ‐ Current State 

• Doctoral Only (QC) 

• Doctoral as Psychologist/ Masters as Psych. Assoc.
with Independent Practice (ON*, PEI) 

• Doctoral as Psychologist / Assoc. Psych Corrections
(Masters) Limited Scope and with Supervision /
Psych. Assistant (Masters) Limited Scope and with
Supervision (BC) 

*AIT anomalies 

Licensure in Canada continued… 

• Doctoral as Psychologist/ Masters Psych. 
Assoc. Title with Supervision and Independent 
(MB) 

• Doctoral and Masters as Psychologist / Both 
Independent Practice (AL, NFLD, NB**, NS**, 
SK, NWT, NU) 

** Change to Doctoral only In Process 

Right Now…… 
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The road ahead? 

• ACPRO > Establishment of Masters Level 
Licensure work group (BC, PEI, SK) 

Nat’l Standard and Master’s Licensure 

• Fundamental understandings in going 
forward: 

Training is different 

Training is in Psychology 

Public Protection BIG TENT 

Value 

Recognition of jurisdictional differences 

Realities That Impact 
• Governmental Expectations 

• Changes in Master’s level training 

• Challenges 
Continuity of service provision 

Access to services by qualified/competent providers 

Mechanism for foreign trained 

Opportunities 

Changing the culture of regulation credentials are 
not competency 

3 
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So now what? Considerations… 

• Work toward consistency of scope of practice 
and title across the country 

• Differentiation of competencies Masters from 
Doctoral 

• Grandparenting provision 

Draft Proposal ‐ Key Components 

• Title 
Psychological Associate 

• Scope difference limited 

• Location of practice circumscribed 
Corrections 

School 

Public Agency 

The Goal 

4 
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Questions????? 

Thank you …… 
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Emerging Areas of Practice: 
History and Trends 

Jana N. Martin, Ph.D. 

CEO, The Trust 

Emerging Areas of Practice: Looking 
Back 50 Years 

Changes over the decades 
• Styles of psychotherapy 
• Length of sessions 
• Gender composition 
• Stigma 
• Relationships among mental health providers 
• Laws and regulations 
• Worksites 
• Image 
• Fees 

Emerging Areas of Practice: 
Opportunities in the Next 50 years 

Emerging areas of practice 
• Integrated care 
• Telepsychology 
• Use of technology 
• Business 
• Niche/consultation/collaborative practice 

Financial therapy 
Dentists 
Attorneys 

1 
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Emerging Areas of Practice: 
Challenges 

Areas of risk 

• Vulnerabilities 

• Trending board complaints/malpractice claims 

Managing risk 

References 

American Psychological Association (2002). Ethical principles of 
psychologists and code of conduct. American Psychologist, 57, 1060 
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American Psychological Association (2013). Guidelines for the practice 
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American Psychological Association Practice Organization. (2010). 
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Specialties & Certifications 

David R. Cox, PhD, ABPP 

Executive Officer 

American Board of Professional Psychology 

Some Terms 
& 

History 

Specialty – APA/CRSPPP 

• A specialty is a defined area of professional psychology
practice characterized by a distinctive configuration of
competent services for specified problems and
populations. Practice in a specialty requires advanced
knowledge and skills acquired through an organized
sequence of education and training in addition to the
broad and general education and core scientific and 
professional foundations acquired through an APA or
CPA accredited doctoral program.* Specialty training
may be acquired either at the doctoral or postdoctoral
level as defined by the specialty. 

• *Except where APA or CPA program accreditation does
not exist for that area of professional psychology 
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Specialty – ABPP  

•	 A Specialty is a defined area in the practice of psychology that
connotes special competency acquired through an organized
sequence of formal education, training, and experience. 

•	 In order to qualify as a specialty affiliated with the ABPP, a specialty
must be represented by an examining board which is stable,
national in scope, and reflects the current development of the
specialty. A specialty board is accepted for affiliation following an
intensive self study and a favorable review by the ABPP affirming
that the standards for affiliation have been met. These standards 
include a thorough description of the area of practice and the
pattern of competencies required therein as well as requirements
for education, training, experience, research bases of the specialty,
practice guidelines, and a demonstrated capacity to examine
candidates for the specialty on a national level. 

Certification, Credentialing, or Board
 
Certification?
 

•	 Many possible meanings – for  example: 

•	 Certificate for continuing education 
•	 Certificate to practice 
•	 Certification of knowledge 
•	 Certification of credentials 
•	 Certification of skill 
• Board certification of competency in a 
specialty 

Specialties & Certifications 

•	 Not all certifications reflect specialties 

•	 Not all specialties have certifications 

•	 3 organizations are widely 
accepted/recognized as involved in 
certification” or credentialing of individuals 

•	 2 are involved in recognizing specialties 

•	 1 is involved in recognizing specialists 
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3
 
Organizations for
 

Certification/Credentialing
 
•	 Association of State & Provincial Psychology 
Boards (ASPPB) 

•	 National Register of Health Service 
Psychologists (NRHSP or NR) 

•	 American Board of Professional Psychology 
(ABPP) 

2
 
Organizations for
 

Recognition of Specialties
 
•	 Commission for the Recognition of Specialties & 
Proficiencies in Professional Psychology 

for the purposes of identifying areas of study 
and/or practice in psychology 

•	 American Board of Professional Psychology 
(ABPP) 

for the purposes of identifying competent 
psychologists within identified specialty areas of study 
and/or practice in psychology 

1
 
Organization for Recognition of
 

Specialists
 
•	 American Board of Professional Psychology 
(ABPP) 

for the purposes of identifying competent 
psychologists within identified specialty areas of 
study and/or practice in psychology 

3 
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Council of Specialties in 
Professional Psychology (CoS) 

• The Council of Specialties in Professional 
Psychology (CoS) is a non profit joint venture, 
initially sponsored by the American 
Psychological Association (APA) and the 
American Board of Professional Psychology 
(ABPP), to represent and support the 
development and functioning of recognized 
specialties in Professional Psychology. 

Council of Specialties in 
Professional Psychology (CoS) 

• Grew out of the Interorganizational Council for 
Accreditation of Postdoctoral Programs in 
Psychology (IOC) (1992 1997). 

• The IOC sunsetted in 1997, giving way to CoS 
• Each CRSPPP and ABPP recognized specialty is 
invited to have a representative on CoS 

• CoS recognizes ABPP as the single legitimate 
board certification organization in psychology 

Certificate v. Board Certification 

• What’s the • Difference? 
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Certificate v. Board Certification 

• Credentials Based 

• Review and verification 
of credentials 
documenting 
education, training, 
experience, license 
status 

• Knowledge based 

• Examination Based 

• Credentials Based + 

• Peer review of work 
samples 

• In person oral 
examination 

• Competency based 

Examples of Non‐specialty 
Credentials‐Based Certificates 

• National Register of 
Health Service 
Psychologists (NRHSP) 

• Established 1974 

• Not Specialty based 

• Certificate of 
Professional 
Qualification in 
Psychology (CPQ) 

• Established 1998 

• Not Specialty based 

Specialty or Specialist 

CRSPPP 
• Commission for the 

Recognition of Specialties & 
Proficiencies in Professional 
Psychology 

• Recognizes areas of study or 
practice within psychology 

• Does not identify individuals 
as specialists 

ABPP 
• American Board of 

Professional Psychology 

• Recognizes specialty areas 
within psychology that 
warrant development of an 
examining board that in 
turn… 

• Recognizes individuals as 
competent specialists 
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Specialty or Specialist 

CRSPPP	 ABPP 
•	 Specialty identification can • Establishment of an 

occur without significant (or examining board to certify 
any) concern about the specialists must include 
potential viability of an consideration of 
examining board to certify feasibility/viability of the 
specialists board financially sustaining 

itself 

Competency Based
 
Specialty Certification
 

• American Board of Professional Psychology 
•	 Established in 1947 “pre licensing board” as a means of 

identifying qualified practitioners 

•	 Over its history, the number of affiliated boards has grown 
from 3 to 15 affiliated specialty boards 

• 1 subspecialty Pediatric Neuropsychology 

•	 Developed policies and procedures 

that maintain it s reputation as a 

“Gold Standard for certification of 

specialty competency 

The ABPP Umbrella 

•	 A non profit, unitary 
governing body 

•	 Coordinates all affiliated 
psychology specialty 
examining boards 

•	 Certifies psychologists 
competent to deliver high 
quality services in specialty 
areas of psychology 

•	 Recognizes new specialties 
and subspecialties * 

•	 * only for purposes of board 
certification 

•	 Requires self study and 
comprehensive periodic site 
review of its member 
boards 

•	 Conducts exams and 
certifies specialists in 
accordance with established 
professional standards, 
policies, and procedures 

•	 Lists and verifies board 
certified specialists in its 
public directory 
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15 ABPP Recognized Specialties in 
Psychology 

• Clinical Child and 
Adolescent 

• Clinical 
• Clinical Health 
• Clinical 
Neuropsychology 

• Cognitive and 
Behavioral 

• Counseling 
• Couples & Family 

• Forensic 
• Geropsychology 
• Group 
• Organizational and 
Business Consulting 

• Police & Public Safety 
• Psychoanalysis 
• Rehabilitation 
• School 

1 Recognized Sub‐Specialty in ABPP 

Pediatric Neuropsychology 

ABPP Board Certification 
Competency Based Examination 

• Foundational Competencies 

• Functional Competencies 

• Outgrowth of years of work by many has 
resulted in a shared set of competencies 
between APA and ABPP, accepted by others as 
well 
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Da Cube 
Rodolfa, E., Bent R.J., Eisman, E., Nelson, P.D., Rehm L. & Ritchie, P. (2005). 

• Foundational Competencies 

• Functional Competencies 

• A MUST read for 

every ASPPB 

attendee 

Da Cube 
Rodolfa, E., Bent R.J., Eisman, E., Nelson, P.D., Rehm L. & Ritchie, P. (2005). 

• Emil will always be a part of competency 

presentations! 

• I Googled for 

Emil Rodolfa 

images and 

found this: 

The Path to ABPP Board Certification 

• Credentials Review 

• Written Examination (Forensic/Clinical Neuro) 

• Peer reviewed Practice Samples 

• Oral Examination 

• New for 2015! 

• Maintenance of Certification – every  10 years 
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Maintenance of Certification (MOC) 

•	 The ABPP MOC process was developed in 
close collaboration with the ASPPB MOCAL 
group 

•	 MOC and MOCAL are similar, yet different 
General versus Specialty specific 

•	 Psychologists engage in MOCAL requirements 
routinely; ABPP board certified psychologists 
exceed that level (Neimeyer, Taylor & Cox, 2012) 

Maintenance of Certification (MOC) 

•	 The need for MOC arises, at least in part, due 
to the short half life of knowledge 

•	 The Diminishing Durability of Knowledge in 
Professional Psychology: A Second Look at 
Specializations (Neimeyer, Taylor, Rozensky & Cox, 2014) 

What Lies Ahead 

•	 The future is likely to require increased 
specialization and recognition of specialists 

•	 (Cox, 2010; Kaslow, Graves & Smith, 2012; Rozensky, 2011, 2012) 

•	 The National Summit on Specialty in 
Professional Psychology (May 2015, Chicago) 

Spearheaded by CoS 
•	 One aim is to increase inter organizational agreement and a common 

understanding of specialty, specialization and specialist designation. 
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Regulatory Challenges Related to 

Changes in Practice
 

Donald S. Meck, Ph.D., J.D., ABPP 
Bob Bohanske, Ph.D. 
Marsha Sauls, Ph.D. 
Sheila Young, Ph.D. 

Presenters 

•	 Dr. Bob Bohanske, Arizona Board of 
Psychologist Examiners: Integrated Practice. 

•	 Dr. Marsha Sauls, Georgia Board of Examiners 
of Psychologists: Telepsychology. 

•	 Dr. Sheila Young, Nevada Board of 
Psychological Examiners: Employment
Requirements and Ethics Conflicts. 
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Emerging Areas of Practice and 
Regulatory Challenges 

Integrated Practice 

Bob Bohanske,Ph.D.,FNAP 

Increased regulations on service sites: 

• CMS 

• State Health Department's 

• Managed Care Organizations 

Service and Supervision 

• Co location vs. Integrated 

• Shared service planning 

• Clinical responsibility 

• Clinical Outcomes 
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Telepsychology in Georgia 

From APA Guidelines to Rules 

Marsha B. Sauls, Ph.D. 

Chair, 

State of Georgia Psychology Board 

APA Guidelines for the Practice of 
Telepsychology 

• Approved July 2013 
• Joint task force APA, ASPPB, APAIT 
• Co Chairs: 

Linda Campbell, Ph.D. 
Fred Millan, Ph.D. 

As state regulators, 
our task is to 

transform APA Guidelines 
into language 

that can be included in our rules. 
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Major Themes in APA Guidelines 

1. Competance 
2. Standards of Care 
3. Informed Consent 
4. Confidentiality 
5. Security and Transmission of Data 
6. Disposal of Data 
7. Testing and Assesment 
8. Interjurisdictional Practice 

Interjurisdictional Practice 

• Across State Lines 

• Temporary Practice 

• Psypact E Passport 

Intrajurisdictional Practice 

• Necessity for Guidelines 
Large jurisdictions 

Vacations 

Illness 

Rural Areas 
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Georgia 
Telepsychology Rules 

Linda Campbell, Ph.D. 

• Why Developed 
To distinguish between 

• Inter and Intra jurisdictional practice 

Unjustified competence 
• Phone sessions, email, and text really are 
telepsychological services. 

510 5 .02 Definitions 

(5) Interjurisdictional Practice. Psychological service provision in which 
psychologists and client/patients are located in different state, 
territorial, or provincial governments. Psychologists make themselves 
aware of the out of state requirements to practice in states in which 
they are not licensed to practice. The requirements for licensed 
psychologists not licensed to practice in Georgia are listed in the rules 
510‐9‐.03. 

(6) Intrajurisdictional Practice. Psychological service provision in which 
psychologists are located in the same state, territorial, or provincial 
governments. 

(9) Telepsychology. The provision of psychological services using 
telecommunication technologies. Telecommunication technologies 
include but are not limited to telephone, mobile devices, interactive 
videoconferencing, e mail, chat, text, and Internet (e.g. self help 
websites, blogs, and social media). 
(a) The term in person refers to interactions in which the 
psychologist and the client/patient are in the same physical space 
and does not include interactions that may occur through the use of 
technologies. 
(b) The term remote refers to the provision of a service that is 
received at a different site from where the psychologist is physically 
located. The term remote includes no consideration related to 
distance and may refer to a site in a location that is in the office next 
door to the psychologist or at a distance. 
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510 5 .07 Representation of Services. 
(3) Telepsychology Practice. 
(a) Competence: 
1. Psychologists assume responsibility to continually assess both their 
professional and technical competence when providing telepsychology services. 
Psychologists have read and are familiar with the APA Guidelines for the Practice 
of Telepsychology. 
2. Psychologists are encouraged to examine the available evidence to determine 
whether specific telecommunication technologies are suitable for a 
client/patient, based on the current literature, available, current outcomes 
research, best practice guidance, and client/patient preference. (a) Psychologists 
understand the need to consider their client/patient s ability to engage in and 
fully understand the risks and benefits of the proposed intervention utilizing 
specific technologies. (b) Psychologists understand the manner in which cultural, 
linguistic, socioeconomic, and other individual characteristics (e.g. medical 
status, psychiatric stability, physical/cognitive disability, personal preferences) 
may impact effective use of telecommunication technologies in service delivery. 

3. Psychologists identify and learn how to access relevant and 
appropriate emergency resources in the client/patients’ local 
area such as emergency response contacts. 
4. Psychologists who use telepsychology for supervision ensure at 
least 25% of the total number of supervision hours are in‐person 
face to face supervision hours. These hours to be interspersed 
along the entire supervision experience. 

An entire copy
of the

Georgia Rules
is included in

your digital packet.

An entire copy 
of the 

Georgia Rules 
is included in 

your digital packet. 
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Georgia DRAFT Telepsychology Rules 

510-5-.02 Definitions 
(5) Interjurisdictional Practice. Psychological service provision in which 
psychologists and client/patients are located in different state, territorial, or 
provincial governments. Psychologists make themselves aware of the out of state 
requirements to practice in states in which they are not licensed to practice. The 
requirements for licensed psychologists not licensed to practice in Georgia are 
listed in the rules 510-9-.03. 

(6) Intrajurisdictional Practice. Psychological service provision in which 
psychologists are located in the same state, territorial, or provincial governments. 
(9) Telepsychology. The provision of psychological services using 
telecommunication technologies. Telecommunication technologies include but 
are not limited to telephone, mobile devices, interactive videoconferencing, e-
mail, chat, text, and Internet (e.g. self-help websites, blogs, and social media). 
(a) The term in-person refers to interactions in which the psychologist and the 
client/patient are in the same physical space and does not include interactions 
that may occur through the use of technologies. 
(b) The term remote refers to the provision of a service that is received at a 
different site from where the psychologist is physically located. The term remote 
includes no consideration related to distance and may refer to a site in a location 
that is in the office next door to the psychologist or at a distance. 

510-5-.07 Representation of Services. 
(3) Telepsychology Practice. 
(a) Competence: 
1. Psychologist assume responsibility to continually assess both their professional 
and technical competence when providing telepsychology services. Psychologists 
have read and are familiar with the APA Guidelines for the Practice of 
Telepsychology. 

2. Psychologists are encouraged to examine the available evidence to determine 
whether specific telecommunication technologies are suitable for a client/patient, 

http:510-5-.07
http:510-9-.03
http:510-5-.02


  

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
  

  
   

 

 

 
 

 

  
  

 
   

 
 

 
 

 
   

 
  

based on the current literature, available, current outcomes research, best 
practice guidance, and client/patient preference. (a) Psychologists understand the 
need to consider their client/patient’s ability to engage in and fully understand 
the risks and benefits of the proposed intervention utilizing specific technologies. 
(b) Psychologists understand the manner in which cultural, linguistic, 
socioeconomic, and other individual characteristics (e.g. medical status, 
psychiatric stability, physical/cognitive disability, personal preferences) may 
impact effective use of telecommunication technologies in service delivery. 
3. Psychologists identify and learn how to access relevant and appropriate 
emergency resources in the client/patients’ local area such as emergency 
response contacts. 
4. Psychologists who use telepsychology for supervision consider and ensure a 
sufficient amount of in-person supervision time is included. Psychologists ensure 
at least 25% of the total number of supervision hours are in-person face to face 
supervision hours. These hours to be interspersed along the entire supervision 
experience. 

(b) Standards of Care in Telepsychology Services: 
1. Psychologists delivering telepsychology services apply the same ethical and 
professional standards of care and practice that are required when providing in – 
person psychological services. 
2. Psychologists who are providing telepsychology services conduct an initial 
assessment to determine the appropriateness of the telepsychology service to be 
provided for the client/patient which includes the examination of potential risks 
and benefits for the client/patients’ particular needs, the multicultural and ethical 
issues that may arise, and a review of the most appropriate medium (e.g., video 
teleconference, text, e-mail) 
3. Psychologist are aware of such other factors as geographic location, 
technological competence, diagnosis, use of substances, treatment history, and 
therapeutic needs relevant to appropriateness of telepsychology services. 
4. Psychologists communicate any risks and benefits of the telepsychology 
services in relation to in person services. 



 
        

 
 

 
  
 

    
    

    
  

 
    

  
  

 
 

 
  

 
  

   
 

  
 

    
  

     
  

 
  

       

5. Psychologists assess carefully the remote environment in which services will be 
provided to determine what impact there might be on efficacy, privacy, or safety 
of the proposed intervention. 
(c) Informed Consent: 
1. Psychologists make efforts to offer a clear description of those telepsychology 
services they provide and they seek to obtain and document informed consent. 
2. Psychologists document written informed consent from their clients/patients 
that specifically addresses the unique concerns relevant to services. 
3. Psychologists make an efforts to use language that is understandable by their 
clients/patients and to be aware of cultural linguistic and other issues. 
4. Psychologists discuss the billing documents with client/patients. 
5. Psychologists include in the informed consent the manner in which 
telecommunication will be used and the boundaries they will establish, and the 
procedures for responding to electronic communications. 
(d) Confidentiality of Data and Information: 
1. Psychologists protect and maintain the confidentiality of the data and 
information relating to their clients/patients and inform them of the potentially 
increased risks of loss of confidentiality inherent in the use of the 
telecommunication technologies. 
2. Psychologists become knowledgeable about the potential risks to 
confidentiality before utilizing such technologies. 
3. Psychologists understand and inform their clients /patients of the limits to 
confidentiality and the risks of possible access to or disclosure of confidential data 
and information. 
4. Psychologists are cognizant of the ethical and practical implications of 
researching online personal information about their clients/patients. 
5. Psychologists who use social networking sites for both personal and 
professional purposes educate themselves about the potential risks to privacy and 
confidentiality and to utilize available privacy settings to reduce these risks. 
(e) Security and Transmission of Data and Information. 
1. Psychologists take reasonable steps to ensure that security measures are in 
place to protect data and information related to their clients/patients from 
unintended access or disclosure. 



 
 

  
    

 
  

 
  

  
    

   
 

 
  

   

 
 

  
 

 
  

 
  

 
  

 

  
 
 
 

2. When keeping records of e-mail, online messaging, and other work using 
telecommunication technologies, psychologists are cognizant that preserving the 
actual communication may be preferable to summarization. 
(f) Disposal of Data and Information and Technologies. 
1. Psychologists make reasonable efforts to dispose of data and information and 
the technologies used in a manner that facilitates protection from unauthorized 
access and accounts for safe and appropriate disposal. 
(g) Testing and Assessment 
1. Psychologists are knowledgeable about the unique impact of tests, their 
suitability for diverse populations, and the limitations on test administration and 
on test and other data interpretations when these psychological tests and other 
assessment procedures are conducted via telepsychology. 
2. Psychologists strive to maintain the integrity of the application of the testing 
and assessment process and procedures when using telecommunication 
technologies. 
3. When a psychological test or other assessment procedure is conducted via 
telepsychology, psychologists are encouraged to ensure that the integrity of the 
psychometric properties of the test or assessment procedure and the conditions 
of administration indicated in the test manual are preserved when adapted for 
use with such technologies. 
4. Psychologists are cognizant of the specific issues that may arise with diverse 
populations when providing telepsychology and to make appropriate 
arrangements to address those concerns (e.g., language or cultural issues, 
cognitive, physical, or sensory skills or impairments, or age may impact 
assessment). 
5. Psychologies use test norms derived from telecommunication technologies 
administration if such are available. 
6. Psychologists recognize the potential limitations of all assessment processes 
conducted via telepsychology and to be ready to address the limitations and 
potential impact of those procedures. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

      Excerpted from the APA Telepsychology Guidelines (2013) American Psychologist, 68 (9), 791-800. 



  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

  

    

 

  

 

  

 

  

  

 

  

 

   

 

   

  

 

   

  

    

Adopted July 31, 2013 

GUIDELINES FOR THE PRACTICE OF TELEPSYCHOLOGY 

Introduction 

These guidelines are designed to address the developing area of psychological service provision 

commonly known as telepsychology. Telepsychology is defined, for the purpose of these 

guidelines, as the provision of psychological services using telecommunication technologies as 

expounded in the “Definition of Telepsychology.” The expanding role of technology in the 

provision of psychological services and the continuous development of new technologies that 

may be useful in the practice of psychology present unique opportunities, considerations and 

challenges to practice. With the advancement of technology and the increased number of 

psychologists using technology in their practices, these guidelines have been prepared to educate 

and guide them. 

These guidelines are informed by relevant American Psychological Association (APA) standards 

and guidelines, including the following: Ethical Principles of Psychologists and Code of 

Conduct (“APA Ethics Code”) (APA, 2002a, 2010), and the Record Keeping Guidelines (APA, 

2007).  In addition, the assumptions and principles that guide the APA’s “Guidelines on 

Multicultural Training, Research, Practice, and Organizational Change for Psychologists” (APA, 

2003) are infused throughout the rationale and application describing each of the guidelines.  

Therefore, these guidelines are informed by professional theories, evidence-based practices and 

definitions in an effort to offer the best guidance in the practice of telepsychology. 

The use of the term guidelines within this document refers to statements that suggest or 

recommend specific professional behaviors, endeavors or conduct for psychologists.  Guidelines 

differ from standards in that standards are mandatory and may be accompanied by an 

enforcement mechanism.  Thus, guidelines are aspirational in intent. They are intended to 

facilitate the continued systematic development of the profession and to help ensure a high level 

of professional practice by psychologists.  “Guidelines are created to educate and to inform the 

practice of psychologists. They are also intended to stimulate debate and research. Guidelines are 

not to be promulgated as a means of establishing the identity of a particular group or specialty 
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area of psychology; likewise, they are not to be created with the purpose of excluding any 

psychologist from practicing in a particular area” (APA, 2002b, p. 1048). “Guidelines are not 

intended to be mandatory or exhaustive and may not be applicable to every professional or 

clinical situation. They are not definitive and they are not intended to take precedence over the 

judgment of psychologists” (APA, 2002b, p. 1050). These guidelines are meant to assist 

psychologists as they apply current standards of professional practice when utilizing 

telecommunication technologies as a means of delivering their professional services. They are 

not intended to change any scope of practice or define the practice of any group of psychologists. 

The practice of telepsychology involves consideration of legal requirements, ethical standards, 

telecommunication technologies, intra- and interagency policies, and other external constraints, 

as well as the demands of the particular professional context. In some situations, one set of 

considerations may suggest a different course of action than another, and it is the responsibility 

of the psychologist to balance them appropriately. These guidelines aim to assist psychologists in 

making such decisions. In addition, it will be important for psychologists to be cognizant and 

compliant with laws and regulations that govern independent practice within jurisdictions and 

across jurisdictional and international borders. This is particularly true when providing 

telepsychology services.  Where a psychologist is providing services from one jurisdiction to a 

client/patient located in another jurisdiction, the law and regulations may differ between the two 

jurisdictions. Also, it is the responsibility of the psychologists who practice telepsychology to 

maintain and enhance their level of understanding of the concepts related to the delivery of 

services via telecommunication technologies. Nothing in these guidelines is intended to 

contravene any limitations set on psychologists’ activities based on ethical standards, federal or 

jurisdictional statutes or regulations, or for those psychologists who work in agencies and public 

settings. As in all other circumstances, psychologists must be aware of the standards of practice 

for the jurisdiction or setting in which they function and are expected to comply with those 

standards.  Recommendations related to the guidelines are consistent with broad ethical 

principles (APA Ethics Code, 2002a, 2010) and it continues to be the responsibility of the 

psychologist to apply all current legal and ethical standards of practice when providing 

telepsychology services. 
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It should be noted that APA policy generally requires substantial review of the relevant empirical 

literature as a basis for establishing the need for guidelines and for providing justification for the 

guidelines’ statements themselves (APA, 2005). The literature supporting the work of the Task 

Force on Telepsychology and guidelines statements themselves reflect seminal, relevant and 

recent publications. The supporting references in the literature review emphasize studies from 

approximately the past 15 years plus classic studies that provide empirical support and relevant 

examples for the guidelines. The literature review, however, is not intended to be exhaustive or 

serve as a comprehensive systematic review of the literature that is customary when developing 

professional practice guidelines for psychologists.  

Definition of Telepsychology: 

Telepsychology is defined, for the purpose of these guidelines, as the provision of psychological 

services using telecommunication technologies.  Telecommunications is the preparation, 

transmission, communication, or related processing of information by electrical, electromagnetic, 

electromechanical, electro-optical, or electronic means (Committee on National Security 

Systems, 2010). Telecommunication technologies include but are not limited to telephone, 

mobile devices, interactive videoconferencing, email, chat, text, and Internet (e.g., self-help 

websites, blogs, and social media).  The information that is transmitted may be in writing, or 

include images, sounds or other data. These communications may be synchronous with multiple 

parties communicating in real time (e.g. interactive videoconferencing, telephone) or 

asynchronous (e.g. email, online bulletin boards, storing and forwarding information).  

Technologies may augment traditional in-person  services (e.g., psychoeducational materials 

online after an in-person therapy session), or be used as stand-alone services (e.g., therapy or 

leadership development provided over videoconferencing).  Different technologies may be used 

in various combinations and for different purposes during the provision of telepsychology 

services. For example, videoconferencing and telephone may also be utilized for direct service 

while email and text is used for non-direct services (e.g. scheduling). Regardless of the purpose, 

psychologists strive to be aware of the potential benefits and limitations in their choices of 

technologies for particular clients in particular situations. 

Operational Definitions: 
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The Task Force on Telepsychology has agreed upon the following operational definitions for 

terms used in this document.  In addition, these and other terms used throughout the document 

have a basis in definitions developed by the following U.S. agencies: Committee on National 

Security Systems, Department of Health and Human Services, National Institute of Standards 

and Technology.  Lastly, the terminology and definitions that describe technologies and their 

uses are constantly evolving, and therefore, psychologists are encouraged to consult glossaries 

and publications prepared by agencies, such as, the Committee on National Security Systems and 

the National Institute of Standards and Technology which represent definitive sources 

responsible for developing terminology and definitions related to technology and its uses. 

The term “client/patient” refers to the recipient of psychological services, whether 

psychological services are delivered in the context of healthcare, corporate, supervision, and/or 

consulting services.  The term “in-person,” which is used in combination with the provision of 

services, refers to interactions in which the psychologist and the client/patient are in the same 

physical space and does not include interactions that may occur through the use of technologies. 

The term “remote” which is also used in combination with the provision of services utilizing 

telecommunication technologies, refers to the provision of a service that is received at a different 

site from where the psychologist is physically located. The term “remote” includes no 

consideration related to distance, and may refer to a site in a location that is in the office next 

door to the psychologist or thousands of miles  from the psychologist. The terms “jurisdictions” 

or “jurisdictional” are used when referring to the governing bodies at states, territories, and 

provincial governments.  

Finally, there are terms within the document related to confidentiality and security. 

“Confidentiality” means the principle that data or information is not made available or disclosed 

to unauthorized persons or processes. The terms “security” or “security measures” are terms 

that encompass all of the administrative, physical, and technical safeguards in an information 

system. The term “information system” is an interconnected set of information resources within 

a system and includes hardware, software, information, data, applications, communications, and 

people. 
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Need for the Guidelines: 

The expanding role of telecommunication technologies in the provision of services and the 

continuous development of new technologies that may be useful in the practice of psychology 

support the need for the development of guidelines for practice in this area.  Technology offers 

the opportunity to increase client/patient access to psychological services. Service recipients 

limited by geographic location, medical condition, psychiatric diagnosis, financial constraint or 

other barriers may gain access to high quality psychological services  through the use of 

technology.  Technology also facilitates the delivery of psychological services by new methods 

(e.g., online psychoeducation, therapy delivered over interactive videoconferencing), and 

augments traditional in-person psychological services.  The increased use of technology for the 

delivery of some types of services by psychologists who are health service providers is suggested 

by recent survey data collected by the APA Center for Workforce Studies (APA Center for 

Workforce Studies, 2008), and in the increasing discussion of telepsychology in the professional 

literature (Baker & Bufka, 2011).  Together with the increasing use and payment for the 

provision of telehealth services by Medicare and private industry, the development of national 

guidelines for the practice of telepsychology is timely and needed. Furthermore, state and 

international psychological associations have developed or are beginning to develop guidelines 

for the provision of psychological services (Ohio Psychological Association, 2010; Canadian 

Psychological Association, 2006; New Zealand Psychological Association, 2011). 

Development of the Guidelines: 

The guidelines were developed by the Joint Task Force for the Development of Telepsychology 

Guidelines for Psychologists (Telepsychology Task Force) established by the following three 

entities: The American Psychological Association (APA), the Association of State and Provincial 

Psychology Boards (ASPPB) and the APA Insurance Trust (APAIT). These entities provided 

input, expertise and guidance to the Task Force on many aspects of the profession, including 

those related to its ethical, regulatory and legal principles and practices. The Telepsychology 

Task Force members represented a diverse range of interests and expertise that are characteristic 

of the profession of psychology, including knowledge of the issues relevant to the use of 
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technology, ethical considerations, licensure and mobility, and scope of practice, to name only a 

few1 . 

The Telepsychology Task Force recognized that telecommunications technologies provide both 

opportunities and challenges for psychologists.  Telepsychology not only enhances a 

psychologist’s ability to provide services to clients/patients, but also greatly expands access to 

psychological services that, without telecommunication technologies, would not be available. 

Throughout the development of these guidelines, the Telepsychology Task Force devoted 

numerous hours reflecting on and discussing the need for guidance to psychologists in this area 

of practice, the myriad, complex issues related to the practice of telepsychology and the 

experiences that they and other practitioners address each day in the use of technology. There 

was a concerted focus to identify the unique aspects that telecommunication technologies bring 

to the provision of psychological services, distinct from those present during in-person provision 

of services.  Two important components were identified: 

1) the psychologist’s knowledge of and competence in the use of the telecommunication 

technologies being utilized; and, 

2) the need to ensure the client/patient has a full understanding of the increased risks to loss 

of security and confidentiality when using telecommunication technologies. 

Therefore, two of the most salient issues that the Telepsychology Task Force members focus on 

throughout the document are the psychologist’s own knowledge of and competence in the 

provision of telepsychology and the need to ensure that the client/patient has a full understanding 

of the potentially increased risks to loss of security and confidentiality when using technologies. 

1 
The Telepsychology Task Force was comprised of psychologists with four members each representing the American Psychological Association 

(APA) and the Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards (ASPPB), and two members representing the American Psychological 
Association Insurance Trust (APAIT).  The Co-Chairs of the Telepsychology Task Force were Linda Campbell, PhD and Fred Millán, PhD. 
Additional members of the Task Force included the following psychologists: Margo Adams Larsen, PhD; Sara Smucker Barnwell, PhD; Colonel 
Bruce E. Crow, PsyD; Terry S. Gock, PhD; Eric A. Harris, EdD, JD; Jana N. Martin, PhD; Thomas W. Miller, PhD; Joseph S. Rallo, PhD.  APA 
staff (Ronald S. Palomares, PhD; Joan Freund and Jessica Davis) and ASPPB staff (Stephen DeMers, EdD; Alex M. Siegel, PhD, JD; and Janet 
Pippin Orwig) provided direct support to the Telepsychology Task Force. Funding was provided by each of the respective entities to support in­
person meetings and conference calls of Task Force members in 2011 and 2012. This draft is scheduled to expire as APA policy, no later than 10 
years after the initial date of recognition by the APA. After the date of expiration, users are encouraged to contact the APA Practice Directorate 
to confirm that this document remains in effect. 
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An additional key issue discussed by the task force members was interjurisdictional practice. 

The guidelines encourage psychologists to be familiar with and comply with all relevant laws 

and regulations when providing psychological services across jurisdictional and international 

borders.  The guidelines do not promote a specific mechanism to guide the development and 

regulation of interjurisdictional practice.  However, the Telepsychology Task Force notes that 

while the profession of psychology does not currently have a mechanism to regulate the delivery 

of psychological services across jurisdictional and international borders, it is anticipated that the 

profession will develop  a mechanism  to allow interjurisdictional practice given the rapidity by 

which technology is evolving and the increasing use of telepsychology by psychologists working 

in U.S. federal environments, such as, the U.S. Department of Defense and Department of 

Veterans Affairs. 

Competence of the Psychologist 

Guideline 1: Psychologists who provide telepsychology services  strive to take reasonable steps 

to ensure their competence with both the technologies used and the potential impact of the 

technologies on clients/patients, supervisees or other professionals.  

Rationale: 

Psychologists have a primary ethical obligation to provide professional services only within the 

boundaries of their competence based on their education, training, supervised experience, 

consultation, study or professional experience. As with all new and emerging areas in which 

generally recognized standards for preparatory training do not yet exist, psychologists utilizing 

telepsychology aspire to apply the same standards in developing their competence in this area. 

Psychologists who use telepsychology in their practices assume the responsibility for assessing 

and continuously evaluating their competencies, training, consultation, experience and risk 

management practices required for competent practice. 

Application: 
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Psychologists assume responsibility to continually assess both their professional and technical 

competence when providing telepsychology services.  Psychologists who utilize or intend to 

utilize telecommunication technologies when delivering services to clients/patients strive to 

obtain relevant professional training to develop their requisite knowledge and skills.  Acquiring 

competence may require pursuing additional educational experiences and training, including but 

not limited to, a review of the relevant literature, attendance at existing training programs (e.g., 

professional and technical) and continuing education specific to the delivery of services utilizing 

telecommunication technologies.   Psychologists are encouraged to seek appropriate skilled 

consultation from colleagues and other resources. 

Psychologists are encouraged to examine the available evidence to determine whether specific 

telecommunication technologies are suitable for a client/patient, based on the current literature 

available, current outcomes research, best practice guidance and client/patient preference. 

Research may not be available in the use of some specific technologies and clients/patients 

should be made aware of those telecommunication technologies that have no evidence of 

effectiveness. However this, in and of itself, may not be grounds to deny providing the service to 

the client/patient. Lack of current available evidence in a new area of practice does not 

necessarily indicate that a service is ineffective. Additionally, psychologists are encouraged to 

document their consideration and choices regarding the use of telecommunication technologies 

used in service delivery. 

Psychologists understand the need to consider their competence in utilizing telepsychology as 

well as their client’s/patient’s ability to engage in and fully understand the risks and benefits of 

the proposed intervention utilizing specific technologies.  Psychologists make reasonable effort 

to understand the manner in which cultural, linguistic, socioeconomic and other individual 

characteristics (e.g., medical status, psychiatric stability, physical/cognitive disability, personal 

preferences), in addition to, organizational cultures may impact effective use of 

telecommunication technologies in service delivery. 

Psychologists who are trained to handle emergency situations in providing traditional in-person 

clinical services, and are generally familiar with the resources available in their local community 
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to assist clients/patients with crisis intervention. At the onset of the delivery of telepsychology 

services, psychologists make reasonable effort to identify and learn how to access relevant and 

appropriate emergency resources in the client’s/patient’s local area, such as emergency response 

contacts (e.g., emergency telephone numbers, hospital admissions, local referral resources, 

clinical champion at a partner clinic where services are delivered, a support person in the 

client’s/patient’s life when available). Psychologists prepare a plan to address any lack of 

appropriate resources, particularly those necessary in an emergency, and other relevant factors 

which may impact the efficacy and safety of said service. Psychologists make reasonable effort 

to discuss with and provide all clients/patients with clear written instructions as to what to do in 

an emergency (e.g., where there is a suicide risk).  As part of emergency planning, psychologists 

are encouraged to acquire knowledge of the laws and rules of the jurisdiction in which the 

client/patient resides and the differences from those in the psychologist’s jurisdiction, as well as 

document all their emergency planning efforts. 

In addition, as applicable psychologists are mindful of the array of potential discharge plans for 

clients/patients when telepsychology services are no longer necessary and/or desirable. If a 

client/patient recurrently experiences crises/emergencies suggestive that in-person services may 

be appropriate, psychologists take reasonable steps to refer a client/patient to a local mental 

health resource or begin providing in-person services.   

Psychologists using telepsychology to provide supervision or consultation remotely to 

individuals or organizations are encouraged to consult others who are knowledgeable about the 

unique issues telecommunication technologies pose for supervision or consultation.  

Psychologists providing telepsychology services strive to be familiar with professional literature 

regarding the delivery of services via telecommunication technologies, as well as competent with 

the use of the technological modality itself. In providing supervision and/or consultation via 

telepsychology, psychologists make reasonable efforts to be proficient in the professional 

services being offered, the telecommunication modality via which the services are being offered 

by the supervisee/consultee, and the technology medium being used to provide the supervision or 

consultation. In addition, since the development of basic professional competencies for 

supervisees is often conducted in-person, psychologists who use telepsychology for supervision 
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are encouraged to consider and ensure that a sufficient amount of in-person supervision time is 

included so that the supervisees can attain the required competencies or supervised experiences. 

Standards of Care in the Delivery of Telepsychology Services 

Guideline 2: Psychologists make every effort to ensure that ethical and professional standards 

of care and practice are met at the outset and throughout the duration of the telepsychology 

services they provide. 

Rationale: 

Psychologists delivering telepsychology services apply the same ethical and professional 

standards of care and professional practice that are required when providing in-person 

psychological services. The use of telecommunication technologies in the delivery of 

psychological services is a relatively new and rapidly evolving area, and therefore psychologists 

are encouraged to take particular care to evaluate and assess the appropriateness of utilizing these 

technologies prior to engaging in, and throughout the duration of, telepsychology practice to 

determine if the modality of service is appropriate, efficacious and safe.  

Telepsychology encompasses a breadth of different psychological services using a variety of 

technologies (e.g., interactive videoconferencing, telephone, text, email, web services, and 

mobile applications). The burgeoning research in telepsychology suggests the effectiveness of 

certain types of interactive telepsychological interventions to their in-person counterparts 

(specific therapies delivered over videoteleconferencing and telephone). Therefore, before 

psychologists engage in providing telepsychology services, they are urged to conduct an initial 

assessment to determine the appropriateness of the telepsychology service to be provided for the 

client/patient. Such an assessment may include the examination of the potential risks and benefits 

to provide telepsychology services for the client’s/patient’s particular needs, the multicultural 

and ethical issues that may arise, and a review of the most appropriate medium (e.g., video 

teleconference, text, email, etc.) or best options available for the service delivery. It may also 

include considering whether comparable in-person services are available, and why services 
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delivered via telepsychology are equivalent or preferable to such services.  In addition, it is 

incumbent on the psychologist to engage in a continual assessment of the appropriateness of 

providing telepsychology services throughout the duration of the service delivery. 

Application: 

When providing telepsychology services, considering client/patient preferences for such services 

is important. However, it may not be solely determinative in the assessment of their 

appropriateness. Psychologists are encouraged to carefully examine the unique benefits of 

delivering telepsychology services (e.g., access to care, access to consulting services, client 

convenience, accommodating client special needs, etc.) relative to the unique risks (e.g., 

information security, emergency management, etc.) when determining whether or not to offer 

telepsychology services.  Moreover, psychologists are aware of such other factors as geographic 

location, organizational culture, technological competence (both psychologist and client/patient), 

and, as appropriate, medical conditions, mental status and stability, psychiatric diagnosis, current 

or historic use of substances, treatment history, and therapeutic needs that may be relevant to 

assessing the appropriateness of the telepsychology services being offered. Furthermore, 

psychologists are encouraged to communicate any risks and benefits of the telepsychology 

services to be offered to the client/patient and document such communication. In addition, 

psychologists may consider some initial in-person contact with the client/patient to facilitate an 

active discussion on these issues and/or conduct the initial assessment. 

As in the provision of traditional services, psychologists endeavor to follow the best practice of 

service delivery described in the empirical literature and professional standards (including 

multicultural considerations) that are relevant to the telepsychological service modality being 

offered. In addition, they consider the client’s/patient’s familiarity with and competency for 

using the specific technologies involved in providing the particular telepsychology service. 

Moreover, psychologists are encouraged to reflect on multicultural considerations and how best 

to manage any emergency that may arise during the provision of telepsychology services. 

Psychologists are encouraged to assess carefully the remote environment in which services will 

be provided, to determine what impact, if any, there might be to the efficacy, privacy and/or 
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safety of the proposed intervention offered via telepsychology. Such an assessment of the remote 

environment may include a discussion of the client’s/patient’s  situation within the home or 

within an organizational context, the availability of emergency or technical personnel or 

supports, risk of distractions,  potential for privacy breaches or any other impediments that may 

impact the effective delivery of telepsychology services. Along this line, psychologists are 

encouraged to discuss fully with the clients/patients their role in ensuring that sessions are not 

interrupted and that the setting is comfortable and conducive to making progress to maximize 

the impact of the service provided since the psychologist will not be able to control those factors 

remotely. 

Psychologists are urged to monitor and assess regularly the progress of their client/patient when 

offering telepsychology services in order to determine if the provision of telepsychology services 

is still appropriate and beneficial to the client/patient. If there is a significant  change in the 

client/patient or in the therapeutic interaction to cause concern, psychologists make reasonable 

effort to take appropriate steps to adjust and reassess the appropriateness of the services 

delivered via telepsychology. Where it is believed that continuing to provide remote services is 

no longer beneficial or presents a risk to a client’s/patient’s emotional or physical well-being, 

psychologists are encouraged to thoroughly discuss these concerns with the client/patient, 

appropriately terminate their remote services with adequate notice and refer or offer any needed 

alternative services to the client/patient. 

Informed Consent 

Guideline 3: Psychologists strive to obtain and document informed consent that specifically 

addresses the unique concerns related to the telepsychology services they provide. When doing 

so, psychologists are cognizant of the applicable laws and regulations, as well as 

organizational requirements that govern informed consent in this area.  

Rationale: 
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The process of explaining and obtaining informed consent, by whatever means obtained, sets the 

stage for the relationship between the psychologist and the client/patient.  Psychologists make 

reasonable effort to offer a complete and clear description of the telepsychology services they 

provide, and seek to obtain and document informed consent when providing professional 

services (APA Ethics Code, Standard 3.10). In addition, they attempt to develop and share the 

policies and procedures that will explain to their clients/patients how they will interact with them 

using the specific telecommunication technologies involved. It may be more difficult to obtain 

and document informed consent in situations where psychologists provide telepsychology 

services to their clients/patients who are not in the same physical location, or with whom they do 

not have in-person interactions. .  Moreover, there may be differences with respect to informed 

consent between the laws and regulations in the jurisdictions where a psychologist who is 

providing telepsychology services is located and the jurisdiction in which this psychologist’s 

client/patient resides.  Furthermore, psychologists may need to be aware of the manner in which 

cultural, linguistic, socioeconomic characteristics, and organizational considerations may impact 

a client’s/patient’s understanding of, and  the special considerations required for, obtaining 

informed consent (such as when securing  informed consent remotely from a parent/guardian 

when providing telepsychology services to a minor).  

Telepsychology services may require different considerations for and safeguards against 

potential risks to, confidentiality, information security, and comparability of traditional in-person 

services.  Psychologists are thus encouraged to consider appropriate policies and procedures to 

address the potential threats to the security of client/patient data and information when using 

specific telecommunication technologies and appropriately inform their clients/patients about 

them.  For example, psychologists who provide telepsychology services consider addressing with 

their clients/patients what client/patient data and information will be stored, how the data and 

information will be stored, how it will be accessed, how secure is the information communicated 

using a given technology, and any technology-related vulnerability to confidentiality and security 

by creating and storing electronic client/patient data and information. 

Application: 
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Prior to providing telepsychology services, psychologists are aware of the importance of 

obtaining and documenting written informed consent from their clients/patients that specifically 

addresses the unique concerns relevant to those services that will be offered.  When developing 

such informed consent, psychologists make reasonable effort to use language that is reasonably 

understandable to their clients/patients, in addition to, evaluating the need to address cultural, 

linguistic, organizational considerations, and other issues that may impact on a client’s/patient’s 

understanding of the informed consent agreement.  When considering for inclusion in informed 

consent those unique concerns that may be involved in providing telepsychology services, 

psychologists may include the manner in which they and their clients/patients will use the 

particular telecommunication technologies, the boundaries they will establish and observe, and 

the procedures for responding to electronic communications from clients/patients.  Moreover, 

psychologists are cognizant of pertinent laws and regulations with respect to informed consent in 

both the jurisdiction where they offer their services and where their clients/patients reside (see 

Guideline on Interjurisdictional Practice for more detail). 

Besides those unique concerns described above, psychologists are encouraged to discuss with 

their clients/patients those issues surrounding confidentiality and the security conditions when 

particular modes of telecommunication technologies are utilized. Along this line, psychologists 

are cognizant of some of the inherent risks a given telecommunication technology may pose in 

both the equipment (hardware, software, other equipment components) and the processes used 

for providing telepsychology services, and strive to provide their clients/patients with adequate 

information to give informed consent for proceeding with receiving the professional services 

offered via telepsychology. Some of these risks may include those associated with technological 

problems, and those service limitations that may arise because the continuity, availability and 

appropriateness of specific telepsychology services (e.g. testing, assessment and therapy) may be 

hindered as a result of those services being offered remotely. In addition, psychologists may 

consider developing agreements with their clients/patients to assume some role in protecting the 

data and information they receive from them (e.g. by not forwarding emails from the 

psychologist to others). 
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Another unique aspect of providing telepsychology services is that of billing documentation. As 

part of informed consent, psychologists are mindful of the need to discuss with their 

clients/patients what the billing documentation will include prior to the onset of service 

provision. Billing documentation may reflect the type of telecommunication technology used, the 

type of telepsychology services provided, and the fee structure for each relevant telepsychology 

service (e.g., video chat, texting fees, telephone services, chat room group fees, emergency 

scheduling, etc.). It may also include discussion about the charges incurred for any service 

interruptions or failures encountered, responsibility for overage charges on data plans, fee 

reductions for technology failures, and any other costs associated with the telepsychology 

services that will be provided. 

Confidentiality of Data and Information 

Guideline 4: Psychologists who provide telepsychology services make reasonable effort to 

protect and maintain the confidentiality of the data and information relating to their 

clients/patients and inform them of the potentially increased risks to loss of confidentiality 

inherent in the use of the telecommunication technologies, if any. 

Rationale: 

The use of telecommunications technologies and the rapid advances in technology present 

unique challenges for psychologists in protecting the confidentiality of clients/patients. 

Psychologists who provide telepsychology learn about the potential risks to confidentiality 

before utilizing such technologies.  When necessary, psychologists obtain the appropriate 

consultation with technology experts to augment their knowledge of telecommunication 

technologies in order to apply security measures in their practices that will protect and maintain 

the confidentiality of data and information related to their clients/patients. 

Some of the potential risks to confidentiality include considerations related to uses of search 

engines and participation in social networking sites. Other challenges in this area may include 

protecting confidential data and information from inappropriate and/or inadvertent breaches to 

established security methods the psychologist has in place, as well as boundary issues that may 
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arise as a result of a psychologist’s use of search engines and participation on social networking 

sites.  In addition, any Internet participation by psychologists has the potential of being 

discovered by their clients/patients and others and thereby potentially compromising a 

professional relationship.  

Application: 

Psychologists both understand and inform their clients/patients of the limits to confidentiality 

and risks to the possible access or disclosure of confidential data and information that may occur 

during service delivery, including the risks of access to electronic communications (e.g. 

telephone, email) between the psychologist and client/patient.  Also, psychologists are cognizant 

of the ethical and practical implications of proactively researching online personal information 

about their clients/patients.  They carefully consider the advisability of discussing such research 

activities with their clients/patients and how information gained from such searches would be 

utilized and recorded as documenting this information may introduce risks to the boundaries of 

appropriate conduct for a psychologist. In addition, psychologists are encouraged to weigh the 

risks and benefits of dual relationships that may develop with their clients/patients, due to the use 

of telecommunication technologies, before engaging in such relationships (APAPO, 2012). 

Psychologists who use social networking sites for both professional and personal purposes are 

encouraged to review and educate themselves about the potential risks to privacy and 

confidentiality and consider utilizing all available privacy settings to reduce these risks. They are 

also mindful of the possibility that any electronic communication can have a high risk of public 

discovery.  They therefore mitigate such risks by following the appropriate laws, regulations and 

the APA Ethics Code (APA, 2010) to avoid disclosing confidential data or information related to 

clients/patients. 

Security and Transmission of Data and Information 
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Guideline 5: Psychologists who provide telepsychology services take reasonable steps to ensure 

that security measures are in place to protect data and information related to their 

clients/patients from unintended access or disclosure. 

Rationale: 

The use of telecommunication technologies in the provision of psychological services presents 

unique potential threats to the security and transmission of client/patient data and information. 

These potential threats to the integrity of data and information may include computer viruses, 

hackers, theft of technology devices, damage to hard drives or portable drives, failure of security 

systems, flawed software, and ease of accessibility to unsecured electronic files, and 

malfunctioning or outdated technology. Other threats may include policies and practices of 

technology companies and vendors such as tailored marketing derived from email 

communications. Psychologists are encouraged to be mindful of these potential threats, and take 

reasonable steps to ensure that security measures are in place for protecting and controlling 

access to client/patient data within an information system. In addition, they are cognizant of 

relevant jurisdictional and federal laws and regulations that govern electronic storage and 

transmission of client/patient data and information, and develop appropriate policies and 

procedures to comply with such directives.  When developing policies and procedures to ensure 

the security of client/patient data and information, psychologists may include considering the 

unique concerns and impacts posed by both intended and unintended use of public and private 

technology devices, active and inactive therapeutic relationships, and the different safeguards 

required for different physical environments, different staff (e.g. professional versus 

administrative staff), and different telecommunication technologies. 

Application: 

Psychologists are encouraged to conduct an analysis of the risks to their practice setting, 

telecommunication technologies, and administrative staff, to ensure that client/patient data and 

information is accessible only to appropriate and authorized individuals. Psychologists strive to 

obtain appropriate training or consultation from relevant experts when additional knowledge is 

needed to conduct an analysis of the risks. 
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Psychologists strive to ensure that policies and procedures are in place to secure and control 

access to client/patient information and data within information systems. Along this line, they 

may encrypt confidential client/patient data for storage or transmission, and utilize such other 

secure methods as safe hardware and software and robust passwords to protect electronically 

stored or transmitted data and information. If there is a breach of unencrypted electronically 

communicated or maintained data, psychologists are urged to notify their clients/patients and 

other appropriate individuals/organizations as soon as possible.  In addition, they are encouraged 

to make their best efforts to ensure that electronic data and information remain accessible despite 

problems with hardware, software and/or storage devices by keeping a secure back-up version of 

such data. 

When documenting the security measures to protect client/patient data and information from 

unintended access or disclosure, psychologists are  encouraged to clearly address what types of 

telecommunication technologies are used (e.g., email, telephone, video teleconferencing, text), 

how they are used, whether telepsychology services used are the primary method of contact or 

augments in-person contact. When keeping records of email, online messaging and other work 

using telecommunication technologies, psychologists are cognizant that preserving the actual 

communication may be preferable to summarization in some cases depending on the type of 

technology used. 

Disposal of Data and Information and Technologies 

Guideline 6: Psychologists who provide telepsychology services make reasonable efforts to 

dispose of data and information and the technologies used in a manner that facilitates 

protection from unauthorized access and accounts for safe and appropriate disposal. 

Rationale: 

Consistent with APA Record Keeping Guidelines (2007), psychologists are encouraged to create 

policies and procedures for the secure destruction of data and information and the technologies 

used to create, store and transmit the data and information. The use of telecommunication 
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technologies in the provision of psychological services poses new challenges for psychologists 

when they consider the disposal methods to utilize in order to maximally preserve client 

confidentiality and privacy. Psychologists are therefore urged to consider conducting an analysis 

of the risks to the information systems within their practices in an effort to ensure full and 

complete disposal of electronic data and information, plus the technologies that created, stored, 

and transmitted the data and information. 

Application: 

Psychologists are encouraged to develop policies and procedures for the destruction of data and 

information related to clients/patients. They also strive to securely dispose of software and 

hardware used in the provision of telepsychology services in a manner that insures that the 

confidentiality and security of any patient/client information is not compromised. When doing 

so, psychologists carefully clean all the data and images in the storage media  before re-use or 

disposal consistent with federal, state, provincial, territorial, and other organizational regulations 

and guidelines. Psychologists are aware of and understand the unique storage implications 

related to telecommunication technologies inherent in available systems. 

Psychologists are encouraged to document the methods and procedures used when disposing of 

the data and information and the technologies used to create, store, or transmit the data and 

information, as well as any other technology utilized in the disposal of data and hardware. They 

also strive to be aware of malware, cookies, etc. and dispose routinely of them on an ongoing 

basis when telecommunication technologies are used. 

Testing and Assessment 

Guideline 7: Psychologists are encouraged to consider the unique issues that may arise with 

test instruments and assessment approaches designed for in-person implementation when 

providing telepsychology services. 

Rationale: 
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Psychological testing and other assessment procedures are an area of professional practice in 

which psychologists have been trained and are uniquely qualified to conduct. While some 

symptom screening instruments are already being administered online frequently, most 

psychological test instruments and other assessment procedures currently in use have been 

designed and developed originally for in-person administration.  Psychologists are thus 

encouraged to be knowledgeable about, and account for, the unique impacts, suitability for 

diverse populations, and limitations on test administration and on test and other data 

interpretations when these psychological tests and other assessment procedures are considered 

for and conducted via telepsychology. Psychologists also strive to maintain the integrity of the 

application of the testing and assessment process and procedures when using telecommunication 

technologies. In addition, they are cognizant of the accommodations for diverse populations that 

may be required for test administration via telepsychology. These guidelines are consistent with 

the standards articulated in the most recent edition of Standards for educational and 

psychological testing (American Educational Research Association, American Psychological 

Association, and the Council on Measurement in Education).  

Application: 

When a psychological test or other assessment procedure is conducted via telepsychology, 

psychologists are encouraged to ensure that the integrity of the psychometric properties of the 

test or assessment procedure (e.g., reliability and validity) and the conditions of administration 

indicated in the test manual are preserved when adapted for use with such technologies.  They 

are encouraged to consider if modifications to the testing environment or conditions are 

necessary to accomplish this preservation.  For example, access to a cell phone, the Internet or 

other persons during an assessment could interfere with the reliability or validity of the 

instrument or administration. Further, if the individual being assessed receives coaching or such 

information as potential responses or the scoring and interpretation of specific assessment 

instruments because they are available on the Internet, the test results may be compromised. 

Psychologists are also encouraged to consider other possible forms of distraction which could 

affect performance during an assessment and which may not be obvious or visible (e.g., sight, 

sound, and smell) when utilizing telecommunication technologies. 
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Psychologists are encouraged to be cognizant of the specific issues that may arise with diverse 

populations when providing telepsychology and make appropriate arrangements to address those 

concerns (e.g., language or cultural issues; cognitive, physical or sensory skills or impairments; 

or age may impact assessment). In addition, psychologists may consider the use of a trained 

assistant (e.g., proctor) to be on premise at the remote location in an effort to help verify the 

identity of the client/patient, provide needed on-site support to administer certain tests or 

subtests, and protect the security of the psychological testing and/or assessment process. 

When administering psychological tests and other assessment procedures when providing 

telepsychology services, psychologists are encouraged to consider the quality of those 

technologies that are being used and the hardware requirements that are needed in order to 

conduct the specific psychological test or assessment approach. They also strive to account for 

and be prepared to explain the potential difference between the results obtained when a particular 

psychological test is conducted via telepsychology and when it is administered in-person.  In 

addition, when documenting findings from evaluation and assessment procedures, psychologists 

are encouraged to specify that a particular test or assessment procedure has been administered 

via telepsychology, and describe any accommodations or modifications that have been made. 

Psychologists strive to use test norms derived from telecommunication technologies 

administration if such are available. Psychologists are encouraged to recognize the potential 

limitations of all assessment processes conducted via telepsychology, and be ready to address the 

limitations and potential impact of those procedures. 

Interjurisdictional Practice 

Guideline 8:  Psychologists are encouraged to be familiar with and comply with all relevant 

laws and regulations when providing telepsychology services to clients/patients across 

jurisdictional and international borders. 

Rationale: 
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With the rapid advances in telecommunication technologies, the intentional or unintentional 

provision of psychological services across jurisdictional and international borders is becoming 

more of a reality  for psychologists.  Such service provision may range from the psychologists or 

clients/patients being temporarily out-of-state (including split residence across states) to 

psychologists offering their services across jurisdictional borders as a practice modality to take 

advantage of  new telecommunication technologies. Psychological service delivery systems 

within such institutions as the U.S. Department of Defense and the Department of Veterans 

Affairs have already established internal policies and procedures for providing services within 

their systems that cross jurisdictional and international borders. However, the laws and 

regulations that govern service delivery by psychologists outside of those systems vary by state, 

province, territory, and country (APAPO, 2010).  Psychologists should make reasonable effort to 

be familiar with and, as appropriate, to address the laws and regulations that govern 

telepsychology service delivery within the jurisdictions in which they are situated and the 

jurisdictions where their clients/patients are located. 

Application: 

It is important for psychologists to be aware of the relevant laws and regulations that specifically 

address the delivery of professional services by psychologists via telecommunication 

technologies within and between jurisdictions.  Psychologists are encouraged to understand what 

the laws and regulations consider as telehealth or telepsychology.  In addition, psychologists are 

encouraged to review the professional licensure requirements, the services and 

telecommunication modalities covered, and the information required to be included in providing 

informed consent. It is important to note that each jurisdiction may or may not have specific laws 

which impose special requirements when providing services via telecommunication 

technologies.  The APAPO (2010) has found that there are variations in whether psychologists 

are specified as a single type of provider or covered as part of a more diverse group of providers.  

In addition, there is wide diversity in the types of services and the telecommunication 

technologies that are covered by these laws. 

At the present time, there are a number of jurisdictions without specific laws that govern the 

provision of psychological services utilizing telecommunication technologies.  When providing 
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telepsychology services in these jurisdictions, psychologists are encouraged to be aware of any 

opinion or declaratory statement issued by the relevant regulatory bodies and/or other 

practitioner licensing boards that may help inform them of the legal and regulatory requirements 

involved when delivering telepsychology services within those jurisdictions.   

Moreover, because of the rapid growth in the utilization of telecommunication technologies, 

psychologists strive to keep abreast of developments and changes in the licensure and other 

interjurisdictional practice requirements that may be pertinent to their delivery of telepsychology 

services across jurisdictional boundaries. Given the direction of various health professions, and 

current federal priorities to resolve problems created by requirements of multi-jurisdictional 

licensure, (citations e.g., FCC National Broadband Plan, 2010, Canadian Agreement on Internal 

Trade 1995), the development of a telepsychology credential required by psychology boards for 

interjurisdictional practice is a probable outcome. For example, nursing has developed a 

credential that is accepted by many US jurisdictions that allows nurses licensed in any 

participating jurisdiction to practice in person or remotely in all participating jurisdictions.  In 

addition, an ASPPB Task Force has drafted a set of recommendations for such a credential. 

Conclusion 

It is important to note, that it is not the intent of these guidelines to prescribe specific actions, but 

rather, to offer the best guidance available at present when incorporating telecommunication 

technologies in the provision of psychological services. Because technology and its applicability 

to the profession of psychology is a dynamic area with many changes likely ahead, these 

guidelines also are not inclusive of all other considerations and are not intended to take 

precedence over the judgment of psychologists or applicable laws and regulations that guide the 

profession and practice of psychology.  It is hoped that the framework presented will guide 

psychologists as the field evolves. 
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Employment Requirements and 
Ethics Conflicts 

Sheila Young, Ph.D. 

VA Sierra Nevada Health Care System 

APA Ethical Code 3.11 

• “(a) Psychologists delivering services to or 
through organizations provide information 
beforehand to clients and when appropriate 
those directly affected by the services about 
(1) the nature and objectives of the services; 
(2) the intended recipients; (3) which of the 
individuals are clients, (4) the relationship the 
psychologist will have with each person and 
the organization, 

3.11 (cont.) 

• (5) the probable uses of services provided and 
information obtained, (6) who will have access 
to the information, and (7) limits of 
confidentiality. As soon as feasible, they 
provide information about the results and 
conclusions of such services to appropriate 
persons. 
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3.11 (cont.) 

•	 (b) If psychologists will be precluded by law or 
by organizational roles from providing such 
information to particular individuals or 
groups, they so inform those individuals or 
groups at the outset of the service. 

The Code provides a framework 

•	 Make sure all parties are informed about the 
nature of the services provided, who has 
access to information and to whom 
information will be communicated. 

•	 Be clear about who is the primary client 

•	 Inform about any limits to confidentiality 

Common Challenges 

•	 Confusion or conflict with regard to primary 
allegiance individual vs. organization 

•	 Situations where it is difficult to address the 
best interests of both the client and the 
organization 

•	 Pressures to meet the needs of the 
organization (source of personal income) at 
the expense of ethical obligations 
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Common Challenges (cont.) 

•	 Psychologists can mistakenly believe that the 
organizational demands override regulatory or 
ethical obligations. 

•	 Within integrated systems, psychologists may 
encounter situations where administrators and 
other clinicians do not understand their 
occupation. 

•	 Unintended consequences of performance and 
quality improvement measures, as well as cost 
containment measures 

Examples of Current Challenge 

•	 Affordable Care Act has increased the number 
of individuals eligible for care 

Example community agencies and hospitals 
were not prepared for increased usage, and are 
having to respond to increase need for access. 

Emergency Care availability 

Examples (cont) 

Prisons 

limited resources vs. doing what one can for 
vulnerable populations and those in need 

Managed Care Organizations 

requires careful attention prior to signing a 
contract 

MCOs can’t keep you from providing appropriate 
treatment; they just might not pay you if they 
deem it unnecessary 
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Regulatory Concerns 

•	 When complaints are against psychologists 
working in systems, regulators need to make 
sure we understand those systems. 

Doesn’t necessarily absolve the psychologist, but 
we also need a careful analysis of antecedents and 
consequences. 

Recommendations 
•	 Psychologists need to be thorough in their 
communications and informed consent with 
clients and other stakeholders, and provide 
informed consent to ALL consumers of 
services. 

•	 Clarify one s roll and obligations with all 
parties, including oneself. 

•	 If a conflict arises, know your obligations 
under the Ethics code 

Recommendations (cont.) 

•	 Keep open lines of communication with 
leadership. Understand their perspective and 
provide education about the impact of their 
decisions on care. 

•	 Be assertive about the impact on clients, staff, 
and on the welfare of the institution. 

•	 Be tactful and use your skills to resolve 
problems. Avoid personalizing the issue. 
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Need 

 In February 2015, the Board of Directors of ASPBB 
introduced the Psychology Interjurisdictional Compact 
(PSYPACT) to address concerns by member 
jurisdictions about the increasing availability of 
unregulated services provided via telecommunication 
technologies 

 Goal is to protect public through the regulation of 
interjurisdictional practice through verification of 
education, training and experience to ensure 
accountability for professional practice 

Interstate Compact 

 An agreement between states to enact 
legislation and enter into a contract for a 
specific purpose 

 Provisions take precedence over conflicting 
state laws 
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Designed to regulate: 

 the day‐to‐day practice of telepsychology 
across state boundaries 

and/or 

 the temporary in‐person face‐to‐face practice 
of psychology for up to 30 days annually 

PSYPACT Commission 

 The governing body of the PSYPACT responsible for 
its oversight and creation of Rules and Bylaws 

 will consist of one voting representative appointed 
by each PSYPACT State who will serve as that state’s 
Commissioner. 

 The Psychology Regulatory Board will appoint its 
delegate. 

Coordinated Licensure 
Information System 

 Coordinated database will be established containing 
licensure and disciplinary action information on all 
licensees of Compact States. 

 Will be available to Compact States as a resource to 
track individuals participating into and out of their 
state via the compact 

JPO5 
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Additional Authorities 

 Issue subpoenas, for both hearings and 
investigations, which require the attendance and 
testimony of witnesses and the production of 
evidence. 

 Issue cease and desist and/or injunctive relief orders 
to revoke a psychologist’s APIT 

 During the course of any investigation, a 
psychologist may not change his/her Home State 
affiliation. 

Effective Date 

The PSYPACT shall come into effect on 
the date on which it is enacted into law 
in the seventh Compact State. 

Psychologist 
Requirements 

 Meet educational standards; 

 Possess a current, full and unrestricted license to practice psychology 
in a Home State which is a Compact State; 

 No history of adverse action; 

 No criminal record history; 

 Possess a current, active E.Passport and/or IPC Certificate 

 Provide attestations in regard to areas of intended practice and work 
experience and provide a release of information to allow for primary 
source verification; and 

 Meet other criteria as defined by the Rules of the Commission. 
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How Practice Works 

Psychologis 
in Home 
Compact 
State 

Receiving 
Compact 
State #1 

Receiving 
Compact 
State #2 

Receiving 
Compact 
State #3 

Receiving 
Compact 
State #4 

Receiving 
Compact 
State #5 

Receiving 
Compact 
State #6 

E.Passport 

Creates a “legal” relationship between: 

• Psychologist 

• Home licensing board where psychologist is located and 
practicing from 

• Distant Licensing board where patient is located and 
where services are being provided into 

ASPPB to review, vet credentials and issue E.Passport 
Certificate based on established criteria 

JPO9 
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E.Passport Revocation 

•	 Occurs if a psychologist ’s license in any Home State, 
another Compact State, or any Authority to Practice 
Interjurisdictional Telepsychology in any Receiving State, is 
restricted, suspended or otherwise limited. 

•	 No longer eligible to practice telepsychology in a Compact 
State under the Authority to Practice Interjurisdictional 
Telepsychology 

Interjurisdictional Practice 
Certificate (IPC) 

 a certificate that grants temporary authority for in‐
person, face‐to‐face practice 

 based on: 
 notification to the Commission of intention to practice 

temporarily, 

 and verification of one’s qualifications for such 
practice. 

ASPPB to review, vet credentials and issue IPC based on 
established criteria 

5 



 

 

 

     

               
 

 

         

   

9/22/2015
 

Dedicated Website 

www.psypact.org 
Resources include: 
 Compact legislation 

 Legislative resource kit 

 FAQs 

 Up‐to‐date information about the status of PSYPACT in 
each state 

THANK YOU! 

For further information please contact: 

Janet Orwig at jorwig@asppb.org 

www.psypact.org 
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Have We Become More Alike or 
Different in the Last 50 Years? 

Don Crowder, PhD 

ASPPB President Elect 

doncrowder01@gmail.com 

Challenges that Limit Professional 
Regulation in Psychology 

• Enduring inconsistency in licensure standards 
across jurisdictions 

• Inadequate provision for recognition of new 
modalities of psychology training and practice 

DeMers, Webb, and Horn, 2014 

Common Rules Task Force 

• Established as National Standards 
Subcommittee in 2012 

• Focus only on US as similar study had been 
done in Canada (ACPRO Report Enhancing 
Reciprocity ) 

• Later changed to Common Rules Task Force 
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Identify Areas of Agreement 

•	 Identify key elements in ASPPB Model Act and 
Model Regulations 

•	 Compare each jurisdiction’s statues and rules 

•	 Attempts to ensure accuracy 

•	 Calculate percent agreement 

Completing the Assigned Task 

•	 Correspondence only – work  on your own 
approach – very  little progress 

•	 Common Rules Workgroup January, 2014 

Common Rules Workgroup 

•	 Roger Carlson, PhD 
•	 Paul Michael Ramirez, PhD 
•	 Gary Lenkeit, PhD 
•	 Susan Skinner Holt, PhD 
•	 Don Meck, PhD 
•	 Martha Storie, MS 
•	 Carol Webb, PhD 
•	 Don Crowder, PhD (Chair) 
•	 Julie Carper (ASPPB Staff) 
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Areas of Comparison 

• General 

• Education 

• Experience 

• National Examination 

• Optional Examinations 

• Other 

Ensuring Accuracy 

• Initial comparison 
Workgroup reviewer findings 
ASPPB staff findings 
Jurisdictional Handbook 

• Sent to jurisdictions for review 
• Summarize results 
• Report back to membership 

Changes In the Last 50 Years 

1965 

Have Psychology 
Licensing Law 

32 50% 

Exam Mandatory 24 38% 

Doctoral Degree 
Required 

29 45% 

2015 

Have Psychology 
Licensing Law 

64 100% 

Exam Mandatory 63 98% 

Doctoral Degree 
Required 

56 88% 
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Common Rules Findings 

• US Jurisdictions only 

• 52 jurisdictions 
Includes DC and Virgin Islands 

Does not include Puerto Rico and Guam 

• Plan to collect similar data for Canada 

• Still would like your input to verify accuracy 

Education 
Doctoral degree required 50 91% 

Regional accreditation required 43 83% 

One year continuous residency 39 75% 

APA accreditation required 15 29% 

APA internship required 0 100%* 

Accept APA/CPA/JD without additional coursework 
requirements 

46 88% 

Have additional coursework requirements for non 
APA/CPA/JD 

31 60% 

Supervised Experience 

Two years supervised experience 47 90% 

One year must be internship 33 63% 

One year must be postdoc 37 71% 
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Supervised Experience – Total  Hours 
Average = 3261 

<2500 2500 3500 >3500 Not specified 

Jurisdictions 2  26  12  12  

0 

5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

30 

General/Other 

Criminal background check 15 29% 

License by endorsement 40 77% 

Generic license 44 85% 

Restrict license to HSPs 7 13% 

Allow licensure of non HSPs 42 81% 

Exempt non HSPs from licensure 8 15% 

Temporary Practice 

Exemption for short term practice 29 56% 

Less than 30 days 13 45% 

30‐90 days 10 34% 

Other (30/2yr, 120/6 m, unlimited, not 
specified) 

6 21% 
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Temporary Practice Variability 
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• Stephen T. DeMers, Carol Webb, and 
Jacqueline B. Horn. Psychology Licensure and 
Credentialing in the United States and Canada. 
In Kaslow and Johnson. The Oxford Handbook 
of Education and Training in Professional 
Psychology. March, 2014. 
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Psychology Licensure 
Universal Application 

(PLUS) 

Update 

October, 2015 

What is the PLUS? 

• The Psychology Licensure Universal 
System, or “PLUS” is an online 
application and credentials banking 
system designed to allow individuals to 
apply for licensure, certification, or 
registration in any state, province, or 
territory in the United States or Canada 
participating in the PLUS program. 

How did we get here? 

• 2008 Polled Delegates at ASPPB Meeting 

• 2009 – Development  of prototype (paper) 

• 2009 Expanded Task force with representation 
from multiple ASPPB jurisdictions for input 

• 2010 – First  pilot PLUS jurisdiction 

• 2011 – Development  of On line application 

• 2012 – Grant  received 

• 2015 approximately 1/3 participation in PLUS 
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What makes up a PLUS record? 

• A completed PLUS application packet contains: 

o Demographics 

o Supervision History 

o Practicum 

o Internship 

o Post doctoral 

o Exam Information 

o Work History 

o All Supporting Documents required by licensing board 

Two “Working” Phases 

• Implementation Phase (3 months or 50 applicants) 

Pilot period – Fine  tuning of application for jurisdiction 

No fee assessed to applicant 

• Operational Phase ($200 fee to applicant) 

One time fee 

Fee covers all ASPPB Credentials (CPQ, IPC, Credentials 
Bank, etc…No additional application fees) 

Free for students to open Credentials Bank 

• Orientation Phase 

Preparing for Implementation Phase 

Addressing jurisdictional matters 

Rule change if necessary 

Training/Webinars 
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Board expresses interest in PLUS 

Board Visit 

Orientation 

Implementation 

Operational 

Why consider the PLUS? 

• All information is primary source verified 

• Once all information is gathered and primary source 
verified, a complete electronic packet of information 
will be sent directly to the licensing board. 

• All application inquiries handled by ASPPB dedicated 
staff for each jurisdiction 

Why consider PLUS? 
• Assists regulatory boards with evaluation of
credentials and eligibility for licensure 

• Enhances accuracy and validity of credentials
(primary source verification) 

• No need to develop and pay for maintenance
of an on line application 

• Creates an electronic folder for each applicant
which can be transferred to your database, or
printed in paper form – can  be reviewed on
line or paper 

• Facilitates mobility of psychologists across PLUS
jurisdictions 
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PLUS: Current Status 

• 17 states or provinces are currently 
utilizing the PLUS for licensure application, 
or are in the orientation phase: 

10 states, 1 province are operational 

• Mandatory in 6 states 

• Optional in others 

5 states, 1 province are pending (orientation) 

6 additional board visits completed 

2 more have requested board visit 

• Operational 

Nevada 

Oklahoma 

North Dakota 

Mississippi 

Georgia 

New Mexico 

New Hampshire 

Texas 

Manitoba 

Ohio 

Louisiana 

• Pending 

Arizona 

North Carolina 

Oregon 

Washington 

Idaho 

Ontario 
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For Licensing Boards 

•	 If your jurisdiction is considering 
developing an online application, 
and interested in the PLUS, please 
contact 

•	 Janet Orwig: jorwig@asppb.org 

•	 Joe Rallo: drjoerallo@gmail.com 
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ASPPB Initiatives to Address 
Regulatory Challenges 

Practitioner Data Base 

Sharon Lightfoot, PhD 

Why is Workforce Data Important? 

• The mission of ASSPB includes assisting and 
enhancing member boards in meeting their goal 
of public protection and to be the resource for 
the most current and accurate information about 
the regulation of psychologists. 

• Understanding what licensed psychologists are 
doing and where they are practicing is part of the 
“current and accurate information” that is 
necessary for public protection 

Why is Workforce Data Important? 

Education of competent psychologists. 
• The internship match imbalance continues to 
be a major concern. 

• Lack of funding of programs is often cited as a 
significant barrier to increasing the number of 
internships available. 

• Advocacy to increase funding is in need of 
good workforce data to use when approaching 
funding sources. 

1 
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Why is Workforce Data Important? 

Example of EdGRO Advocacy Programs 

• Garrett Lee Smith Reauthorization of 2015 
• Supports youth suicide prevention grants in States, Tribes

or Tribal organizations, and institutions of higher education 
• Graduate Psychology Education (GPE) program. This would 

support more than 45 new GPE grants and would enable
the Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA)
to build on recent efforts to expand training to increase
mental and behavioral health services for underserved 
populations, with a special emphasis on returning service
members, veterans and their families. 

Why is Workforce Data Important? 

• Professional Psychology in Health Care 
Services: A Blueprint for Education and 
Training (HSPEC, September 2013) addresses 
the need for psychology to develop a 
mechanism to ensure that psychology as a 
health profession meets societal needs. 
Workforce data is critical in this regard. 

Why is Workforce Data Important? 

Understanding the current trends in psychology. 
• In order for regulatory boards to be responsive to the 
public they must understand what psychologists are 
actually doing and where they are providing services. 

• Telepsychology began to be developed and used in 
organizations (the VA) and states (New Mexico) that 
had diverse communities that were spread out across 
the world or with few and geographically distant 
population centers; these states and organizations did 
not have enough psychologists located in key parts of 
the state/world to meet the needs of the community. 
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Playing with Numbers 

June 2014 APA Monitor 
• Estimate 106,500 US licensed psychologists. (ASPPB surveyed

122,861) 
• Highest numbers include California (17,890), New York (12,020)

and Pennsylvania (5,620) 
• While states with the fewest numbers include Wyoming (170),

South Dakota (190), and Alaska (190) 
• Average ratio of 33.9 psychologists per 100,000 
• Highest ratio DC (173.3) and Vermont (100.5) 
• Lowest ratio Mississippi (11.9) and South Carolina (13.0) 
• California has 35 to 50 psychologists per 100,000 folks. 
• CA has highest # of psychologists but similar ratio to WA, MN, IL

and VT. 
• What drove the difference in accreditation processes in California? 

ASPPB Efforts 

• Grant from HRSA for a Minimum Data Set. 

• Developed a survey. 

• 122,861 surveys were distributed. 

• As of May 2015, only 8,883 have been 
returned. 

• Response rate of 7%. 

More current data may be available at the time 
of the Annual Meeting. 

Workforce Analysis Project 

• Compiled a list of renewal formats by state 

• Critical information in thinking through how to 
approach states for assistance with data 
collection. 

• In the process of manually entering data from 
hard copy/paper surveys that have been 
returned (3219 of 5220). 
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Task Force on Collection of Workforce Data Set 
for Psychology 

•	 A task force is required to develop a strategy to 
increase the overall response rate and collect 
meaningful data about the psychology work 
force. 

•	 Areas to explore include increased participation 
by member boards in administering the survey to 
their constituents, perhaps during licensure 
renewal periods, and collaboration with state 
agencies that are currently collecting work force 
data. 

Task Force on Collection of Workforce 
Data Set for Psychology 

•	 Short term goal is to develop strategies to 
improve the overall response rate in the 
collection of a minimum data set of the 
psychology workforce. 

•	 The long term deliverable is to have processes 
in place that provide on going and up to date 
workforce data for psychologists. 

•	 Initially targeted some states for a more 
complete census of their licensees. 

Task Force on Collection of Workforce
 
Data Set for Psychology
 

•	 Sharon Lightfoot, PhD Chair 

•	 Steve DeMers, PhD 

•	 Pamela Groose, Executive Director (Missouri) 

•	 Taja Slaughter, MPA 

•	 Alan Slusky, PhD 

•	 Herb Stewart, PhD 
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WE WANT YOU! 
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Supervision Guidelines 

Carol Webb, PhD ABPP 

COO ASPPB 

2015 Annual Meeting 

Tempe, AZ 

2015 Supervision Guidelines 

• Updated Supervision Guidelines for Education 
and Training leading to Licensure as a Health 
Service Provider approved by ASPPB Board of 
Directors August 2015. 

• Available at 
http://www.asppb.net/?page=Guidelines 

Supervision Guidelines ‐ History 

• 1. Original 1998 
• 2. Revised 2003 
• 3. Task Force appointed 2010 
• 4. Several meetings; larger workgroup 
meeting 2012 

• 5. 2013 Final draft report 
• 6. BOD editing 
• 7. 2014 Public Comment period 

1 
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1998 Guidelines 

• Task Force Members 
Asher Pacht, PhD Chair and staff 

Barbara Leffler, PhD 

Rodney McLaughlin, EdD 

Barbara Van Horne, PhD 

Provided guidelines for supervision of 1. doctoral 
level candidates for Licensure, 2. credentialed non 
doctoral personnel, 3. uncredentialed personnel 

2003 Revision 

• Task Force Members: 
Mardi Allen, PhD chair 
Joseph French, PhD 
Martin Greenberg, PhD 
Terez Retfalvi, PhD 
Arlene Schaefer, PhD 
Asher Pacht, PhD staff 

Added section on Exceptions for Academic and Non 
Health Service Providers 

Progress in the Field 

• Since 2003, more interest and work in field 
around supervision 

Focus on competencies 
Focus on competence in supervision, as well as in 
practice area 
Less focus on hours 
Need for Supervision contract 
Ethical advances 
Technology 
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2015 Supervision guidelines 

• Task Force Members: 
Jack Shaffer, PhD Chair 
Carol Falender, PhD 
Steve Lewis, PsyD 
Rick Morris, PhD 
Emil Rodolfa, PhD 
Steve DeMers, PhD 
Janet Orwig, MBA staff 

BOD SubCommittee: Carol Webb, PhD, Alex Siegel, Janet Orwig, MBA 

Changes in Guidelines 

• Additions: 
Guidelines for Practicum Training, in addition to 
Internship and Postdoctoral Training 

Telepsychology Supervision and Practice 

Focus on Supervision Competencies 

Recommendation for supervisors to have courses, 
supervision of supervision, continuing education 

Changes in Guidelines 

• Additions (cont): 
Detailed supervision contract expectations 

Sample contract 

• Deletions: 
Licensed for 3 years 
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Realms of Supervision 

•	 Education and Training for Health Service 
Providers 

•	 Licensed psychologist under discipline 

•	 Licensed non doctoral practitioners (masters) 

•	 Non licensed employees (e.g. psychometrists) 

•	 Education and Training for General Applied 
Psychologists 

Future Steps 

•	 Now working on Supervision Guidelines for 
Psychologists involved in regulatory/discipline 
issues. (Martha Storie is helping us on this 
one) 

•	 General discussion of issues 
Confidentiality 
Boundaries 
Supervisory Goals 
Challenges for Supervisors 

Future Steps 

•	 Guidelines for Boards 
Sample contracts 

Process and Procedures 

Please send us any materials you use that you feel 
would be helpful 
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Other Realms 

•	 Will be working on the other realms over the 
next period of time. 

•	 General Applied 

•	 Other licensed practitioners 

•	 Uncredentialed practitioners 

•	 Would also welcome input into any of these 
areas 

Thanks for listening 

•	 Please feel free to contact any of us 
Carol Webb, PhD cwebb@asppb.org 

Alex Siegel, PhD asiegel@asppb.org 

Janet Orwig, MBA jorwig@asppb.org 

Martha Storie mnstorie@gmail.com 
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ASPPB Initiatives to Address 
Regulatory Challenges: 
Competency Assessment 

Jacqueline Horn, PhD 

Director of Regulatory Affairs 

Some Assessment History 

• 1961 ‐ ASPPB founded as the American 
Association of State Psychology Boards 
(AASPB) 

• 1965 – first  EPPP administered 

• mid 1980’s – almost  all jurisdictions in U.S. 
and Canada had adopted the EPPP as the 
entry level exam for licensure 

Measuring Competence Then 

• Accreditation 

• Coursework 

• EPPP 
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ASPPB Competency Assessment 
Task Force (CATF) 

• “Culture of Competence” 

• 2009 – ASPPB began exploration of 
knowledge/skills needed for competent 
practice of psychology 

• Practice Analysis Task Force identified 
six competency domains (clusters) 

PATF Competency Clusters 

• Scientific knowledge 

• Evidence-based decision making/critical 
reasoning 

• Cultural and interpersonal competence 

• Professionalism/ethics 

• Assessment 

• Intervention/supervision/consultation 

CATF Charges 

• Describe what is known about 
competencies 

• Define competencies for professional 
practice in psychology 

• Examine and make recommendations for 
competency assessment 
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ASPPB Competencies Expected of 
Psychologists at the Point of Licensure 

• Scientific orientation 

• Professional practice 

• Relational competence 

• Professionalism 

• Ethical practice 

• Systems thinking 

Measuring Competence Now 

• Accreditation 

• Supervisor Ratings 

• EPPP 2 (?) 

ASPPB Committee on Competency 
Assessment (CCA) 

• EPPP assesses what candidate “knows” 

• Need to assess “knows how” 

- Questionnaire to jurisdictions (please complete) 

- EPPP-2 

• Need to assess “shows how” 

- EPPP-2 

- Supervisor ratings 
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EPPP-2 
•	 HUGE 

UNDERTAKING 
•	 New Practice 

Analysis 

•	 Validate competency 
clusters 

•	 Determine how best 
to assess 

•	 Develop test 

•	 Beta testing 

•	 EPPP-2 ready for use 

Let us know. 

The ASPPB Board of Directors will be 
looking at the feasibility of creating and 
offering an EPPP-2 early next year. 

Thank you. 
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Report of the Board Administrators and Registrars Committee (BARC)
 
ASPPB Annual Meeting – October 2015, Phoenix, AZ
 

I am pleased to be providing my first annual report on the activities of BARC for 2014 – 15. BARC is
 
comprised of state and provincial regulatory body executive directors and/or registrars, and meets for 

one full day prior to both the Annual and Midyear meetings of ASPPB. All ASPPB jurisdictions are invited
 
to send a representative to these meetings. The purpose of this committee is to provide a venue for
 
administrators to share common concerns and practices, to engage in productive dialogue on issues of
 
mutual concern, and bring these issues to the ASPPB BOD for review. While I have chaired these two
 
meetings, the lion’s share of the work is done by those in attendance, those gracious enough to
 
volunteer their time to provide educational presentations to the committee, and Ms. Janet Orwig, our
 
ASPPB staff representative. Over the past year BARC has met twice, on October 22, 2014 in Rancho
 
Mirage California, and April 16, 2015 in Atlanta, Georgia.
 

The October 22, 2014 meeting in Rancho Mirage California set an attendance record with 23
 
jurisdictions in attendance. At this meeting, Dr. Alex Siegel (ASPPB Director of Professional Affairs) 

presented on a new board member training initiative and noted that several jurisdictions have taken
 
advantage of this opportunity to have Dr. Siegel travel to their jurisdiction, to provide training to new
 
board members. During the educational session portion of the meeting, Ms. Morgan Alldredge (NV) and
 
I presented a database system currently in use in our jurisdiction (and several others) leading to a full 

discussion of the challenges that many jurisdictions have in automating their databases and
 
registration/renewal systems. Further discussion was held around the logistics involved in converting 

registrant files into electronic/digital format, and processes undertaken by different jurisdictions to
 
address the aging demographics of our practitioners (i.e. Professional Wills). After hearing from Ms. Amy
 
Hilson and Dr. Matt Turner, who provided an update on the new EPPP exam vendor (Pearson), the 

afternoon brought a jurisdictional roundtable where those in attendance shared regulatory and
 
legislative developments (and challenges) in their respective states/provinces.
 

On April 16, 2015, 19 jurisdictions met in Atlanta where the educational focus this time was on
 
information sharing between regulatory boards and the general public. In particular, a move towards
 
increased transparency was discussed, along with the consequences of this for our work. Examples of 

the challenges that this level of transparency poses to regulators included requests to provide
 
information contained in complaint files, whether or not to release registrant email addresses to the
 
public, and how to navigate requests for information from legislators. Other topics covered included
 
how and when to call public versus private meetings, the role of lobbyists in regulation, and the
 
processes being used for evaluating board employees. After this educational session, Ms. Hilson and Dr.
 
Turner again joined our meeting to provide an update on the rollout of the new exam vendor, the 

process for score reporting, and to assist those in attendance in better understanding the process for
 
requesting accommodations for their EPPP applicants. After lunch, a lively jurisdictional roundtable was
 
again held, where those in attendance had an opportunity to share developments in their respective
 
jurisdictions.
 

Once again, my deepest appreciation goes out to all those who attend our meetings, and to ASPPB staff 

for their ongoing support and contributions to our efforts.
 

Respectfully submitted, 


Alan Slusky, Ph.D., C. Psych.
 
Chair, Board Administrators and Registrars Committee
 



  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  

     
     

           
        

  
       

    

 

   
  

     
   

    
   

 
  

  
   

 

 
 

Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards 
2015 Annual Meeting of Delegates 

Report of the Behavior Analysis Task Force 
Don Crowder, PhD, Chair 

The Behavior Analysis Task Force was formed in 2012 by the ASPPB Board of Directors with 

the charge of making recommendations to the Board of Directors as to ways in which ASPPB
 
might best serve its member jurisdictions in helping them to deal with the rapidly developing and 

changing area of behavior analysis.
 

The members of the Behavior Analysis Task Force are:
 

Don Crowder, PhD, Chair ASPPB President-Elect
 
Cindy Olvey, PsyD (AZ)
 
Ron Ross, PhD (OH)
 
Alan Slusky, PhD (MB)
 
Kevin Arnold, PhD (OH)
 
Steve DeMers EdD ASPPB Executive Officer
 
Janet Pippin Orwig, MBA ASPPB Associate Executive Officer of Member Services
 

In order to meet the charge of the ASPPB Board of Directors, the BA Task Force focused on the 

following:
 

•	 Developing a section on the members only portion of the ASPPB website devoted to 
behavior analysis and including 

o	 Updates on what other jurisdictions are doing or have done 
o	 References to Psychology Board Regulations/Statues regarding behavior analysis 

•	 Developing an informational paper on behavior analysis and making that available on 
that section of the website 

The BA Task Force first developed the paper Applied Behavior Analysis: Current Issues and 
Guidance for ASPPB Member Jurisdictions which is available on the ASPPB Members Only 
section of the ASPPB website.   

The ASPPB Board of Directors then authorized the BA Task Force to create an additional 
document for the consumer of behavior analysis services.  During the past two years, the Task 
Force worked on drafting and revising this document.  The final documents “Guidelines for 
Consumers When Considering Applied Behavior Analysis (ABA) Services” (web version) and 
“A Parents Guide to Applied Behavior Analysis (ABA)” (printable brochure) were submitted to 
and approved by the ASPPB Board of Directors and are now available on the ASPPB website. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Don Crowder, PhD 
Chair, Behavior Analysis Task Force 



  
 

   
       

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
  

    
 

  

 

    
       

       
 

  

 

       
        

 

     
      

To:  ASPPB Membership 
From: Emil Rodolfa, Ph.D., Chair, Committee on Competency Assessment 
Re:  Report of the CCA to the BOD 
Date: September 10, 2015 

Membership 

Committee Members: 
• Emil Rodolfa, Ph.D.	 Chair 
• Don Meck	 BOD Exam Track Member 
• Bob Bohanske	 Delegate Member
• Jacqueline Horn	 Delegate Member
• Karen Messer-Engel	 Delegate Member 

Staff
• Carol Webb, PhD, ABPP		 Chief Operating Officer
•		 Amy Hilson, BA, CAE Associate Executive Officer for
 

Exams and Governance
 

• Matthew Turner, PhD		 Director of Exam Services 
• Lisa McDowell		 Exec Asst to CEO & COO 

Overview 

The Committee on Competency Assessment (CCA) has been appointed by the ASPPB
Board of Directors (BOD) to execute the following charges: 

1. Work to acquire all information for the Board of Directors to decide whether 
to develop an EPPP2. 

2. Develop a plan of action for item development and test development for a
competency – based exam for entry---level licensure/regulation. 

3. Provide estimates of financial and human resource needs for the development
of EPPP2 over the next 3---5 years. 

4. Develop an implementation strategy for a new exam to include work with 
licensing boards and other stakeholders leading toward acceptance and
utilization of a competency exam for entry---level licensees/registrants. 

5. Develop a plan for the committee structure needed to support the new exam, 
including how it will fit into the Examination Program structure. 



 
 

  
         

   
 
 

 
 

        
  
       
 
        
 

       
 

 
     

  
 

    
    

           
    

 
         
         
           

        
        

 
          

         
          

  
 

 
 

  

           

 
  

 

CCA Meetings 

The CCA has met once at the ASPPB office and has met monthly by video-conference 
call. The CCA will meet one additional time with Pearson Staff in Minnesota and then by 
video-conference monthly throughout the rest of the year. 

CCA Activities 

The CCA has developed three workgroups to accomplish its charges: 

1 Exam Development: This workgroup works on charges 1, 3, and 5. 

2. Item Development: This workgroup works on charges 2, 3, and 5 

3. ASPPB Member Board and Stakeholder Information: This workgroup 
works on charges 3 and 4. 

The workgroups have regular video conference calls and report back to the CCA
regarding their activities and recommendations on a monthly basis. 

The CCA conducted a brief survey of the ASPPB member boards’ interest in a skill-based 
examination and their interest in other applications of this examination.  Members of 
boards are continuing to return this survey and data is being collected and will be 
discussed at the next CCA meeting. 

The CCA met with representatives from Pearson via two Conference Calls and will meet 
with Pearson at the upcoming CCA meeting. There are two specific goals in meeting
with the staff from Pearson: 1) to understand the process of examination development, 
and 2) to understand how the item development process for a skills examination will be 
similar to or different from a knowledge based examination. 

The CCA has reviewed a variety of competency assessment methodologies and focused 
on innovative item types for a computer based examination as well as encouraging 
competency based supervisor feedback to boards starting with the ASPPB PLUS system 
forms. 

Next Steps 

The CCA will develop a report needed by the ASPPB Board of Directors to make an 
informed decision about the development of a skills examination as a second part of the 
EPPP. Specifically the CCA report to the ASPPB Board of Directors will provide
information about a plan of action for development of the EPPP-2, the committee 
structure for the development of items for the EPPP-2, and information about the
resources needed to develop the EPPP-2. 



   
  

  

    
     

  

  

   

   

  

 

      

  

  
      

  
  

 

  
  

 

     

     

    
   

   

      
 

Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards October 2015 
Annual Meeting of Delegates 

Report of the Committee on Disciplinary Issues 

The Committee on Disciplinary Issues (CODI) is comprised of the following members: Karen Messer-
Engel (SK) (Co-Chair), Taja Slaughter (ASPPB) (Co-Chair), Morgan Alldredge (NV), Angelina Barnes (MN), 
Teanne Rose (OK), Kelly Parker (LA), and Veronica Zambuto (Staff). 

The Committee is charged with the following responsibilities: 

1.	 To complete the development of the Disciplinary Data System (DDS) Policies and Procedures 
Manual. 

2.	 To recommend changes to the Policies and Procedures Manual governing DDS when needed. 
3.	 To promote consistency across jurisdictions in how discipline is resolved and reported. 
4.	 To advise staff about handling any unusual DDS requests or submissions (i.e., a request to 

expunge a prior action). 
5.	 Establish criteria regarding requests for Amicus Briefs. 

CODI has not met in 2015. The last CODI meeting was held on October 10-11, 2014. 

At that meeting, the Committee discussed the following: 

1.	 The charges of the Committee 
2.	 Criteria for Amicus Briefs and who should manage the briefs in the future. 
3.	 Drafting a strategic contact plan to reach out to jurisdictions that don’t currently report. 
4.	 Self-query management options for the Disciplinary Data System 
5.	 Modifications of current reporting/recording process to align with National Practitioner
 

Databank
 
6.	 Creation of disciplinary action reporting feature for Applied Behavior Analysts 

In addition to assisting ASPPB staff with questions/concerns regarding the ASPPB Disciplinary Data 
System and a complete system review, the following issues will be addressed at the next scheduled 
meeting: 

1.	 Discussion of the creation of a service to allow practitioners to self-query the ASPPB Disciplinary 
Data System. 

2.	 Creation of the criteria for a Behavior Analyst (category/section?) within the Disciplinary Data 
System. 

3.	 Development of a strategic plan to contact jurisdictions to gather data on reporting trends. 
4.	 Finalization of disclaimer language to reduce liability for ASPPB in regard to database 

information (i.e. that this database is static and that information, name changes, etc. may not be 
represented). 

5.	 Consideration of drafting a disciplinary matrix to outline general categories of discipline and a 
range of applicable sanctions thereby increasing consistency in jurisdictional reporting. 



 

       
         

Respectfully submitted by, 

Taja Slaughter, MPA Karen Messer-Engel, M.A., R. Psych. 
Director of Member Services/ Co-chair Secretary Treasurer ASPPB BOD / Co-chair 



 

 

  

  

 

 
    

   

  
  

 

 

 

 

  

Report of the Committee to Enhance Technology 

Janet P. Orwig, MBA, Chair 

Charges for the Committee to Enhance Technology are: 

1. Periodically review the ASPPB website for enhancements. 

2. Stay in touch with the Marketplace on new technology. 

3. Make recommendations to the Board to enhance the Association’s services. 

The committee consists of the following members: Janet Orwig (ASPPB) (Chair), Amy Hilson 
(GA), Aaron Harris (KS), Leo Campero (MN), Fred Millán (NY), Matthew Wagner (NS), 
Christine Jehu (TN), Amanda Turlington (WY) and Lisa Russo (ASPPB Staff). 

The Committee met twice by conference call since the filing of the last report. The committee 
had a conference call on September 29, 2014 and the following were discussed: 

1. Review of the new ASPPB Newsletter. 

2. Review and discuss ways to improve the ASPPB association software. 

3. Review the ASPPB website for content and ease of navigation. 

4. Discuss new technological innovations. 

The next call was held on April 7, 2015.  During this call the following were discussed: 

1. Redesign of the ASPPB homepage layout. 

2. Review of the ASPPB Social Media Plan. 

3. Review of the exam vendor change and associated improvements to reporting and 
website layout.  

This committee is being sunsetted in 2016.  Staff will ask for volunteers when new projects are 
identified.  



  
 

   
 

  
  

   

 

 

 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

  
 

Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards 
2015 Annual Meeting of Delegates 

Report of the Common Rules & Standards Tsk Force 
Don Crowder, PhD, Chair 

The Common Rules & Standards Task Force (CRSTF) was established within the ASPPB 
Mobility Committee to investigate the common licensure requirements across the 64 member 
jurisdictions of ASPPB.  The CRSTF was given the following charges: 

1.	 Use ASPPB Model Act and Regulations to determine common licensure requirements 
for all states and territories 

2.	 Use Canadian data already compiled to incorporate in the data gathered from the states 
and territories 

The members of the CRSTF are: 

•	 Don Crowder, PhD, Chair 
•	 Susan Skinner Holt, PhD (AR) 
•	 Roger Carlson, PhD (OR) 
•	 Gary Lenkeit, PhD (NV) 
•	 Paul Ramirez, PhD (NY) 

In order to complete the initial review of each jurisdiction compared to the ASPPB Model 
Act/Regulations, the ASPPB Board of Directors authorized a 2 ½ day meeting in Peachtree City, 
January 24-26, 2014 of an expanded workgroup consisting of the CRSTF members and the 
following additional individuals: 

•	 Martha Storie, BS (NC) 
•	 Carol Webb, PhD (GA) 
•	 Don Meck, PhD (GA) 
•	 Sarah Avery-Leaf, PhD (NH) 

The statues and rules of each US jurisdiction as well as the Virgin Islands and the District of 
Columbia were compared to the ASPPB Model Act/Regulations.  ASPPB staff conducted a 
similar review of each jurisdiction.  These findings were then compared with information 
currently available in the ASPPB Jurisdictional Handbook. Where there was lack of agreement, 
these determinations were then returned to the initial workgroup reviewer for final 
determination. 

The task force then provided this information to each of the jurisdictions for verification and/or 
correction.  Unfortunately, we received very few responses from the jurisdictions.  This was very 
likely due to the fact that we were asking the jurisdictions to verify a large number of items and 
this was very time consuming. 



 
  

 

   
  

 

      
 

       
      

 
     

     
  

  
  

   
   

    
 

   
        
     

    
      

   
 

   
       

  
     

 

       
     

      
  

    

Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards
 
2015 Annual Meeting of Delegates
 

Exam Program Report
 

Exam Vendor Transition 
After 53 years with the same exam vendor, ASPPB decided it was time to investigate what other 
companies could offer in the way of technological advances and program management for 
ASPPB’s Examination Program.  An RFP was issued, and after careful consideration, the Board of 
Directors selected Pearson for candidate management, and Pearson VUE for exam content 
development, item banking and exam delivery.  After a 10-month period of intense preparation 
on the part of ASPPB’s Exam Program staff, the transition became effective on February 1, 
2015. The new systems have brought some changes in processes, resulting in many benefits for 
candidates and jurisdictions, including receipt of scores by candidates immediately upon 
completion of the EPPP, immediate feedback by domain to failed candidates at no cost, and 
weekly score reporting to jurisdictions. ASPPB staff now provides direct assistance to 
candidates through an EPPP Candidate Helpline. 

Committee on Exam Coordination (CEC) 
The CEC serves to coordinate communication between the components of the Exam Program 
(CEC, Item Development Committee, Examination Committee, Committee on Competency 
Assessment, and test contractor); recommends Exam Program policies to the Board of 
Directors; and sets Exam Program priorities. There was one teleconference meeting of the CEC 
in 2015. 

Recommendations made to the Board by the CEC in 2015 were around 1) efforts to prevent 
item bias in the content of the EPPP, 2) how many forms of the English-Spanish translation of 
the EPPP (SEPPP) to make available for use in Puerto Rico, and 3) a recommendation to move 
ahead with a practice analysis to include both the EPPP and a possible future competency/skills 
exam (EPPP-2). The CEC also explored the coordination and impact of the vendor transfer for 
the ExC and IDC. The Exam program is working cohesively and efficiently through the vendor 
transition process. 

Examination Committee (ExC) Summary 
The Examination Committee (ExC) creates and finalizes forms of the EPPP, monitors the status 
of the EPPP item bank, and considers needed changes in exam structure and/or program 
procedures.  The ExC meets twice each year to finalize EPPP forms, and each meeting includes a 
business meeting to discuss Exam Program and EPPP issues. 

The work of the ExC was impacted this year by process changes related to ASPPB’s exam vendor 
transition. The committee identified procedures in need of fine-tuning, including ways to more 
efficiently process and pretest new EPPP items, and to adjust to the electronic review 
procedures implemented by the new exam vendor. The issue of cultural fairness of the 
examination was discussed, resulting in the recommendation that ASPPB employ a panel 



 
 

   
 
 

    
     

   
  

    
     

   

  
     

    
        

   
  

   

  
     

   
  

     
   

  

   
        

   
     

   
    

  
 

  
       
      
     
       
       

Annual Exam Program Report 
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review process to consider perceptions of appropriateness of test items for various 
ethnic/racial groups. In light of the forthcoming revision of the Canadian Psychological 
Association code of ethics, the Committee recommended a review of the changes and their 
implications for item content. 

The transition to Pearson as the new test vendor was greeted positively.  The ExC is optimistic 
about the new review process and quite pleased with the initial transition to Pearson and the 
contributions of the Pearson representative. 

Item Development Committee (IDC) Summary 
This past year has been a relatively quiet one for the IDC, due largely to two factors: the change 
of exam vendor from ProExam to Pearson and the large number of items available for 
pretesting on the EPPP. At present there are over 900 items available for pretesting and, as 400 
items are pretested each year, it was clear that no more new items were required this year. 
Item writers were thanked for their active role in generating items and were informed that that 
no new items would be needed in 2015. 

In the late summer and fall of 2014, IDC members focused on finalizing modifications to any 
items drafted by item writers. Since that time, as indicated above, writers have submitted no 
new items. At the fall 2014 annual meeting of the IDC, members were shown Pearson’s item 
writing portal and discussed which knowledge statements would take priority for new items 
when item writing resumes. Following both the fall 2014 and spring 2015 Examination 
Committee meetings IDC members received feedback about the pretest items reviewed at 
these meetings. 

At the September 2015 bank maintenance meeting the IDC and Examination Committee 
members worked together to review, edit, and, if appropriate, delete items in the pretest bank. 
This served to: (a) refine the pretest items received by the Examination Committee at their next 
two meetings and (b) inform the decision about when to resume item writing. 

Thanks to the Exam Program Volunteers 
Many thanks go to the tireless volunteers and staff who served as part of the ASPPB 
Examination Program in 2015: 

Committee on Exam Coordination (CEC) 
Fred Millán, PhD, ABPP, NCC (NY) CEC Chair 
Barry Edelstein, PhD (WV) Exam Committee Chair 
John Hunsley, PhD, CPsych (ON) Item Development Committee Chair 
Donald S. Meck, PhD, JD (GA) Board Member/Exam Track 
Kelly Parker (LA) Delegate Member 
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Examination Committee (ExC) 
Barry Edelstein, PhD – ExC Chair (WV) 
Deborah L. Bandalos, PhD (VA) 
Mary Haskett, PhD (NC) 
Scott M. Hofer, PhD (BC) 
Paul E. Levy, PhD (OH) 
Colin M. MacLeod, PhD (ON) 
Ian R. Nicholson, PhD, CPsych (ON) 
Donald M. Taylor, PhD (QC) 
Daniel Tranel, PhD (IA) 
Sheila R. Woody, PhD, RPsych (BC) 

Item Development Committee (IDC) 
John Hunsley, PhD, CPsych - IDC Chair (ON) 
Robert D. Jones, PhD, ABPP/ABCN (IA) 
Peter Graf, PhD (BC) 
Richard N. Lalonde, PhD (ON) 
Joan Grusec, PhD (ON) 
Stephen Haynes, PhD (HI) 
Catherine M. Lee, PhD, Psych (ON) 
Kenneth B. Solberg, PhD (MN) 
Gail Bruce-Sanford, PhD (CO) 

Committee on Competency Assessment (CCA) 
Emil R. Rodolfa, PhD - CCA Chair (CA) 
Donald S. Meck, PhD, JD, ABPP (GA) 
Bob Bohanske, PhD (AZ) 
Jacqueline B. Horn, PhD (CA) 
Catherine Yarrow, MBA, PhD, CPsych (ON) 
Karen Messser-Engel, MA, RPsych (SK) 

ASPPB’s Exam Program Staff 
Amy C. Hilson, BA, CAE 
Matt Turner, PhD 
Jacqueline Horn, PhD 
Emelyn East, BS 
Jamie Orgeron, BA 
Leslie Browning, BS 

Associate Executive Officer for Exams & Governance 
Director of Examination Services 
Director of Regulatory Affairs 
EPPP Item Development Program Manager 
Executive Assistant to AEO for Exams & Governance 
Administrative Assistant 



  
 

 

 

   
  

  
   

    

     
  

   

  
  
  

 

  
   

   

 
   

  
  

 

  
 

Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards 
2015 Annual Meeting of Delegates 

Task Force on Licensure of Consulting and 
Industrial/Organizational Psychologists (LCIOP) 

Don Crowder, PhD, Chair 

In June 2013, the ASPPB BOD approved establishing the joint Task Force on Licensure of 
Consulting and Industrial/Organizational Psychologists (LCIOP) with the understanding that this 
would be a cooperative effort of ASPPB, the Society of Consulting Psychology (Division 13), 
the Society of Industrial Organizational Psychology (Division 14), and the Canadian Society of 
Industrial Organizational Psychology (CSIOP). The LCIOP Task Force was approved to become 
effective January 2014. 

The ASPPB BOD approved the following LCIOP Task Force structure. ASPPB positions were 
appointed by the ASPPB BOD while the Division 13, Division 14, and CSIOP positions were 
appointed by those respective divisions: 

• Chair – ASPPB Board of Directors Member - Don Crowder, PhD 
• ASPPB Delegate Member – Psychologist - Dan Schroeder, PhD (WI) 
• ASPPB Delegate Member - Cindy Juntunen, PhD (ND) 
• Division 13 (SCP) Representative - Judy Blanton, PhD 
• Division 14 (SIOP) Representative - Mark Nagy, PhD 
• CSIOP Representative - Blake Jelley, PhD 

The LCIOP Task Force met February 27 – March1, 2015 at the ASPPB Central Office and 
September 11-13, 2015 in New Orleans, Louisiana.  The Task Force also had conference calls in 
February, March, May, and June 2015.  A breakfast meeting at APA was held on August 7, 2015 
and included representatives from Canadian Psychological Association, Division 13, Division 
14, and ASPPB. 

The LCIOP Task Force has the following charges: 

Charge 1: Review and clarify the scope of practice statements of the 64 member 

jurisdictions as they pertain to the inclusion of consulting and I/O psychology
 

Charge 2: Educate the membership of Division 13, Division 14, and CSIOP as well as 
ASPPB member jurisdictions regarding the issues of licensure for consulting and I/O 
psychologists 

Charge 3: Identify barriers to licensure of consulting and I/O psychologists and
 
methods for reducing and eliminating those barriers
 



  
   

  
 

 

 
 

  

    
 

  

 

  

    
    

  
   
    
  
  

   
 

 
 

  

    

  
 

    
  
  
  
  

    
  

Charge 4: Consult with ASPPB Model Act and Regulations Committee (MARC) to 
understand and include the needs of consulting and I/O psychologists 

Charge 5: Consult with ASPPB taskforces (Telepsychology, MOCAL, Supervision 
Guidelines, etc.) to understand and include the needs of consulting and I/O 
psychologists 

Charge 6: Investigate and make recommendations regarding alternatives to APA 
accreditation for educational programs and supervision 

Charge 7: Investigate and make recommendations regarding mobility for consulting 
and I/O psychologists 

Charge 8: Make recommendations for ASPPB member jurisdictions and consulting and 
I/O psychology education programs regarding feasible paths to licensure for consulting 
and I/O psychologists 

What Has Been Accomplished or Is Currently In Progress: 

Charge 1 - Scope of practice and licensure requirements: 

o	 The LCIOP task force has reviewed the work of the ASPPB Common Rules task force in 
an attempt to clarify licensure requirements of the 64 ASPPB member jurisdictions.  

o	 Current data for 52 US jurisdictions suggests the following: 
o	 44 jurisdictions have a generic license 
o	 7 jurisdictions restrict licensure to Health Service Psychologists 
o	 42 jurisdictions allow licensure of non Health Service Psychologists 
o	 8 jurisdictions exempt non Health Service Psychologists from licensure 

o	 The LCIOP task force continues to work on clarifying whether consulting and IO 
psychologists can be licensed, must be licensed, or are exempt from licensure in each of 
the ASPPB member jurisdictions 

Charge 2 – Education: 

o	 Task force members have prepared 5 articles or papers and participated in 7 presentations 
on this issue including presentations at ASPPB Annual and Mid-Year Meetings (2013, 
2014), SCP Midwinter Conference (2014), SIOP Annual Meeting (2014, 2015), CPA 
Annual Convention (2014), and International Congress of Applied Psychology (2014) 

o	 Future article(s) will address issues related to licensure and IO/Consulting psychology 
o	 Does licensure add value 
o	 Removal of barriers to licensure 
o	 Education, training, and supervision 
o	 Programs that offer training that prepares student for licensure 

o	 Future presentations being considered 
o	 CPA 



  
    

   
 

   
  
  
   

 
 

  

  
   

  
  

   
  

  
 

   

  
   

  
   

  
 

  

  
  

   
   

 
  

 
   

   
 

 

 

o	 APA 
o	 ASPPB midyear and or annual meeting 

o	 Develop “Guide for Students Considering Graduate Training in Consulting and IO 
Psychology” 

o Submit to ASPPB BOD for approval and posting on ASPPB website 
o	 Submit to Division 13 for consideration and posting and/or distribution 
o	 Submit to Division 14 for consideration and posting and/or distribution 
o	 Submit to CSIOP for consideration and posting and/or distribution 

Charge 3 - Barriers to licensure: 

o	 The paper by Judy Blanton and Mark Nagy on “Licensing Issues for Consulting and 
Industrial Organizational Psychologists” has been revised to a format more directed at 
Psychology Licensing Boards.  The draft has been reviewed by several licensing board 
staff/members and their comments have been received.  Task force members have 
reviewed those comments, and are making final changes to the paper.  Final revisions, 
review, and approval by the LCIOP task force is anticipated in November/December 
2015. The paper will then be submitted to the ASPPB BOD (January/February, 2016).  
Once approved by the ASPPB BOD, the paper will be posted on the ASPPB Members 
Only website and distributed to ASPPB member jurisdictions. 

o	 The task force is also taking steps to reduce the barriers that are identified by Drs. 
Blanton and Nagy such as educational requirements, supervision requirements, and 
mobility and technology issues. 

o	 There was also positive dialogue with ACPRO regarding the “Position Statement for a 
National Standard For Entry To Practice” and possible ways to deal with educational 
program and supervision requirements that might present unintended barriers to licensure 
for consulting and IO psychologists 

Charge 4 - Consult with ASPPB Model Act and Regulations Committee (MARC): 

o	 The LCIOP task force provided input on the need to recognize the distinction between 
Health Service Psychologists (HSP) and General Applied Psychologists (GAP) 

o	 The LCIOP task force provided input on the need to incorporate supervision requirements 
that permit consulting and I/O psychologists to obtain the required supervision for 
licensure 

o	 Both of these suggestions are currently being reviewed by MARC as they work on 
revisions to the Model Act and Regulations 

o	 The LCIOP task force will also review the ASPPB Code of Conduct and provide
 
comments to MARC as they review and update the current version of the Code
 



  

   
   

 
 

  
 

   
 

   
 

   
   

 
   

   
 

 

     

      
  

 
  

    
 

   
  
  
  
  
   
   
    
   

    
   

 

 
  

     
  

 
 

Charge 5 - Consult with other ASPPB committees and task forces: 

o	 The LCIOP task force provided input on the revision of the ASPPB Supervision 
Guidelines regarding the need for developing methods for consulting and I/O 
psychologists to obtain the necessary supervision. Current supervision guidelines are 
specifically for Health Service Psychologists and there is now a need for developing 
Supervision Guidelines for General Applied Psychologists (to include Consulting and IO 
psychologists). 

o	 The LCIOP task force provided input to the Telepsychology task force on the unique 
needs of consulting and I/O psychology in the area of telepractice 

o	 The LCIOP task force provided input to the ASPPB Mobility Committee on revision of 
their Coursework Guidelines, which are used when reviewing applicants for the CPQ, to 
include equivalent coursework in the areas of consulting and I/O psychology.  A revision 
of the coursework guidelines that contains IO/Consulting psychology equivalent 
competencies and course titles is nearing completion.  Once this had been reviewed and 
approved by the LCIOP task force, it will be forwarded to the ASPPB Mobility and BOD 
for approval and then posted on the ASPPB website. This document can then be used by 
jurisdictions in their review of applicants for licensure in Consulting and IO psychology. 

Charge 6 - Alternative models for program recognition: 

o	 Student Research Assistant Project – The Student Research Assistant Project was jointly 
funded by ASPPB, Division 13, and Division 14.  This project examined over 170 
graduate programs in I/O and consulting psychology to document which competencies 
are required, offered but optional, or not offered. Preliminary results became available in 
September, and further analysis of the findings is currently underway.  Next steps 
include: 

o	 Continued analysis, summary, and interpretation of data 
o	 Verify accuracy with training program directors 
o	 Break out Consulting and IO programs 
o	 Compare to EPPP domains 
o	 Analyze rated importance, percent required, percent optional, percent not offered 
o	 Collapse and compare with CATF entry level competencies 
o	 Share data and consult with SIOP Education and Training Committee 
o	 Share data and consult with SCP Education and Training Committee 
o	 Share data and consult with CSIOP 

o	 LCIOP Competency Project – The task force began by mapping SIOP’s 25 Areas of 
Competence for Doctoral I/O Programs and Division 13’s Competencies for Consulting 
Psychologists and Organizational Consulting Psychologists to the six competency 
clusters identified by ASPPB’s Competency Assessment Task Force (CATF) and the 
three core competencies identified by the International Project on Competence in 
Psychology (IPCP).  Input was then requested from individuals representing the groups 
involved.  This input was reviewed by the LCIOP task force at the September 2015 
meeting and the task force will continue to work on refining model competencies for 
consulting and I/O psychology 



  

  
   

 
 

 
  

 
 

   

   
  

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
  

  
  

 
 

  

  
    

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Charge 7 - Mobility: 

o	 A significant step toward increased mobility was the expansion of PSYPACT to include 
not only telepractice, but also temporary in person practice in jurisdictions who become 
members of the Compact.  Although this is still in the early stages of development, it 
could provide a vehicle for Consulting and I/O psychologists, who are licensed and have 
an E. Passport, to have increased mobility 

o	 The task force will also continue to work with the ASPPB Mobility Committee to explore 
other methods for increased mobility 

Charge 8 - Recommendations to ASPPB and its member jurisdictions: 

o	 The LCIOP task force has recommended that ASPPB continue to work with member 
jurisdictions to clarify whether Consulting and I/O psychologists must be licensed, can be 
licensed, or are exempt from licensure 

o	 The LCIOP task force has recommended that ASPPB continue the position that the 
practice of applied psychology should be licensed.  However, further clarification may be 
necessary in determining the scope of practice of Consulting and I/O psychologists that 
requires licensure. 

o	 The LCIOP task force has recommended that ASPPB continue to work with their 
member jurisdictions, as well as Consulting and I/O psychology educational programs, 
on developing feasible paths to licensure for Consulting and I/O psychologists 

o	 The LCIOP task force has recommended that ASPPB encourage jurisdictions to 

incorporate “grandfathering” language, where possible, when implementing new
 
requirements for licensure of Consulting and I/O psychologists
 

The LCIOP Task Force appreciates the cooperation and support of ASPPB, Division 13, 
Division 14, and CSIOP of the efforts of the Task Force at addressing the issues related to the 
licensing of Consulting and IO psychologists.  While we believe we have made significant 
progress in the first two years of the LCIOP Task Force, we also recognize that there is much 
work to be done in this area and change does not always come quickly.  We understand that this 
issue has been discussed for a number of years.  However, we believe that the opportunity to 
bring about significant change has never been better, and it is important to keep the momentum 
going. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Don Crowder, PhD 
Chair, LCIOP Task Force 



Consulting/IO Doctoral Program Coursework Analysis 

Course 
Biological Bases of Behavior 
Career Development 
Cognitive-Affective 
Consulting/Business Skills 
Consumer Behavior 
Criterion Theory and Development 
Employee Selection 
Ethics 
Health and Stress 
History of Psychology 
Human Performance/Human Factors 
Individual Assessment 
Individual Differences 
Job Analysis 
Job Evaluation and Compensation 
Judgement and Decision Making 
Labor Relations 
Leadership 
Organizational Development 
Organizational Theory 
Performance Appraisal 
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Adam M. Smith 
Saint Cloud State University

LCIOP Taskforce Research Assistant 

LCIOP Competency
Project 

 Read the SIOP competency guidelines for PhD and 
Master s students in I/O Psychology and related areas 

 Each program was evaluated separately through: 
Curriculum Page 
Course Description Lists 
Graduate Handbooks 
Course Catalogs, etc. 

 Each competency was matched with a specific course 
offered by the individual program 
Noted as Required, Optional, or Not Offered 

Method 

 177 Master’s and PhD programs offered in I/O Psychology 
and related areas in North America 

 4 programs were removed: 
 Baruch College, BBA in I/O – This is an undergraduate degree 
Chapman University, M.A. Program n not l sted on school website 
 University of S. M ssissippi, Ph.D. Not listed on school website 
W lliam Carey University, M.S. Not an I/O or related program 

 Total number evaluated: 173 

Method 
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 Some Programs did not list a specific curriculum or course
description 
This issue was most prevalent in programs that teach highly 

individualized curriculum structures. Classes cover different 
content each semester or topics are structured around
student needs/research interests. 

An example of this is Bowling Green State University’s PhD 
Program. Courses have vague descriptions and titles since 
their content varies by semester. Because of this, several 
competencies were “Not Offered because specific details 
could not be confirmed. 

 Other programs did not exist or were not related to I/O or 
Business Psychology (N = 4) 
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Hours : M = 569.77 

Credits : M = 4.83 
Mode(s) = 3 Credits (N 38), 6 Credits (N = 34) 

Internship/Practicum Specifics 

The competencies that were most offered: 

 Research Methods: Optional (N = 6), Required (N  154) 

 Statistical Methods: Optional (N = 4), Required (N  154) 

 Employee Selection: Optional (N = 36), Required (N  114) 

 Leadership: Optional (N = 59), Required (N  83) 

 Performance App. : Optional (N = 50), Required (N  90) 

 Training and Dev. : Optional (N = 49), Required (N  91) 

Synopsis of Results Most Offered 

The competencies that were the least offered: 

Consumer Behav. : Optional (N = 19), Required (N = 2) 

 Labor Relations : Optional (N = 42), Required (N  13) 

 Job Eval. & Comp. : Optional (N = 37), Required (N  20) 

Career Dev. : Optional (N = 25), Required (N  35) 

 Bio Bases of Behav. : Optional (N = 45), Required (N  16) 

 Human Perf/Factors : Optional (N = 37), Required (N  24) 

Synopsis of Results – Least Offered 

13 



 
 

  
 

    
 

     
  

    
   

  
 

   
 

 
    

 
 

    
    

      
   

   
 

    
    

    
  

   
     

    
       

       
     

         
    

    
     

   
        

 
    

   
 
 
 

 
  

 
 

ASPPB Midyear Meeting Committee

Report to the 2015 Annual Meeting of Members


Karen Messer-Engel, M.A., R. Psych., Chair / Secretary Registrar BOD
 

The 2015 Midyear Meeting Committee was delegated the responsibilities by the BOD to: 

1.	 Review evaluations from 2014 Midyear Meeting and follow special instructions based on
 
evaluations.
 

2.	 Assist the Board of Directors in planning and organizing the 2015 Midyear Meeting. 
3.	 After meeting, review attendee comments and make recommendations to the Board of Directors 

for future Midyear meeting. 

The Committee met via teleconference on multiple occasions beginning in the fall of 2014 to plan for the 
2015 Midyear Meeting. 

The Committee is comprised of Don L. Crowder, PhD President-Elect (WI); Fred Millán, PhD, ABPP, NCC , 
Past President (NY); Donald S. Meck, PhD, JD, ABPP, 3rd Year Member-at-Large (GA); Kenneth H. 
Kessler, PhD, Delegate Member (IL); Marsha B. Sauls, PhD, Delegate Member (GA); Randi D. Smith, 
Delegate Member (CO); G. Lane Wagaman, EdD , Delegate Member (NC); and this writer (SK). DeMers, 
EdD., CEO serves as a consultant to the Committee. The Committee is ably staffed and greatly assisted in 
their work by Amy Hilson, B.A., CAE, Associate Executive Officer Exam and Governance; Janet Orwig, 
Associate Executive Officer, Member Services; Alex Siegel, Ph.D, J.D., Director of Professional Affairs; and 
Anita Scott, CMP, CMM, Director of Meetings and Events. 

The 2015 Midyear Meeting was held from April 16-19, 2015 in Atlanta, GA.  The meeting theme was 
“Competency is Not Forever - Maintaining Professional Competence and Avoiding Professional Incapacity”. 
The meeting focused on the regulatory responsibility to address the issue of competency throughout the 
lifespan of professional careers.  An excellent and thought provoking Keynote Address was provided by 
Angela Bates, BSc., LLB, Retirement Homes Regulatory Authority, Ontario, Canada entitled “Competency Is 
Not a Forever Thing – Professional Incapacity in the Regulatory Context.”  Attendees were provided 
information in regard to the identification and management of concerns regarding competency and fitness­
to-practice in licensees, as well as a California-based program that assists licensees in planning for, and the 
closure of practice.  The take away message for regulators was that we need to look beyond initial 
licensure, and take a proactive approach in addressing competency and fitness-to-practice in our licensees.  
Once again our Director of Meetings and Events did an incredible job of organizing the meeting, and 
planned wonderful social events including a tour of the new ASPPB central office in Tyrone, GA and the 
President’s Dinner at the World of Coke in Atlanta. Feedback from the meeting was positive, and it is 
sincerely hoped that the meeting not only provided valuable assistance to the membership in terms of how 
to identify and address this increasingly prominent issue, but also that it provided an opportunity for 
networking and some downtime. The meeting was well attended with 112 attendees. 

The next Midyear Meeting of the Association will be held from May 4-7 2016, in Anchorage, Alaska. I 
sincerely hope to see you there. 

Respectfully submitted by, 
Karen Messer-Engel, MA, R Psych 
Chair / Secretary-Treasurer BOD 



  
 
 

 
 

   
      

    
  

 
 

 
    

   
 

  

 
 

 

    
   

 

 
  

  
 

 

 
    

   
  

    
  

  
  

  
 

Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards 
Board of Directors Meeting 

October 6-7, 2015 

Report of the Mobility Committee 
Don Crowder, PhD, Chair 

The Mobility Committee met in New Orleans, Louisiana February 20-22, 2015. Committee members included 
Roger Carlson, PhD (OR), Cindy Olvey, PsyD (AZ), Jacques Richard, PhD (NB), Margo Adams Larsen, PhD 
(ND), C. Gerald O’Brien, PhD (MS), Joseph Rallo, Ph.D. Co-Chair (Director of PLUS), and Don Crowder, 
PhD (WI), Co-Chair. Also attending were ASPPB staff: Taja Slaughter, MPA (Member Services Senior 
Coordinator) and John Mickley (Mobility Program Assistant). 

The Mobility Committee also met in ASPPB Central Office September 18-20, 2015. Committee members 
included Roger Carlson, PhD (OR) (teleconference), Cindy Olvey, PsyD (AZ), Jacques Richard, PhD (NB), 
Margo Adams Larsen, PhD  (ND), C. Gerald O’Brien, PhD (MS), Joseph Rallo, Ph.D. Co-Chair (Director of 
PLUS), and Don Crowder, PhD (WI), Co-Chair. Also attending were ASPPB staff: Taja Slaughter, MPA 
(Director of Member Services) and John Mickley (Mobility Program Assistant).  The next meeting will be in 
February 2016, with specific dates to be determined.  

Certificate of Professional Qualification (CPQ) 

The CPQ program began in 1998. Currently 44 jurisdictions accept and 11 recognize the CPQ for a total of 55 
of the 64 jurisdictions in the US and Canada.  There are also currently 2 jurisdictions that are in the process of 
“accepting” the CPQ. 

Interjurisdictional Practice Certificate (IPC) 

The IPC program began in 2007. As of September 16, 2015, there were 6 jurisdictions accepting the IPC. It is 
important to note that the IPC is the mechanism for temporary in-person face-to-face in the PSYPACT. 

Credentials Bank (CB) 

In 2014, the ASPPB Board of Directors approved offering the Credentials Bank free to graduate students and 
postdoctoral trainees and at a reduced rate to early career psychologists.  This has resulted in a significant 
increase in new CB applications, with 1419 CB applications in 2014 compared to 39 in 2013.  There have been 
523 CB applications through August 30, 2015. 

Common Rules and Standards Task Force 

Dr. Crowder provided an update on the Common Rules Task Force.  The task force along with several 
additional recruited members met in Peachtree City, GA in 2014 to review jurisdictional requirements as 
compared to the Model Act and Model Regulations.  These findings were summarized and compared to the 
ASPPB Jurisdictional Handbook as well as staff review.  This information was then returned to the original 
reviewer to resolve discrepancies.  After discrepancies were resolved, the individual findings were forwarded to 
the jurisdictions for review.  Unfortunately, we received very few responses from the jurisdictions.  This was 
very likely due to the fact that we were asking the jurisdictions to verify a large number of items and this was 
very time consuming.  We have since reduced the number of items to what are considered to be “Major 
Categories” and results will be presented at the 2015 ASPPB Annual Meeting.  We will also seek input from the 
jurisdictions at the annual meeting as to the best ways to get jurisdictional verification of our findings to date. 



 

 
    

  
   

  
 

 

   
  

  
   

 

 

    
 

  
   

  
 

    
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Health Service Providers 

The Committee discussed the advantages and disadvantages of having two versions of the CPQ, one for General 
Applied Psychologist (GAP) and one for Health Service Psychologist (HSP). Staff is in the process of 
researching HSP requirements, conducting a comparison of the requirements to become and HSP and the 
requirements to become a GAP, and researching the language regarding Health Service Providers in the 
Affordable Care Act.  The Mobility Committee will then review this information and make a recommendation 
on the issue. 

MOB Policies and Procedures Overview 

The Committee spent much of the last two years reviewing and updating the ASPPB Mobility Program Policies 
and Procedures.  The ASPPB Mobility Program Policies and Procedures were reviewed and revised to include 
the E. Passport and to consolidate previous changes. The ASPPB Mobility Program Policies and Procedures 
were approved by the Mobility Committee to go to the Board of Directors for review and final approval at the 
October, 2015 BOD meeting. 

BOD Recommendations 

1.	 The Mobility Committee recommends that the Board of Directors consider approval of the revised 
ASPPB Mobility Program Policies and Procedures. 

2.	 The Mobility Committee recommends approval of the new fee structure for the Mobility Program. 
3.	 The Mobility Committee recommends the effective date of the revised ASPPB Mobility Program 

Policies and Procedures be immediate with the exception of the implementation of a renewal process 
and fee for the IPC. 

4.	 The Mobility Committee recommends that the implementation of the renewal process for the IPC be 
effective January 1, 2017. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Don Crowder, PhD 
Co-Chair, Mobility Committee 

Joe Rallo, PhD 
Co-Chair, Mobility Committee 



 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Report for ASPPB Model Act and Regulations Committee 

Alex M. Siegel, JD, PhD, Chair 

The ASPPB Model Act and Regulations Committee (MARC) met in Peachtree City, Ga. in May 
2015 to update the existing ASPPB Model Act and ASPPB Model Regulations. MARC is 
focusing on developing language covering prescriptive authority, telepsychological practice and 
behavior analyst within the practice of psychology. 

MARC is also exploring whether is make sense to recommend to the ASPPB BOD to provide 
language within the Model Act to allow for the licensure of general applied psychologist (GAF). 
These GAF psychologists are typically industrial/organizational or consulting psychologists.   
MARC is also updating the Model Regulations to be consistent with the changes in the ASPPB 
Model Act. 

The next meeting of MARC will be in November 2015.  In addition to revising the Model Act 
and Regulation, MARC will look to see if the ASPPB Code of Conduct needs to be updated. The 
last time the ASPPB Code of Conduct was revised was in 2006. 



 
 

  

  
 

 

   
   

 

  
  

 

   
   

  

 

 
    

 
  

 
 

  
    

 

 

 
 

ASPPB Policy and Procedures Committee
 
Report to the 2015 Annual Meeting of Members
 

Karen Messer-Engel, M.A., R. Psych., Chair / Secretary Treasurer BOD
 

The Policy and Procedures Committee of ASPPB is charged with the following
responsibilities: 

1. Keep the ASPPB Policies and Procedures Manual updated on a regular basis 
2. Make recommendations for necessary revisions to the Board of Directors. 

The members of the Committee are Amy Hilson, B.A., CAE, Associate Executive 
Officer Exam and Governance; Janet Orwig, MBA, Associate Executive Officer,
Member Services; and this writer. 

The Policy and Procedures Committee met in-person from March 27-29, 2015 in
Pine Mountain, GA. to review the ASPPB Policy and Procedures (P&P) Manual.  The 
Committee also reviewed the Employee Handbook and the Association’s Bylaws to 
ensure consistency between the documents. Minor revisions were made to the P& P 
Manual to reflect changes in the Association’s organizational structure and in staff 
responsibilities, and to correct formatting and typographical errors. More 
substantive changes were made to the P & P Manual to reflect current practice/
procedures, to increase comprehension of policy expectations, to reflect the 
expansion of the Association’s services and programs, and to address gaps in 
existing policies. Recommendations were made in regard to policy and procedure 
additions such as a policy addressing use of technology and social media, and a 
whistleblower policy. The Employee Handbook was reviewed and revised to update 
language and common definitions (e.g. family, leave), and to address any gaps in 
policy.  The revisions and additions to both the P & P manual and the Employee 
Handbook were recommended to the BOD at their April 2015 meeting in Atlanta, GA
and were approved.  In addition, the Committee recommended a revision to its
charges to allow for the annual in-person review of the P &P Manual and the 
Employee Handbook, and to expand the review of the other Association manuals to
ensure consistency and accuracy. The BOD at their April 2015 meeting, approved
the amendment of the Committee’s charges. 

Respectfully submitted by, 

Karen Messer-Engel, M.A., R. Psych.
Chair / Secretary Treasurer BOD 



  
 

  
 

 

  

  

  

 

 

 

   
  

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards 
2015 Annual Meeting of Delegates 

Report of the Portability Task Force 
Don Crowder, PhD 

The charges of the Portability Task Force are: 

1.	 Create surveys and other assessment mechanisms related to HRSA grant maintenance 
and evaluation 

2.	 Report to BOD data from surveys as evaluation procedures for the grant 

Members of the Portability Task Force are: 

•	 Don Crowder, PhD – Chair (WI) 
•	 Gerald O’Brien, PhD – Member (MS) 
•	 Fred Millan, PhD – Member (NY) 
•	 Sheila Young, PhD – Member (NV) 
•	 Mardi Allen, PhD – Member – (MS) 
•	 Joe Rallo, PhD – ASPPB PLUS Director 
•	 Janet Orwig, MBA – ASPPB Associate Executive Offider, Member Services 
•	 Taja Slaughter, MPA – ASPPB Member Services Senior Coordinator 

The Portability Task Force met at the ASPPB Central Offices May 29-30, 2015.  The following 
topics were covered during that meeting: 

•	 PLUS Survey data review 
•	 PLUS Program Assessment review 

o	 Jurisdictions 
 Operational – 9 jurisdictions (optional in 4) 
 Implementation – 2 jurisdictions 
 In process – 6 jurisdictions 

o	 Application Data (11/3/14-4/24/15) 
 Total New Applications – 91 
 Total licensed – 51 
 Total Board Withdrawals – 6 
 Total Applicant Withdrawals - 9 

•	 MDS update (as of 5/26/15) 
o	 Surveys distributed – 122,861 
o	 Surveys completed – 8883 
o	 Declined/Deceased/Bad Address/Errors – 189 
o	 Response Rate – 7.23% 

•	 E. Passport and PSYPACT discussion 
•	 Review of Grant Report 



  
  

 
  

 
 

 
 
 

 
  

 
 

• Final budget review 
• Future of PLUS discussion 

As the HRSA grant is ending, this was the final meeting of the Portability Task Force. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Don Crowder, PhD 
Chair, Portability Task Force 
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Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards 
2015 Annual Meeting of Delegates 

Report of the ASPPB Liaison to the APA Board of Educational Affairs (BEA) 
Spring Consolidated Meetings 

March 2015 
Sharon Lightfoot, PhD 

The Board of Educational Affairs (BEA) mission and purpose is to recommend
educational policy for APA to its Board of Directors and Council of Representatives,
recommend changes to program and operational priorities which would allow APA
to take a leadership role for the nation in the educational arena, serve consultative 
and advisory roles regarding ongoing planning and operations of the Education 
Directorate, and ensure the importance and commitment to diversity in education 
and training. The current Chair of BEA is Tammie L. Hughes, PhD and the executive 
director is Jaime Diaz-Granados, PhD. BEA concerns are particularly relevant for
ASPPB due to the interplay between training, competency, ethical practice and
public protection. 

Standards of Accreditation: On March 18, 2015, APA, CoA, and BEA announced the 
approval of the Standards of Accreditation (SoA) for Health Service Providers. This is 
the culmination of three years of work by a number of groups and countless
dedicated professionals. ASPPB was pleased to be invited for input and 
collaboration. We very much appreciate CoA’s sensitivity to regulatory issues in the 
Standards, such as the need for eyes on direct supervision for each practicum and
maintenance of a student portfolio. There was also significant overlap in 
competencies between CoA and ASPPB. APPIC has grants available to develop
psychometric assessment of competencies that align with SoA competencies. 

BEA supported the adoption of the Commission on Accreditation Operating 
Procedures (AOP) and recommended approval by the APA Board of Directors.  The 
APA Board of Director’s approved the AOP, and CoA will implement these 
procedures in January 2016 with the adoption of the new Standards of Accreditation. 
The revised AOP includes a change to a 10-year cycle for approval of accreditation 
(versus 7), and the addition of an “intent to apply” and “accredited, on contingency”
status for doctoral programs. These designations could be meaningful for regulatory
boards, and ASPPB commented on the importance of clear definitions for these 
designations. 

The new SoA allow for objectively demonstrated competence in certain areas of
psychology that could fulfill requirements for some graduate coursework in 
accredited programs. This has regulatory implications. The Panel of Precollege and
Undergraduate Education in Psychology began to discuss possible measures of
prerequisite competence. A new work group from members representing graduate 
and undergraduate education was approved. This work group will examine 
unintended consequences of this new pathway to graduate education in psychology. 



    
  

   
 

  
  

 
 

 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
   

 
   

   
 

  
 

  
 

 
  

   
  

 

  
 

   
  

 
 

   
 

     
 

 
 

ASPPB has expressed its concerns about the regulatory challenges that are 
associated with this new pathway as well as their willingness to collaborate with
BEA on how to avoid negative unintended consequences for regulation. 

ASPPB’s Guidelines for Supervision. BEA was generally in support of ASPPB’s 
Guidelines for Supervision with some concerns expressed about the number of 
supervisees allowed.  ASPPB explained that the rational for number of direct 
supervisees (3 supervisees or 3 FTE) included consideration of the supervisee’s
typical caseload (15-20) and what was deemed manageable for a primary
supervisor. BEA also expressed some concern about the direct language used in the 
document. ASPPB explained that regulatory language by necessity is not 
aspirational but instead clear and directive. 

Criteria for Approval of Sponsors of Continuing Education for Psychologists.
BEA approved the revised Standards and Criteria for Approval of Sponsors of 
Continuing Education for Psychologists. 

Internship Imbalance. BEA has continued to respond to the internship imbalance 
in collaboration with other professional groups – Association of Psychology
Postdoctoral and Internship Centers (APPIC), The American Psychological 
Association of Graduate Students (APAGS) and Education Government Relations
Office (EdGRO) - and this collaboration has been productive. The number of
psychology students who matched with internships in Phase I of the Match
sponsored by APPIC has increased for each of the past three years. APPIC reports
that this year 76 percent of all applicants matched compared to 73 percent of
applicants last year. 

BEA continues to stress the importance of workforce data for psychology advocacy
efforts in the political arena.  Current EdGRO activities include the Garrett Lee Smith 
Reauthorization of 2015 (H.R.938: supports youth suicide prevention grants in 
States, Tribes or Tribal organizations, and institutions of higher education) and a 
request for a FY16 $2million dollar increase in funding for the Graduate Psychology
Education (GPE) program. This would support more than 45 new GPE grants and
would enable the Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) to build on 
recent efforts to expand training to increase mental and behavioral health services
for underserved populations, with a special emphasis on returning service 
members, veterans and their families. 

The $3 million stimulus grant from APA to find innovative ways to close the 
internship gap and to increase funded positions appears to have helped.  Another 
initiative involves encouraging training programs and state psychological
associations to advocate for Medicaid reimbursement for intern services. APA and 
APAGS have developed a toolkit for training programs. 

Some key take a ways from all of these efforts include the importance of
collaboration between groups and the development of easily accessible and clear 
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guidance for the community in terms of how to increase funding and meet 
accreditation standards. 

Centralized Application System. Updates on the centralized application system
(CAS) for applying to graduate study in psychology were provided.  The CAS 
eventually will allow for easy transfer of data to the APPIC Application for Psychology 
Internship Programs (AAPI), that in turn will eventually allow for easy transfer of 
data to ASPPB’s Credential Banking and PLUS systems. 

Task Force on the Integration of Science and Practice in Health Service 
Psychology Training. BEA has established and approved a call for nominations to
the Task Force on the Integration of Science and Practice in Health Service 
Psychology Training. The task force is charged with carrying out the 
recommendations outlined by Health Service Psychology Education Collaborative 
(HSPEC) in the document, Professional Psychology in Health Care Services: A
Blueprint for Education and Training (HSPEC, September 2013) regarding the 
integration of science and practice in the implementation of evidenced based
practices by HSPs. 

Training. BEA is working on various programmatic issues for the study of
psychology. They will host a Summit on High School Psychology Education in the 
summer of 2016.  The Committee on Associate and Baccalaureate Education (CABE)
held their inaugural meeting in March 2015 and they will be working closely with
the Precollege and Undergraduate Panel on Education in Psychology and other BEA
liaisons to forward BEA goals in this area. 

The Fall Consolidated Meetings and the Education Leadership Conference for BEA
are scheduled later in October 2015 and so are not included in this agenda book. 
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Report of the ASPPB Liaison to the APA Council of Representatives 

October 2015 

Stephen T. DeMers, Ed.D. 

The Council of Representatives (C/R) is the legislative body within the American Psychological Association 

that has policy making authority for the APA. It is comprised of the elected representatives of each APA 

division and the affiliated state, provincial and territorial psychology associations. The APA Council meets 

twice each year, once in February in Washington, DC and again during the APA Annual Convention in 

August.  ASPPB sends a representative to both meetings of the APA Council to provide a regulatory 

perspective to deliberations that occur at the Council meetings. 

Due to a conflict in my schedule, Dr. Alex Siegel attended the February 2015 meeting of the APA Council in 

Washington, DC. Much of this meeting was focused on APA’s effort at internal reorganization known as the 

Good Governance Project. The APA Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer reported on the real estate holdings 

of APA. The Council also approved changes to the Association Rules which mostly dealt with adding a 

dedicated slot for an early career psychologist on most APA standing boards and committees. 

I attended the August 2014 meeting of the APA Council in Toronto. I was joined by ASPPB President Martha 

Storie and DPA Alex Siegel and several members of the ASPPB Board of Directors at various points in the 

meeting.  This session of APA Council was dominated by Council’s review and discussion of the Hoffman 

Report which investigated allegations of collusion between APA and the U.S. Department of Defense to ensure 

psychologists continued involvement in enhanced interrogation techniques without violating the APA’s ethical 

standards of conduct. Significant portions of the Council meeting where held in executive session due to 

discussion of personnel issues and possible litigation resulting from the report’s findings.  The major outcome 

of Council’s deliberation was passage of a revised resolution prohibiting psychologist’s involvement in 

enhanced interrogation techniques unless guided by international guidelines on torture and human rights.  Also 

Council set in motion a process to review the functioning and procedures of the APA Ethics Office. 

Just before Council adjourned on the last day, it did take up a handful of new business items including a request 

from ASPPB that APA endorse its proposal to regulate interjurisdictional practice of psychology through 

creation of the PSYPACT.  Council overwhelmingly endorsed ASPPB’s PSYPACT proposal.  This 

endorsement from APA will be very helpful when PSYPACT is considered in state legislatures. 



  
 

 

    
  

  

 
 
  

   
  

   
  

 

 

Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards 
2015 Annual Meeting of Delegates 

Liaison to APA Division 13 
Don Crowder, PhD 

During the past year, there has continued to be active interchange between ASPPB and the APA 
Society of Consulting Psychology (Division 13).  In the 2014 ASPPB Game Plan, the ASPPB 
Board of Directors approved changing the liaison to Division 13 from a correspondence only to 
an in person relationship. This change has been very beneficial in expanding the cooperative 
relationship between ASPPB and Division 13. 

The Division 13 representative to ASPPB has been attending ASPPB Annual and Mid Year 
meeting for a number of years. This change allowed the ASPPB liaison to Division 13 to 
participate in the Society of Consulting Psychology Mid Winter Conference. 

Attendance at the Society of Consulting Psychology Mid Winter Conference also allowed for 
greater interaction with the leadership of Division 13 and the development of relationships that 
will promote the efforts of the joint Task Force on Licensure of Consulting and Industrial 
Organizational Psychologists (LCIOP). 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Don Crowder, PhD 
Liaison to APA Division 13 



  
 

 
 

    
  

 
 

 

 
 
    

  

  
 

     
  

  

 

 

Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards 
2015 Annual Meeting of Delegates 

Liaison to APA Division 14 (SIOP) 
Don Crowder, PhD 

During the past year, there has continued to be active interchange between ASPPB and the APA 
Society of Industrial Organizational Psychology (Division 14).  In the 2014 ASPPB Game Plan, 
the ASPPB Board of Directors approved changing the liaison to Division 14 from a 
correspondence only to an in person relationship. This change has been very beneficial in 
expanding the cooperative relationship between ASPPB and Division 14. 

The Division 14 representative to ASPPB has been attending ASPPB Annual and Mid Year 
meeting for a number of years. This change allowed the ASPPB liaison to Division 14 to 
participate in the Society of Industrial Organizational Psychology Annual Conference, including 
participating in the following panel presentation: 

Nagy, Mark; Crowder, Don; and Siegel, Alex.  “Why IO Psychologists Should Be 
Concerned About Telepsychology.” 2015 SIOP Annual Conference, April 23-25, 
Philadelphia, PA. 

Attendance at the Society of Industrial Organizational Psychology Annual Conference also 
allowed for greater interaction with the leadership of Division 14 and the development of 
relationships that will promote the efforts of the joint Task Force on Licensure of Consulting and 
Industrial Organizational Psychologists (LCIOP). 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Don Crowder, PhD 
Liaison to APA Division 14 



 

   

  
  

  

Liaison Report for State Leadership Conference 

Alex M. Siegel, JD, PhD 

I attended the most recent State Leadership Conference (SLC), held in Washington, DC on 
March 14-17, 2015. At SLC, there were presentations on telepsychology, on how state and 
provincial psychological associations and regulatory boards and colleges can work together and 
on legislative and regulatory initiatives affecting the practice of psychology. The next SLC is 
scheduled for February 28 to march 2, 2016. 



 

 

  
  

   
   

 
 

   

  

  
 

 

 

Liaison Report for American Psychological Association Graduate Students 

Alex M. Siegel, JD, PhD 

I am the liaison from ASPPB to the American Psychology Associations Graduate Students 
(APAGS). Over the years, ASPPB has developed a strong working relationship with APAGS. 
Part of my role of liaison is to discussion regulatory and professional  issues with the APAGS 
committee. These include informing APAGS about ASPPB Psychology License Universal 
System (PLUS), mobility and portability of psychological licensure, telepsychological issues, 
including, PSYPACT and other licensing and regulatory issues which might impact on student's 
ability to get licensed in a particular jurisdiction. 

ASPPB working with APAGS, APA Educational Directorate and APA legal to explore how 
students can get reimbursed from Medicaid for the internship and post doc supervised 
experience.  ASPPB has also been part of the APAGS on the road presentations  ( in Los 
Angeles, San Francisco and Atlanta) where we discuss what students need to know about 
licensure and mobility of the licensure. 

The next APAGS meeting is at the APA Consolidation Meetings in Washington, DC on October 
30 to Nov 1, 2015. 



  
  

  
 
 
 

  
 

 
 

   
   

    
     

 
  

  
   

 

 
   

  
   

  
   

  
  

   
  

   
   

 
 

 

Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards 
2015 Annual Meeting of Delegates 

Report of the ASPPB Liaison to Association of Psychology Postdoctoral and 
Internship Centers (APPIC) 

August 2015
Sharon Lightfoot, Ph.D. 

The Association of Psychology Postdoctoral and Internship Centers (APPIC) is
committed to enhancing internship and postdoctoral training in professional
psychology. APPIC accomplishes this mission in a variety of ways including the 
development of minimum standards for internship and post-doctoral programs,
facilitating the development of new programs, and developing processes for a 
quality match program for internship programs. The official journal of APPIC is 
Training and Education in Psychology (TEPP), which is published by APA.
The Executive Director of APPIC is Jeff Baker, Ph.D., ABPP, and the Chair is Jason D.
Williams, Psy.D. The 2016 Chair will be Jennifer Cornish, Ph.D., ABPP. 

APPIC’s Accreditation Readiness Project, in collaboration with the Western 
Interstate Commission on Higher Education (WICHE), aims to move unaccredited
member programs to accreditation. The past year found a 15.8% increase in 
accredited programs (APA and CPA). A total of 64% of applicants matched to an 
accredited position. A summary of APPIC Match statistics may be found on the 
APPIC website at appic.org. 

Only students from accredited programs will be allowed in the match beginning
with the 2017 match cycle for internships starting in 2018. New and developing
programs can have up to two years (after 2016) to submit and receive approval for
a site visit from APA or CPA accreditation. 

APPIC is addressing quality internship and postdoctoral training through the 
Competencies Assessment Project. This project aims to develop tools and identify
best practices to assess competencies in internship and postdoctoral programs. 

APPIC has developed standardized processes for students to track training hours
(MyPsychTrack), to apply for internship (AAPI), and to apply to post-doctoral 
training programs (APPA CAS). The Standardized Reference Form for the AAPI was
developed at the request of the Council of Chairs of Training Councils (CCTC). 

APPIC’s newly formed Scientific Review Committee aims to develop processes and
mechanisms to use AAPI and Match data.  While APPIC has always been attentive to
issues of diversity and multiculturalism, they are furthering their efforts with the 
development of a new Diversity Committee under the leadership of Dr. Mary
Mendoza Newman. 



          
  

APPIC’s Biennial Membership Continuing Education Conference will be held
May 26 - 29, 2016 in New Orleans, Louisiana. 



  
 

 
 
 
 

      
 

 
   

 

  
  

  
    

  
 

 

  
 

  

 

 
 

 
  

 

 

 
  

Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards 
2015 Annual Meeting of Delegates 

Report of the ASPPB Liaison to the APA Board of Professional Affairs (BPA) 
Spring Consolidated Meetings 

March 2015 
Don Crowder PhD 

The Board of Professional Affairs (BPA) has the primary responsibility for recommending and 
monitoring the implementation of APA policy, standards, and guidelines for the profession of 
psychology.  BPA met during the APA Spring Consolidated Meetings March 27-29, 2015 in 
Washington, D.C.  The current Chair of BPA is Patricia Arredondo, EdD. 

Masters Level Issue: 

The masters level issue continues to be a focus of attention for both BPA and BEA.  There 
continues to be a wide range of opinions on the issue.  There was discussion of a need to 
coordinate efforts with CAPP.  BPA was also receptive to and appreciative of input from 
ASPPB. It was agreed that a letter would be drafted to the President of APA requesting 
formation of a group to further investigate this issue and Steve DeMers, EdD was involved in the 
drafting of this letter. 

PSYPACT: 

Drs. DeMers and Siegel provided an excellent presentation on PSYPACT and requested BPA 
endorsement.  Their presentation was favorably received and BPA did agreed to support the 
request for endorsement by APA Council. 

Other Issues: 

While there were a number of issues addressed during the BPA meeting, several of the issues of 
most interest to ASPPB and member jurisdictions include: 

•	 Psychological Assessment Workgroup 
•	 Education and Implementation of ICD 10 (10/1/15 new compliance date set by DHHS) 
•	 Scope of Practice Issues – lack of alignment of recognition process under Commission 

for the Recognition of Specialties and Proficiencies in Professional Psychology 
(CRSPPP) with board certification process through the American Board of Professional 
Psychology (ABPP) 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Don Crowder, PhD 
ASPPB Liaison to BPA 



 

 

   
 

  
  

  
  

    

 

  
   

 
 

 

 
 

 

Liaison Report for Committee for the Advancement of Professional Psychology 

Alex M. Siegel, JD, PhD 

I attended the Committee for the Advancement of Professional Psychology (CAPP) meetings in 
Washington, DC in February and May 2015. 

CAPP was discussing the current and future financial status of the APAPO ( Practice 
Organization).Discussion centered on the different facets of a formative process for the APAPO, 
including the following guiding principles to aid in planning: 1) determine the income needed to 
achieve the APAPO mission; 2) challenge the expense reduction only model; 3) focus both on a 
member and non-member value proposition; 4) multi-discipline, multi-unit solution; 5) test and 
learn from different business cases and develop exit strategies; 6) budget for the current APAPO 
needs and plan for future budget needs; and 7) use the APAPO Strategic Plan to inform a multi­
year financial plan. 

There was also updates on Government Relations and Legal and Regulatory Initiatives. 
Including a discussion on a) repeal of the sustainable growth rate (SGR) provision in the 
Medicare payment formula; b) inclusion of psychologists in the Medicare physician definition 
and Medicare Behavioral Health Information Technology (BHIT); and, c) potential strategies to 
improve payment for psychological services by modification of the Medicare payment formula. 

Most importantly, CAPP overwhelmingly recommended to the APAPO board of directors to 
endorse the Psychology Interjurisdictional Compact (PSYPACT). 

The next meeting for CAPP will be at the end of October as part of the Consolidation Meetings 
in Washington, DC. 



 

 

  

   
  

   

 

Liaison Report for Committee on Early Career Psychologist 

Alex M. Siegel, JD, PhD 

I am the liaison from ASPPB to the Committee on Early Career Psychologist (CECP). Over the 
years, ASPPB has developed a strong working relationship with CECP. Part of my role of liaison 
is to discussion regulatory and professional issues with the CECP. These include informing them 
about ASPPB's Psychology License Universal System (PLUS), mobility and portability of their 
psychology licensure, telepsychological issues, including, PSYPACT and other licensing and 
regulatory issues which might impact on early career psychologist ability to get licensed in a 
particular jurisdiction and be able to move to another jurisdiction.  

The next CECP meeting is at the APA Consolidation Meetings in Washington, DC on October 
30 to Nov 1, 2015. 



     
  

 

 

  
  

  
  

  
   

 
  

 
  

 

    
  

 
  

  
  

     

  
 

Report of the ASPPB Liaison to the Council of Executives in State, Provincial
 
(& Territorial) Psychology Associations (CESPPA)
 

October 2015 

Stephen T. DeMers, Ed.D. 

The Council of Executives in State, Provincial (& Territorial) Psychology Associations 
(CESPPA) is an independent organization supported by the American Psychological 
Association Practice Directorate that is focused on providing a forum for states psychology 
associations to share information and collaborate on projects. CESPPA is comprised of the 
executive directors of the affiliated state, provincial and territorial psychology associations. 
CESPPA typically meets twice each year, once in March in Washington, DC during the APA 
State Leadership Conference and again during the APA Annual Convention in August.   
ASPPB was recently asked to send a representative to both meetings of CESPPA in order to 
provide a regulatory perspective to deliberations that occur at the CESPPA meetings and to 
promote cooperation and information sharing between state and provincial psychology 
organizations and regulatory boards.  

I attended the August 2015 meeting of CESPPA during the APA Convention in Toronto. I was asked to 
present on telepractice and ASPPB’s efforts to develop PSYPACT.  I provided a brief overview of how 
PSYPACT was developed, how it would work and how it would benefit both psychologists and regulators who 
see the benefits of expanded practice opportunities through the use of telecommunications. I shared with the 
group that ASPPB had been working over the past year to develop specific legislative language to authorize 
telepsychology practice. PSYPACT is an interstate compact that maintains state based professional regulation.  
I stressed to the CESPPA members that as ASPPB pursues passage of PSYPACT, it will be extremely helpful 
for CESPPA and ASPPB to work together to get these compacts passed in state legislatures. 

The executive Committee of CESPPA will meet in March, 2016 during the APA State Leadership 
Conference. 



  
    

     
     

 
   

 

     
    

 
  

  

 
    

   
      

  
  

    

  

  
 

    
      

    
    

     
      

 
   

       
      

       
      

    

   

Council on Licensure, Enforcement and Regulation (CLEAR) 
2015 Annual Liaison Report 

Amy Hilson, CAE, Associate Executive 
Officer for Exams and Governance 

ASPPB maintains a membership in the Council on Licensure, Enforcement and Regulation (CLEAR), and 
Amy Hilson, CAE, ASPPB’s Associate Executive Officer for Exams and Governance serves as the liaison 
to CLEAR.  

CLEAR is an international organization that was formed over 30 years ago as a resource for any entity 
or individual involved in the licensure, non-voluntary certification or registration of the hundreds of 
regulated occupations and professions. Since its inception, CLEAR's membership has included 
representatives of all governmental sectors, the private sector, and many others with an interest in this 
field. 

CLEAR promotes regulatory excellence through conferences, educational programs, webinars, 
seminars and symposia. The organization provides networking opportunities, publications, and 
research services for those involved with, or affected by, professional and occupational regulation. As a 
neutral forum to encourage and provide for the sharing of best practices, CLEAR serves and supports 
the international regulatory community and its vital contribution to public protection. CLEAR has 
defined its own educator role as proactively identifying critical issues; providing a dynamic, interactive 
forum for exploration of these issues and collecting and disseminating relevant information on them. 

During the past year CLEAR trained over 1,000 regulatory stakeholders through regional seminars on 
Perspectives on Professional Discipline, Board Member Training, an Executive Leadership Program for 
Regulators, National Certified Investigator and Inspector Training (NCIT) programs, and an Annual 
Educational Conference. 

CLEAR maintains an excellent resource library for its members including: a Toolkit for Regulators that 
includes sample administrative documents from a wide range of agencies to address daily operational 
issues facing regulatory organizations; an online tool for administrators to evaluate the performance of 
a testing company at the conclusion of a contract, periodically within a contract, or during the selection 
process for a new testing company; the CLEAR Exam Review biannual journal; model disciplinary 
sanctions; and more. Major benefits of membership in CLEAR for ASPPB are (1) the ability to network 
with other regulators and regulatory bodies, particularly in the areas of examination services and 
discipline, and (2) the learning opportunities available at CLEAR’s Annual Educational Conference. 

This year CLEAR’s 35th Annual Educational Conference was held September 17-19, 2015 in Boston, 
Massachusetts. Over 600 members of the regulatory community from across North American, Europe, 
Australia and New Zealand participated in the Conference.  The educational conference agenda had 
four tracks: Entry to Practice Issues; Testing and Examination Issues; Administration, Legislation and 
Policy; and, Compliance and Discipline. 

Next year’s Annual CLEAR Conference will be September 15-17, 2016 in Portland, Oregon. 



  
  

 
  

   
  

 
 

 

 
  

  
  

  

     
  

  
   

   
  

  
 

Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards 
2015 Annual Meeting of Delegates 

Report of the ASPPB Liaison to the Council on Accreditation (CoA) 
2015 CoA Policy Meeting 

February 2015 
Sharon Lightfoot, PhD 

The Commission on Accreditation (CoA) is part of APA’s Education Directorate, and is 
recognized by both the U.S. Department of Education (USDE) and the Council of Higher 
Education Accreditation (CHEA) as the national accrediting authority for professional 
psychology.  As such, the CoA accredits doctoral graduate programs in clinical, counseling and 
school psychology; internship programs in professional psychology; and post-doctoral programs 
in professional psychology.  The current chair of CoA is Debora J. Bell, Ph.D. 

ASPPB recognizes that they share areas of mutual concern with CoA and values their liaison 
relationship. In 2013 the ASPPB Board of Directors endorsed “the position that graduation from 
an APA/CPA accredited program should be a minimum requirement for doctoral level licensure 
for health service providers.” 

CoA held its annual policy meeting at the Renaissance Hotel February 12-15, 2015.  The 
meeting included orientation of new Commissioners as well as Implementation Regulation 
Writing Groups and Policy Work Groups for the Standards of Accreditation. ASPPB was invited 
to the CoA policy meeting in order to provide a regulatory perspective to the Commission as 
they developed implementing regulations for the new Standards of Accreditation. Other guests 
were Wallace Dixon and Gary Stoner, outgoing 2014 CoA members. 

The CoA expressed their support and appreciation of the collaboration between ASPPB and CoA 
as both organizations move forward public protection in promoting the competent training and 
professional development of future psychologists. 



  
  

    
 
 

  

 

  
 

      
 

  
  

    
   

 
 

  

 

 
 

 
   

 

 
 
 

  
 

Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards 
2015 Annual Meeting of Delegates 

Report of the ASPPB Liaison to the Council of University Directors of Clinical 
Psychology (CUDCP) 

Midwinter Meeting, January 2015
Stephen T. DeMers, EdD 

CUDCP’s purpose is to “promote the advancement of graduate education in Clinical
Psychology that produces psychologists who are educated and trained to generate 
and integrate scientific and professional knowledge and skills so as to further
psychological science, the professional practice of psychology, and human welfare”
(CUDCP, 1995, p. 1). The current chair of CUDCP the current chair of CUDCP is
Deborah Beidel, PhD. 

CUDCP has an annual Midwinter Meeting, with directors of clinical training and
liaisons in attendance, where topics relevant to clinical training are presented and
discussed. This year’s Midwinter Meeting was held at the Hotel Albuquerque in 
Albuquerque, New Mexico on January 22-24. I attended the CUDCP Mid Winter
meeting only briefly because of a conflict with other training council meetings that 
same week.  I presented a detailed update on the many new programs and services
that ASPPB had to offer graduate students, faculty and early career psychologists.  I 
provided the latest information about the ASPPB Credentials Bank, the switch to a 
new exam vendor for the EPPP and the increasing number of jurisdictions signing
on to PLUS which should streamline psychology licensure and relicensure for future 
generations of psychologists especially those who bank their credentials with
ASPPB. 

I also attended and addressed a group of training directors who were discussing the 
advantages and disadvantages of seeking accreditation from PCSAS either in 
addition to or instead of APA accreditation.  PCSAS is an accreditation service for 
clinical psychology programs emphasizing the preparation of clinical scientists. The
issue of amount and adequacy of supervised experience required by PCSAS
accreditation became an area of discussion.  Representatives from PCSAS have 
approached several state legislatures seeking amendments to the state licensing law
to recognize PCSAS accreditation as equivalent to APA accreditation.  Member 
jurisdictions are advised to review PCSAS accreditation and training standards
carefully to determine if public protection is advanced by recognition of PCSAS
accredited training programs. 



 
  

  
 

  

  

 

   

  

   

  

 

 

  

 

  

  

  

   

  

  

 

 

   

   

    

 

  

Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards 
October 2015 Annual Meeting of Delegates 

Report of the ASPPB Liaison to the Federation of Associations of 
Regulatory Boards 

Stephen T. DeMers, Ed.D. 

The mission of FARB is to provide a forum for the exchange of information between 

individuals, agencies and organizations involved in regulatory law and the licensing of 

professionals across a wide spectrum of professions. The annual FARB forum is an 

opportunity for member associations, individuals, and other organizations that participate in 

FARB to meet and to participate in an interactive seminar. Full members of FARB include 

ASPPB plus the following organizations: 

American Association of State Counseling Boards 

American Association of Veterinary State Boards 

Association of Regulatory Boards of Optometry 

Association of Social Work Boards 

Federation of Chiropractic Licensing Boards 

Federation of State Massage Therapy Boards 

International Conference of Funeral Service Examining Boards 

National Association of Long Term Care Administrator Boards 

National Association of Boards of Pharmacy 

National Association of State Boards of Accountancy 

National Council of Architectural Registration Boards 

National Board for Certification in Occupational Therapy 

National Association of State Contractors Licensing Agencies 

The Federation of State Boards of Physical Therapy and the National Council of State 

Boards of Nursing have withdrawn as full members of FARB but retain an affiliation with the 

organization. Relevant associations of regulatory boards in other professions are also being 

asked to consider becoming governing members of FARB. 



   

    

    

 

   

  

 

    

  

  

   

  

   

   

  

 

 

   

   

   

  

  

  

  

     

 

   

   

2 FARB Liaison Report 2015 

I attended the FARB Board of Director’s Meeting that preceded the FARB Leadership 

Conference in July 2015 in Washington, DC. I was joined by ASPPB President Martha Storie 

and President-Elect Don Crowder plus ASPPB Associate Executive Officer for Member 

Services Janet Pippin Orwig. The FARB Leadership Conference provides a unique 

opportunity for ASPPB to network and consult with the volunteer/elected leaders and senior 

staff officers of organizations similar to ASPPB that operate in other regulated professions 

outside of psychology. Perhaps the main topic of this year’s Leadership Conference was the 

potential negative impact on professional regulation from the recent Supreme Court decision 

in the landmark case involving the North Carolina Dental Board vs. the U.S. Federal Trade 

Commission. Dale Atkinson, Executive Director of FARB, provided a comprehensive 

summary and analysis of the Court’s decision.  The Court ruled in favor of the FTC and issued 

a call for sweeping change in state oversight of professional regulation to restrict regulatory 

actions that are aimed at eliminating competition in the marketplace.  Representatives from 

the various federations and associations that comprise FARB discussed how the facts in the 

case did not seem to fit how most professional regulatory boards are appointed and function. 

FARB members were asked to report any indications of action in local jurisdictions to revise 

or revamp professional regulation based on the Supreme Court’s decision. 

Other topics addressed during the Leadership Conference included strategies to generate new 

programs/services that will be of interest and assistance to FARB member associations and 

individuals involved in professional regulation.  Examples include introduction of 

subscriptions for an expanded version of Dale Atkinson’s Top Regulatory Cases and a series 

of videos about the value of professional regulation to public protection. FARB is also 

working on publishing a video on examination security that can be used by FARB Governing 

Board members and other regulatory agencies. The FARB Attorney Certification Seminar has 

been renamed the FARB Regulatory Law Seminar with the goal of making the content of 

interest to regulatory board members and staff beyond legal counsel. FARB is also sponsoring 

new board member training called Comprehensive Regulatory Training (CRT).  Dale 

Atkinson will conduct many of these training sessions along with other qualified 

faculty/presenters as needed. 



  
 

  
 

  

 
 

  
   

  

 
 

 
    

   

 
 

   
 

 

   
  

 
 

   
 

Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards 
2015 Annual Meeting of Delegates 

Report of the ASPPB Liaison to the National Council of Schools and Programs of 
Professional Psychology (NCSPP) 

NCSPP Mid-Winter Conference, January 2015 
Stephen T. DeMers, Ed.D. 

The National Council of Schools and Programs of Professional Psychology (NCSPP) 
is an organization composed of delegates from programs and schools of professional 
psychology.  Its goal is to advance the development of the “highest quality of graduate 
training in professional psychology.” It attempts to do this by developing standards for 
the education and training of professional psychologists, by providing a forum for 
exchange of information, by fostering research that focuses on the application of 
psychological principles in human welfare, and by providing consultation for, and liaison 
with, individuals and programs involved in the education and training of professional 
psychologists. The current President of NCSPP is Stephanie Woods, PhD. 

The NCSPP 2015 Mid Year Conference was held in San Diego on January 20-23. The 
topic for this year’s Conference was “Positioning Professional Psychology in Today’s 
Healthcare: ”. The goals of the Conference were: 

•	 To understand the impact of the Affordable Care Act on training in professional 
psychology 

•	 To understand where the jobs are and will be for psychology graduates 
•	 To consider what additional competencies may be needed in the new healthcare 

environment 

I attended this Mid Year Conference and gave a luncheon address that outlined the many 
new programs and services that ASPPB had to offer graduate students, faculty and early 
career psychologists.  I provided the latest information about the ASPPB Credentials 
Bank, the switch to a new exam vendor for the EPPP and the increasing number of 
jurisdictions signing on to PLUS which should streamline psychology licensure and 
relicensure for future generations of psychologists especially those who bank their 
credentials with ASPPB. 
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ACCTA Informational Report to ASPPB
 
October 2015
 

Description and Mission 
•	 The Association of Counseling Center Training Agencies (ACCTA) is an organization of 182 

internship programs in college and university counseling centers across the United States 
and in Canada. 

•	 The mission of ACCTA is to promote excellence in doctoral psychology internship training 
within university and college counseling centers. Fundamental to our values is appreciation 
of and support for diversity and the enrichment that an inclusive multicultural community 
brings to the organization and to psychology training generally. 

•	 ACCTA membership has steadily grown to its present level, adding 5-10 new member 
programs annually in recent years. ACCTA has 182 member internship programs. 

•	 ACCTA data points of interest to ASPPB: 
o	 According to the 2015 ACCTA membership survey: 

 73 % of survey participants indicated their programs are APA/CPA accredited 
 92% are APPIC members
 
 on average 3 full time interns per program
 

o	 ACCTA has been supporting members toward accreditation, Health Service Psychology 
updates, and increasing awareness of conscience clause legislation and implications for 
training in psychology. 

o	 ACCTA has been discussing recent events regarding the APA commissioned report on 
recent Ethical breaches, particularly in regard to how exploring such events can support 
training in Ethics and processional behavior. 

o	 Please visit our website for more information:  http://www.accta.net/ 

Recent Activities and Issues of Importance 
•	 The 38th Annual ACCTA Conference was held from October 3 – 7, 2015 at the Brown Hotel in 

Louisville, Kentucky. This year’s theme was Counseling Center Training and Health Service 
Psychology: Preparing the Next Generation of Psychologists. Our keynote speaker was Dr. Emil 
Rodolfa, past president of ASPPB and past president of ACCTA. Dr. Rodolfa’s address was titled, 
Internship Training in Counseling Centers:  It Ain't What It Used To Be, But It Is What It Is! His 
address focused on “pipeline” issues in psychology training and the critical role internship plays. 

•	 Other topics and themes of the conference included: 
o	 Internship selection process including using AAPI Online Data Download, Phase II and 

Post Match. 
o	 Guidance for new training directors 
o	 Supervisor development 
o	 Training director development 
o	 Several sessions relate to Multicultural Issues in Internship Training (e.g. multicultural
 

competence, racial issues in the U.S., religious or spirituality issues, & developing
 
diversity seminar), including addresses by two aspiring Training Directors selected as
 
Diversity Scholars.
 

http://www.accta.net/


   
   

 
 

       
  

   
  

       
    

 
 

  
 

   
    

    
   

 
   

   
   

    
   

    
   
  
   
   
 
    

 
 

 
 

    
 

 
 

 
 
 

o	 Conscience clause laws and its implications on training program 
o	 Providing primary care training to interns at student health centers 

Future Directions 
•	 The 39th Annual ACCTA Conference will be held in Bonita Springs, Florida during the week 

of September 8, 2016.  
•	 ACCTA will continue to support current and incoming members in acquiring and maintaining 

APA accreditation for internship programs.  
•	 ACCTA will continue to support the APA Model Licensure Act and APA’s Resolution on 

Accreditation for Programs that Prepare Psychologists to Provide Health Services. 

The 2014-2015 ACCTA Board 

President Matt Zimmerman, Psy.D., ABPP University of Virginia 
Past-president: Mary Ann Covey, Ph.D., ABPP Texas A & M University 
Secretary: Ellie Hakim, Ph.D. University of Texas at Dallas 
Treasurer: Terri Rhodes, Psy.D. University of North Carolina at Charlotte 

Members:	 Andrew Shea, Ph.D. Indiana University 
Anita-Yvonne Bryant, Ph.D. Duke University 
Brigid Cahill, Ph.D. University of Rochester 
Carmen Cruz, Psy.D. Texas Woman’s University 
Frances Diaz, Ph.D. University of California—Irvine 
A. Glade Ellingson, Ph.D. University of Utah 
Karen P. Lese-Fowler, Ph.D. University of San Diego 
MaryJan Murphy, Ph.D. University of California—Santa Cruz 
Natasha Maynard-Pemba, Ph.D. University of Florida 
Tim Paquette, Ph.D. Northern Illinois University 

Submitted by: 
Bong Joo Hwang, Ph.D. 
ACCTA Member 
Member of Standing Committee on Diversity – Steering Committee 
Training Director 
Arizona State University Counseling Services 

September 18, 2015 



    
  

  
   

  
 

  

  

  
   

   
    

    
  

  

 
  

 

       
  
     

        
   

   
    

  

American Psychological Association Education Directorate
 
Fall 2015 Update
 

Mission: To advance education and training in psychology and the application of psychology to 
education and training. 

The Education Directorate consists of eight program offices: 
• Center for Psychology in Schools and Education (K-12) 
• Education Government Relations Office 
• Office of Executive Director/Administration, Governance and Communications 
• Office of Continuing Education in Psychology 
• Office of CE Sponsor Approval System 
• Office of Graduate and Postgraduate Education and Training 
• Office of Education in Psychology – Pre-college/Undergrad 
• Office of Program Consultation and Accreditation 

EDUCATION OUTREACH INITIATIVES 

•	 Recommendation #5 of the Health Service Psychology Education Collaborative (HSPEC) 
Blueprint is the integration of science and practice requires health service psychologists to 
implement evidence-based procedures, utilize a sophisticated degree of scientific 
mindedness, and do more than “consume” research findings. 

o	 A new taskforce was formed, in June 2015, on the integration of science and 
practice. The Board of Educational Affairs (BEA) Task Force on the Integration of 
Science and Practice in Health Service Psychology Training is working toward the 
development of a working definition of “integration of science and practice” in 
addition to the development of a best practices in the integration of science and 
practice resource. 

•	 The Education Directorate will launch a blog in the near future, featuring coverage of 
current events and resources related to each program office within the directorate. 

EDUCATION ADVOCACY INITIATIVES 

•	 In August 2012, the APA allocated up to $3,000,000 over a period of three years for seed 
funding under a grant application process to increase the number of APA-accredited 
internship programs and positions and to promote quality training for professional 
practice. As of September 2015, a total of 123 programs have received grants; 18 of the 
grant-awarded programs have received APA-accredited status, creating 102 APA-
accredited internship positions. In addition, 31 of the funded programs have submitted 
their application for APA accreditation. The grant program has been extended until 
August 2016. 

•	 In an effort to assist with the development and maintenance of APA-accredited 
internship programs, the APA Education Directorate has produced free webcasts, which 



 
        
   
   
   
    
      
    
    

 

       
 

    
     

   

 

      
    

 

     

 
    

 

  
  

    
 

   
 

    
      

  
  

 
 

 
   

   
   

   
 

     

can be viewed on-demand.  Additional webcast resources are planned to be produced in 
late 2015 and will be available on-demand, as well. Current webcasts include: 

o	 An Overview of Program Data Collection (December 2014) 
o	 Required Program Documents (November 2014) 
o	 Effective Use of Accreditation Consultation for Internship Programs (May 2015) 
o	 Psychology Internship Program Public Materials (May 2015) 
o	 Consortia Series – Considerations for Development (June 2015) 
o	 Consortia Series – Considerations for Accreditation (June 2015) 
o	 Grants and Other Funding Mechanisms for Internships (September 2015) 

•	 A fellow has been hired to work with individuals and representatives of State, Provincial, 
or Territorial Psychological Associations (SPTA’s) to develop and implement strategies to 
advocate for changes to allow psychology internship programs to collect reimbursement 
from Medicaid for psychological services provided by doctoral psychology interns under 
the supervision of a licensed psychologist. 

•	 Staff in the APA Education Directorate and the American Psychological Association of 
Graduate Students (APAGS) have developed an Advocacy Toolkit for Medicaid 
Reimbursement for Psychology Interns’ Services 
(http://www.apa.org/ed/graduate/about/reimbursement/index.aspx). New information 
and additional resources were added to the Advocacy Toolkit in May 2015. 

ENHANCEMENT OF EDUCATION IN PSYCHOLOGY 

•	 The Standards and Criteria for Approval of Sponsors of Continuing Education for 
Psychologists was approved by the APA Council of Representatives in August 2015 and 
will become effective on January 1, 2016. 

QUALITY ASSURANCE IN EDUCATION AND TRAINING 

•	 The Guidelines for Clinical Supervision in Health Service Psychology were approved as 
policy in August 2014 and were published in the American Psychologist in January 2015 
(Vol 70(1), 33-46). The creation of webinars about each of the domains in the 
document is planned for development in the near future. 

EDUCATION RESOURCES 

•	 A statement, developed by the Board of Educational Affairs (BEA)/Board of Professional 
Affairs (BPA) Joint Working Group on Restrictions Affecting Diversity Training in 
Graduate Education, entitled Professional Psychologist Competencies to Serve a Diverse 
Public was approved by BEA and BPA in April 2015 
(http://www.apa.org/ed/graduate/diversity-preparation.aspx?tab=2). This statement 
was not reviewed by the APA’s Council of Representatives and thus is not APA policy. 

http://www.apa.org/ed/graduate/diversity-preparation.aspx?tab=2
http://www.apa.org/ed/graduate/about/reimbursement/index.aspx


            

                      

 
 
 

  
 

   

  

  

  

   

  

  

  

    

 

  

  

 

  

 

 

  

 

  

  

 

    

  

 

   

 

  

  

 

   

American
 
Psychological
 
Association of
 
Graduate
 
Students
 

To: ASPPB 

Date: September 17, 2015 

From: Nabil Hassan El-Ghoroury, PhD, Director, APAGS 

CC: Christine Jehu, PhD, Chair, APAGS 

Re: APAGS Fall 2015 Report to ASPPB 

APAGS appreciates its strong relationship with ASPPB. As you know, APAGS represents over 25,000 

students in psychology. Of these members, approximately 80% are studying areas of psychology in the health 

service professions (including clinical, counseling, school, combined/integrated psychology), based on 

membership reports from March 2014. 

APAGS is very concerned about the internship crisis, and is continuing to work on efforts to reduce the crisis. 

The following key actions have been taken since our last liaison report: 

1.	 Medicaid reimbursement for interns’ services – 

o	 APAGS and the APA Education Directorate have collaborated on a toolkit for members to use to 

advocate for Medicaid reimbursement for interns’ services, which is here: 

http://www.apa.org/ed/graduate/about/reimbursement/index.aspx. The toolkit includes Q&A’s 

and videos from psychologists who have successfully advocated for Medicaid reimbursement 

in their states as well as other relevant information. 
o	 Our collaboration with the APA Board of Educational Affairs and the APAPO helped support an 

18-month law fellow to work full time at APA to address this issue. 

o	 We are developing a survey about trainee mobility, to understand the prevalence of ECPs 

remaining in the same geographic area and/or employment setting where they interned. 

o	 APAGS has presented or worked on presentation materials on Medicaid reimbursement for 

meetings with Division 31 and CESPPA, as well as at State Leadership Conference and 

Education Leadership Conference. APAGS has asked ASPPB to consider having a formal 

dialogue on this issue as there are implications for psychology boards (e.g., problems arise 

when nomenclature for interns differs between Board of Psych. And Medicaid statutes). 

o	 A key role for ASPPB in this process is potentially revising their board regulations/statutes to 

be consistent with state Medicaid rules/regulations to make intern reimbursement possible, 

such as changing the term of psychology doctoral interns to be consistent with Medicaid rules. 

2.	 Internship development – APAGS will send Asst. Director Eddy Ameen to the Association of Counseling 

Center Training Agencies (ACCTA) annual meeting. Eddy attended the Association of Psychology 

Training Clinics (APTC) and served on a panel about the significance of developing accredited internships 

with Jeff Baker and with Karen Fondacaro. We played our student-produced video on the internship crisis 

(http://on.apa.org/internshipcrisis) and the response was very positive (some training clinic directors said 

this was the first time they heard the message about the internship crisis while also feeling personally 

empowered to address it). We hope want to encourage Council of Directors of School Psychology 

Programs (CDSPP) to discuss how to create school psychology internships that could meet APA-

accreditation requirements. 

3.	 Informing HSP students – An article on the APPIC Match was in the April 2015 gradPSYCH Magazine. 

Another article about changes to the Match for students from accredited programs will be mentioned on 

American Psychological Association of Graduate Students 750 First Street, NE Washington, DC 20002 

Phone (202) 336-6014 Fax (202) 336-5694 APAGS@APA.ORG WWW.APA.ORG/APAGS 

mailto:APAGS@APA.ORG
http://www.apa.org/APAGS
http://www.apa.org/ed/graduate/about/reimbursement/index.aspx
http://on.apa.org/internshipcrisis


 

    

     

 

    

   

 

     

  

 

    

 

 

   

  

     

   

 

 

  

  

 

         

 

  

 

  

 

   

 

   

  

 

   

 

  

 

   

 

 

    

  

     

 

      

  

  

  

 

 

  

the cover of this September’s magazine. Our chair wrote a blog post at gradpsychblog.org on the 

internship crisis on Match Day (February 20, 2015). We disseminated two videos by Mitch Prinstein on 

writing essays and interviewing, and one by Greg Keilin about ranking. These videos are hosted at 

http://www.apa.org/apags/resources/internship-webisodes.aspx and have received hundreds of views. 

Also, at Convention this year, we hosted a 2 hour session with Mitch and Greg on applying to internship, a 

meet-and-greet with internship training director, and a conversation hour with the APPIC Chair and ED. 

4.	 Assessing LGBT climate and training opportunities for trainees – Students leaders from the APAGS 

Committee on Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity and APA Division 44 sent a survey to all APPIC-

registered internship and postdoc training directors last month to assess their LGBT climate as well as 

LGBT-specific training opportunities. We intend to publish results so that applicants can find sites that 

best meet their needs. The survey will remain open through mid-August; 140 sites have completed it as of 

8/4/15. 

5.	 Educating prospective doctoral applicants – APAGS continues to provide information to applicants to 

graduate school on how to find a program that best meets their needs. APAGS staff and Education 

Directorate staff member Garth Fowler conducted a webinar with Psi Chi for students applying to graduate 

school that is posted on the APAGS website (www.apa.org/apags/resources). APAGS continues to reach 

out to students at different conferences (Society for Personality and Social Psychology, Midwestern 

Psychological Association, Rocky Mountain Psychological Association) and through periodic APAGS on 

the Road events, including a half-day workshop at the conclusion of the National Multicultural Conference 

and Summit in Atlanta this past January. 

6.	 Advocacy related to student debt – We remain very concerned about the issue of student loans and impact 

of debt on students and ECPs. APAGS staff regularly meet with Education Government Relations Office 

to address issues related to student loans.  APPAGS conducted a study on debt with over 1200 students 

and ECPs in December 2014. Three APAGS leaders and two staff members submitted a manuscript with 

that data in order to educate the training community. Preliminary results indicate that for students who 

have student loans, median debt for graduate school is $110,000; for PhD students it’s $75,000 and for 

PsyD students it is $160,000. All are increases compared to data from the 2009 Doctoral Employment 

Survey, which found median debt for graduate school was $90,000, for PhD students $50,000 and for 

PsyD students $120,000 (Michalski, Kohout, Wicherski, & Hart, 2011). This information is provided in 

an infographic available at www.apa.org/apags/resources/debt.pdf. 

7.	 Exploring leave policies – APAGS started an informal working group with individuals from CECP, CWP, 

CDIP, and Div. 35 to strengthen policies with regard to family, illness, medical, and disability leave and 

accommodations. We intend to bring our recommendations to CoA and APPIC when they are complete. 

8.	 Information made available to intern applicants – APAGS requested in the Fall of 2013 

(www.tinyurl.com/apagscoar1) that CoA help make additional information available to applicants about 

internship sites, similar in spirit to the “C-20” public disclosure data for doctoral programs. APAGS and 

CoA continue to converse about the variables that are important to students, a process that we welcome 

and appreciate. Further, we’d welcome any collaboration with APPIC in this venture as well to ensure that 

there is a right “host home” for each kind of data point that students and other publics may find important. 

9.	 Translational Issues in Psychological Science – APAGS is proud of this first journal of its kind published 

by APA that involves students in reviewing and editorial processes. 2015 is the journal’s inaugural year 

with the first issue on the science of sleep and the second on ways that psychological science can improve 

classrooms. All APAGS members receive electronic access in 2015 and will receive print copies in 2016. 

APAGS continues to have a positive relationship with ASPPB and routinely consults with and refers students 

in ASPPB’s direction. We look forward to our future work together! 

http://www.apa.org/apags/resources/internship-webisodes.aspx
http://www.apa.org/apags/resources/debt.pdf
http://www.tinyurl.com/apagscoar1
www.apa.org/apags/resources
http:gradpsychblog.org


      

 

 

 

   

 
    

    
    

     
    

 

 
  

 
   

    
  

  
    

 
    

 
    

   
  

  
  

  
  

   
   

 

 
  

  
  

   
  

 

 
   

   
  

   
   

  

    
   

   
    

   
   

  

  
  

 
       

   
  

 

 
   

   
   

    
   

  

 

   

  

  

  

  

 

  

  

 

 

   

  

  

  

 

 

  

   

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

   

 

  

EXECUTIVE BOARD 2015-2016 

President 
Rachel L. Navarro, Ph.D. 
University of North Dakota 
Counseling Psychology & Community Services 
231 Centennial Drive, Stop 8255 
Grand Forks, ND 58202-8255 
rachel.navarro@und.edu 

President-Elect 
Ayşe Çiftçi, Ph.D. 
Purdue University 
Department of Educational Studies 
West Lafayette, IN 47907-2098 
ayse@purdue.edu 

President-Elect Designate 
Y. Barry Chung, Ph.D. 
Indiana University 
Department of Counseling & Educational 
Psychology 
201 North Rose Ave, Suite 4056 
Bloomington, IN 47405-1006 
chungyb@indiana.edu 

Past President 
Arpana G. Inman, Ph.D. 
Lehigh University 
Department of Education 
111 Research Dr. 
Bethlehem, PA 18015 
arpana.inman@lehigh.edu 

Secretary 
Annette Kluck, Ph.D. 
Auburn University 
College of Education 
2084 Haley Center 
Auburn, AL 36849 
ask0002@auburn.edu 

Treasurer 
Jacob Levy, Ph.D. 
University of Tennessee 
Department of Psychology 
1404 Circle Dr., Rm 410E 
Knoxville, TN 37996 
jlevy4@utk.edu 

Awards Chair & Secretary-Elect 
Amy Reynolds, Ph.D. 
University of Buffalo 
Counseling, School, & Educational Psychology 
408 Baldy Hall 
Buffalo, NY 14260 
Alr24@buffalo.edu 

Communications Chair 
Julie Koch, Ph.D. 
Oklahoma State University 
School of Applied Health & Educational Psychology 
418 Willard Hall 
Stillwater, OK 74078 
julie.koch@okstate.edu 

Member-At-Large 
Aaron Rochlen, Ph.D. 
University of Texas 
Department of Educational Psychology 
1912 Speedway, Stop D5800 
Austin, TX 78712-1289 
arochlen@austin.utexas.edu 

COUNCIL OF COUNSELING PSYCHOLOGY TRAINING PROGAMS
 

Description and Mission 

The Council of Counseling Psychology Training Programs (CCPTP) is the training 

council for APA-accredited doctoral programs in Counseling Psychology. We have over 

70 program members throughout the United States. The mission of CCPTP is to represent 

the interests of counseling psychology training programs and to support members by 

serving as an organization where members can access and share training-relevant 

information and communicate with one another. 

We appreciate the opportunity to continue our work with you as another important 

organization dedicated to the future of the profession of psychology. 

CCPTP Data Points 

 CCPTP met at the 2015 Annual American Psychological Association Convention 

in Toronto in August. We discussed new Standards of Accreditation, challenges 

with software used for documentation of clinical training hours, and pipeline 

issues. Training Directors were encouraged to discuss the Hoffman report with 

their students. 

	 CCPTP plans to hold its Mid-Winter Meeting in Asheville, North Carolina. The 

dates for this meeting are February 12-13, 2016. The theme for the meeting will 

focus on Training Director skills and responsibilities. 

	 Elections were held. New officers are: Barry Chung, President-Elect Designate, 

Amy Reynolds, Awards Chair and Secretary-Elect, and Aaron Rochlen, Member-

at-Large. 

	 We are working to develop guidelines to assist those who write letters of 

recommendation for the new standardized form that APPIC requires for any 

student applying for internship. 

	 We applaud the attention to training and competence in supervision (something 

routinely included in the training of doctoral students in counseling psychology) 

reflected in the new ASPPB Supervision Guidelines for Education and Training 

leading to Licensure as Health Service Provider. 

	 As we mentioned at the mid-year ASPPB Board Meeting in April (in Atlanta) 

CCPTP continues to have serious concerns about master’s program accreditation. 

We are particularly concerned about the role that CACREP is playing at the state 

level by encouraging state boards to license only CACREP-program graduates. 

This affects doctoral programs in a number of ways – through students who apply 

to our programs and through the limited “qualified” faculty who may teach in 

CACREP-accredited counseling programs. This can also affect the state 

psychology boards as it undermines the value of master’s degrees in psychology 

fields (such as psychometricians). Recent CACREP policies also essentially state 

that psychologists (unless they graduated from CACREP programs) are not 

qualified to train or supervise individuals in counseling. This will limit the 

practice of psychologists over time. CCPTP continues to advocate and liaise with 

AASCB (American Association of State Counseling Boards) regarding 

accreditation and licensing at the master’s level. We also continue to monitor 

what is happening in every state. We are asking AASCB (American Association 

of State Counseling Boards) to focus on credentials rather than simply using 

CACREP accreditation as the requirement given that there are other agencies 

(i.e., Master in Psychology and Counseling Accreditation Council) that accredit 

master’s level programs in training of counselors. We seek your support in 

helping us communicate the importance of inclusive practices for anyone trained 

in the professional identity and ethics of counselors to AASCB. 

mailto:rachel.navarro@und.edu
mailto:ayse@purdue.edu
mailto:chungyb@indiana.edu
mailto:arpana.inman@lehigh.edu
mailto:ask0002@auburn.edu
mailto:jlevy4@utk.edu
mailto:Alr24@buffalo.edu
mailto:julie.koch@okstate.edu
mailto:arochlen@austin.utexas.edu


  

 
   

  
 

  

      
 

   
 
    

  
     

    
  

  
     

  
  

 
    

  
     

  
 

  
   

    
  

   
  

  
    

     
 

     
    

        
  

   
      

 

  

9/22/15 DRAFT—DO NOT DISTRIBUTE 

Council of Specialties in Professional Psychology 
Presenter: Kevin D. Arnold, PhD, ABPP 

Draft Premises of the Specialty Summit: Professional Psychology Inter-organizational 
Collaborative Summit on Specialization 

Premise 1: Market Drivers—Medicare and Medicaid have expressed the assumptions that 
specialization, and credentialing or other means of specialization vetting, exist (or should exist) 
within professional psychology. This is true in several states in which public payers have 
presumed specialty training in their comments to state associations and/or licensing boards. 
Further, both public and private payers provide for the identification of specialty as a part of 
application materials for health care providers, typically requesting identification of board 
certification within one or more specialties. Applied Behavior Analysis (ABA), as a specialized 
service, has become a case-in-point. Within Medicaid, Cigna, and TriCare, ABA is considered 
specialized within psychology, and at times outside of psychology; and, ABA is a formally 
identified “focus” within the APA recognized specialty of Behavioral and Cognitive Psychology. 
However, despite the increase in the demand for specialty credentialing among government and 
private insurers, the markets are not aware, let alone educated on, professional psychology’s 
recognition of either specialties or specialty credentialing organizations. As another case-in­
point, in at least one state, there was confusion over who could bill Health and Behavioral Codes. 
For example, are the competencies of generically licensed practicing psychologists sufficient, or 
can only those board certified in Clinical Health Psychology deliver H&B services? Beyond 
health service settings, others who seek out psychological experts, such as judges, police chiefs 
and CEOs, will undoubtedly continue to look for specialty credentialing (e.g., forensic 
psychology, police and public safety psychology, and business and consulting psychology, 
respectively) as they consider the qualifications of those providing them with expert services. 
The marketplace has come to expect that specialists deliver specialized services, and psychology 
will not be indefinitely exempted from this expectation, and already is not in some cases. If 
professional psychology does not collectively organize itself regarding specialties, specialization, 
and specialty certification, then certainly the confusion and assumptions of the marketplace itself 
will lead to the market’s own organizational structures into which psychology will be placed. 
Professional psychology, it is argued here, must organize itself on specialties and credentialing 
of specialists or market forces will fill the void.  

Premise 2: Quality Services (aka, the “Triple Aim") and the Affordable Care Act—The 
Triple Aim refers to simultaneously improving the health of the population, enhancing the 
experience and outcomes for the individual patient, and lowering the cost of care through 
improved efficiencies in the delivery of care. The models of the Accountable Care Organization 
(ACO) and the Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) both envision primary care as the 
coordinator of care. Provider credentialing and maintenance of competence, two factors relevant 
to the quality metric will very likely become financially incentivized as ACOs, PCMHs , and 
whatever the private insurer models evolve to be, are forced to coordinate care and document 
quality. The presumption in healthcare reform is clear where providers are concerned… quality 
providers decrease costs through improved treatment, reduced need for repeat treatment, and 
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prevention at the primary and secondary levels—and the medical model relies, in part, on board 
certification in specialties as evidence of that quality. Users of psychological services outside of 
healthcare settings (e.g. corporations, public safety agencies, courts, schools) can also be 
expected to seek out psychologists who have demonstrated specialized competence in order to 
optimize confidence and minimize liability.. 

Premise 3: Integration into Healthcare as Health Service Providers—As a necessity of 
survival for practicing psychologists, the transition from siloed practices with isolated services to 
integration into the broader health care system is key. To integrate, it will be necessary to model 
the health service psychology profession after medicine, partly due to the leadership role of 
medicine/primary care envisioned in the ACA. The AMA, for example, as recently as 2015, 
addressed the need for medicine’s self-regulation of specialization in an issue of JAMA, noting 
in particular only the ABMS as the organization of credentialing boards 
(http://jama.jamanetwork.com/article.aspx?articleid=2290649). Psychology already 
specializes, as medicine will or has come to expect; however, the specialization process within 
psychology is not yet fully integrated through the stages of a psychologist’s professional 
developmental  nor across organizations. This reality can be seen in the lack of standardized 
structure within specialty education and training across levels (e.g., internship, post-doctoral, 
etc.). As well, licensing boards have not yet collectively endorsed a board certification process or 
other means to vet specialists (compared to the acceptance of the American Board of Medical 
Specialties in medicine). 

Premise 4: Consumer Protection—Consumers in today’s health care market are reasonably 
sophisticated about the meaning of board certification as evidence of competency in a 
specialized area. Consumers know that Family Physicians/Pediatricians are general practitioners 
delivering primary care, while Oncologists and Cardiologists, are specialists who treat cancer or 
heart disease, respectively. With respect to psychology, consumers will increasingly demand 
that psychologists who hold themselves out as specialists be held to competency expectations. 
This premise is true in both healthcare and non-healthcare settings. For example, courts will 
increasingly need to rely on those psychologists that show they are accountable to specialty­
based processes; and the public on the whole will increase its demands that public safety 
personnel have been vetted by those with the specialized competencies to most effectively 
identify candidates least likely to pose a risk to public safety.  For psychologists, board 
certification will eventually become that evidence of specialization, along with Maintenance of 
Certification (MOC) programs to document ongoing specialized competencies. ABPP has 
already established an MOC protocol, with individual specialties within ABPP having begun the 
piloting of the MOC processes as of early 2015. Consumers and third-party payers express the 
expectation that licensing boards be able to regulate the practice of psychologists even within a 
specialty area despite licensing being at the generic level. Thus, licensing boards will face 
increased pressure to either vet claims of specialized competencies, or endorse a process such as 
board certification as that evidence. While licensing boards will eventually need to adopt 
aMaintenance of Certification and Licensure (MOCAL) process for general psychology practice 
competencies, advance competencies within specialties extends beyond the MOCAL process. 
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Premise 5:  Balance of Health Service Psychology and Non-Health Service Professional 
Psychology Specialties—Within professional psychology, the Affordable Care Act has driven 
the acceleration of attention to and adoption of specialties, specialization and specialty board 
certification. However, specialties within professional psychology exist outside of what is now 
known as health service psychology. For example, School Psychology, Forensic Psychology, 
Police and Public Safety Psychology, and Industrial/Organizational Psychology would all have 
some areas of practice outside of healthcare settings.  The need for the Summit includes, as a 
goal, how to integrate these non-health-related specialties and balance the drivers from 
healthcare reform with other non-healthcare market and consumer concerns. 
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Council of Specialties in Professional Psychology 
Presenter: Kevin D. Arnold, PhD, ABPP 

Proposed Goals and Objectives of the Inter-Organizational Summit on Specialty 

1.	 Education of Participants on Key Concepts and Roles 

a.	 Education about Specialty, Specialization, Specialists, Board
Certification, and Subspecialties within Specialties 

b.	 Direct Roles of Organizations within Specialty—Council of Specialties
in Professional Psychology, American Board of Professional
Psychology, Commission for the Recognition of Specialties and
Proficiencies in Professional Psychology 

c.	 Indirect Roles of Organizations with an Interest in Specialties—APA 
Education Directorate, APAPO, CAPP, ASPPB, APPIC, CoA, APA Board
of Directors, BAPPI 

2.	 Identification of the Current State of Organizational Policies, Positions,
and Procedures regarding Specialties, Specialization, Specialists, and
Board Certification in Professional Psychology 

a.	 Specific Identification of Implications of Specialty for i) Maintenance 
of Competency and Licensure (MOCAL) and ii) Maintenance of
Certification (MOC) 

3.	 Identification of Inconsistencies among Organizational Policies, Positions,
and Procedures either Directly or Indirectly Involved in Specialties,
Specialization, Specialists, and Board Certification 

a.	 Delineation of Inconsistencies that Promote Unique or
Complementary Agenda across Organizations 

b.	 Delineation of Inconsistencies that Cause Inefficiencies to the Shared 
Goals of the Organizations regarding Specialties 

c.	 Articulation of Inconsistencies as Problem Statements to Facilitate 
Identification of Resolutions or Solutions 

4.	 Identification of Proposed Resolutions or Solutions to Inconsistencies 

5.	 Key Scope of Practice Concerns and Possible Solutions 

6.	 Decision about Need for On-going Inter-organizational Collaboration 
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7. Consideration of Financial Support if On-going Collaboration is Endorsed 

Proposed Outcomes of the Inter-Organizational Summit on Specialty 

Issues and Problem Identification 

The Summit will identify issues/problems faced, and to be faced in the future,
regarding the place of specialties, specialization, and specialty credentialing in 
professional psychology. Within the inconsistencies, those that promote unique 
agenda and do not cause inefficiencies will be articulated; while other
inconsistencies that create inefficiencies to the shared goals of the organizations will
be framed as problems. In particular, the context of these issues will include at least 
1) non-health service issues related to protection of the public and internal
professional self-monitoring regarding i) public safety, ii) adjudicatory bodies, and
iii) corporations and organizations; 2) health services issues related to i) healthcare 
reform, ii) integrated medicine, iii) accountable care organizations, iv) medical
homes, and v) health service psychology. 

It is envisioned that issues will likely include 1) scope of practice, 2) education and
training in specialties, 3) public representation of a) specializations by psychologists
and b) programs purporting to educate and train within specialties, and 4)
demonstration/maintenance of specialty competencies. 

Problems will be defined as those issues that create inefficiencies and impediments
to the ongoing promotion of the value of specialties, specialization, and specialty
board certification, and those likely to be identified may include 1) inconsistencies
in the definitions of specialty, specialization, and specialty credentialing across
organizations, 2) gaps in the processes of specialty recognition across organizations,
3) gaps between medicine’s specialty processes and those of psychology, 4)
inconsistent messaging to consumer audiences about specialty issues among
organizations, 5) inconsistencies in messaging to students and trainees regarding
specialization and credentialing, 6) gaps between professional organizations’ 
specialty policies and standards and those found across regulatory jurisdictions, and
7) the lack of a unified voice on key issues within specialty across key organizations. 

Policy 

It is likely that the Summit will identify key policy considerations that can solve, or
lead to the resolution of some or all of the problems that the Summit identifies.
Those policy considerations may take the form of conceptual refinement steps, or
recommendations for policy action. These considerations will likely generate 
additional work for the Summit organizations individually, and in the future 
collectively in a Summit 2.0. 
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Dissemination 

It is anticipated that the Summit will disseminate its work in several forms: 

1.	 Journal articles in key journals such as PPRP, TEP, specialty-specific journals,
or the AP addressing issues relevant to the mission of each journal 

2.	 Professional press articles such as the Monitor to detail the news of the 
Summit being held and its outcomes 

3.	 Presentations at national and state organizations such as APA, APA Division 
annual meetings, specialty organizations, STPAs, other organizations (e.g.,
ABCT, ABAI, ACA, NASW, AMA, ASPPB, IACP, AFCC, ABA, etc.) 

4.	 A proceedings document, published either within a scholarly journal or free-
standing by a national publishers (e.g., APA, Guilford, Wiley, etc.). 

Next Steps Outcomes 

The Summit will develop a “next steps” plan, targeting work not completed within 
the Summit itself. The plan will address1)  the issues/problems yet to be addressed
and/or resolved, 2) the structure of completing necessary work (e.g., formation of
an organization within or external to one or more of the Summit participants), and
3) proposals on how financially these next steps will be accomplished. 
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Canadian Psychological Association (CPA) CEO's Report 

Chief Executive Officer’s 

Report:  2014/15 in reviewi 

INTRODUCTION 

75 years plus one! It has been a banner year for CPA – we have achieved our highest numbers of members 
and affiliates ever, ending 2014 with 7037. The report that follows highlights the activities ongoing and 
accomplished on behalf of science, practice, and education and training in 2014/15. The activities undertaken 
by Head Office staff on the membership’s behalf are routinely updated in quarterly issues of Psynopsis in a 
column entitled: Head Office Update http://www.cpa.ca/Psynopsis/ The work that CPA accomplishes is truly 
a team effort – with a committed Board and staff, we can and do accomplish much. These accomplishments 
are possible only because of the prodigious and significant work in science, teaching and practice undertaken 
by our members and affiliates. For that, I want to take this opportunity to thank you, member, student and 
affiliate alike, for making the science, practice and education of psychology, and the health and well-being of 
Canadians, your professional and personal commitments. 

HEAD OFFICE 

Finances 

CPA received an unqualified audit opinion with no control deficiencies noted for the fiscal year 2014. CPA’s 
CFO, Mr. Phil Bolger, and our Financial Coordinator, Ms. Vijaya Ramesh, are to be credited for this excellent 
report and the very timely completion of the audit process. 

Key findings of the 2014 audit report were that 
•	 We ended 2014 with $197,326 in surplus which compares to a 2013 year end deficit of $161,336. 

This suggests that CPA is balancing its budgets over time – a requirement of Not for Profit 
organizations. 

•	 We received an unqualified audit opinion 
•	 There was only one corrected misstatement – certain of CPA’s fixed assets no longer in use (i.e. office 

equipment) were removed from the books 
•	 Our auditor had no recommendations for changes to our accounting policies and practices 
•	 Our auditor noted no control deficiencies 

Key financial accomplishments in 2014 were 
•	 our successful re-application for the journal grant from SSHRC ($30,000 for each of Canadian 

Psychology and the Canadian Journal of Behavioural Science annually for three years). Thank you to 
Dr. Lisa Votta-Bleeker (CPA’s Deputy CEO and Director Science) for her excellent work on the re-
application. 

•	 the CPA/CPAP sponsored liability insurance program enrolled the same number of participants in 
2014 as it did in 2013 (7400). Under the brokerage of BMS, and at the time of this writing, it looks 
like we can anticipate a year end with markedly improved claims performance over 2013. 

•	 The expansion of our web-based Continuing Professional Development offerings has enhanced 
member service and revenue. Thank you to Dr. Melissa Tiessen (CPA’s Registrar and Director of 
Education) for her excellent work on these activities. 

http://www.cpa.ca/Psynopsis


     

              
   

           
 

                    
               

               
                   

            
  

                  
                
                 

 
                

                
                 

               
             

                 
                 

                  
     

 

  

 
                  
  

 
             
            

            
 

              
              

                  
                   

                 
                    

                    
 

 
                     

              
                
                 

          
 

  
 

                 
                

                 
                  

 

Financial challenges in 2014 were: 
•  Convention attendance was decreased over projections and decreased from actual attendance at the 

last non-central venue 
•  Investment revenue in the fourth quarter were decreased over projections 

The financial base of the Association continues to be solid. In 2014 our surplus of just under $200,000 was 
largely due to the unbudgeted administrative fee received for management of our new professional liability 
insurance program, a smaller than anticipated convention deficit (the offset of lower attendance) and some 
reduction in HR costs. We achieved a net asset balance of $1,225,438 at 2014 year end which includes 
several of Board restricted funds (e.g. IUPsyS, Practice Directorate, Science Directorate, Accreditation). 

CPA’s net asset balance exceeds our reserve target of $910,000. As explained in more detail in the 2014 
annual report to the membership, this reserved target was established in consultation with our auditors and 
allows us to reserve approximately 6 months of annual operating costs to offset revenue risks. 

CPA does preview some significant one-time spending in 2015/16 which will be to outsource our membership 
database to an external association management service. This move followed from an independent IT review 
conducted in 2015 and a consequent in-depth investigation of companies and options to enable CPA to best 
manage its membership database, website as well as its convention submission and registration processes. 
This new service will provide members an enhanced experience during membership renewal, convention 
submission, and convention registration. In addition, we expect that our new service provider will afford a 
more enhanced platform with which Sections can manage their communications. At the time of this writing, 
the provider agreement is being reviewed by CPA’s legal counsel. We expect implementation to begin in July 
2015 in phases over 2015/16. 

Staff Complement 

There have been some changes to our Head Office complement since we last reported to the membership in 
June 2014. 

We welcomed new staff members: Ms. Sarah Fletcher (Administrative Assistant, Operations and Accreditation) 
and Ms. Stephanie Miksik (Communications Coordinator). We also welcomed social psychology doctoral 
student, Mr. Matt Murdoch on a short-term contract as Research Assistant. 

We welcomed back from maternity leave, both Ms. Meagan Hatch (Manager, Public Relations and 
Communications) and Ms. Amy Barnard (Manager, Practice Directorate). The membership may recall that Ms. 
Cara Bernard served as Acting Manager during Amy’s leave on a .5FTE basis, while also serving as Sections 
Administrator on a .5FTE basis. Cara continues to serve the Sections in a .5FTE capacity, but now also serves 
as the Manager of Governance. Ms. Marie-Christine Pearson, who has overseen our Governance portfolio on a 
contractual basis for a number of years since her retirement, fully retired in June. Many thanks are owed to 
Ms. Pearson for her outstanding work and commitment to CPA over the course of many years. She will be 
missed. 

A few CPA staff have resigned their positions in 2014/15 and moved on to other opportunity. In July, we say 
good-bye to Dr. Melissa Tiessen (Registrar, Accreditation and Director, Education Directorate). Dr. Tiessen has 
made outstanding contributions to accreditation and continuing education over her tenure and she too will be 
missed. Earlier in the year, we said good-bye with thanks to Ms. Josee Paliquin (Administrative Assistant, 
Membership) and Ms. Linda Rochefort (Administrative Assistant, Operations and Accreditation). 

Membership Benefits 

CPA continues to issue student pricing cards (SPC cards), free to every CPA student affiliate, which gives 
discounts at a broad range of retailer and food services across Canada. Significant membership benefits 
include CPA’s enhanced liability insurance program brokered by BMS, access at a competitive rate to APA’s 
PsychNET® GOLD package of electronic databases as well as a number of benefits added in 2014. 



                
       

 
                   

             
               

                
                    
                 
                     

                  
               

                 
               
           

                  
            

                
           

 

     
 

                 
           
           

                   
                 

  
 

                
                     

               
        

 
               

 
    

          
     
         
     
      
     
      

 
                 
             

               
              

               
              

                
               

             

These include discounts for hotels and travel, retail discounts and discounted fitness membership. A complete 
listing can be found at http://www.cpa.ca/membership/membershipbenefitsandservices/ 

We are pleased to report on a successful first year of our enhanced liability insurance program with our new 
broker, BMS Group http://www.psychology.bmsgroup.com/ The program, sponsored by CPA and the Canadian 
Professional Associations of Psychology (CPAP) has brought us lower and sustainable premiums as well as 
program enhancements. In 2014/15, we retained fully 7500 participants in the program and preliminary data 
suggests we will end the 2014/15 policy year with a decrease in claims over last year. Feedback on the 
program’s service (e.g. broker, legal counsel, and adjuster) has been very positive overall as well. As 
mentioned in last year’s report to the AGM, CPA hopes to be able to move forward with CPAP to self-fund the 
program in near future years and the development of the self-funded model is ongoing. Self-funded models, in 
use by other health professions, facilitate low and sustainable premiums for program participants and the 
offering of risk management education. CPA is proud of its leadership in bringing this enhanced insurance 
program to psychologists and registered psychology practitioners across Canada. For a review of the 
program’s offerings, go to http://www.psychology.bmsgroup.com/ A Risk Management magazine, produced by 
our broker BMS, was included in the 2015 convention kits. Note that liability insurance is available to 
psychology professionals such as faculty, instructors, supervisors or non-health psychology service providers 
such as those working or consulting to industry - in addition to those registered psychologists providing health-
related service. See the program FAQs posted at http://www.psychology.bmsgroup.com/en/faqs 

Knowledge Transfer and Exchange 

Fact sheets. In 2014/15, eight new fact sheets (Autism Spectrum Disorder, Pain in Children with Cognitive 
Impairments who are Non-Verbal, Applying to Canadian Graduate Schools, Pre-employment Personality 
Assessment in Personnel Selection, and Learning Disabilities, Suicide, Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder, 
Substance Abuse) were posted; one is in the review process, and a number of others have been solicited. The 
membership should feel free to propose the development of a fact sheet, by contacting Dr. Lisa Votta-Bleeker 
(lvottableeker@cpa.ca). 

Papers, Briefs and Positions. Virtually all the papers, briefs and presentations delivered by CPA senior staff 
continue to be posted on the CPA website. New postings are presented on the home page with links to the 
Government Relations, Practice and Science pages as relevant and appropriate and are discussed in this 
report under their area of activity http://www.cpa.ca/Submissions 

Surveys. We have continued to run many surveys off of CPA’s website. 

New Surveys in 2014/15: 
• CPA 2015 Convention-related surveys (Fellows, Invited Speakers, convention evaluation) 
• Canadian Psychology Graduates Survey 
• CPA Survey on Admitting Privileges of Canadian Psychologists 
• Goodlife Corporate Membership Interest 
• Impact Of Cancelled Long-Form Census 
• ICAP 2018 Website Survey 
• CPA Accreditation Online Reporting System 

Psynposis. Psynopsis continues to be well viewed and we continue to submit topical issues to relevant 
government departments (e.g. national defence, corrections, health). Themes for 2014/15 included CPA’s 
75th anniversary, Diversity in the science and practice of psychology, Public health and health promotion, 
Thinking, Crisis response/First responders. The summer 2015 issue will be devoted to Suicide, with 
subsequent issues devoted to Psychology and the Workplace, and Mental Health, Homelessness and Housing. 
Any Section, member or affiliate with suggestions for issue themes, please contact Tyler Stacey-Holmes 
styler@cpa.ca In 2015/16, the Editor and Editor-in-Chief will actively reach out among the membership to 
invite contributions from those with theme-related expertise. Psynopsis is an important vehicle for knowledge 
transfer and translation as well as advocacy. Please consider making a submission! 

mailto:styler@cpa.ca
http://www.cpa.ca/Submissions
mailto:lvottableeker@cpa.ca
http://www.psychology.bmsgroup.com/en/faqs
http:http://www.psychology.bmsgroup.com
http:http://www.psychology.bmsgroup.com
http://www.cpa.ca/membership/membershipbenefitsandservices


                    
   

 

              
         

                 

               
     

              
             

  

                
     

                 

             

                   
                  

 

                
             

               
  

              
               

           

                 

              
   

                
  

                
   

                
 

               
               
                      

               
                  
                 

                
               
                  

                 
                  

          
 

                
                
                 

                
                     
                   

               
 

Other media. CPA was very active in the media in 2014/15. Press releases are archived on CPA’s website 
http://www.cpa.ca/mediarelations/psychologyinthenews and included: 

•  April 22, 2015 – CPA Press Release. The Canadian Psychological Association supports renewed 
funding of the Mental Health Commission of Canada. 

•  March 23, 2015 - Hill Times. Time to bring health care back to the table. 
•  March 04, 2015 – Telegraph Keeping the momentum going - Psychologists determined to increase 

accessibility by targeting employers. 
•  March 3, 2015 - Press Conference. The Canadian Psychological Association opposes the Federal 

Government and Canada Revenue Agency’s (CRA) plan which will effectively tax mental health 
services. 

•  February 24, 2015 – CPA Press Release. Doubling psychological services from $1,000 to $2,000 for 
Federal Workers and Retirees. 

•  February 2, 2015 – CPA Press Release. Canada’s Psychologists helping to Mind Your Mental Health. 
•  January 31, 2015 – Vancouver Sun. The hidden dangers in therapy. 
•  January 19, 2015 – Globe & Mail CPA’s CEO, Dr. Karen Cohen, submitted a Letter to the Editor 

entitled, “Taller Still” in response to the Globe & Mail article, “Canada stands tall in global fight against 
depression”. 

•  December 2, 2014 – CPA Press Release. The Canadian Psychological Association (CPA) is glad to 
support a consensus statement released today by the Health Action Lobby (HEAL). Federal 
Government must invest in Mental Health and Addictions and Primary Care, says Canada’s health care 
community 

•  Nov, 20, 2014 CPA Press Release. The Canadian Psychological Association welcomes the Manitoba 
Liberal Party’s commitment to directly fund psychologists under the public health care system and to 
hire and retain more psychologists in the province of Manitoba. 

•  September 30, 2014 – iPolitics. There's a lot more to treating mental illness than pills. 
•  September 10, 2014 – CPA Press Release. The Canadian Psychological Association Marks World 

Suicide Prevention Day. 
•  August 28, 2014 – Daily Business Buzz. Tackling mental health issues: How effective is your 

workplace strategy? 
•  August 26, 2014 – Huffington Post Canada. The Complexity of Closing Gaps in Canada's Mental 

Health Care System. 
•  August 14, 2014 – The Globe & Mail. No easy answers to Robin Williams’s suicide. 

Psychology Month 2015. The Mind Your Mental Health campaign launched during Psychology Month with great 
success! Over 1500 letters advocating for increased access to psychological services were sent to local 
politicians in February alone. Reach for the campaign was at an all-time high due in part to the success of the 
t-shirt campaign. This year’s t-shirts displayed the slogan “Canada’s Psychologists helping to Mind Your Mental 
Health”. Many prominent local and national level celebrities put on the MYMH t-shirt and took to Twitter and 
Facebook to share the photo. Congratulations to all those who actively participated in the campaign, your hard 
work resulted in almost a 50% increase in both Facebook and Twitter followers! Each jurisdiction also 
organized various activities to promote psychology month (i.e., public talks, media interviews, etc.). Other 
Psychology Month activity featured the Who did you Talk to campaign! This campaign awarded weekly prizes in 
February to scientists and practitioners who brought the science or practice of psychology to the public via 
public lectures or articles in the popular press. Thanks to CPA’s Amy Barnard (Practice Directorate) and Tyler 
Stacey-Holmes (Membership) who did a great job managing this campaign. 

Journals and Publications. In November 2014, we learned that our application to SSHRC’s Scholarly Aid for 
Journals for funds from 2014 through 2016 for Canadian Psychology and the Canadian Journal of Behavioural 
Science was successful. CPA’s publication partnership with the APA continues to be successful – the reach of 
all three of our journals continues to be extended through APA’s capacity which increasingly enables the 
journals to support their own operation. In 2015, both CJEP and CP gave awards for the best article from each 
journal in 2014. The award for best article in CJEP is co-sponsored with the Canadian Society for Brain, 
Behaviour and Cognitive Science (CSBBCS). A similar award is planned for CJBS in 2016. 

http://www.cpa.ca/mediarelations/psychologyinthenews


                   
                  

                
         

 
                 
                
                 
                
                
 

 
 
 

       

     
 

               
                   

                     
                   

 
               

                  
             
                

                   
                  

                  
                    

                  
       

       
        

 
               

               
               
              

                  
              

                
                

                  
      

 

     

 
                    

                 
      

 

             
             

Journal editors in 2015 are Dr. Martin Drapeau (CP), Dr. William Roberts (CJBS) and Dr. Penny Pexman (CJEP). 
CPA’s thanks Michel Claes for his service as CJBS’s Associate Editor; effective July 1, 2015, Dr. Julie Gosselin 
assumes the position of Associate Editor for CJEP. CPA’s Deputy CEO and Director Science, Dr. Lisa Votta-
Bleeker is the Managing Editor of all three journals. 

Our journals’ publisher’s report was presented to the Publications Committee at CPA’s June 2015 convention. 
Both Canadian Psychology (CP) and the Canadian Journal of Behavioural Science (CJBS) saw increases in their 
impact factors; CP’s increased from 0.806 in 2013 to 1.825 in 2014 (1.475 5-year impact factor), while 
CJBS’s increased from 0.851 in 2013 to 1.015 (1.234 5-year impact factor). Unfortunately, the 2013 impact 
factor (1.361) for Canadian Journal of Experimental Psychology (CJEP) showed a slight decrease to 1.218 in 
2014. 

PARTNERSHIPS AND ACTIVITIES ON BEHALF OF SCIENCE, 
PRACTICE AND EDUCATION AND TRAINING 

CPA undertakes ongoing and many activities to support the discipline and profession of psychology. The 
following are some examples – some that are specific to one of three pillars and others (like advocacy, the 
federal budget) that cross cut all of them. The CEO of CPA takes the lead on its advocacy files for practice 
whereas the Deputy CEO and Director of Science takes the lead on its advocacy files for science. 

Canadian Psychology Graduates Survey. At CPA’s 2013 Summit on Supply, Need and Demand of Psychologists 
in Canada, participants learned of the extent of the knowledge gaps left by the cancellation of key Statistics 
Canada’s surveys (University and College Academic Staff System, Survey of Earned Doctorates, Mandatory 
Long-Form Census). In response to an identified need to collect data on Canada’s psychology graduates and 
address this knowledge gap, in 2014/15 the CPA developed a survey to collect this data. The CPA conferred 
with the APA and obtained their permission to modify and use the APA’s Doctoral Employment Survey for the 
Canadian context. The survey is designed to produce a minimum dataset with a limited number of questions 
tagged as mandatory. The survey launched in April 2015 and will remain open until December 31, 2105; it 
calls upon everyone across the country that has ever completed a terminal master’s or doctoral degree in any 
area of psychology to complete the survey: 
http://web2.cpa.ca/membersurveys/index.php?sid=87239&lang=en. As of June 25th, almost 4100 
respondents had completed the survey. 

Convention 2015. CPA’s 2015 convention took place in Ottawa from June 4th through the 6th 
http://www.cpa.ca/convention/ We welcomed 1372 delegates - 798 of which were students - to the CPA’s 
convention. 2015 was a co-convention year with the North American Correctional and Criminal Justice 
Psychology Conference (NACCJPC) which brought 335 additional delegates (160 of which were students). The 
NACCJPC had its own convention program, with all of their sessionsopen to CPA delegates and vice versa. The 
program included 842 posters and 204 presentations. Innovations for convention 2015 included more access 
to digital posters, an interactive online scheduler, and a revised convention app that included a searchable 
convention schedule and abstracts, social media and alert functions, maps and more. Additional highlights 
included the annual graduate and internship fairs, the fifth annual high school science awards, fun run and an 
evening of dancing and dessert. 

Government Relations, Advocacy and Outreach 

Activity June 2014 to June 2015. Note that the breadth and depth of this work and activity is significantly 
enhanced by the work of Meagan Hatch, our Manager of Public Affairs and Communications. All submissions 
can be found at http://www.cpa.ca/Submissions 

•  House of Commons Standing Committee on Finance Pre-budget Consultations 2014. CPA’s 
submission focused on increasing caps for psychological services for federal employees; ensuring core 

http://www.cpa.ca/Submissions
http://www.cpa.ca/convention


            
       

                 
      
  

                   
               

               
                

               
              

                 
               
                 
             

              
                

            
          

                
                

    

                 
             

                
           

                  
                

               
          

                
              

   

                 
               

 
                   
                  
               
                  

                 
                   

                
         

 
       

 
      
              
     
     

 

    
 

             
             

research funding for Canada’s granting councils; and increased funding for students through 
scholarships, internships and travel grants. 

•  CPA as Chair of the Canadian Consortium of Research responds to the House of Commons Standing 
Committee on Finance pre-budget consultations 2014 (http://ccr-ccr.ca/2014-ccr-pre-budget-
submission/) 

•  Response to the proposed applications of the Excise Tax Act as it pertains to health care supply. CPA 
opposes the Federal Government and Canada Revenue Agency’s plan to tax mental health care. 

•  Submission to the Advisory Panel on Healthcare Innovation. To prepare this submission, we reached 
out to our membership asking for examples of innovative projects in healthcare. A number of CPA 
members provided us with excellent input that helped shape our submission. CPA CEO Dr. Karen 
Cohen also participated in the face to face sessions with key stakeholders. 

•  Invited participation in a series of meetings convened by the Federal Minister of Health on family 
violence and childhood abuse. CPA was represented by 2014/15 President, Dr. Kerry Mothersill. 
Following from these meetings, CPA was invited by the Public Health Agency of Canada to become a 
member of an advisory committee of an initiative on this topic. 

•  Ontario Psychological Association. CPA participated in a webinar for their membership on 
telepsychology as well as participated in a panel at their annual convention in February at which 
stakeholders (e.g. federal and provincial government, leaders of other health professionals) talked 
about issues related to mental health and mental health service. 

•  L’Ordre des Psychologues du Québec (OPQ). CPA participated in a consultation in March around 
access to psychological services in Quebec and shared with OPQ our reports related to access and 
effectiveness of psychological services. 

•  Setting a National Research Agenda on Mental Health, Justice and Safety: CPA participated in an 
inter-organizational stakeholder consultation. Its objectives were to identify needed research gaps at 
the interface of mental health and criminal justice, target data platforms for research, and build a 
Canadian network on mental health, justice and safety. 

•  Canada Revenue Agency: Met with the CRA in December 2014 on the administration of the Disability 
Tax Credit (DTC). This followed from new legislation limiting the fees and definition of “promoters”. 

•  Visits to Saint Mary’s University, Dalhousie University, QEII and IWK hospital systems: CPA’s CEO 
presented on CPA practice and science activity and advocacy agendas. 

•  CPA Board Ambassador visits to University of Regina and University of Saskatchewan as well as 
hospital based departments in Saskatoon and Regina. Presented on CPA practice and science activity 
and advocacy agendas. 

•  Invitation to present to the House of Commons Standing Committee on Health to contribute to its 
study of mental health in Canada. Appearance to take place on May 28, 2015. 

Election 2015. With a federal election in October 2015 and CPA will launch an advocacy campaign over the 
coming months. We are developing letters and will request meetings of the political parties. We will encourage 
members to be active during the campaign and are developing an e-campaign to facilitate members’ 
contacting their candidates. We are developing a short questionnaire to be sent to the headquarters of each 
political party asking about investments in mental health services and research funding. The results of these 
surveys will be shared with the membership. We will review each party’s platform and share it with our 
members. We will continue to write letters to the editors. We will participate in the election 
campaigns of our alliance organizations in health and science. 

Our election messages will focus on 

• Overall mental health funding 
• Access to psychological services in areas where the Federal Government has direct responsibility 
• Increased research funding 
• Funding for post-secondary education 

Education and Training Highlights 

Accreditation. Currently, CPA accredits 33 doctoral programs and 33 internship/residency programs. In 
2014/15, Accreditation launched a quarterly newsletter disseminated to accredited programs and archived on 

http://ccr�ccr.ca/2014�ccr�pre�budget


     
 

    
 

         
       
    
     
    

 

      

                 
          

     

       
 
                  

          
      

               
                

                 
 

             
                  
       

 
    

     

          

      

        
 
       

 

        
 

                
                 

    
 
               

               
 

     
 

                
                    
                    

                 
              

          
 
                 

                  
            

CPA’s accreditation webpages http://www.cpa.ca/accreditation/resources/newsletters 

Some 2014/15 highlights include: 

•  Convention 2015 activities to include several sessions 
o  How to develop an accredited program 
o  Accreditation conversation session 
o  Site visitor conversation session 
o  Site visitor workshop 

•  A call for Panel members 
•  Announcement of the adoption of a national standard for entry to practice as a psychologist by 

Canadian regulators (Association of Canadian Psychology Regulatory Organizations or ACPRO) 
•  A site visitor survey 
•  A new site visit scheduling system 

In April 2014/15 CPA and APA’s leaderships met to review the First Street Accord – the mutual recognition 
agreement on accreditation endorsed by the two associations in 2008 
http://www.cpa.ca/accreditation/accreditationthroughoutnorthamerica/mouconcurrentcpaapa CPA and APA 
are committed to the Accord and to strengthening communication about its provisions to stakeholders. Also 
addressed by leadership were the issues and challenges related to cross border internship training. The 
review is ongoing and its work will be reported on in Psynopsis and in the Accreditation newsletter. 

Continuing Professional Development. CPA currently has 23 approved ongoing CE sponsor organizations, 
including one new for 2015. 15 individual provider approvals were granted in 2014, while two have been 
reviewed and approved to date in 2015. 

2014/15 online courses are: 
•  Being an ethical psychologist 
•  Starting and operating an independent professional practice in psychology 
•  A psychologist’s guide to psychopharmacology 
•  DSM-5: Changes and implications for professional practice 

A new course was added in 2014/15: 

•  Evidence-based treatment of PTSD among military 

Fourteen pre-convention workshops are scheduled for the 2015 CPA convention. Four of the 14 (Workshop 
numbers 1, 9, 12 and 13) will be video-recorded for later access through our online learning site 
http://www.cpa.ca/Convention/preconventionworkshops . 

As mentioned, Dr. Melissa Tiessen, Registrar and Director of the Education Directorate, has resigned her 
position with CPA and, at the time of this writing, recruitment is ongoing. 

Partnerships and Representation in Science 

Canadian Consortium for Research (CCR). ). CPA’s Deputy CEO, Dr. Lisa Votta-Bleeker Chairs the CCR. Although 
her term was to have ended in 2015, Dr. Votta-Bleeker has agreed to stay on as Chair through 2015/16. The 
CCR met at the Head Offices of the CPA in December 2014 for its third annual breakfast for CCR member 
organizations with Canada’s granting councils. Senior officers of CIHR, SSHRC, NSERC, CFI and Mitacs were in 
attendance. Each shared with us the views and positions on research funding 
in 2014/15 which was followed by a collegial roundtable discussion. 

All agencies continue to try to standardize their procedures to make processing of grants more consistent and 
efficient. The research community is concerned that the 15 largest universities are getting the bulk of funding 
and smaller universities are having trouble retaining faculty and recruiting students. 

http://www.cpa.ca/Convention/preconventionworkshops
http://www.cpa.ca/accreditation/accreditationthroughoutnorthamerica/mouconcurrentcpaapa
http://www.cpa.ca/accreditation/resources/newsletters


 
               

                
 

               
                

                   
                 
                

                    
                    

           
 

                   
    

 
              
                 
                  

 
             

                 
             

             
   

 
                

                 
                

 
      

 

                    
              

     
 

                
              

      
 

                
                  

               
             
 

 

                   
                 
               
 

 

                
              

       
 

The research community remains concerned about the minimal increases made to the granting councils for 
discovery-based research, as well as the inequity in research funds across the three funding agencies. 

Under Dr. Votta-Bleeker’s leadership, the CCR made a federal government pre-budget submission in 2014 and 
responded to the 2015 federal budget. In November and December 2014, members of the CCR secured 
meetings with five Parliamentarians to discuss the CCR’s asks and offer input on Budget 2015. One of the 
meetings held was with MP Ted Hsu (Liberal Science and Technology Critic), who asked for the CCR’s 
assistance in obtaining information on the impacts on the research community of the cancellation of the long-
form mandatory census. In response, the CPA developed a survey that was sent to the CCR members and to 
CPA members via a CPA News. CPA tabulated responses and sent them to MP Hsu to use in the second 
reading of his private member bill to reinstate the Census. 

The CCR is currently drafting its submission to the House of Commons Finance Committee as part of the 2016 
pre-budget consultation process. 

Canadian Primary Healthcare Research and Innovation Network (CPHCRIN). CPA continues its membership in 
CPHCRIN. CPHCRIN is still interested in applying to become a Coordinating Centre for CIHR’s Primary and 
Integrated Health Care Research Network (SPOR initiative) but would need to find funds to do so. 

Transdisciplinary Understanding and Training on Research – Primary Health Care (TUTOR-PHC). CPA continues 
to serve as a member of the Program Advisory Committee for TUTOR-PHC. TUTOR-PHC is a one-year, national, 
interdisciplinary research capacity building program that has been training primary health care researchers 
from family medicine, nursing, psychology, epidemiology, social work, education, policy and many other 
disciplines since 2003. 

Foundation for Students in Science and Technology (FSST). Dr. Votta-Bleeker continues to serve on the Board 
of Directors for the FSST. The FSST is a national not-for-profit organization dedicated to developing the career 
potential of gifted high school, college and university students for leadership roles in the science community. 

Other Science Advocacy in 2014/15. 

•  CPA met with the Director of Policy for Minister of State for Science and Technology (MP Ed Holder) to 
discuss Canada’s new science and technology strategy, particularly in response to the submission CPA 
made in February 2014 http://www.cpa.ca/docs/File/News/2014/cpa_st_consultation_2014_final.pdf 

•  CPA met with representatives from SSHRC (Dr. Ted Hewitt, President) and NSERC (Dr. Pierre Charest, Vice-
President Research Grants and Scholarship Directorate) to advocate for access to Centres of Excellence 
funds among all universities and researchers. 

•  CPA liaised with NSERC regarding eligibility criteria for students in clinical psychology which required them 
to have a supervisor who held an active discovery grant. In response to CPA’s advocacy on this issue, 
NSERC removed this specific criterion. Provided the student’s research fits the NSERC mandate, clinical 
psychology students can now apply for NSERC funding without corresponding requirements of their 
supervisor. 

•  CPA liaised with CIHR regarding caps on funding for equipment in its grant applications. In the midst of 
significant reforms to its open grant programs, CIHR has made a decision that in its open schemes 
(Foundation and Project), there will not be any limits with respect to requests for proposed equipment 
purchases. 

•  The CPA is working with Mitacs to identify means of facilitating connections between psychology graduate 
students and Mitacs University Business Development Officers so that students can pursue applications to 
Mitacs Accelerate program – internships involving industry-partners. 

http://www.cpa.ca/docs/File/News/2014/cpa_st_consultation_2014_final.pdf


                 
                

 

                 
               
                

                  
                  

         
 

                  
                   

                   
                    
      

 
                  

                   
                

                    
                  
          
                   

              
  

     
 

                  
                

                
                      

               
                 

                  
                   

                  
   

 

    

   

 
  

    

 
 

 
     

          
 

                 
                 
              

               
 

 

•  The CPA’s Deputy CEO continues to send out PSYience Update, a newsletter devoted to profiling the 
activity in which the CPA is engaged on behalf of the discipline and science of psychology. 

•  The CPA liaised with the Canadian Society for Brain, Behaviour and Cognitive Science (CSBBCS) for some 
collaborative programming given that the annual conference of the CSBBCS and the CPA’s were held 
concurrently in Ottawa in 2015. The two associations co-sponsored a mixer event and the CPA’s Science 
and Applications Keynote Speaker, Dr. Elizabeth Phelps. Prior to the mixer, the CSBBCS had a subset of 
its posters on display during one of the Poster Sessions at the CPA’s convention; over 80% of the 
CSBBCS’s delegates partook in the Friday’s scheduled activities. 

5th Annual High School Science Awards. 2015 Convention in Ottawa hosted the presentation of the winner of 
the 5th annual high school science awards. Ms. Katy Jany was selected as the winner for her submission 
entitled: Is that I.D. Real? Investigating race and age effects during a perceptual matching task. Ms. Jany was 
funded to attend the convention and received a cash award. 2015 marked the last year that this award will be 
offered in its current form. 

International Congress of Applied Psychology (ICAP). Following our successful bid pitch in July 2012 to host the 
ICAP 2018 in Montreal, CPA has developed a business model to deliver the Congress, which it submitted to the 
International Association of Applied Psychology (IAAP) for consideration at the end of February 2013. Since 
last June, the CPA hosted a reception at the 2014 ICAP in Paris and has developed a committee structure to 
oversee the coordination and planning of the event. Many CPA staff members either chair and/or sit on 
various committees including Planning, Communications, Visioning, Finance, Sponsorship, and Scientific 
Program. The CPA is currently hosting ICAP’s 2018 website on the CPA’s website while the ICAP 2018 website 
is being developed – please see www.cpa.ca/icap2018 for more information and regular updates. 

Partnerships and Representation in Practice 

HST/GST. As noted previously, the 2013 Federal budget (Pg. 375) makes changes to the HST/GST attached to 
reports and services for non-health care purposes. It notes that taxable supplies would include reports, 
examinations, and other services performed solely for the purpose of determining liability in a court proceeding 
or under an insurance policy. The CRA issued a draft policy statement in the fall of 2014 to which it invited 
response. The draft statement made clear that certain psychological services, notably some kinds of 
assessments provided in the private sector, would not be considered a health service and therefore subject to 
tax. CPA consulted with its membership, struck a small working committee to review a draft response and 
invited wider comment on the draft from those who responded to our call for feedback. We submitted our 
response as well as held a press conference on Parliament Hill, which itself generated a tremendous amount 
of media interest: 

•  https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=3ZkR09P2k9k 
•  https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=bgU6PAHMZhk 
•  http://www.cpa.ca/docs/File/Press%20Release/Press%20Release%20-


%20Final%20March%203%202015.pdf
 
•  http://m.torontosun.com/2015/03/03/dont-tax-mental-health-assessments-say-psychologists 
•  https://ca.news.yahoo.com/blogs/canada-politics/getting-a-medical-assessment-for-your-private-

235914526.html 
•  http://www.ledevoir.com/societe/sante/433460/offensive-des-psychologues-contre-une-taxe-en-

sante-mentale as well as 
•  several radio interviews (Radio Canada and several in BC) 

CPA convened an e-advocacy campaign inviting members to contact their MPs and voice their opposition to the 
draft policy statement and its treatment of certain psychological services. CPA commends the work of Ms. 
Hatch, CPA’s Manager of Public Affairs and Communications, whose contributions to our messages and 
messaging to government and media were outstanding. Follow CPA’s website, CPA News and Psynopsis for 
updates. 

http://www.ledevoir.com/societe/sante/433460/offensive�des�psychologues�contre�une�taxe�en
https://ca.news.yahoo.com/blogs/canada�politics/getting�a�medical�assessment�for�your�private
http://m.torontosun.com/2015/03/03/dont�tax�mental�health�assessments�say�psychologists
http://www.cpa.ca/docs/File/Press%20Release/Press%20Release%20
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=bgU6PAHMZhk
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=3ZkR09P2k9k
www.cpa.ca/icap2018


                
               

       
          

   
 

               
              

                 
           

 
                 
               

                 
             

     
 

                   
                  
               
                  

           
  

 
                 

                    
              
                 

 
                 

                  
                

                  
              

 
              

              
                
                

               
       

 
                

                 
                   

               
               
                    

 
                 

                  
              

                
         

 
                  

           

Advocacy for enhanced access to psychological services. We continue in our efforts to disseminate the findings 
and recommendations of our access report: An Imperative for Change: Access to Psychological Services for 
Canadians http://www.cpa.ca/docs/File/Position/An_Imperative_for_Change.pdf as well as our 
commissioned report on the Efficacy and Effectiveness of Psychological Treatments 
http://www.cpa.ca/docs/File/Practice/TheEfficacyAndEffectivenessOfPsychologicalTreatments_web.pdf 

We are developing a strategy through which we can develop a Champions program, recognizing industry 
leaders who are successful in sustaining mentally healthy workplaces through programs and services available 
to employees. We look forward to furthering this initiative in 2015/16 with our President-elect, Dr. Kevin 
Kelloway, whose expertise and interests focus on the workplace. 

We have been working with collegial health profession associations, as well as with members of the Canadian 
Life and Health Insurance Association, in the development of a guidance document for health providers 
delivering insured service. The document will cover such topics as differences in plans and coverage, methods 
of reimbursement, criteria for reimbursement, how to facilitate reimbursement, and guidance for patients 
about coverage. 

We have been very successful getting the access message out through media over 2014/15. A list of recent 
media events is found in this report. A very significant development as concerns access to service was the 
Treasury Board announcement that, as of October 2014, the federal government doubled the coverage it 
extends to its employees for psychological services – all members of the federal public service health care plan 
now have access to 80% of $2000 annually for psychological services http://www.tbs-sct.gc.ca/hr-rh/bp-
rasp/benefits-avantages/hcp-rss/overview-contexte-eng.asp 

We encourage our provincial and territorial association partners to bring the access and efficacy reports to the 
attention of their governments and stakeholders and to feel free to call upon us to assist or collaborate at any 
time. We also encourage all Canadian psychologists to become familiar with the report’s recommendations 
which they too can bring to the attention to the stakeholders and decision-makers with whom they work. 

Practice Directorate (PD). The PD is led by a Council of representatives from Canada’s provincial and territorial 
associations of psychology and chaired by Dr. Andrea Piotrowksi. The PD is in part financially supported by 
CPA, primarily through designated staffing and project funding with parallel support for its Science Directorate. 
Whereas CPA and its leadership focus on practice advocacy and activity that have a national or federal focus, 
the PD focuses on practice issues that have trans-jurisdictional interest and concern. 

In 2014/15, in collaboration with the Canadian Physiotherapy Association, PD commissioned a report from 
3Sixty Consulting explaining the current coverage landscape offered by Canadian private health care benefit 
providers for extended health benefits. It examined future trends in private coverage models and their 
application to the delivery of psychological services in the community. The results were based upon the 
findings from four interviews which were conducted with a representative sampling of executives from the 
private health care benefit provider industry. 

In accordance with recommendations of the report, in the coming months, an advocacy toolkit will be 
developed to support any associations that are interested in meeting with the top three employers (by number 
of employees) in each jurisdiction. The aim of this project is to advocate for an amount of coverage for 
psychological services that is clinically meaningful. Given that mental health issues have become the most 
significant cause of disability claims in Canada, employers can benefit if employees who need psychological 
assistance can be treated in a timely manner, preventing time lost and reducing the length of disability claims. 

In addition, many insurance companies require a physician’s referral to see a psychologist in the private sector. 
Letters are being prepared to advocate for the removal of this requirement. These letters will be sent to 
insurance providers and relevant government ministries (e.g., Health, Mental Health and Addictions). The aim 
of this project is to educate the provincial and territorial governments about the unnecessary financial burden 
this places on their publically funded health care systems. 

PD will be presenting an overview of their activities at the 2015 convention. For more information on PD, 
contact its committed and able Manager, Amy Barnard at abarnard@cpa.ca 

mailto:abarnard@cpa.ca
http://www.tbs�sct.gc.ca/hr�rh/bp
http://www.cpa.ca/docs/File/Practice/TheEfficacyAndEffectivenessOfPsychologicalTreatments_web.pdf
http://www.cpa.ca/docs/File/Position/An_Imperative_for_Change.pdf


 
                

                
                  

                  
                

                
             
                 

                  
     

 
                  
                 

                
                   

               
                    

              
   

 
                  

                
                

              
                

               
         

 
                 
                   

                 
                 

                
                    
                   

                   
    

 
                    
             

               
   

 
                     

           

 
                 

                    
                  

                  
        

                  
    

 

Health Action Lobby (HEAL). In December 2014, HEAL released its consensus paper entitled, The Canadian 
Way. Accelerating Innovation and Improving Health System Performance. CPA’s CEO continues as co-chair of 
HEAL and in that capacity participated in the press conference launch of the statement and subsequent media 
http://healthactionlobby.ca/ The paper calls on all federal parties to articulate their vision for the healthcare 
of Canadians and proposes ways in which the Federal Government can contribute to accountable health care 
systems. These include increased collaboration with provinces and territories, a federal vision for health care, 
a performance framework to guide system improvements, options for financial stability, strategic investments 
in areas of need (e.g. seniors, access to prescription drugs), and the development of national health system 
indicators. HEAL is working with public affairs and communications firms to advance the statement as we lead 
up to a federal election. 

In 2014/15 and on behalf of HEAL, Dr. Cohen attended several meetings of the team-based models task force 
of the provincial/territorial Health Care Innovation Working Group of the Council of the Federation. The task 
force was charged with receiving and recommending innovations in collaborative practice in the area of seniors 
and the integration of pharmacists and paramedics in primary care. This work culminated in a Summit, held in 
February 2015 at which exemplar practice innovations were showcased and discussion focused on the spread 
of innovative and effective practice. We are pleased to report that one of the exemplar models was led by a 
psychologist working innovatively to address mental health problems within a primary care practice in 
Kingston. 

Canadian Alliance of Mental Illness and Mental Health (CAMIMH). CAMIMH met in May 2015 at which time it 
also held its annual Champions of Mental Illness gala. The event celebrates the accomplishments of 
individuals and organizations whose work have advanced mental health. CAMIMH has posted a video of 
health providers talking about mental health system issues and needs in which CPA participated 
http://www.camimh.ca/ CAMIMH’s May members’ meeting agenda was to move forward on its strategic 
priorities that include advancing access to mental health services and supports and preparing messaging as 
we come up on a 2015 federal election. 

Mental Health Commission of Canada (MHCC). CPA continues to work actively with the MHCC. In November 
2014, Dr. Cohen attended a Best Brain’s Exchange co- hosted by the MHCC. Its focus was to assemble 
stakeholders on the topic of e-mental health services; identify research and knowledge gaps as well as barriers 
and facilitators to implementation. She also attended an MHCC event on the development of indicators of 
mental health outcomes; the next step in accountability for the system recommendations made by the MHCC 
National Strategy. CPA shared its view that the indicator work needs to include a focus on wait times for service 
provided in the public sector rather than only on readmission rates and needs to address the serious data gaps 
when it comes to accessing care in communities where the bulk of care is not typically funded by insurance 
plans (public or private). 

The MHCC produced a report on the work of its steering committee on e-mental health of which Dr. Cohen as 
well as other psychologists were part. The report can be found at 
https://www.mentalhealthcommission.ca/English/system/files/private/document/MHCC_E-Mental_Health-
Briefing_Document_ENG.pdf CPA continues to be represented by Dr. Marnin Heisel on the MHCC’s suicide 
collaborative. 

The CPA was pleased to write a letter of support for the renewed mandate of the MHCC, a mandate which was 
ultimately renewed in the 2015 Federal budget released in April 2015. 

Department of National Defence (DND). CPA continues to work with the Department of National Defence on 
the issue of recruitment and retention of psychologists. We have had a series of meetings over the course of 
2014 and believe that our messages about the need for DND involvement in training and the need for 
meaningful conditions of work have been heard. In 2015, CPA launched a web-based workshop on PTSD in 
military populations via http://www.cpa.ca/professionaldevelopment/webcourses/catalogue. In addition CPA 
was consulted by the research officer from DND inquiring about CPA’s policy and guidance on the conduct of 
ethical research. 

http://www.cpa.ca/professionaldevelopment/webcourses/catalogue
https://www.mentalhealthcommission.ca/English/system/files/private/document/MHCC_E�Mental_Health
http:http://www.camimh.ca
http:http://healthactionlobby.ca


            
                 

               
    

 
                
                   

                   
                    

                  
   

 

                                                
                

      
  

Canadian Concussion Collaborative. CPA recently advocated for membership on this inter-professional alliance 
organized to improve strategies for concussion management. We are giving voice to the role of the psychologist 
in assessment of concussion and treatment of mental health related issues especially among those with 
challenges returning to sport. 

Conference Board of Canada (CBoC). CPA’s CEO participated in a CBoC consultation on chronic disease 
prevention and management as well as sits on an advisory committee on healthy brains in the workplace. In 
the latter capacity, she had the opportunity to contribute to the development of a survey of employers on the 
programs and benefit plans they afford to their employees for health and wellness. This work is still ongoing. 
Dr. Cohen also attended a CBoC event in April of leaders from across sectors on collaboration in health 
systems and care. 

i This report, including CPA’s 2014 audited financial statements can be found in the 2014/15 Annual 
Report to the membership posted at 
http://www.cpa.ca/docs/File/Governance/2015Convention/2015%20Annual%20report_FINAL.pdf 

http://www.cpa.ca/docs/File/Governance/2015Convention/2015%20Annual%20report_FINAL.pdf


     
    

 

 
    

     

  
   

  

 

  

  

   
 

  
  

     
    
   

   
 

  

 

  
 

  
   

    
  

   
  

National Council of Schools and Programs of Professional Psychology (NCSPP) 
Liaison report to Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards (ASPPB) 

August 2015 

Founded in 1976, NCSPP is an organization composed of delegates from programs and schools of 
professional psychology. There are 65 Members (all APA-accredited) and 17 Associate Members in 
NCSPP, and these schools and programs graduate approximately half of the professional psychologists in 
the United States on an annual basis. As affirmed at its 1994 Midwinter conference, NCSPP is committed 
to developing psychology as a socially responsible science that has “a central role in improving our 
society.” Our goal is to advance the development of the highest quality of graduate training in 
professional psychology by: 

The NCSPP Executive Committee: 
•	 President: Hideko Sera, PsyD (Minnesota School of Professional Psychology at Argosy
 

University)
 
•	 President-Elect: Lavita Nadkarni, PhD (University of Denver – Graduate School of Professional

Psychology) 
•	 Past President: Stephanie C. Wood, PhD, MHA (California School of Professional Psychology, 

Alliant International  University) 
•	 Secretary/Treasurer: Robert Perl, PsyD (American School of Professional Psychology at Argosy 

University, San Francisco Bay Area) 
•	 Chair of Ethnic Racial Diversity Committee: Crystal S. Collier, PsyD (Florida School of
 

Professional Psychology at Argosy University)
 
•	 Chair of Women’s Issues Committee: Alicia del Prado, PhD (The Wright Institute) 
•	 Chair of Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual, Transgender Committee: Robert Barrett, PhD (College of 

Clinical Psychology at Argosy University) 

Additionally, there are six appointed committee chairs: 
•	 Accreditation Committee: Diana Concannon, PsyD, PCI (California School of Professional 

Psychology, Alliant International University) 
•	 Advocacy for Professional Training Issues Committee: Gilbert Newman, PhD (The Wright 

Institute) 
•	 Clinical Training Committee: Randy Wyatt, PhD (California School of Professional Psychology, 

Alliant International University) 
•	 Education and Pedagogy Committee: Lavita Nadkarni, PhD (University of Denver – Graduate 

School of Professional Psychology) 
•	 Research and Evaluation Committee: Jennifer Ripley, PhD (Regent University) 
•	 Student Mentor: Veronique Thompson, PhD (The Wright Institute) 

NCSPP elected representatives to the CoA are: Clark Campbell, PhD, ABPP (Rosemead School of 
Psychology, Biola University) and Philinda Hutchings, PhD, ABPP (Midwestern University). Dr. 
Campbell has been reelected to serve the 2016-18 term. 

BEA/NCSPP joint leadership appointed CoA representative: Gilbert Newman, PhD (The Wright 
Institute) 

http://www.ncspp.info/ec.htm
http://www.ncspp.info/advocacy.htm
http://www.ncspp.info/ctc1.htm
http://www.ncspp.info/rec1.htm
http://www.ncspp.info/rec1.htm


 
  

      

 
   

  
    

  
 

  
  

  
 

  
 

  
   

  
   

   
  

  
  

 

 
    

  
    

 
  

  
      

      
  

   

 

  

2014-2015 Activities: 
I.	 NCSPP will be continuing its grants program to member programs to provide seed money to help 


internships move toward accreditation. There was one award in the amount of $5,000 in 2015. 


II.	 The NCSPP Mid-Winter conference on Positioning Professional Psychology in Today’s 
Healthcare: Ensuring Our Graduates’ Relevance took place in San Diego, California in January, 
2015. The conference program began with the MLK Day of Service which was led by the ERDC 
Chair, Dr. Crystal Collier. For this annual ERDC Service Day/Project, NCSPP partnered with the 
local non-profit organization, Hannah’s House, which has been providing more than 7,500 hours of 
parenting time to over 1,700 San Diego families annually since 1988. Approximately 30 people 
participated. 

The second day of the program consisted of APA site visitor training, diversity/social justice training 
for Directors of Clinical Training, and an APA advocacy workshop. 

Conference programming focused on understanding the impact of the Affordable Care Act on the 
present and future of psychologists, identifying internship experiences that can more effectively 
prepare students, and considering what additional competencies and methods of assessment are 
needed for a variety of healthcare environments. NCSPP was honored to have Dr. Ronald Rozensky 
as the keynote speaker. In addition to a broad range of excellent presenters, Drs. Katherine Nordal 
and Gwen Keita presented on future directions of the Practice and Public Interest Directorates in 
response to the Affordable Care Act. 

III.	 The 2016 NCSPP Mid-Winter conference on Creating Mentorship Pipelines will take 
place in Atlanta (Buckhead), Georgia in January. The conference program will begin with 
the annual MLK Day of Service, and the second day of the program will consist of APA site 
visitor training, APA self study training, training for Directors of Clinical Training, and an APA 
advocacy workshop. As the new SoA training for self studies and for site visitors will be available 
by the Commission on Accreditation in January, 2016, NCSPP expects a high volume of attendance 
for these trainings. Conference programming will focus on various aspects of mentorship within 
training and education such as mentorship for students, junior faculty, peer mentorship, and 
mentoring training site supervisors to effectively mentor our students. 

IV.	 NCSPP continues to honor strong commitments to diversity in training and education. 
ERDC and WIC were involved in having NCSPP as the first training council to endorse 
and support the Call to Action Statement on the one year anniversary of the abduction of 
the Nigerian school girls. ERDC, WIC, and GLBTC have created individual listservs to 
better communicate ongoing projects among delegates. GLBTC continues to monitor 
important training issues for transgender students and faculty. 

NCSPP Continued Priorities: 
The Research and Evaluation Committee has gathered C-20 data for all member programs on internship 
placement and match rates. NCSPP Executive Committee plans to mentor programs with low placement 
rates to discuss these results and explore ways to improve them.  We continue to dialogue about member 
program placement rates and expectations for membership. 

Respectfully submitted on behalf of NCSPP, 

Hideko Sera, President 
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ASPPB Acronym List
 

-A-	 -C-

AASPB	 American Association of State 
Psychology Boards (former name of 
ASPPB) 

ABPP	 American Board of Professional 
Psychology www.abpp.org 

ACCA	 Advisory Committee on Colleague 
Assistance (APA) 
http://www.apa.org/practice/leadership/c 
olleague-assistance.aspx 

ACCTA	 Association of Counseling Center 
Training Agencies http://www.accta.net/ 

ACPRO	 Association of Canadian Psychology 
Regulatory Organizations 
http://www.acpro-aocrp.ca/ 

APA	 American Psychological Association 
www.apa.org 

APA Council	 APA Council of Representatives 
http://www.apa.org/about/governance/co 
uncil/index.aspx 

APAGS	 American Psychological Association of 
Graduate Students (APA) 
www.apa.org/apags/ 

APPIC	 Association of Psychology Postdoctoral 
and Internship Centers www.appic.org 

ASPPB	 Association of State and Provincial 
Psychology Boards www.asppb.net 

-B-

BARC	 Board Administrators/Registrars 
Committee (ASPPB) 

BEA	 APA Board of Educational Affairs 
http://www.apa.org/ed/governance/bea/i 
ndex.aspx 

BPA	 APA Board of Professional Affairs 
http://www.apa.org/practice/leadership/b 
pa/index.aspx 

CATF 

CAPP 

CCHPTP 

CCOPP 

CCPPP 

CCPTP 

CCTC 

CDSPP 

CEC 

CECP 

CESPPA 

CLEAR 

CoA 

CODI 

COPPPP 

Competency Assessment Task Force 
(ASPPB) 

Committee for the Advancement of 
Professional Practice (APA) 
http://www.apa.org/practice/leadership/c 
app/index.aspx 

Council of Clinical Health Psychology 
Training Programs 
http://community.wvu.edu/~ktl000/CCHP 
TP/index.htm 

Council of Credentialing Organizations in 
Professional Psychology 
http://www.apa.org/ed/graduate/specializ 
e/ccopp.aspx 

Canadian Council of Professional 
Psychology Programs 
http://www.ccppp.ca/ 

Council of Counseling Psychology 
Training Programs 
http://www.ccptp.org/ 

Council of Chairs of Training Councils 
http://psychtrainingcouncils.org/ 

Council of Directors of School Psychology 
Programs 
https://sites.google.com/site/cdspphome/ 

Committee on Exam Coordination 

APA Committee on Early Career 
Psychologists 
http://www.apa.org/careers/early­
career/committee/index.aspx 

Council of Executives of State, 
Provincial (and Territorial) Psychological 
Associations 

Council on Licensure, Enforcement and 
Regulation http://www.clearhq.org/ 

APA Commission on Accreditation 
http://www.apa.org/ed/accreditation/ 

ASPPB Committee on Disciplinary 
Issues (ASPPB) 

Council of Postdoctoral Programs in 
Professional Psychology 

http://www.abpp.org/
http://www.apa.org/practice/leadership/colleague-assistance.aspx
http://www.apa.org/practice/leadership/colleague-assistance.aspx
http://www.accta.net/
http://www.acpro-aocrp.ca/
http://www.apa.org/
http://www.apa.org/about/governance/council/index.aspx
http://www.apa.org/about/governance/council/index.aspx
http://www.apa.org/apags/
http://www.appic.org/
http://www.asppb.net/
http://www.apa.org/ed/governance/bea/index.aspx
http://www.apa.org/ed/governance/bea/index.aspx
http://www.apa.org/practice/leadership/bpa/index.aspx
http://www.apa.org/practice/leadership/bpa/index.aspx
http://www.apa.org/practice/leadership/capp/index.aspx
http://www.apa.org/practice/leadership/capp/index.aspx
http://community.wvu.edu/%7Ektl000/CCHPTP/index.htm
http://community.wvu.edu/%7Ektl000/CCHPTP/index.htm
http://www.apa.org/ed/graduate/specialize/ccopp.aspx
http://www.apa.org/ed/graduate/specialize/ccopp.aspx
http://www.ccppp.ca/
http://www.ccptp.org/
http://psychtrainingcouncils.org/
https://sites.google.com/site/cdspphome/
http://www.apa.org/careers/early-career/committee/index.aspx
http://www.apa.org/careers/early-career/committee/index.aspx
http://www.clearhq.org/
http://www.apa.org/ed/accreditation/


 
 

  
     

  
  

 
    

 
   

  

  
  

  

  

   
     

 

   

  

 

  
      

   

  

 
 

   

 

   

  
     

 

 
 

 

 
     

 
    

 

 

  

  

 

 
 

 
 

 

  
  

  

   
  

  

 

   
 

  

ASPPB Acronym List 
Page 2 

CoS	 Council of Specialties in Professional 
Psychology http://cospp.org/ 

CPA	 Canadian Psychological Association 
http://www.cpa.ca/ 

CPQ	 Certificate of Professional Qualification 
in Psychology 

CRHSPP	 Canadian Register of Health Service 
Providers in Psychology 
http://www.crhspp.ca/ 

CRSPPP	 APA Commission for the Recognition of 
Specialties and Proficiencies in 
Professional Psychology 
http://www.apa.org/ed/graduate/specializ 
e/crsppp.aspx 

CUDCP	 Council of University Directors of Clinical 
Psychology http://cudcp.us/ 

-D-

Division 13	 APA Society of Consulting Psychology 
http://www.apadivisions.org/division­
13/index.aspx 

-E-

EFPA	 European Federation of Psychologists 
Associations http://www.efpa.eu/ 

ELC	 APA Education Leadership Conference 
http://www.apa.org/ed/governance/elc/in 
dex.aspx 

EPPP	 Examination for Professional Practice in 
Psychology 

ExC	 Examination Committee (ASPPB) 

-F-

FAC	 Finance & Audit Committee (ASPPB) 

FARB	 Federation of Associations of Regulatory 
Boards http://www.farb.org/ 

HIPAA
 

IAAP
 

ICE
 

IDC 

I/O 

IPC 

JDAC 

JDC 

MARC 

MOB 

MOCAL 

MYM 

NCSPP 

-H-

Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act 

-I-

International Association of Applied 
Psychology http://www.iaapsy.org/ 

Institute for Credentialing Excellence 
(formerly NOCA) 
http://www.credentialingexcellence.org/ 

Item Development Committee 

Industrial Organizational (Psychology) 

Interjurisdictional Practice Certificate 

-J-

Joint Designation Appeals Committee 
(ASPPB/NR) 

Joint Designation Committee 
(ASPPB/NR) 

-M-

Model Act and Regulations Committee 
(ASPPB) 

Mobility Committee (ASPPB)
 

Task Force on Maintenance of
 
Competence and Licensure (ASPPB)
 

Midyear Meeting
 

-N-

National Council of Schools of 
Professional Psychology 
http://www.ncspp.info/ 

http://cospp.org/
http://www.cpa.ca/
http://www.crhspp.ca/
http://www.apa.org/ed/graduate/specialize/crsppp.aspx
http://www.apa.org/ed/graduate/specialize/crsppp.aspx
http://cudcp.us/
http://www.apadivisions.org/division-13/index.aspx
http://www.apadivisions.org/division-13/index.aspx
http://www.efpa.eu/
http://www.apa.org/ed/governance/elc/index.aspx
http://www.apa.org/ed/governance/elc/index.aspx
http://www.farb.org/
http://www.iaapsy.org/
http://www.credentialingexcellence.org/
http://www.ncspp.info/


 
 

  
 

  

 
 

  

 

  

   
 

  
 

 

   
  

  
  

  

 

  
   

   

  

  

  

ASPPB Acronym List 
Page 3 

NOCA Former name of Institute for 
Credentialing Excellence (ICE) 

NOMS Nominations Committee (ASPPB) 

NR National Register of Health Service 
Providers in Psychology 
http://www.nationalregister.org/ 

-P-

P&P Policies & Procedures 

PARRP Practice Analysis Research Review 
Panel Task Force 

PEPPP Practice Examination for Professional 
Practice in Psychology (at Prometric 
testing centers) 

PEPPPO Practice Examination for Professional 
Practice in Psychology Online (online) 

PES Professional Examination Service 
http://www.proexam.org/ 

PLUS Psychology Licensure Universal System 

-S-

SIOP Society for Industrial and Organizational 
Psychology – APA Division 14 
http://www.siop.org/ 
http://www.apa.org/about/division/div14. 
aspx 

SLC APA State Leadership Conference 
http://www.apapracticecentral.org/advoc 
acy/state/slc.aspx 

http://www.nationalregister.org/
http://www.proexam.org/
http://www.siop.org/
http://www.apa.org/about/division/div14.aspx
http://www.apa.org/about/division/div14.aspx
http://www.apapracticecentral.org/advocacy/state/slc.aspx
http://www.apapracticecentral.org/advocacy/state/slc.aspx
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